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OFFERING MEMORANDUM

THE OFFERING CIRCULAR MAY ONLY BE DISTRIBUTED TO PERSONS WHO ARE NON-U.S. PERSONS (AS
DEFINED IN REGULATION S UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT")
ON AN OFFSHORE BASIS OUTSIDE OF THE UNITED STATES.

ARRTRI R LNLFgLaba | prrite

Sampre Nutritions Limited

Offering 100 Unsecured Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds of US$ 10,000,000.00 (Ten Million
United States Dollars) Coupon @ 0.00, Issue Price of each FCCB is USS 100,000.00 (Hundred Thousand United
States Dollars) at 15% Discount of issue price due in 2027

Sampre Nutritions Limited, a public limited Company, incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956
(the “Issuer”), is hereby offering (the “Offering”) USS 10,000,000.00 (Ten Million United States Dollars)
aggregate principal amount at zero coupon, 100 Unsecured Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds at
15% discount of issue price with maturity tenure of 37 months due in 2027 (the “Bonds”).

Unless previously converted, redeemed, repurchased or cancelled, the Bonds are convertible on or after
15t July 2024 (the “Closing Date”) and prior to 24™ July, 2027 (the “Maturity Date”) by holders of the Bonds
(the “Bondholders”) into the Company’s newly issued, ordinary shares of par value Rs. 10.00 per share (the
“Shares”) on the terms described herein at the option of the Bondholder, at a Conversion Price as provided
herein. The Conversion Price is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. For the terms of the
conversion rights, see “Terms and Conditions of the Bonds — Conversion”.

The Company, subject to Applicable Laws regulating issue of FCCBs in India, may also redeem the Bonds in
whole at any time at the Company’s option at the Early Redemption Amount together with accrued and
unpaid interest in the event of certain changes relating to taxation in the Republic of India (“India”). Unless
previously converted, redeemed, repurchased or cancelled, the Bonds will be redeemed 24" July, 2027 at
100% of their principal amount. The Company will make an offer to repurchase any outstanding Bonds at
the Early Redemption Amount together with accrued and unpaid interest upon the occurrence of a Change
of Control (as defined herein), a Delisting (as defined herein) of the Shares from the BSE Limited (the “BSE”)
or a Non-Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment Event (as defined herein). See “Terms and Conditions of
the Bonds”. Any redemption prior to the Maturity Date, however, whether at the option of the Company
or the Bondholders, is subject to prior receipt of approval from the Reserve Bank of India (the “RBI"”).

The Bonds will be represented by a single Global Certificate (as defined herein) which will be issued in the
name of Global Focus Fund Ltd. and deposited with SBM Fund Services Ltd, Mauritius. Except in the limited
circumstances described in the Global Certificate, owners of interests in Bonds will not be entitled to receive
physical delivery of Certificates. The Bonds are not issuable in bearer form.

The Bonds and the Shares to be issued upon conversion of the Bonds have not been and will not be
registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). The Bonds are being
offered and sold in offshore transactions outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the
Securities Act (“Regulation S”). Subject to certain exceptions,the Bonds may not be offered,sold, or
delivered within the United States (as defined in Regulations). For a description of certain restrictions on
offers, sales and transfers of the Bonds, see "Transfer Restriction". The Bonds may not be offered or sold
directly or indirectly in India or to, or for the account or benefit of, any resident of India, except in certain
limited circumstances.

The Bonds will constitute the Company’s direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations



and will at all times rank pari passu and without any preference or priority among themselves. The
Company’s payment obligations under the Bonds shall, save for such exceptions as may be provided by
mandatory provisions of applicable law, at all times rank at least equally with all of its other present and
future direct, unconditional, unsubordinated, and unsecured obligations.

Where Bonds are cancelled and converted into GDRs, the GDRs shall be GDRs without any voting rights
until completion of cancellation of the GDRs and their conversion into the Equity Shares of the Issuer.

Bonds

Application is being made for the listing of the Bonds on the Afrinex Securities List (ASL) and approval has
been sought for the listing of the Bonds on the AFRINEX Securities List of the AFRINEX (the “Exchange”).
The approval will be granted when the Bonds have been admitted to the AFRINEX Securities List. The
AFRINEX assumes no responsibility for the correctness of any statements made, opinions expressed or
reports contained in this Offering Memorandum. Approval for the listing of the Bonds on the AFRINEX are
not to be taken as an indication of the merits of the Bonds or the Guarantees, or of the Issuer, the Guarantor
or their respective subsidiaries or associated companies (if any).

This Offering Memorandum has not been and will not be filed, registered, produced, published or made
available as an offer document (whether as a prospectus in respect of a public offer or information
memorandum or private placement offer cum application letter or other offering material in respect of any
private placement, under the Indian Companies Act, 2013, as amended or any other applicable Indian laws)
with the Registrar of Companies in India, the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the Indian stock
exchanges or any other statutory or regulatory body of like nature in India save and except for any
information from any part of this Offering Memorandum which is (i) mandatorily required to be disclosed
or filed in India under any applicable Indian laws, including but not limited to, the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015, as amended, and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
or (ii) pursuant to the sanction of any regulatory and adjudicatory body in India.

AFRINEX and Afrinex Clearing House Limited (ACHL) takes no responsibility for the contents of this
Offering Memorandum, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaims any liability for any loss arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this document

The contents of this Offering Memorandum, along with any other related documents, are
prepared in strict accordance with the Rulebook for Admission to AFRINEX Securities List
(“Rulebook”). It is hereby affirmed that no part of these documents shall be in conflict with the said
Rulebook. Any perceived discrepancy should be considered an unintentional error and brought to
the immediate attention of the Issuer for rectification. The ownership, transfer, conversion,
redemption, repurchase, or cancellation of listed Bonds shall be governed by the Rulebook until the
time the Bonds are listed.

Investing in the Bonds involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 33.

For additional information about eligible offerees and transfer restrictions, see “Important
Information for Investors” and “Notice to Investors.”

Delivery of the Bonds in book-entry form only will be made on or about the Closing Date.



Lead Merchant Banker Lead Manager

GYR Capital Advisors Private Limited Aries Capital Limited
428, Gala Empire, Drive In Rd, near JB Tower Sofia House 3™ Floor,48 Church Street Hamilton,
Nilmani Society, Thaltej, Ahmedabad, Gujarat HM 12 Bermuda

380054, India

You should rely only on the information contained in this Offering Memorandum. None of the
Issuer, or the Lead Manager have authorized anyone to provide you with information that is different
from the information contained herein. None of the Issuer, and the Lead Manager are making an offer
of these Bonds in any jurisdiction where such an offer is not permitted. You should not assume that
the information contained in this Offering Memorandum is accurate as of any date other than the
date on the front of this Offering Memorandum. Our business or financial condition and other
information contained in this Offering Memorandum may change after that date.

The date of this Offering Memorandum is 24" June, 2024.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

The Company accepts full responsibility for the information contained in this document (the “Offering
Memorandum”) and confirms that this Offering Memorandum contains the information that potential
investors and their professional advisors would reasonably require taking into account market practice. To
the best of the Company’s knowledge, all reasonable care has been taken to ensure that the information
contained in this Offering Memorandum is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to
affect the import of such information. You acknowledge and agree that no representation or warranty,
express or implied, is made by AFRINEX , Aries Capital Limited ( the “Lead Manager”), BigShare Services
Private Limited (the “Registrar”), any of its Agents or any of their respective affiliates or legal advisors as to
the accuracy or completeness of the information set out herein, and nothing contained in this Offering
Memorandum may be relied upon as a promise or representation by the Lead Manager or any of the Agents
or their respective affiliates and legal advisors as to past or future events.

Neither AFRINEX, ACHL, the Registrar or any of the Agents, the Lead Merchant Banker or the Lead Manager
have independently verified the information contained in this Offering Memorandum. No representation or
warranty, express or implied, is made by AFRINEX , the Registrar or any of the Agents, the Lead Merchant
Banker or the Lead Manager, or any of their respective affiliates or legal advisors as to the accuracy or
completeness of such information, and nothing contained in this Offering Memorandum (including its
schedules) is, or shall be relied upon as, a promise or representation by AFRINEX , the Registrar or the Agents,
the Lead Merchant Banker or the Lead Manager, or any of their respective affiliates or legal advisors
regarding, and no responsibility or liability is accepted by any of them as to, the accuracy or completeness of
the information contained in this Offering Memorandum or any other information provided by the Company
in connection with the issue of the Bonds or Shares. This Offering Memorandum should not be considered
as a recommendation by the Registrar or any of the Agents, the Lead Merchant Banker or the Lead Manager
that any recipient of this Offering Memorandum should purchase the Bonds.

Furthermore, AFRINEX, the Registrar, the Agents, the Lead Merchant Banker and the Lead Manager or any
of their respective affiliates or legal advisors disclaim any liability from any claim, demand or action arising
against the Company, any of the Agents, the Lead Merchant Banker and the Lead Manager and from any loss
suffered or incurred, whether known or unknown, that is in any way connected with this document.

This Offering Memorandum does not constitute a prospectus for the purposes of or any other provision of
or rule under the U.S. Securities Act.

THE BONDS EVIDENCED HEREBY (THE “BONDS”) AND THE SHARES OF SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED (THE
“ISSUER”) ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THE BONDS (THE “SHARES”) HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE
REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR
WITH ANY SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF THE UNITED
STATES, AND PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION OF THE 40-DAY PERIOD BEGINNING ON THE LATER OF THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE BOND OFFERING AND THE CLOSING OF THE BOND OFFERING (THE “DISTRIBUTION
COMPLIANCE PERIOD”), THE BONDS AND THE SHARES ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THE BONDS MAY
NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR TO, OR FOR
THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF U.S. PERSONS EXCEPT IN CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS OR EXCEPT IN AN OFFSHORE
TRANSACTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 903 AND RULE 904 OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT.

In making an investment decision regarding the Bonds offered hereby, you must rely on your own
examination of the Issuer and the terms of the Offering, including the merits and risks involved. You should
base your decision to invest in the Bonds only on the information contained in this Offering Memorandum.
Neither we, the Lead Merchant Banker or the Lead Manager have authorized any other person to provide
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you with information that is different from the information contained herein. If anyone provides you with
different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. You should assume that the information
appearing in this Offering Memorandum is accurate as of the date on the front cover of this Offering
Memorandum only. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and the information set forth
in this Offering Memorandum may have changed since that date. This Offering Memorandum is based
on information provided by us and other sources believed by us to be reliable. The Lead Manager is not
responsible for, and is not making any representation or warranty to you concerning, our future
performance or the accuracy or completeness of this Offering Memorandum.

This Offering Memorandum does not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which
such offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or
solicitation. No action has been, or will be, taken to permit a public offering in any jurisdiction where action
would be required for that purpose. Accordingly, the Bonds may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly,
and this Offering Memorandum may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction except in accordance with the
legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. You must comply with all laws applicable in any jurisdiction
in which you buy, offer, or sell the Bonds or possess or distribute this Offering Memorandum, and you must
obtain all applicable consents and approvals; neither we, the Lead Merchant Banker or the Lead Manager
shall have any responsibility for any of the foregoing legal requirements. See “Notice to Investors and
Transfer Restrictions”

You should not consider any information in this Offering Memorandum to be investment, or legal or tax
advice. You should consult your own counsel, accountant, and other advisors for investment, legal,
tax, business, financialand related advice regarding purchasing the Bonds. Neither we, the Lead Merchant
Banker or the Lead Manager is making any representation to any offeree or purchaser of the Bonds regarding
the legality of an investment in the Bonds by such offeree or purchaser under appropriate investment or
similar laws. This Offering Memorandum is to be used only for the purposes for which it has been published.

By accepting delivery of this Offering Memorandum, you agree to the foregoing restrictions, not to use any
information herein for any purpose other than considering an investment in the Bonds. You also
acknowledge that you have had an opportunity to request from us for review, and that you have received,
all additional information you deem necessary to verify the accuracy and completeness of the information
contained in this Offering Memorandum.

We obtained the market data used in this Offering Memorandum from internal surveys, industry sources and
currently available information. Although we believe that our sources are reliable, you should keep in mind
that we have not independently verified information we have obtained from industry and governmental
sources and that information from our internal surveys has not been verified by any independent sources.
See “Market and Industry Data.”

The contents of our website https://www.sampreltd.com/index.php do not form any part of this Offering
Memorandum.

We may withdraw the Offering at any time, and we reserve the right to reject any offer to purchase the Bonds
in whole or in part and to sell to any prospective investor less than the full amount of the Bonds sought by
such investor. The Lead Manager and certain related entities may acquire a portion of the Bonds for their
own accounts.

The Bonds have not been approved or disapproved by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, any
state securities commission in the United States or any other U.S. regulatory authority, nor have any of the
foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the Offering or the accuracy or adequacy of
this Offering Memorandum. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense in the United States.



The Bonds are being offered and sold outside the United States in offshore transactions in reliance on
Regulation S For a description of these and certain other restrictions on offers, sales and transfers of the
Bonds and the distribution of this Offering Memorandum, see “Notice to Investors and Transfer Restrictions”

The Company has undertaken to apply to have the Shares issuable upon conversion of the Bonds approved
for listing on the BSE. There can be no assurance that such Shares will in fact be admitted to listing on the
BSE and once listed will continue to be listed.

The Shares of the Company are listed on the “BSE” (referred to as the “Indian Stock Exchange”). The closing
price of the Company’s outstanding Shares on the BSE as on 8" May 2024 was INR 67.48 per Share. The
Company has received in-principle approval dated 8" May 2024 from BSE for listing the Shares issued upon
conversion of the Bonds.

The distribution of this Offering Memorandum and the offer and sale of the Bonds may be restricted by
law in certain jurisdictions. You must inform yourself about, and observe, any such restrictions. You must
comply with all applicable laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction in which you purchase, offer, or
sell the Bonds or possess or distribute this Offering Memorandum and must obtain any consent, approval or
permission required for your purchase, offer or sale of the Bonds under the laws and regulations in force in
any jurisdiction to which you are subject or in which you make such purchases, offers or sales. We, the Lead
Merchant Banker and the Lead Manager is not, making an offer to sell the Bonds or a solicitation of an offer
to buy any of the Bonds to any person in any jurisdiction except where such an offer or solicitation is
permitted.

The information set forth in relation to sections of this Offering Memorandum describing clearing and
settlement arrangements, including “Terms and Conditions of the Bonds and “Book Entry, Delivery and
Form,” is subject to any change in or reinterpretation of the rules, regulations, and procedures of Afrinex
Clearing House Limited currently in effect. While we accept responsibility for accurately summarizing the
information concerning Afrinex Clearing House Limited, we accept no further responsibility in respect of such
information.

Any potential investor in, and purchaser of, the Bonds should pay particular attention to the fact that we
are governed in India by a legal and regulatory environment which in some material respects may be
different from that which prevails in the United Kingdom, United States, Luxembourg, Mauritius and other
countries. Prior to making an investment decision, prospective investors and purchasers should carefully
consider all of the information contained in this Offering Memorandum (including the financial
statements).

For a discussion of certain factors that should be considered prior to making an investment in Bonds, see
the section headed “Risk Factors” beginning on page 33.



NOTICE TO ALL PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS

THE BONDS SHALL NOT BE OFFERED TO THE PUBLIC WITHIN ANY JURISDICTION. BY ACCEPTING
DELIVERY OF THIS OFFERING MEMORANDUM, YOU AGREE NOT TO OFFER, SELL, RESELL, TRANSFER
OR DELIVER, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY BONDS TO THE PUBLIC.

NOTICETO U.S. INVESTORS

The Bonds and the shares have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be
offered or sold within the United States except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject
to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act. The Lead Manager has represented that it has not
offered or sold, and agreed that it will not offer or sell, any Bonds constituting part of its allotment except in
accordance with Regulation S under the Securities Act. Accordingly, neither the Lead Manager, nor its
affiliates, nor any persons acting on its or their behalf have engaged or will engage in any directed selling
efforts with respect to the Bonds. The Bonds may be offered and sold to non-U.S. persons outside the United
States in reliance on Rule 903 or Rule 904 of Regulation S. For a description of certain further restrictions on
the resale or transfer of the Bonds, see “Transfer Restriction.”

The Bonds described in this Offering Memorandum have not been registered with, recommended by, or
approved by the SEC, any state securities commission in the United States or any other securities commission
or regulatory authority, nor has the SEC, any state securities commission in the United States or any other
such securities commission or authority passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this Offering Memorandum.
Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

In addition, until 40 days after the later of the commencement of the offering of the Bonds and the latest
closing date of the issue of the Bonds, an offer or sale of Bonds or the Shares within the United States or to
any U.S. person by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the registration
requirements of the Securities Act.

Terms used in this paragraph have the meaning given to them by Regulation S under the Securities Act.

NOTICE TO UK INVESTORS

This Offering Memorandum has been prepared on the basis that any offer of the Bonds in the United
Kingdom (“UK”) will be made pursuant to an exemption under Regulation (EU)2017/1129 (as amended
by The Prospectus (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019) as it forms part of domestic law by virtue
of the EUWA (the “UK Prospectus Regulation”) from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers
of the Bonds. Accordingly, any person making or intending to make an offer in the UK of the Bonds which
are the subject of the offering contemplated in this Offering Memorandum may only do so in
circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or the Lead Manager to publish a prospectus
pursuant to Article 3 of the UK Prospectus Regulation, in each case, in relation to such offer. Neither the
Issuer nor the Lead Manager have authorized, nor do they authorize, the making of any offer of the
Bonds in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the Issuer or any of the Lead Manager to publish
a prospectus for such offer.

Prohibition of sales to UK retail investors: The Bonds are not intended to be offered, sold, or otherwise
made available to and should not be offered, sold, or otherwise made available to any retail investor in
the United Kingdom. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a
retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of domestic
law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the “EUWA”) or (ii) a customer within the
meaning of the provisionsof the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the “FSMA”) and any rules or
regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not
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qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it
forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2
of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the “UK Prospectus
Regulation”). Consequently, no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as
it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the “UK PRIIPs Regulation”) for offering or selling
the Bonds or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and,
therefore, offering or selling the Bonds or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the
UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.

NOTICE TO MAURITIUS INVESTORS

Prohibition of sales to Mauritius retail investors: The Bonds are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise
made available to, and with effect from such date, should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available
to any retail investor in Mauritius. For these purposes a “retail investor” is as defined in the Securities Act
2005, as applicable in Mauritius.

Financial Promotion Order

This Offering Memorandum is for distribution only to persons who (i) have professional experience in matters
relating to investments falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial
Promotion) Order 2005, as amended (the “Financial Promotion Order”), (ii) are persons falling within Article
49(2)(a) to (d) (“high net worth companies, unincorporated associations etc.”) of the Financial Promotion
Order, (iii) are outside the UK, or (iv) are persons to whom an invitation or inducement to engage in
investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA) in connection with the issue or sale of
any Bonds may otherwise lawfully be communicated or caused to be communicated (all such persons
together being referred to as “relevant persons”). This Offering Memorandum is directed only at relevant
persons and must not be acted on or relied on by persons who are not relevant persons. Any investment or
investment activity to which this Offering Memorandum relates is available only to relevant persons and will
be engaged in only with relevant persons. Relevant persons should note that all, or most, of the protections
offered by the UK regulatory system will not apply to an investment in the Bonds and that compensation
will not be available under the UK Financial Services Compensation Scheme.

This Offering Memorandum or any material relating to the Bonds has not been and will not be circulated or
distributed to any prospective investor who is not a resident of an FATF or IOSCO compliant jurisdiction, and
the Bonds will not be offered or sold or transferred and have not been offered or sold or transferred to any
person who is not a resident of an FATF or IOSCO compliant jurisdiction.



PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

Financial Information

This Offering Memorandum includes and primarily discusses the historical standalone financial
information of the Issuer and its subsidiaries. Sampre Nutritions Limited is a public limited company
incorporated under the laws of India, with its corporate seat Plot No: 133, Industrial Estate, Medchal,
Telangana-501401 India.

In this Offering Memorandum, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise indicates or implies,
references to “you”, “your”, “purchaser”, “subscriber”, “recipient”, “investors” and “potential investor”
are to the investors pursuant to the Issue. In this Offering Circular, references to (a) “Rs.”, “Rupees”, “INR”,
“Indian Rupees” or “X” are to the legal currency of the Republic of India and (b) “USD”, “USS” and “U.S.
Dollars” are to the legal currency of the United States. All references herein to the “U.S.” or the “United
States” are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions and all references to “India”
are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions. All references herein to the “Central
Government”, “Government”, “Government of India” or “State Government” are to the Government of
India, central or state, as applicable. All the numbers in this document, have been presented in million or
in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to present in million, unless stated otherwise

The financial year of our Company commences on 1 April of each calendar year and ends on 31 March of
the following calendar year, and, unless otherwise specified or if the context requires otherwise. The
terms “fiscal”, “fiscal year” or “Fiscal Year”, refer to the 12 month period ending, or as of 31 March of that
year (as the case may be).

Our Company publishes its financial statements in Indian Rupees

Historical Financial Information
With respect to Sampre Nutritions Limited, this Offering Memorandum includes:

The audited standalone financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(the “2021 Standalone Financial Statements”);

The audited standalone financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022
(the “2022 Standalone Financial Statements”);

The audited standalone financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(the “2023 Standalone Financial Statements”); and

The 2023 Interim standalone Financial Statements, 2022 Interim standalone Financial Statements, 2021
Interim standalone Financial Statements along with the 2022 Standalone Financial Statements, 2021
Standalone Financial Statements and 2020 Standalone Financial Statements, is together referred to as the
“Standalone Financial Statements”.

In addition, unless otherwise stated herein, we have derived the unaudited financial results for nine
months till December 31, 2023, included in this Offering Memorandum in compliance with the regulation
33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Disclosure, 2015.

The 2021 Standalone Financial Statements, 2022 Standalone Financial Statements and 2023 Standalone
Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS) and
as notified under section 133 of the Indian Companies Act 2013. The preparation of financial statements
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS) requires us to use certain critical accounting
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estimates. It also requires our board of directors to exercise its judgment in the process of applying our
accounting policies.

Ind AS differs from accounting principles with which prospective investors may be familiar in other
countries, including IFRS and US GAAP and the reconciliation of the financial information to other
accounting principles has not been provided. No attempt has been made to explain those differences or
quantify their impact on the financial data included in this Offering Memorandum and investors should
consult their own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our Company’s financial data.
The degree to which the financial information included in this Offering Memorandum will provide
meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting
policies and practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act and the SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2022 (“LODR Regulations)”. Any reliance
by persons not familiar with Ind AS, the Companies Act, 2013 the SEBI LODR Regulations and practices on
the financial disclosures presented in this Offering Memorandum should accordingly be limited.

The Audited Standalone Financial Statements should be read along with the respective audit reports, and
the Unaudited Interim Standalone Financial Statements should be read along with the limited review
report issued thereon.

The Financial Statements included in this Offering Memorandum were prepared in English.

This Offering Memorandum includes Audited standalone financial information for year ending March
31st, 2023. The audited standalone financial information has been issued with an unmodified opinion on
the Annual Financial Results standalone of the company for thr financial year ended on 31 March 2023.

Pursuant to Indian regulatory requirements, “Annual Report” is required to accompany the Standalone
Financial Statements, therefore, such reports are included in this Offering Memorandum only in order to
comply with such regulatory requirements. Investors are strongly cautioned that the Annual Report
contain information as of various historical dates, non-financial information, as well as Management’s
views on the outlook and do not contain a current description of our business, affairs, or results. The
information contained in the Annual Report has neither been audited nor prepared for the specific
purpose of the Offering. Accordingly, the Annual Reports should be read together with the other sections
of this Offering Memorandum, and particularly “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Any information contained in the Annual Report is
deemed to be modified or superseded by any information contained elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum that is subsequent to or inconsistent with it. Furthermore, the Annual Report include
certain forward-looking statements that are subject to inherent uncertainty (see “Forward-Looking
Statements”). Accordingly, investors are urged to rely only upon the information in this Offering
Memorandum rather than upon the information contained in such Annual Report.

References to “Revenue” throughout this offering memorandum are used interchangeably with and refer
to the same figures included in the “Net Sales” line item within the standalone income statement data
from our 2023 Standalone Financial Statements.

Other Information

Certain data contained in this Offering Memorandum, including financial information, have been subject
to rounding adjustments. Accordingly, in certain instances, the sum of the numbers in a column or a row
in tables may not confirm exactly to the total figure given for that column or row or the sum of certain
numbers presented as a percentage may not conform to the total percentage given.



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Offering Memorandum contains statements under the headings “Summary,” “Risk Factors,”
“Business,” “Industry—Construction and developments of integrated township, projects and sites,”
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in other
sections that are, or may be deemed to be, forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
securities laws of certain applicable jurisdictions. These forward-looking statements include, but are not
limited to, all statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this Offering
Memorandum, including, without limitation, those regarding our future financial position and results
of operations, our strategy, plans, objectives, goals and targets, future developments in the markets in
which we participate or are seeking to participate or anticipated regulatory changes in the markets in
which we operate or intend to operate. In some cases, these forward-looking statements can be
identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, including the words “aim,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“guidance,” “forecast,” “project,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “target,” “may,” “will,” “plan,”
“predict,” “assume,” “shall,” “continue,” “potential,” “could” or “should” or, in each case, their negative
or other variations or comparable terminology or by discussions of strategies, plans, objectives, targets,
goals, future events or intentions.

” u n u

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other
factors because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the
future. The Issuer cautions you that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and are based on numerous assumptions and that our actual results of operations,
including our financial condition and liquidity and the development of the industries in which we
operate, may differ materially from (and be more negative than) those made in, or implied by, the
forward-looking statements contained in this Offering Memorandum. You should not place undue
reliance on these forward- looking statements.

In addition, even if our results of operations, including our financial condition and liquidity and the
development of the industry in which we operate, are consistent with the forward-looking statements
contained in this Offering Memorandum, those results or developments may not be indicative of results
or developments in subsequent periods. Important risks, uncertainties and other factors that could
cause these differences include, but are not limited to:

 Changes in laws and regulations relating to the sectors/areas in which we operate;

¢ Inability to identify or effectively respond to consumer needs, expectations or trends in a timely

manner;

¢ Our ability to successfully implement our growth strategy and expansion plans, and to

successfully launch and implement various projects

* Our failure to keep pace with rapid changes in technology;

¢ Our ability to meet our further capital expenditure requirements;

e Fluctuations in operating costs;

e Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel;

¢ Conflict of interest with affiliated companies, the promoter group and other related parties

¢ Changes in political and social conditions in India, the monetary and interest rate policies of

India and other countries;

¢ General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local,

regional, national and international economies;

¢ The performance of the financial markets in India and globally;

* The occurrence of natural disasters or calamities;

* Risks relating to the FCCB; and

» other factors discussed in more detail under the heading “Risk Factors.”

These risks and others described under the heading “Risk Factors” are not exhaustive. Other sections of
8



this Offering Memorandum describe additional factors that could adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition, liquidity, and the development of the industries in which we operate.
New risks can emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all such risks, nor can
we assess the impact of all such risks on our business or the extent to which any risks, or combination
of risks and other factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statements. Given these risks and uncertainties, you should not rely on forward-
looking statements as a prediction of actual results.

Any forward-looking statements are only made as of the date of this Offering Memorandum, and we do
not intend, and do not assume any obligation, to update forward-looking statements set forth in this
Offering Memorandum. You should interpret all subsequent written or oral forward-looking
statements attributable to us or to persons acting on our behalf as being qualified by the cautionary
statements in this Offering Memorandum. As a result, you should not place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements.



DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATION

In this Offering Memorandum the following expressions have the following meanings, unless the
context otherwise requires or unless it is otherwise specifically provided

“Bonds” and “Convertible Bonds” and “Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds” refers to USS
10,000,000 at Zero Coupon Unsecured Convertible Bonds due 2027 issued by Sampre
Nutritions Limited;

“Company” “Sampre,,” “Issuer,” “group,” “Group,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to the Issuer and
its Standalone subsidiaries, except where the context otherwise requires;

”»u ”u

“Closing Date"refers to the date on which the issuance of these bonds is completed and the funds
are transferred to the issuer”

“Crore” refers to the numerical figure where one crore is equal to 10,000,000.

“European Economic Area” or “EEA” refers to the trading area established by the European
Economic Area Agreement of January 1, 1994, currently comprising the Member States of the
European Union, Norway, Iceland, and Liechtenstein;

“European Union” or “EU" refers to the European economic and political union;

“IND-AS” refers to the Indian Accounting Standards as adopted by India;

“ISA” refers to International Standards of Auditing;

“Issue Date” means 24" June 2024, being the date on which the Bonds offered hereby are issued;
“Issuer” refers to Sampre Nutritions Limited,;

“Lakh” refers to Indian currency to define a Hundred Thousand

“Lien” refers to a right to keep possession of property belonging to another person until a debt
owed by that person is discharged.

“AFRINEX” refers to AFRINEX Limited.
“Member State” refers to a member state of the European Union;
“OECD” refers to the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development;

“Offering” refers to the offering of the Bonds by the Issuer and the application of the net
proceeds therefrom in the manner set forth herein under the heading “Use of Proceeds”;

Optional FCCBs Same class additional FCCBs issued on the terms and conditions of the offering
set forth in this Offering Memorandum.

“Qualified Institutional Buyer” or “QIB” has the meaning ascribed to it under Rule 144A;

“Refinancing” refers to repayment in full, at maturity, and cancellation of the Convertible Bonds;

“Regulation S” refers to Regulation S as promulgated under the U.S. Securities Act;
“Registrar” refers to Bigshare Services Private Limited;

Rule 144A” refers to Rule 144A as promulgated under the U.S. Securities Act;
“SEC” refers to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission;

“Transactions” refers to the Offering and the Refinancing;

“United States,” “U.S.” or “US” refers to the United States of America and its territories and
possessions;

“U.S. Exchange Act” refers to the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any
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successor statute, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC thereunder;

“U.S. Securities Act” refers to the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any successor
statute, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC thereunder.

“Mauritius” refers to the Republic of Mauritius.

“ACHL” refers to Afrinex Clearing House Ltd., Mauritus.
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GLOSSARY OF INDUSTRY TERMS

BIC Business Identifier Code

BSE Bombay Stock Exchange

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate

CBD Central Business District

CBDT Central Board of Direct Taxes

CBEC Central Board of Customs and Excise

Convertible Bonds A convertible bond is a fixed-income corporate debt security that yields interest payments, but

can be converted into a predetermined number of common stock or equity shares

Council Micro and Small Enterprises Facilitation Council

CSR Corporate social responsibility

DIPP Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion

DTAA Double Tax Avoidance Agreement

EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and Amortization

EIB European Investment Bank

EPF Act The Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
Equity Offering An equity offering is a public sale of shares of a Company for the purpose of raising capital.
ESI Act The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

EU European Union

EUWA European Union (Withdrawal) Act, 2018

EXIM Export-Import

FCCBs Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999

Fll Regulations Bonds and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995
FIIA Foreign Investment Implementation Authority

Flls Foreign Institutional Investors

FSMA Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investors

FY Financial Year

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Commonly-followed accounting rules and standards for financial reporting

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GOl Government of India

Gratuity Act The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
GST Goods and Service Tax

ID Act The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
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IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

IND-AS Indian Accounting Standards

INR Indian Rupee

ISO International Organization for Standardization
IT Act Information Technology Act, 2000

Sampre / Issuer /Company  Sampre Nutritions Limited

Maternity Benefit Act Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

MENA Middle East/North Africa

Mn Million

MoF Ministry of Finance

MocCl Ministry of Commerce and Industry

MSMED Act The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

NI National Instrument

NRls Non Resident Indians

NSE National Stock Exchange

QlBs Qualified Institutional Buyers

R&D Research & Development

RBI Reserve Bank of India

ROC Registrar of Companies

SEBI Bonds Exchange Board of India

SEBI(ICDR) Regulations SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018
STT Securities Transaction Tax

Takeover Code SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011
The Code U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986

Trade Union Act The Trade Union Act, 1926

Trademarks Act The Trademarks Act, 1999

Deed Deed dated [.] executed between the Company and SBM Fund Services Limited, Mauritius
UK United Kingdom

us United States of America

usD United States Dollars

ACHL Afrinex Clearing House Ltd

VAT The Telangana Value Added Tax Act, 2005
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CURRENCY PRESENTATION AND EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION

In this Offering Memorandum:
« “S,” “dollar” or “U.S. dollar” refers to the lawful currency of the United States; and
«  “X”or “INR” or Indian National Rupee” refers to the single currency of India

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, the period end, period average, high and low
Bloomberg Composite Rates (London) expressed in INR per U.S. dollars. The Bloomberg Composite Rate is a
“best market” calculation, in which, at any point in time, the bid rate is equal to the highest bid rate of all
contributing bank indications and the ask rate is set to the lowest ask rate offered by these banks.

INR Per U.S. dollar

Year Period End Buying | Period Average High Low
Rate
2017 64.85 67.199 66.92 64.80
2018 65.11 64.578 65.30 64.73
2019 69.18 69.057 71.00 68.35
2020 75.33 70.393 76.39 72.03
2021 73.50 74.188 73.78 72.27
2022 73.81 78.40 83.00 73.81
2023 83.20 82.25 83.3850 81.1250
Month Period End Buying Period Average High Low
Rate

Jan-23 81.769 81.96 83.04 80.888
Feb-23 82.645 82.35 83.024 81.676
Mar-23 82.185 82.26 82.917 81.615
April -23 81.745 82.03 82.497 81.567
May-23 82.69 82.29 82.936 81.654
June-23 82.096 82.25 82.685 81.825
July-23 82.24 82.24 82.821 81.666
Aug-23 82.73 82.68 83.1100 82.257
Sep-23 83.04 82.99 83.2700 82.718
Oct-23 83.25 83.19 83.2663 83.1212
Nov-23 83.39 83.26 83.393 83.1450
Dec-23 83.20 83.196 83.3913 83.0013
Jan-24 83.0425 83.1794 83.3163 83.0425
Feb-24 82.9138 82.9812 83.0638 82.8987
Mar-24 83.4050 83.0943 83.4250 82.7637
April-24 83.4350 83.3681 83.5425 83.1938

(1) The average rate for a year means the average of the Bloomberg Composite Rates (London) on the last
day of each month during a year.
2) The average rate for each month presented is based on the average Bloomberg Composite Rate
(London) for each business day of such month.
The above rates differ from the actual rates used in the preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements
and other financial information appearing in this Offering Memorandum
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum. The summary
below does not contain all the information that you should consider before investing in the Bonds. The
following summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more
detailed information included elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum. You should carefully read the
entire Offering Memorandum to understand our business, the nature and terms of the Bonds, and the
tax and other considerations which are important to your decision to invest in the Bonds, including the
more detailed information in the financial statements and the related Bonds included elsewhere in this
Offering Memorandum, before making an investment decision. See the section entitled “Risk Factors”
for factors that you should consider before investing in the Bonds and the section entitled “Forward-
Looking Statements” for information relating to the statements contained in this Offering Memorandum
that are not historical facts.

Overview

The Company was incorporated on 3" December, 1991, as a private limited company in the name of Sampre
Nutritions Private Limited with the Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad bearing Certificate of Incorporation
number L15499TG1991PLC013515. Subsequently in 1994, the Company was converted into a public limited
company and a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued.

Sampre Nutritions Limited is one of the leading confectionary manufacturer in India. The company is
engaged in manufacturing complete range of confectionery, eclairs, candies, toffees, powder and centre
filled products. The Company manufactures and sells the prodcuts under its own brands as well as
manufactures and delivers products for other multi-national companies in the confectionary industry.

Mr. B.K. Gurbani, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company, is a President of ICMA and
member of various Trade bodies and associations. The testimony to his leadership is in fact that the
company received the prestigious international Quality Award at International Quality Summit 2012, New
York, USA, besides of lots of other prestigious awards from Prime Minister and President’s office.

Sampre Nutritions Ltd is the first ISO certified company in South East Asia in the confectionery industry since
1995 and is the 1st HACCP Certified Company by BVQI and FSSA certified company.

The Company launched its initial public offer (IPO) of equity shares on 06/04/1995.The IPO was priced at
Rs.15/- per share. The shares of the Company are listed on the BSE.

The Company’s registered office is located in Hyderabad, India. As of 31-12-2023, our Company’s market
capitalization was of approximately INR 50.61 Crores / USS 6.0975 Million.

Free Zone Company in Dubai

Formation of New Free Zone Company in Dubai:

The Company has incorporated a Free Zone Company namely Sampre Nutritions- FZCO. The FZCO has been
duly formed as a Free Zone Company with limited liability registered on 3™ January 2023 with the Registrar
of Dubai Silicon Oasis under the Registration no. DSO-FZC0-22996.

The Capital of the FZCO shall be AED 10,000 divided into 1000 shares with a value of AED 10 each and the
Company shall subscribe to 1000 shares in the FZCO for a subscription amount of AED 10,000 and the

Company guarantees full financial commitment to the Free Zone Company for the Shares.

The Company has appointed Mr. Brahma Gurbani as the Manager, Secretary and Director of the FZCO.



The Issuer

Name of the Company

Sampre Nutritions Limited

Type of Company

Public Limited Company

Date of Incorporation

3" December 1991

Incorporation Status

Incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 registered with
Registrar of Companies — Hyderabad,Telangana India

Company Registration Number

013515

Company Ildentification
Number

L15499TG1991PLC0O13515

Plot No. 133, Industrial Estate, Medchal — 501 401, Hyderabad,

Registered Address Telangana, India.
GST Number 36AADCS4038A1ZS
Permanent Account Number AADCS4038A
Listed at BSE

BSE trading CODE

SAMPRE - 530617 - INE375C01014

Number of Directors

Authorised Capital

Rs. 18,00,00,000

Issued & Paid up Capital

Rs. 89,700,000 as on 31t March 2024

FaceValue of Each Share

INR10.00

Outstanding Secured Debt (as
on date 31.12.2023)

Rs. 11,91,71,767

Outstanding Unsecured Debt
(as on date 31.12.2023

Rs. 6,05,59,653




SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING

The following summary of the Offering contains basic information about the Bonds. It is not intended
to be complete, and it is subject to important limitations and exceptions. For a more complete
understanding of the Bonds, including certain definitions of terms used in this summary, see “Terms
and Conditions of the Bonds” and “Description of Certain Financing Arrangements.”

Issuer or the Company

Sampre Nutritions Limited a public limited company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office Plot No. 133 Industrial Estate
Medchal- 501401,Hyderabad, Telangana, India.

LEl (Legal Entity Identifier):- 984500CF59E75DXB5397

Issue or the Offering

USD 10,000,000, Zero Coupon, Unsecured, Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds due on 24™ July, 2027 convertible into equity shares of Rs. 10.00 each
in the share capital of the Company.

The Bonds are being offered and sold in offshore transactions outside the
United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act
(“Regulation S”). Subject to certain exceptions, the Bonds may not be
offered, sold, or delivered within the United States (as defined in Regulation
S).

The Bonds may not be offered or sold directly or indirectly in India or to, or
for the account or benefit of, any resident of India, except in certain limited
circumstances.

Investment Currency

United State Dollar

Bond Placement Amount

USS$ 10,000,000.00

Bond Subscription
Amount

USS 10,000,000.00 — Subscription Value

(USS 15,00,000.00 — 15% Discount to Placement Value)

Par Value of each Bond

US$ 100,000.00

Proposed Bonds

100 Bonds

Issue Price

USS 85,000 per Bond. Issued at a discount of 15% of the Par value of each
Bond.

Discount on issuance price

15% discount of Issuance Price

Redemption Value

USS 10,000,000.00

Redemption value of each
Bond

USS 100,000.00

Expected Annual Yield

5.00% Annual Yield
(5% differed annual yield from discount + Zero coupon).

(Note: Proposed Yield on FCCB is within the limit of RBI i.e. All in Cost — 300
basis over 6 months USD LIBOR which comes 4.65% (Current US 6months
Libor) +3.00 (maturity from 3years to 5 years) =7.65%)

Interest

Zero Coupon Bond




Cancellation

All Bonds, which are redeemed, purchased or in respect of which conversion
rights are exercised will be cancelled and may not be reissued or resold.
Certificates in respect of the Bonds redeemed, converted, or purchased by
the Company will be surrendered for cancellation and may not be reissued
or resold.

Issuance Date

24™ June 2024

Maturity Date

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and canceled as
provided in the Offering memorandum, the Issuer will redeem each Bond at
its outstanding principal amount on 24 July, 2027 (the “Maturity Date”),
(calculated up to but excluding the Maturity Date).

Bonds Maturity Tenure

37 months

Linked instrument to the
Bonds

Convertible into listed Equity Shares of Sampre Nutritions Ltd.

Depository The Bonds will clear and settle solely through the book-entry transfer
facilities maintained by the Clearing System:s.
Depository Afrinex Clearing House Limited

Closed Period

Period in which conversion right may not be exercised by Bondholders as
mentioned in Condition 5.1.2 of the “Terms and Condition of Bonds” Section.

Continuing Disclosures

A Shareholder who holds 5 per cent or more of the total equity share capital
of the Company is required under Indian law to make disclosures of his
shareholding to the Company. See “Indian Securities Market”.

The Company is obliged to comply with the ongoing disclosure requirements
as set forth in the Rulebook for Admission to AFRINEX Securities List
(“Rulebook”). The Company shall promptly notify AFRINEX of any such
disclosures in accordance with the procedures outlined in the Rulebook.

Conversion notice

A duly completed and signed notice of conversion by the bondholder, who is
the subscriber of the FCCBs. The completed and signed notice of conversion
must be submitted to the Principal Paying and Conversion Agent.

Conversion of the Bonds

The Bond will be convertible at the option of the Bondholder at any time on
or after 1 week from the date of Issue and up to the Maturity Date.

The price at which Shares will be issued upon conversion of the Bonds (the
"Conversion Price") will be at a price calculated as per the last 6 months
average or last 2 weeks average, whichever is higher in line with equity issue
price guidelines for new allotment of equity shares defined by Securities
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”).

The Bonds are convertible by Bondholders into Shares, at any time after the
Closing Date and prior to the close of business (at the place the Bonds are
deposited for conversion) on Maturity Date unless converted, redeemed, or
repurchased and cancelled and except during a Closed Period (as defined in
the Conditions).

If the Company is unable to convert the Bonds into Shares within 35 Business
Days after receiving the Conversion Notice, the Company shall have the
option to pay to the relevant Bondholder an amount in cash equal to the Cash
Settlement Amount (as defined in Condition 5.4.5 of the “Terms and
Condition of Bonds” Section) in satisfaction of Conversion Right in full or in
part (in which case the other part shall be satisfied by the delivery of Shares)
(the "Cash Settlement Option").

A Bondholder exercising its Conversion Right (as defined in the Conditions)
for Shares in uncertificated form will be required to open a depository




account with a depository participant under The Depositories Act, 1996 for
the purpose of receiving the Shares in uncertificated form.

Conversion Price

Each Bond is initially convertible at the Conversion Price which shall be the
higher of the six months average or last two weeks average preceding the
day of conversion ("Initial Conversion Price") in line with equity issue price
guidelines for new allotment of equity shares defined by Securities and
Exchange Board of India. The number of Shares issued on conversion of the
Bonds shall be calculated by dividing the aggregate of the principal amount
of the Bonds as converted into Indian Rupees at the time of conversion by
the then Conversion Price.

Conversion Price
adjustment

Standard adjustment for any dilution will be applied, including i) bonus or
special dividends paid with respect to the Shares, ii) free distribution or
issuance of shares, iii) sub-division, consolidation, and reclassification of
Shares, iv) rights offering, v) warrants and vi) creation of additional
convertible or exchangeable bonds and vii) other issues in a dilution of Shares
as described in terms and conditions of the Bond.

Definitive Certificates

A certificate representing an individual holding of the Bond.

Events of Default

For a description of certain events that will cause the Bonds to immediately
become due and payable at their principal amount, see “Terms and
Conditions of the Bonds — Events of Default”.

Exchange Rate on
Conversion

The price at which such Bonds will be converted will be the Conversion Price
in effect on such Conversion

Existing Shares

The equity shares in the capital of the Company of the nominal value of Rs.10
each as at the date of this Offering Memorandum.

Floor Price

The Floor Price for the conversion of the Bonds into the Share shall be
determined in accordance with FCCB guidelines and the relevant Applicable
Law.

Form and Denomination of
the Bonds

The Bonds will be issued in registered form in denominations of USD 100,000
each or integral multiples thereof. The Bonds will be represented by a single
Global Certificate (as defined in the Conditions) which will be issued and
deposited with the depository. Except in the limited circumstances described
in the Global Certificate, owners of interests in Bonds will not be entitled to
receive physical delivery of Certificates. The Bonds are not issuable in bearer
form. See “Terms and Conditions of the Bonds”. The Bonds will be listed on
the AFRINEX , Mauritius.

Except in the limited circumstances described in the Global Certificate,
owners of interests in Bonds will not be entitled to receive physical delivery
of Certificates. The Bonds are not issuable in bearer form. See “Terms and
Conditions of the Bonds”.

Further Issue

The Company may from time to time, without the consent of the
Bondholders, create and issue further notes, bonds or debentures either
having the same terms and conditions in all respects as the outstanding
notes, bonds or debentures of any series (including the Bonds) and so that
such further notes, bonds or debentures shall be standalone and form a
single series with the outstanding notes, bonds or debentures of any series
(including the Bonds) or upon such terms as to interest, subordination (if
any), premium, conversion, redemption and otherwise as the Company may
determine at the time of their issue.

General Market for the
Shares, Listing and Share
Ownership Restrictions

The Company’s issued and paid-up Shares are listed on the Indian Stock
Exchanges. The Shares issued upon conversion of the Bonds will be listed on
the Indian Stock Exchanges. There are restrictions on investments in shares




of Indian companies by non-residents of India. See “Foreign Investment and
Exchange Controls”.

Global Certificate

For as long as the Bonds are represented by the Global Certificate and the
Global Certificate is held by a depository for the Clearing Systems, payments
of principal in respect of the Bonds represented by the Global Certificate will
be made against presentation for endorsement and, if no further payment is
to be made in respect of the Bonds, surrender of the Global Certificate to or
to the order of the Principal Paying and Conversion Agent for such purpose.
The Bonds which are represented by the Global Certificate will be
transferable only in accordance with the rules and procedures for the time
being of the relevant Clearing Systems. See “Global Certificate — Payments”.

Governing Law

The Bonds shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws
of Mauritius.

Government Approvals

FCCBs are governed by the External Commercial Borrowings Policy issued by
RBI, as amended from to time, Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder; Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and Ordinary
Shares (Through Depository Receipt Mechanism) Scheme, 1993, as amended
from time to time and the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue
of any Foreign Security) Regulations, 2000, as amended from time to time.
The said rules and regulations allow Indian companies to issue FCCBs up to
USD 1.5 billion under the "automatic route" (without prior approval of the
RBI), subject to compliance with certain conditions specified therein

The Company is undertaking this offering of the Bonds pursuant to the
foregoing Government regulations.

Indian Taxation

Payments of principal,premium and interest if any on the Bonds made by the
Company in respect of the Bonds and all deliveries of Shares made upon
conversion of the Bonds will be made without deduction or withholding in
respect of Indian taxation save to the extent required by law. Where so
required, the Company will gross up the net taxable amount so that the net
amounts received by holders are the same as if no withholding were made
and will be required to account separately to the Indian tax authorities for
any withholding taxes applicable on such amounts. The Bonds will have the
benefit of the tax concessions available under the provisions of Section
115AC of the Income Tax Act, 1961 of India (the “Income Tax Act”) and The
Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and Ordinary Shares (through
Depository Receipt Mechanism) Scheme, 1993 promulgated by the
Government (the “Depository Receipt Scheme”). These tax concessions
include withholding at a reduced rate of 10.0% plus an applicable surcharge
on such tax in respect of interest and premium (if any) on the Bonds. Gains
realised outside India on the sale or transfer of such Bonds (but not the
Shares issued upon conversion of the Bonds) by a holder who is a non-
resident of India to another non-resident of India are exempt from Indian
capital gains tax. See “Taxation”.

Under current Indian laws, no tax is payable by the recipients of dividends on
shares of an Indian company, including the Shares deliverable upon
conversion of the Bonds. However, the Company will be liable to pay
distribution tax on dividends paid on the Shares at a rate of approximately
15% (plus surcharge and education cess at the applicable rates).

Issuer Clean-up Call

The Bonds may be redeemed at the option of the Company in whole, but not
in part, at any time at the Early Redemption Amount, having given not less
than 60 days’ notice to the Bondholders, in the event of aggregate principal

20




amount of the outstanding Bonds is less than 10% of the principal amount of
the Bonds originally issued. The ECB Guidelines at the time of redemption
may require the Issuer to obtain the prior approval of the RBI before
providing notice for or effecting such a redemption prior to the Maturity
Date; such approval may or may not be forthcoming.

Listing Application has been made to admit the Bonds to listing on the AFRINEX
Securities List
The Bonds will be traded OTC in a minimum board lot size of USD 100,000.00
for so long as the Bonds are listed on AFRINEX, Mauritius. The Company has
undertaken to apply to have the Shares issuable upon conversion of the
Bonds approved for listing on the BSE.

LRN Number 202312104 for amount of USS$ 100,000,000/-

RBI approval required for
Early Redemption or
Repurchase

The ECB Guidelines at the time of redemption may require the Issuer to
obtain the prior approval of the RBI before providing notice for or effecting
such a redemption or repurchase prior to the Maturity Date; such approval
may or may not be forthcoming.

Redemption for Taxation
Reasons

The Bonds may be redeemed at the option of the Company in whole, but not
in part, at any time at the Early Redemption Amount, in the event of certain
changes affecting taxes in India as set out in the Conditions-see "Redemption
for Taxation Reasons". The ECB Guidelines at the time of redemption may
require the Issuer to obtain the prior approval of the RBI before providing
notice for or effecting such a redemption prior to the Maturity Date; such
approval may or may not be forthcoming.

Redemption on Maturity

Unless the Bonds have been previously redeemed, repurchased, cancelled or
converted, the Company will redeem the Bonds on the Maturity Date at
100% of the principal amount of the Bonds by way of allotment of underlying
shares at Floor Price.

Representations of
Bondholders

A Bondholder will be required to represent and agree on conversion that,
among other things, it is not a U.S. person or located in the United States
(within the meaning of Regulation S).

Repurchase of Bonds in
the Event of Change of
Control

To the extent permitted by applicable law, unless the Bonds have been
previously redeemed, repurchased cancelled or converted, each Bondholder
shall have the right, at such Bondholder’s option, upon the occurrence of a
Change of Control Event (as defined in the Conditions) to require the
Company to redeem all of such bondholder’s bonds at an Early Redemption
Amount all (or any portion of the principal amount thereof which is USD
100,000 or any integral multiples thereof) of such Bondholder’s Bonds at the
Early Redemption Amount on the date set by the Company for such
repurchase, which shall be not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days
following the date on which the Company notifies the Bondholders, and the
Agents of the Change of Control in accordance with the Conditions. See
“Terms and Conditions of the Bonds — Redemption, Repurchase and
Cancellation — Repurchase of Bonds in the Event of Change of Control”.

Repurchase of Bonds in
the Event of Delisting

To the extent permitted by applicable law, unless the Bonds have been
previously redeemed, repurchased and cancelled or converted, in the event
that the Shares cease to be listed or admitted to trading on the BSE (a
“Delisting”), each Bondholder shall have the right, at such Bondholder’s
option, to require the Issuer to redeem all of such Bondholder’s bonds at an
Early Redemption Amount or Company to repurchase all (or any portion of
the principal amount thereof which is USD100,000 or any integral multiples
thereof) of such Bondholder’s Bonds at the Early Redemption Amount on the
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date set by the Company for such repurchase. The date of such repurchase
shall be not less than 30 days or more than 60 days following the date the
Company gives notice to the Bondholders, and the Agents of the Delisting in
accordance with the Conditions. See “Terms and Conditions of the Bonds —
Redemption, Repurchase and Cancellation — Repurchase of Bonds in the
Event of Delisting”.

Repurchase of Bonds in
the Event of Non-
Permitted Conversion
Price Adjustment

To the extent permitted by applicable law, unless the Bonds have been
previously converted, redeemed or repurchased and cancelled, in the event
that an event triggering an adjustment to the Conversion Price occurs and
the Company is unable to provide the Principle Paying Agent with a Price
Adjustment Opinion confirming to the Principle Paying Agent’s satisfaction
that such adjustment to the Conversion Price is permitted under then
prevailing applicable Indian laws and regulations (a “Non-Permitted
Conversion Price Adjustment Event”), each Bondholder shall have the right,
at such Bondholder’s option, to require the Company to repurchase all (or
any portion of the principal amount thereof which is US$100,000 or any
integral multiple thereof) of such Bondholder’s Bonds at a price equal to their
Early Redemption Amount on the date set by the Company for such
repurchase. The date of such repurchase shall be not fewer than 30 days but
not more than 60 days following the date on which the Company notifies the
Bondholders of the occurrence of the Non-Permitted Conversion Price
Adjustment Event in accordance with the Conditions. See “Terms and
Conditions of the Bonds — Redemption, Repurchase and Cancellation —
Repurchase of Bonds in the Event of Non-Permitted Conversion Price
Adjustment”.

Requisite Approvals

No payments of principal or interest will be made prior to the Maturity Date
(including on the occurrence of an Event of Default) if the requisite RBI
approvals have not been obtained or any other applicable Indian laws and
restrictions have not been complied with. The Company shall use its best
endeavors to obtain such requisite RBl approvals or with respect to any other
applicable Indian Laws that may be necessary to make any payments of
principal or interest prior to the Maturity Date.

Selling Restrictions

There are restrictions on the offer, sale and/or transfer of the Bonds in,
among others, European Economic Area, Hong Kong, India, Japan, United
Kingdom, and the United States. For a description of the selling restrictions
on offers, sales and deliveries of the Bonds, see “Selling Restriction”.

Share Ranking

Shares issued upon conversion of the Bonds will be fully paid and will rank
pari passu, subject to listing, with the Shares in issue on the relevant
Conversion Date (as defined in the Conditions). Shares issued on conversion
of Bonds shall not be entitled to any rights, the record date for which
preceded the relevant Conversion Date. See “Description of the Shares —
Dividends” and “Terms and Conditions of the Bonds — Conversion”.

Status of the Bonds

The Bonds will constitute the Company’s direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated, and unsecured obligations and will at all time rank pari
passu and without any preference or priority among themselves. The
Company’s payment obligations under the Bonds shall, save for such
exceptions as may be provided by mandatory provisions of applicable law, at
all times rank at least equally with all of its other present and future direct,
unconditional, unsubordinated, and unsecured obligations.

Trading Day

Any day of the week during which the BSE is open for business but does not
include a day when (a) no such last transaction price or closing bid and
offered prices is/are reported and (b) if the Shares are not listed or admitted.
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Use of Proceeds

The Proceeds from the issue of the Bonds will be used for “Overseas Business
expansion Investments through joint venture(s) and its wholly owned foreign
subsidiary company” and shall not utilise the subscription amount for any
other purpose

The Company intends to use all or substantially all of the proceeds from the
issue of the FCCB (net of expenses) for activities allowed under the ECB
Guidelines.

Registrar for the Bonds

Big Share Services Private Limited

Principal Agent/ Paying
Agent

SBM Fund Services Limited

Voting Rights

Bondholders will have no voting rights with respect to the Bonds at a general
meeting of the Company. Bondholders will have voting rights at a meeting of
Bondholders. Voting rights will attach to the Shares received upon
conversion.

Identification Numbers for
the Bonds

ISIN: MUO000000321

Rating of the Bonds

The Bondholder(s) understand that bonds are not, and are not expected to
be rated by any rating agency.

Proposed Board Seat

Fund Propose a Board Seat in the Company as the representative of the Fund.
Proposed Individual will be appointed as Non-Executive Director in the
Company.
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SUMMARY HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OTHER DATA

The tables below set forth summary financial data for Sampre Nutritions Limited as of and for the
years ended March 31,2021, 2022 and 2023 derived from the Standalone Financial Statements, which
were prepared in accordance with IND-AS and are included elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.

The summary historical Standalone financial information presented below also includes unaudited
Financial Results for period ended Apr-Dec, 2023 in accordance with the Regulation 33 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

Historical Financial Data

PLEASE SEE FOLLOWING PAGE(S)

Historical Financial Data (in USS)

Year ended March 31

Un Audited

Standalone Financial

Result (Apr-Dec

2023)
PARTICULARS 2021 2022 March 2023 Dec 2023
REVENUE
Revenue from operations 24,90,530.21 32,15,881.45 45,15,833.03 24,55,759
Other income 4,275.58 38,603.65 8,811.00 3,651
Total Revenue 24,94,805.79 32,54,485.10| 45,24,644.03 24,59,410
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 5,03,438.90 9,17,100.89 18,51,223.07 10,87,795
Manufacturing Expenditure 11,15,160.54 14,01,996.65( 16,32,493.61 5,31,050
Employee Benefits Expense
1,38,689.87 1,48,685.24| 1,95,107.70 2,53,107
Other Expenses 2,65,031.11 2,62,048.69| 3,43,543.87 3,32,289
Depreciation 2,46,986.26 2,27,269.25| 2,21,674.58 1,10,410
Finance Cost 2,10,800.95 2,45,611.55 2,29,816.23 1,73,651
Total Expenses
—Olal TXpenses 24,80,107.64 32,02,712.27| 44,73,859.07 24,88,301
Profit before exceptional
and extraordinary items and
tax 14,834.75 51,758.93  50,784.96 28,892
Exceptional Items - - ---
Profit before and
extraordinary items and tax
Profit/(Loss) before tax
14,834.75 51,758.93|  50,784.96 28,892
Tax expense - - —
Current tax -—-- 8,899.98 12,644.52 -

Short/(Excess) Provision for
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Taxation
Mat Credit Entitlement -8,899.98 -12,644.52
Deferred Tax (Credit)/charge 4,494.14 8,955.60 8,555.43 0.00
Profit/(Loss) for the period
after tax 10,340.61 42,803.33 42,229.52 -28,892
Other Comprehensive -
Income B - B
Total Comprehensive
Income for the period 10,340.61 42,803.33 42,229.52 -28,892
Earnings per Equity Share
Basic 218.56 890.00 742.36 0
Diluted 218.56 890.00 450.29 0
Weighted average no. of
Equity Shares 4,820,000 4,820,000 5,729,863 5,729,863
Balance Sheet (in USS)
Year ended March 31°
. As on 31" Dec
Particulars 2021 2022 2023 5023
(UnAudited)
ASSETS
A. Non-Current
Assets
(a) Property, Plant &
Equipment 24,24,251.94 30,85,023.98 24,97,566.02 25,94,539.00
(b) Capital work in
progress 7,24,471.19 - 5,06,425.70 5,01,362.00

(c) Financial assets
Investment in

subsidiaries & other 1,366.00
Financial Assets 1,390.62 1,216.99 86,309.00
(d) Other Financial
Assets / Other non- 1,34,660.17
current assets 1,59,045.37 3,08,129.49 1,49,741.00
Total 32,84,749.31 32,45,459.97 33,13,338.20 33,31,951.00

B. Current Assets

(a) Inventories

9,96,209.35

9,86,409.46

8,56,809.05

8,66,545.00

(b) Financial Assets
Trade Receivables

8,49,951.85

8,30,757.21

9,09,468.18

8,76,211.00

(c) Cashand cash 13,291.17

equivalents 11,472.63 15,321.89 9,962.00
(d) Other Current 85,730.09

Financial assets 1,68,960.50 2,09,675.06 69,631.00

(e) Other Current
Assets-capex adv
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(f) Shortterm Loans
and advances

Total 19,45,182.46
19,97,599.79 19,91,274.19 18,22,349.00
Total Assets 52,29,931.77 52,43,059.76 53,04,612.39 51,54,300.00
Equity & Liabilities
A. EQUITY
(a) Equity Share
Capiltal 6,58,411.48 6,70,279.50 8,36,071.56 8,27,711.00

(b) Other Equity

8,14,490.52 8,71,989.13 17,38,773.27 16,62,805.00
Total Equity 14,72,902.00 15,42,268.63 25,74,844.83 24,90,516.00
B. LIABILITIES
Deferred Tax Liability
(net) 69,638.62 70,949.50 58,001.70 57,421.00

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Long Term Borrowings

16,67,324.62

17,74,544.12

13,07,119.39

13,67,927.00

Total 17,36,963.25 18,45,493.62 13,65,121.09 14,25,348.00
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 12,31,325.09 11,78,190.05 7,33,893.15 7,97,512.00
Trade Payables 6,61,812.82 5,30,285.65 4,67,725.45 2,01,673.00
Other current liabilities 1,24,442.50 1,37,921.83 1,50,371.18 95,026.00
Short Term Provisions 2,472.46) 8,899.98 12,656.69 1,44,225.00
Total 20,20,052.86, 18,55,297.50 13,64,646.46 12,38,436.00
Total equity and
liabilities 52,29,931.77 52,43,059.76 53,04,612.39 51,54,300.00

Cash Flow Statement

Year ended March 31 (in USS)

2021

2022

2023

As on Dec31st

2023
Standalone Statement
of Cash Flows
Net cash flows from
operating activities -24,191.84 3,34,958.97 1,06,924.67 (1,12,653.31)

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

-1,22,830.62

-1,06,326.91

-5,25,289.03

1,25,694.30

Net cash flows from
(used in) financing
activities

44,558.88

-2,30,690.18

4,23,646.10

(10,261.78)

Net change
(increase/decrease)in
cash and cash
equivalents

-1,02,463.58

-2,058.12

5,281.73

(2779.20)
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Risk Factors

Investing in theBonds involves substantial risks. You should consider carefully all the information in this
Offering Memorandum and, in particular, you should evaluate the specific risk factors set forth in the
“RiskFactors” section in this Offering Memorandum before making a decision on whether to invest in the
Bonds.

An investment in Securities involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
in this Offering Memorandum, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an
investment in Securities. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own
examination of our Company and the terms of this offer including the merits and risks involved.Any potential
investor in, and subscriber of, the Equity Shares should also pay particular attention to the fact that we are
governed in India by a legal and regulatory environment in which some material respectsmay be different
from that which prevails in other countries. The risks and uncertainties described in this section are not the
only risks and uncertainties we currently face. Additional risks and uncertainties not known to us or that we
currently deem immaterial may also have an adverse effect on our business. If anyof the following risks, or
other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually occur, our business, results
of operations and financial condition could suffer, the price of our Equity Shares could decline, and you may
lose all or part of your investment. Additionally, our business operations could also be affected by additional
factors that are not presently known to us or that we currently consider as immaterial to our operations.

The following factors have been considered for determining the materiality of Risk Factors:
*  Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively;

* Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively;

* Some events may not be material at present but may have material impact in future.

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed
in the risk factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be
quantifiable and hence the same has not been disclosed in such risk factors. Unless otherwise stated, the
financial information of the Company used in this section is derived from our restated financial statements
prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act and restated in accordancewith the SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations. Unless otherwise stated, we are not in a position to specify or quantifythe financial or
other risks mentioned herein. For capitalized terms used but not defined in this section, refer to the chapter
titled —Definitions and Abbreviation|| beginning on page 3 of this Offering Memorandum. The numbering
of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner
indicate the importance of one risk factor over another.

INTERNAL RISKS

Business Risks

1. We are subject to risks arising from exchange rate fluctuations.

The exchange rate between the Rupee and other currencies is variable and may continue to fluctuate
in future. Fluctuations in the exchange rates may affect the Company to the extent of imports made and
cost of services rendered in foreign currency terms. Any adverse fluctuations with respect to the
exchange rate of any foreign currency for Indian Rupees may affect the Company’s profitability, since a
part of its service is rendered in foreign currency.

2. We operate in a highly uncertain environment
Therisks and uncertainities include, but are not limited to, risks and unceratinities regarding fluctuations
in earnings, our ability to manage growth, intense competition including those factors which may affect
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our cost advantage, concentration, our ability to manage marketing & sales operations, liability for
damage on our service contracts, the success of the companies in which the company has made
strategic investments,, change in current tax structure, political instability and general economic
conditions affecting our industry.

Some of the risks are normal to the nature of industry in which the company operates and some others
are beyond the control of the Company. The management of the Company has a perception that the
following risks or uncetanities may occur during the course of business such as:

a. Digital Vulnerabilities:
There has been a growing dependency on digital system which has been intensified during COVID19,
with increased usage of digital tools and digital payments, adoption of platforms and devices that
allow sensitive data to be shared with third parties- cloud service providers, data aggregators,
application programming interfaces and other technology related intermediaries. Additionally,
there has been an increase in cybersecurity threats such as malware and ransomware attacks,
misinformation and frauds creating cyber risks for the business.

b. Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk refers to risk that the company may encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled in cash or other financial assets. The Company
regularly monitors the rolling forecast to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained on an ongoing
basis to meet operational needs. The Company manages the liquidity risk by planning the
inestments in a manner such that the desired quantum of funds could be made available to meet
any of the business requirements within a reasonable period of time. In addition, the Company also
maintains flexibility in arranging the funds by maintaining committed credit lines with various banks
to meet the obligations.

c. Industry Specific Risks

* Disruptions in the supply chain due to transporation issues, storage constraints, or
environmental factors that affects the raw materials.

e Potential hazards to the safety of employees due to heavy machinery accidents, and more
recently, the possible spread of the virus.

e Ensuring the safety and hygiene of the processed food and raw materials due to potential risks
such as machinery issues, storage constraints or direct human contact.

e Consumers’ changing preferences can be a high risk factor, particularly in the secondary and
tertiary sectors of the food processing industry.

d. Changing regulations in India could lead to new compliance requirements that are uncertain.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate are evolving and are subject to change.
The Government of India may implement new laws or other regulations and policies that could
affect our business in general, which could lead to new compliance requirements, including
requiring us to obtain approvals and licenses from the Government and other regulatory bodies, or
impose onerous requirements.

Uncertaininty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or
change in, governing law, regulation or policy in the jurisdiction in which we operate, including by
reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administration or judicial precedent may be time
consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may impact the viability of our current business or
restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. We may incur increased costs and other
burdens relating to compliance with such new requirements, which may also require significant
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management time and other resources, and any failure to comply may adversely affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects. Uncetainity in the applicability,
interpretation and implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law regulation or
policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administration or judicial precedent
may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may impact the viability of our current
business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future.

Our future operationg results are difficult to predict.

Our operating results may fluctuate in the future due to a number of factors, many of which are
beyond our control. Our results of operations during any fiscal year and from period to period are
difficult to predict. Our business and results of operations may be adversely affected by other
factors:

* Our ability to retain existing customers;
* General economic conditions;
¢ Advertising and other marketing costs;

e Our competitors’ pricing and marketing strategies; and

If inflation were to rise, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase the prices of our
products to pass the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our business, result of
operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the
future. India has experienced high inflationin the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to
an increase in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of wages
and other expenses relevant to our business.

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control
our costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to
adequately pass on to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and may adversely affect our
business and financial condition. In particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase
the price of our products to pass the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Further, the Government of India has previously initiated economic measures to combat high
inflation rates, and it is unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no
assurance that Indian inflation levels will not worsen in the future.

Dynamic Scenario:

¢ Change in technology may render our current technology obsolete and require us to make
sunstantial investment which could affect the company finance and operation.

* Shortage of skilled manpower poses a considerable risk.

¢ A major slowdown in economy, fluctuations in interest rates, liquidity availability, etc. A
slowdown in ecomonic growth in India and across the globe could cause Company’s business to
suffer.

* The Company, like any other commercial entity, is prone to external operational risks in the form
of Acts of God, human error or shortage, calamities which can drastically affect growth and asset
portfolio in non-urban segments.
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3. We require certain statutory and regulatory approvals, registrations and licenses for our business and
our inability to obtain, renew or maintain our statutory and regulatory permits and approvals
required to operate our business would adversely affect our operations and profitability.

Our Company requires several statutory and regulatory permits, licenses, and approvals to operate the
business. Many of these approvals are granted for fixed periods of time and need renewal from time to
time. Our Company is required to renew such permits, licenses, and approvals. Further, we may require
new registrations and approvals for any proposed operations, including any expansion of existing
operations. While we believe that we will be able to renew or obtain such registrations and approvals,
as and when required, there can be no assurance that the relevant authorities will issue any of such
permitsor approvals in time or at all. Further, these permits, licenses and approvals are subject to
several conditions, and our Company cannot assure that it shall be able to continuously meet such
conditions orbe able to prove compliance with such conditions to statutory authorities, and this may
lead to cancellation, revocation, or suspension of relevant permits/ licenses/ approvals.

Failure to obtain and renew such registrations and approvals within statutory time frame attracts penal
provisions. Further, such non-compliance may result in proceedings against our Company and the
Directors and such actions may directly and immediately affect our operations and may have a material
adverse effect on our revenues, profits, and operations.

4. Our future funds requirements, in the form of fresh issue of capital or Bonds and/or loans taken by
us, may be prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders depending upon the terms on which they
are eventually raised

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any fresh issue
of shares or convertible Bonds would dilute the shareholding of the existing shareholders and such
issuance may be done on terms and conditions, which may not be favourable to the then existing
shareholders. If such funds are raised in the form of loans or debt, then it may substantially increase our
interest burden and decrease our cash flows, thus prejudicially affecting our profitability and ability to
paydividends to our shareholders.

5. We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future

Our Company has entered into certain transactions with our related parties including our Promoters,
our Directors, and their relatives. While we believe that all such transactions have been conducted
on thearm’s length basis, there can be no assurance that we could not have achieved more favourable
terms had such transactions not been entered into with related parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we
will enter intorelated party transactions in the future. There can be no assurance that such transactions,
individually or inthe aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS
Industry Risks:

6. Changes in government regulations or their implementation could disrupt our operations and
adversely affect our business and results of operations

Our business and industry are regulated by different laws, rules and regulations framed by the Central
and State Government. These regulations can be amended/ changed on a short notice at the discretion
of the Government. If we fail to comply with all applicable regulations or if the regulations governing
our business or their implementation change adversely, we may incur increased costs or be subject to
penalties, which could disrupt our operations and adversely affect our business and results of
operations.
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RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH INDIA

7. Political instability and a significant change in the Government of India’s economic liberalization and
deregulation policies could disrupt our business and cause the price of our Equity Shares to go down.

As most of our assets and customers are located in India our performance and the quality and growth of
our assets are necessarily dependent on the health of the overall Indian economy. Any slowdown in the
Indian economy would adversely affect our business, including but not limited our ability to grow our asset
portfolio, the quality of our assets, and our ability to implement our strategy. India’s economy could be
adversely affected by a general rise in interest rates, weather conditions adversely affecting agriculture or
various other socio-political factors affecting the growth of industrial, manufacturing and services sector.
In addition, the Indian economy is in a state of transition. The share of the services sector of the economy
is on a rise while that of the industrial, manufacturing, and agricultural sectors is declining. It is difficult to
gauge the impact of these fundamental economic changes on our business.

The Government of India has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise a dominant influence over
many aspects of the economy. Its economic policies have had and could continue to have a significant
effect on private sector entities, including us, and on market conditions and prices of Indian Bonds,
including our equity shares. Also, even though the Indian economy has shown sustained growth over the
last few years, we cannot predict whether the same upward trend would continue, in the event that there
is a fall in the growth rate it would adversely affect our performance, the growth of our business including
our ability to grow our asset portfolio, the quality of our assets, our future financial performance, our
shareholders’ funds, our ability to implement our strategy and the price of our equity shares.

The last 15 years have witnessed four changes at the Central Government level with each party having its
own policies. Any significant change in the Government's policies or political instability could adversely
affect business and economic conditions in India and could also adversely affect our business, our future
financial performance, our shareholders’ funds, and the price of our Equity Shares.

8. Terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence or war involving India and other countries
could adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may negatively affect the Indian markets on which our
Equity Shares trade and also adversely affect the worldwide financial markets. These acts may also result
in a loss of business confidence. In addition, any deterioration in relations between India and its
neighboring countries might result in investor concern about stability in the region, which could adversely
affect the price of our Equity Shares.

India has also witnessed civil disturbances in the past and it is possible that future civil unrest as well as
other adverse social, economic, and political events in India could have a negative impact on us. Such
incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher
degree of risk and could have an adverse impact on our business and the price of our Equity Shares.

9. Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause our business to

suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, a tsunami, floods, and drought in the past
few years. The extent and severity of these natural disasters determines their impact on the Indian
economy, adversely affecting our business and the price of our Equity Shares.

10. Hostilities with neighboring countries and civil unrest in India may have a material adverse effect on

the market for Bonds in India
India has from time to time experienced instances of hostilities between neighboring countries, including
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11.

12.

13.

between India, Pakistan, and China. In recent years, military confrontations between India, Pakistan and
China have occurred in Kashmir and along the India-Pakistan border, although the governments of India
and China have recently engaged in conciliatory efforts. Military activity or terrorist attacks in the future
could influence the Indian economy by disrupting communications and making travel more difficult. Such
political tensions could create a greater perception that investments in Indian companies involve a higher
degree of risk. Events of this nature in the future, as well as social and civil unrest, could influence the
Indian economy and could have a material adverse effect on the market for Bonds of Indian companies,
including the FCCBs, Shares, other Bonds and on the business of the Company.

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an international rating agency could have a negative
impact on our business

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international rating
agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates and other
commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have a material adverse effect
on our business and financial performance, our ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures and the
price of our Equity Shares.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations may affect the value of the Equity Shares

The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies, including the U.S. Dollar, the
British Pound, the Euro, the Hong Kong Dollar, the Luxemburg Dollar, and the Japanese Yen, has changed
substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the future. Fluctuations in the exchange
rate between the foreign currencies with which an investor may have purchased Indian Rupees may affect
the value of your investment in our Bonds. Specifically, if there is a change in relative value of the Rupee
to the U.S. Dollar, each of the following values will also be affected:

e The foreign currency equivalent of the Indian Rupee trading price of our Equity Shares in India;

e The foreign currency equivalent of the proceeds that you would receive upon the sale in India of
any of our Equity Shares; and

e The foreign currency equivalent of cash dividends, if any, paid in Indian Rupees on our Equity
Shares.

You may be unable to convert Indian Rupee proceeds into a foreign currency of your choice or the rate at
which any such conversion occurs could fluctuate. In addition, our market valuation could be seriously
harmed by the devaluation of the Indian Rupee if investors in jurisdictions outside India analyze its value
based on the relevant foreign currency equivalent of our financial condition and results of operations.

It may not be possible for you to enforce any judgment obtained outside India, including the United
States, against us or any of our dffiliates in India, except by way of a suit in India on such judgment

We are incorporated under the laws of India and most of our directors and executive officers reside in
India. In addition, a substantial portion of our assets, and the assets of some of our directors and officers
and of the non-resident experts named in this preliminary offering memorandum are located in India. As
a result, you may be unable to:

e Effect service of process outside India, including within the United States upon us, and these
other persons or entities; or

e Enforce foreign judgments obtained in the courts outside India against us and these other
persons or entities, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provision of the Bonds
laws of foreign jurisdictions, such as the federal Bonds laws of the United States.

India has reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters with a
limited number of jurisdictions. The United States and India do not currently have a treaty providing for
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14.

15.

reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments (other than arbitration awards) in civil and
commercial matters. In the case of reciprocating territories, a judgment of a court outside India may be
enforced either by initiating execution proceedings pursuant to Section 44A of the Code of Civil Procedure,
1908 (the “Civil Code”) or by a suit upon it. However, in the case of a non-reciprocating territory such as
the United States, a judgment of a court outside India may be enforced in India only by a suit upon the
judgment, subject to Section 13 of the Civil Code and not by proceedings in execution. The suit must be
brought in India within three years from the date of the judgment in the same manner as any other suit
filed to enforce a civil liability in India. Generally, there are considerable delays in the disposal of suits by
Indian courts. It is unlikely that a court in India would award damages on the same basis as a foreign court
if an action were brought in India. Furthermore, it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign
judgments if it viewed the amount of damages awarded as excessive or inconsistent with Indian practice.
A party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval from the RBI
under FEMA to execute such a judgment or repatriate any amount recovered. Any judgment in a foreign
currency would be converted into Indian Rupees on the date of judgment and not on the date of payment.
We cannot predict whether a suit brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in a timely manner or be
subject to considerable delays. For more information, see “Enforcement of Civil Liabilities” in this Offering
Memorandum.

A third party could be prevented from acquiring control of the Company because of the anti-takeover
provisions under Indian law.

There are provisions in Indian law that may discourage a third party from attempting to take control over
the Company, even if a change in control would result in the purchase of your Equity Shares at a premium
to the market price or would otherwise be beneficial to you.

Indian takeover regulations contain certain provisions that may delay, deter, or prevent a future takeover
or change in control of us. Any person acquiring either “control” or an interest (either on his own or
together with parties acting in concert with him) in 15% or more of the voting Equity Shares must make
an open offer to acquire at least another 20% of the outstanding voting Equity Shares at a price not lower
than the price determined in accordance with the takeover regulations. Further, any person who, together
with persons acting in concert with him, holds 15% or more but less than 55% of the voting Equity Shares
cannot acquire additional voting Equity Shares that would entitle him to exercise 5% of voting rights in any
financial year ending March 31, unless such acquirer makes a public announcement offering to acquire a
further minimum 20% of the voting Equity Shares. Any further acquisition of the voting Equity Shares by
any person who holds 55% or more but less than 75% of the voting Equity Shares (or, where the Company
concerned has obtained the initial listing of its shares by making an offer of at least 10% of the issue size
to the public pursuant to Rule 19(2)(b) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, less than 90%
of the Equity Shares or voting rights in such Company) also requires the making of an open offer to acquire
a minimum of 20% of the voting Equity Shares or where the further acquisition is by way of a tender offer,
such number of voting Equity Shares as would not result in the public shareholding being reduced to less
than the minimum specified in the listing agreement with the stock exchanges, within the time period
prescribed therein, to maintain continuous listing. These provisions may discourage or prevent certain
types of transactions involving an actual or threatened change in control of the Company.

You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the underlying Equity
Shares.

e  (Capital gains arising from the sale of shares in an Indian Company are generally taxable in
India. Any gain realised on the sale of listed equity shares on a recognised stock exchange
held for more than 12 months will not be subject to capital gains tax in India if the Securities
Transaction Tax (“STT”) has been paid on the transaction. The STT will be levied on and
collected by a domestic stock exchange on which equity shares are sold.
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16.

e Any gain realized on the sale of equity shares held for more than 12 months, which are sold
other than on a recognized stock exchange and as result of which no STT has been paid, will
be subject to normal long term capital gains tax in India.

e  Any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months or less will
be subject to concessional capital gains tax in India where STT has been paid on the
transaction.

e Any gain on sale of equity share held for a period of 12 months or less, which are not subject
to STT will be charged to normal short term capital gain tax.

However, any capital gain tax in India will be subject to Double Tax Avoidance Tax Treaty between India
and the country of which the seller is a resident.

You may be restricted in your ability to exercise preemptive rights under Indian law and thereby may
suffer future dilution of your ownership position.

Under the Indian Companies Act, 2013, as amended, a public Company incorporated in India must offer
its holders of equity shares preemptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares
to maintain their existing ownership percentages before the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the
preemptive rights have been waived by adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the
shares which are voted on the resolution. However, if the law of the jurisdiction of the investor does not
permit the exercise of such preemptive rights without the Company filing an offering document or
registration statement with the applicable authority in the relevant jurisdiction, such investor will be
unable to exercise such preemptive rights unless the Company makes such a filing. The Company may
elect not to file a registration statement related to preemptive rights otherwise available by Indian law to
such investors. If the Company decides not to file a registration statement, the new Bonds may be issued
to a custodian for such holders of the Equity Shares, which may sell the Bonds for the benefit of such
holders. The value, if any, such custodian would receive upon the sale of such Bonds and the related
transaction costs cannot be predicted. To the extent that such holders are unable to exercise preemptive
rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares, such investors’ proportional interests in the Company would
be reduced.

17. Economic developments and volatility in Bonds markets in other countries may cause the price of our

18.

Equity Shares to decline

The Indian economy and its Bonds markets are influenced by economic developments and volatility in
Bonds markets in other countries. Investors’ reactions to developments in one country may have adverse
effects on the market price of Bonds of companies located in other countries, including India. For instance,
the economic downturn in the United States and several European countries during a part of 2001 to 2003
adversely affected market prices in the world’s Bonds markets, including Indian Bonds markets. Negative
economic developments, such as rising fiscal or trade deficits, or a default on national debt, in other
emerging market countries may negatively affect investor confidence and cause increased volatility in
Indian Bonds markets and indirectly affect the Indian economy in general.

There may be less Company information available in the Indian Bonds market than Bonds markets in
developed countries

There may be differences between the level of regulation and monitoring of the India Bonds markets and
The activities of investors, brokers, and other participants and that of the markets in the United States and
other developed countries. SEBI is responsible for approving and improving disclosure and other
regulatory standards for the Indian Bonds markets. SEBI has issued regulations and guidelines on
disclosure requirements, insider trading and other matters. There may, however, be less publicly available
information about Indian companies than is regularly made available by public companies in developed
countries.
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RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE SHARES AND BONDS

19. The market value of the Shares may fluctuate due to the volatility of the Indian Bonds market

The Indian Bonds markets may be more volatile than the Bonds markets in certain countries. The Indian
Stock Exchanges have, in the past, experienced substantial fluctuations in the prices of listed Bonds.

The Indian Stock Exchanges (including the BSE and the NSE) have experienced problems which, if such or
similar problems were to continue or recur, could affect the market price and liquidity of the Bonds of
Indian companies, including the Shares. These problems have included broker defaults and settlement
delays. In addition, the governing bodies of the Indian Stock Exchanges have from time to time imposed
restrictions on trading in certain Bonds, limitations on price movements and margin requirements.
Furthermore, from time to time disputes have occurred between listed companies and stock exchanges
and other regulatory bodies, which in some cases may have had a negative, effect on market sentiment.

SEBI received statutory powers in 1992 to assist it in carrying out its responsibility for improving disclosure
and other regulatory standards for the Indian Bonds markets. Subsequently, SEBI has prescribed certain
regulations and guidelines in relation to disclosure requirements, insider trading and other matters
relevant to the Indian Bonds market. There may, however, be less publicly available information about
Indian companies than is regularly made available by public companies in certain countries.

There is no existing market for the Bonds and an active market for the Bonds may not develop, which may
cause the price of the Bonds to fall.

The Bonds are a new issue of Bonds for which there is currently no trading market.. No assurance can be
given that an active trading market for the Bonds will develop or as to the liquidity or sustainability of any
such market, the ability of holders to sell their Bonds or the price at which holders of the Bonds will be
able to sell their Bonds. If an active market for the Bonds fails to develop or be sustained, the trading price
of the Bonds could fall. If an active trading market were to develop, the Bonds could trade at prices that
may be lower than the initial offering price of the Bonds. The Lead Manager is not obligated to make a
market in the Bonds.

If a market for the Bonds were to develop, the Bonds could trade at prices that may be higher or lower
than the price originally paid for them depending on many factors, including:

¢ the market for similar Bonds;

* general economic conditions;

e the Issuer’s financial condition, results of operations and future prospects;

¢ prevailing interest rates;

* the financial condition and stability of the Indian and other Asian financial sectors; and

¢ political, legal, and economic developments in India, the rest of Asia or the United States of
America.

20. The Bondholders may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Share

following exercise of conversion rights.

Taxation upon Conversion of Notes/Bonds into Shares

Section 47(x) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, provides exemption in case of any transfer by way of conversion
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of bonds into share.
Taxation on sale of Shares

If equity shares listed on a stock exchange are sold within 12 months of purchase, the seller may make short
term capital gain (STCG) or incur a short-term capital loss (STCL). The seller makes short-term capital gain
when shares are sold at a price higher than the purchase price. If equity shares listed on a stock exchange are
sold after 12 months of purchase, the seller may make a long-term capital gain (LTCG) or incur a long-term
capital loss (LTCL).

Tax on long-term capital gain

Generally, long-term capital gains are charged to tax at 20% (plus surcharge and cess as applicable), but in
certain special cases, the gain may be (at the option of the taxpayer) charged to tax at 10% (plus surcharge
and cess as applicable). The benefit of charging long-term capital gain at 10% is available only in following
cases:

1) Long-term capital gains arising from sale of listed Bonds and it exceeds Rs. 1,00,000 (Section 112A);

2) Long-term capital gains arising from transfer of any of the following asset: a) Any security which is
listed in a recognised stock exchange in India; b) Any unit of UTI or mutual fund (whether listed or
not) ($); and c) Zero coupon bonds

The Finance Act, 2018 inserts a new Section 112A with effect from Assessment Year 2019-20. As per the new
section capital gains arising from transfer of a long term capital asset being an equity share in a company or
a unit of an equity oriented fund or a unit of a business trust shall be taxed at the rate of 10 per cent of such
capital gains exceeding Rs. 1,00,000.

This concessional rate of 10 per cent will be applicable if:

a) in a case of an equity share in a company, securities transaction tax has been paid on both acquisition and
transfer of such capital asset; and

b) in a case a unit of an equity oriented fund or a unit of a business trust, STT has been paid on transfer of
such capital asset.

Short-Term Capital Gains (STCG) arising on account of sale of equity shares

Short-Term Capital Gains (STCG) arising on account of sale of equity shares listed in a recognised stock
exchange, units of equity oriented mutual fund and units of business trust i.e., STCG covered under section
111A.

Section 111A is applicable in case of STCG arising on transfer of equity shares or units of equity oriented
mutual-funds or units of business trust, which are transferred on or after 1-10-2004 through a recognised
stock exchange and such transaction is liable to securities transaction tax (STT). (*) Equity oriented mutual
fund means a mutual fund specified under section 10(23D) and 65% of its investible funds, out of total
proceeds are invested in equity shares of domestic companies.

If the conditions of section 111A as given above are satisfied, then the STCG is termed as STCG covered under
section 111A. Such gain is charged to tax at15% (plus surcharge and cess as applicable).

With effect from Assessment Year 2017-18, benefit of concessional tax rate of 15% shall be available even
where STT is not paid, provided that

- transaction is undertaken on a recognised stock exchange located in any International Financial Service

Centre, and
- consideration is paid or payable in foreign currency.
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Investors are advised to consult their own tax advisers and to carefully consider the potential tax
consequences of an investment in the Bonds or Shares under the laws of India having regard to residence
status and Double Tax Avoidance Agreement (DTAA).

21. The ability of holders to sell to a resident of India any Shares they received upon conversion of these
Bonds may be subject to delays if specific RBI approval is required

A person resident outside India (including a Non-Resident Indian) is generally permitted to transfer by way of
sale the shares held by him to any other person resident in India without the prior approval of the RBI.
However, it should be noted that the price at which the aforesaid transfer takes place must comply with the
pricing guidelines prescribed by the RBI in terms of FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020, general permission is
also available for transfer of shares/convertible debentures, by way of sale under private arrangement by a
person resident outside India to a person resident in India, subject to the guidelines mentioned under Foreign
Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019.

° The guidelines stipulate that where the shares of an Indian company are traded on a stock exchange:

= The sale be at the prevailing market price on the stock exchange if the sale is effected through a
merchant banker registered with SEBI or through a stock broker registered with the stock exchange;
or

= |fthe transferis other than that referred to above, the price shall be arrived at by taking the average
quotations (average of daily high and low) for one week preceding the date of application with a 5%
variation. Where, however, the shares are being sold by the foreign collaborator or the foreign
promoter of the Indian company to the existing promoters in India with the objective of passing
management control in favour of the resident promoters the proposal for sale will be considered at
a price which may be higher by up to a ceiling of 25 percent over the price arrived at as above.

22. Significant differences exist with IND AS accounting standards used throughout the Issuer’s financial
information and other accounting principles with which investors may be more familiar

The Issuer's financial statements are prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles followed in India ("IND AS accounting standards '), consistently applied during the periods stated
and no attempt has been made to reconcile any of the information given in this Offering Memorandum to
any other principles or to base it on any other standards. IND AS differs from accounting principles and
auditing standards with which prospective investors may be familiar in other countries. Significant differences
exist between IND AS accounting standards and IFRS, which may be material to the financial information
contained in this Offering Memorandum. The Issuer has made no attempt to quantify the effect of any of
these differences and IND AS accounting standards does not require such quantification.

23. Bondholders will face the risk of fluctuations in the price of the Shares

The market price of the Bonds is expected to be affected by fluctuations in the market price of the Shares,
and it is not possible to predict whether the price of the Shares will rise or fall. Trading prices of the Shares
will be influenced by, among other things, the Issuer’s financial position and the results of operations and
political, economic, financial, and other factors. Any decline in the price of the Shares may have an adverse
effect on the market price of the Bonds.

24. Holders of the Bonds will have no rights as Shareholders until they acquire the Shares upon conversion
of the Bonds
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Unless and until they acquire the Shares upon conversion of the Bonds, the holders of the Bonds will have no
rights with respect to the Shares, including any voting rights or rights to receive any regular dividends or other
distributions with respect to the Shares. Holders of Bonds who acquire the Shares upon the exercise of a
Conversion Right will be entitled to exercise the rights of holders of the Shares only as to action for which the
applicable record date occurs after the Conversion Date.

25. There are limitations on the ability of Bondholders to exercise conversion rights

The Bonds are convertible into Shares at the option of the holders pursuant to the terms of the Bonds. Holders
of the Bonds will be able to exercise their conversion right only within the Conversion Period specified in the
Bonds and will not be able to exercise their conversion right during the Closed Periods (as defined in the terms
and Conditions of the Notes).

26. The Bonds and the Shares are subject to transfer restrictions

The Bonds and the Shares are being offered in transactions not required to be registered under the Securities
Act. Therefore, the Bonds and the Shares may be transferred or resold only in a transaction registered under
or exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and in compliance with any other
applicable securities laws.

27. Fluctuations in the exchange rate between the Rupee and the US dollar may have a material adverse
effect on the value of the Bonds in US dollar terms

Although the principal amount of the Bonds is denominated in US dollars, the Shares are listed on the Indian
Stock Exchanges, on which the Shares are quoted and traded in Rupees. As a result, fluctuations in the
exchange rate between the Rupee and the US dollar will affect, among other things, the secondary market
price of the Bonds and the US dollar equivalent of the Shares received upon conversion of the Bonds.

The exchange rate between the Rupee and the US dollar has changed substantially in the last two decades
and could fluctuate in the future. In recent years, the Rupee has appreciated against the US dollar. As per RBI,
the exchange rate as on 31% December 2023 was USD 1 = Rs. 83.25

The imposition of foreign exchange restrictions may have an adverse effect on foreign investors' ability to
acquire Indian Bonds, including the Bonds and Shares, or repatriate the interest, dividends, or sale proceeds
from those Bonds

The Government may impose foreign exchange restrictions in certain emergency situations, including
situations where there are sudden fluctuations in interest rates or exchange rates, where the Government
experiences extreme difficulty in stabilizing the balance of payments or where there are substantial
disturbances in the financial and capital markets in India. These restrictions may require foreign investors to
obtain the Government’s approval before acquiring Indian Bonds or repatriating the interest or dividends
from those Bonds or the proceeds from the sale of those Bonds. No assurance can be given that these
restrictions will not adversely affect, among other things, the secondary market price of the Bonds.

28. No payment of principal or interest on the Bonds may be made unless the requisite approvals of the
RBI have been obtained in the event of early redemption of the Bonds

The Conditions of the Bonds provide that no payments of principal or premium (if any) may be made if
requisite approvals of the RBI have not been obtained in the event of early redemption of the Bonds prior to
Maturity Date or any other applicable Indian laws and restrictions have not been complied with, which
approvals the Issuer will use reasonable endeavors to obtain, but the Issuer will not be in default for not
making payment if the requisite approvals have not been obtained.

29. Indian dividend taxes or surcharges could negatively affect the Issuer's tax liability

38



The dividend received from an Indian company was exempt until 31 March 2020 (FY 2019-20). That was
because the company declaring such a dividend already paid dividend distribution tax (DDT) before making
payment. However, the Finance Act, 2020 changed the method of dividend taxation. Henceforth, all dividend
received on or after 1 April 2020 is taxable in the hands of the investor/shareholder. The Dividend Distribution
Tax liability on companies and mutual funds stand withdrawn. Similarly, the tax of 10% on dividend receipts
of resident individuals, HUF, and firms in excess of Rs 10 lakh (Section 115BBDA) also stands withdrawn.

TDS on dividend income for Non-resident Indian

For non-resident persons, TDS is required to be deducted at the rate of 20% plus applicable surcharge and 4%
health & education cess or (b) at a rate under the DTAA (double taxation avoidance agreement), if any. To
avail the benefit of lower deduction due to beneficial treaty rate with country of residence, the non-resident
has to submit documentary proof such as Form 10F, declaration of beneficial ownership, certificate of tax
residency etc. In absence of submission of these documents, higher TDS would be deducted which can be
claimed at the time of filing ITR.

30. There may be a delay from when a holder decides to convert Bonds into Shares until the time the
resulting Shares are approved to be listed and traded on the Indian Stock Exchanges and, therefore,
it is possible that the share price may fluctuate during that period

There may be a time gap of 45 days from the date on which a Bondholder advises the Principal Paying and
Conversion Agent of the intention to convert the Bonds into Shares and the date on which the Indian
Exchanges grant final approval for the Shares to be listed and traded. Within this gap, the price of the Shares
may fluctuate, which may have an adverse effect on the price that the Bondholder anticipated to receive for
the transfer of Shares. Further, any trade of the Shares will have to be made on a spot delivery basis and the
trade will have to be settled within the next settlement cycle.

31. There are restrictions on daily movements in the price of the Shares, which may adversely affect a
Bondholder’s ability to sell, or the price at which it can sell, Shares at a particular point in time

The Issuer is subject to a daily circuit breaker imposed by all stock exchanges in India which does not allow
transactions beyond certain volatility in the price of the Shares. This circuit breaker operates independently
of the index-based market-wide circuit breakers generally imposed by the SEBI on Indian stock exchanges.
The percentage limit on the Issuer’s circuit breaker is set by the stock exchanges based on the historical
volatility in the price and trading volume of the Shares. The stock exchanges do not inform the Issuer of the
percentage limit of the circuit breaker from and may change it without the Issuer’s knowledge. This circuit
breaker effectively limits the upward and downward movements in the price of the Shares. As a result of this
circuit breaker, there can be no assurance regarding the ability of Shareholders to sell the underlying Shares
or the price at which Shareholders may be able to sell their Shares at a particular time.

32. Upon a change of control, delisting of the Shares from the BSE, or an event of default, the Issuer may
not be in a position to redeem the Bonds

Upon a change of control of the Issuer, a delisting of the Shares from the BSE or an event of default under the
terms and conditions of the Bonds resulting in an acceleration of the Bonds, Bondholders may require the
Issuer to repurchase all (or a portion of) such Bondholder’s Bonds. The Issuer may not be able to repurchase
all or any of such Bonds or pay all amounts due under the Bonds if (i) the requisite RBI regulatory approval is
not received or (ii) the Issuer does not have sufficient cash flow to repurchase or repay the Bonds.
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES OF SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED

1. SAMPRE NUTRITIONS FZCO 100% wholly owned subsidiary
2. SAMPRE NUTRITIONS HOLDING LIMITED- 100% wholly owned subsidiary

A. About SAMPRE NUTRITIONS FZCO:

SAMPRE NUTRITIONS FZCO is a dynamic subsidiary of Sampre Nutritions Limited, established with a
commitment to excellence in the field of packing, repacking, and distribution of confectionery items. The
company was officially incorporated on January 3, 2023, under the registration number DSO-FZC0O-22996.

Strategic Location: Situated at DSO-IFZA, IFZA Properties, in the vibrant and strategic hub of Dubai Silicon
Oasis, UAE, Sampre Nutritions Fzco is well-positioned to leverage its geographical advantages for
operational efficiency and business growth.

Ownership Structure: The company is proud to be 100% wholly owned through the esteemed
representation of Mr. Brahma Gurbani, a key figure dedicated to steering the company towards success.

Commitment to Quality: Sampre Nutritions FZCO is committed to upholding the highest standards of
quality, innovation, and integrity in every aspect of its operations. With a focus on advanced packaging
techniques, the company aims to make a significant impact in the industry through its dedication to
excellence. The company employs state-of-the-art facilities and advanced packaging techniques to ensure
the freshness, quality, and appeal of its confectionery products.

As an integral part of the Sampre Nutritions Limited family, Sampre Nutritions FZCO contributes to the
collective success and growth of the entire group, adhering to the shared values and principles that define
the overarching corporate identity.

The company looks forward to a future marked by sustained growth, impactful contributions to the industry,
and a continued commitment to meeting the evolving needs of its stakeholders.

Future Growth and Innovation: Looking forward, Sampre Nutritions FZCO envisions sustained growth and
innovation in the confectionery sector. The company is dedicated to exploring new market opportunities,
introducing innovative packaging solutions, and diversifying its product portfolio to meet evolving consumer
preferences.

The Shareholding Structure Sampre Nutritions FZCO — 100% wholly owned subsidiary is as below:

Name Number of Face Value Percentage
Shares

BRAHMA 1000 10,000 100%

GURBANI AED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Mr. Brahma Gurbani - Mr. Brahma Gurbani serves as the esteemed Director on the Board of Sampre
Nutritions FZCO. His visionary leadership, industry expertise, and strategic acumen contribute significantly
to the company's success in the confectionery sector. He brings a wealth of experience to the board, having
demonstrated a successful track record in the confectionery industry. His deep understanding of market
dynamics, consumer trends, and operational intricacies positions Sampre Nutritions FZCO for sustainable
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growth and market leadership.

Other Details

Main Assets of the Group: <property, plants,
investments, and resource properties, including | NIL
their geographic location, if any>

Details of the location, size and nature of the
establishments that account for more than 10% | NIL
of revenue, sales or production

Details of any trademarks, patents or other
intellectual or industrial property rights that are | NIL
material to the group's business, and a
statement about the degree to which the
group’s business and profitability is dependent
on such factors

If research and development of new products
and processes are material to the group’s | NIL
business over the past three financial years,
information about its policy on such research
and development

Details of any interruptions in the group’s
business that may have or have had a material | NIL
effect on the group’s business or financial
position in the last 12 months.

Details of any litigation or claims made against
the company in the last five years that are | NIL
material to the group, including any pending or
threatened legal action against the company.

The number of people employed by the
company and, if material, changes to that | Two
number in the last 12 months, as well as a
breakdown of the number employed in each
main type of business activity.

B. SAMPRE NUTRITIONS HOLDING LIMITED:

SAMPRE NUTRITIONS HOLDING LIMITED stands as a robust and wholly-owned subsidiary within the
framework of Sampre Nutritions Limited, embodying a commitment to excellence and strategic leadership
in packing, repacking, and distribution of confectionery items. The company was officially incorporated on
January 11, 2023, under the registration number 14585608.

Strategic Location: The company's registered office is situated at Piccadilly Business Centre Aldow Enterprise
Park, in the dynamic city of Manchester, England M12 6AE. This strategic location positions Sampre
Nutritions Holding Limited in a key business center, providing opportunities for growth and operational
efficiency.

Ownership Structure: As a 100% wholly owned subsidiary, Sampre Nutritions Holding Limited is under the
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direct ownership and control of Sampre Nutritions Limited. This ensures a seamless integration of strategies,
resources, and expertise, fostering a unified approach towards achieving the overarching goals of the entire
corporate group.

Corporate Vision: Sampre Nutritions Holding Limited shares the overarching corporate vision of Sampre
Nutritions Limited, emphasizing a commitment to innovation, sustainability, and excellence in all aspects of
its business operations. The holding company plays a pivotal role in orchestrating strategic initiatives and
ensuring the cohesive functioning of the entire corporate group.

Future Endeavors: Looking ahead, Sampre Nutritions Holding Limited is poised for sustained growth and
success, contributing significantly to the achievements of Sampre Nutritions Limited. The company remains
dedicated to upholding the highest standards of corporate governance, ethical business practices, and
value creation for its stakeholders.

The Shareholding Structure of Sampre Nutritions Holding Limited — 100% wholly owned subsidiary is as
below:

Name Number of Shares Face Value Percentage
BRAHMA GURBANI 1 1 GBP 100%

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Mr. Brahma Gurbani - Mr. Brahma Gurbani serves as the esteemed Director on the Board of Sampre
Nutritions FZCO. His visionary leadership, industry expertise, and strategic acumen contribute significantly
to the company's success in the confectionery sector. He brings a wealth of experience to the board, having
demonstrated a successful track record in the confectionery industry. His deep understanding of market
dynamics, consumer trends, and operational intricacies positions Sampre Nutritions FZCO for sustainable
growth and market leadership.

Other Details

Main Assets of the Group: <property, plants,
investments, and resource properties, including | NIL
their geographic location, if any>

Details of the location, size and nature of the
establishments that account for more than 10% | NIL
of revenue, sales or production

Details of any trademarks, patents or other
intellectual or industrial property rights that are | NIL
material to the group's business, and a
statement about the degree to which the
group’s business and profitability is dependent
on such factors

If research and development of new products
and processes are material to the group’s | NIL
business over the past three financial years,
information about its policy on such research
and development

Details of any interruptions in the group’s
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business that may have or have had a material
effect on the group’s business or financial
position in the last 12 months.

NIL

Details of any litigation or claims made against
the company in the last five years that are
material to the group, including any pending or
threatened legal action against the company.

NIL

The number of people employed by the
company and, if material, changes to that
number in the last 12 months, as well as a
breakdown of the number employed in each
main type of business activity.

One
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Proceeds from the issue of the Bonds will be used for “Overseas and Domestic Business expansion
Investments through joint venture(s) and its wholly owned foreign subsidiary company” and shall not utilize the
subscription amount for any other purpose. The proceeds of this Issue will be used by the Issuer in accordance
with the ECB Guidelines
PROPOSED MANUFATCURING UNIT IN
GULF AND AFRICAN REGION

Project Objective:

To set up a world class manufacturing facility one of its kind in the Gulf and African Regions with quality
standards and automatic equipment’s which will reduce the cost of products manufactured.

Introduction:

Sampre Nutritions Limited is the leading Manufacturing Unit, Located in the South Region of India, in Hyderabad
Telangana. It was established in 1991 by founder Mr. Brahma Gurbani (A veteran Industrialist and President of
Indian Confectionary Manufacturers Association, New Delhi, India). He has expertise to his credit in
manufacturing and marketing of confectionery products for over 4 decades. He has travelled extensively all over
the world and established excellent contacts with leaders in confectionery machinery manufacturers.

From a single unit he has built a group of companies which are now well known as Gurbani Group, offering multi
- location facilities in his journey of over 40 years.

Plans:

The company has recently entered into a significant agreement and formalized a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with the African Peace and Security Union. This strategic partnership aims to facilitate
the supply of Nutritional Products and Vitaminized Candies to countries within the African Union and export it
to other countries through collaborative efforts and joint ventures.

Sampre Nutritions Ltd is committed to leveraging its resources for the purpose of exporting its products to
various countries and establishing new ventures across the African and Gulf Regions for setting up various
manufacturing units.

Sampre Nutritions Limited with its vision to set up manufacturing facilities will aim to produce Chocolates,
Candies, Lollypop, Wafer Biscuits, Moulded Chocolates, Cream Biscuits, Layered Cakes and Brownie Cakes.

OUR VISION

GLOBALLY PREFERRED, EXCELLENT MANUFACTURING FACILITIES WITH QUALITY OF PEOPLE,
PRODUCTS AND PROCESSES.

TO OPERATE AS A WORLD CLASS COMPANY. INCORPORATING THE LATEST TECHNOLOGICAL
ADVANCES, WITH ETHICAL PRACTICES TO PROVIDE QUALITY PRODUCTS AT MOST COST
EFFECTIVE WAY.

PRODUCTS TO BE MANUFACTURED
HARD BOILED CANDIES

PaeAIEN
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LOLLIPOPS
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MOLDED CHOCOLATE WITH CENTER FILL

WAEFER BISCUITS

LAYERED AND CHOCOLATE BROWNIE CAKE
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PLAIN AND CREAM BISCUITS

Investment Plans:

The company in the 1% phase will invest in 2 different regions of African Continent i.e., Nigeria and Democratic
Republic of Congo in the Year, 2024 as setting up of manufacturing unit will take almost 8 months to 1 year,
simultaneously the company plans to start exports from the Indian Company to African and Gulf Region to
establish up the market and the brand. Also, to set up a small facility to repacking of the product sent from the
Indian company. The Investment would be Approx. 30 million USD.

Looking at the demand in particular region the company will invest in the specific production lines.

Repacking Facility Set Up Lay Out at Nigeria
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The above lay out prescribes the repacking facility for the products which will be sent from India to other African
country as mentioned in investment plans.
Manufacturing Facility at Nigeria and DRC and Other Regions:
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The setup is planned in the layout as per the standard of a food manufacturing facility taking care of the quality
parameters which will be a replica in all the facilities created in the future plans which will be identical to each facility
created.

The same set up to be replicated in the other regions as per the plan for manufacturing unit which maintain adequate
number of labour and an ease for them in the working conditions as per the laws and regulations of a food industry.
All funds raised through the issuance of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB), after deducting associated

expenses, will be earmarked for the objectives mentioned. These funds may also be allocated for any other pertinent
expansion initiatives undertaken by Sampre Nutritions Ltd for its subsidiary companies, including wholly-owned
subsidiaries located in various parts of the world.

Below mentioned are the details of machines which will be installed as and when required as per the market
requirement in the particular region. Also mentioned about the details and specification of the manufacturing
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capacities.

Machinery Details

SN Particulars of Confectionary Machines to be installed in Africa and Gulf Region
.No
(Each Unit)
1 Deposit for PEB Shed
Candy Manufacturing Line with 2 Tons per hr. capacity
2
(Imported duties will be additional along with Insurance & cost of freight) — Importing from M/s.
Chocotech, Germany, ITALY, Nuova Euromec, Italy & China
Eclairs Manufacturing Line — 1 ton per Hr. capacity
3 (Imported duties will be additional along with Insurance & cost of freight)- Importing from ITALY-
Manufacturing of Lollipop with — 1 Ton Per Hr. capacity
4
(Imported duties will be additional along with Insurance & cost of freight)— Importing from CHINA
Deposited Candy Line —
(Imported duties will be additional along with Insurance & cost of freight)— Importing from China-
Deposited Candy
5
TAIZHOU FULIDA ELECTROMECHANICAL CO., LTD, CHINA
Chocolate Moulding Line
(Imported duties will be additional along with Insurance & cost of freight) — Importing from ITALY
6
(M/s. WDV company)-Moulded Chocolate Per Kg Cost
Cream Biscuit Line
(Imported duties will be additional along with Insurance & cost of freight)— Importing from India,
New Era Machines.
7
8 Wafer Biscuit Line importing from India, M/s. Gemni International.
9 QC Labs — Equipment’s
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Utilities — such as Boiler, Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP), Power Generator, Engineering Stores,
Consumable Store, Softener, Chillers, RO Water systems, Air Conditioning Systems & AHU, Electrical

10 Panel Boards, cables & Transformers, Lift / Escalators/ Trolleys for Goods Movement, Conveyors,
Glucose/ Other Storage Tanks, Chimney with Dust collectors,

13 Construction of Administration Block
Working Capital

14 RM & PM, Fuel, Electricity & Gen, Manpower Exp, Warehouse Rent, R&D, Operation Exp, Lab Exp,
Audit, Product Certifications, Furniture

15 Laisoning Exp @ 5% on Project cost

16 Computers — Hardware & Softwares

17 Warehouse Electricity Deposit

18 Additional imported duties(approx.) & Other Contingency cost @25%

Note:

1. Additional Cost of Import Duties are expecting @25% on Total Cost

2. Price / Cost escalation is expecting @10% in span of 1 year on total cost.

3. Similar cost is expecting for establishing new unit in other countries viz. Kinshasa city DRC (Democratic Republic
of Congo) & Lagos city in Nigeria, or any other place in African Union.

COMPANY MANAGEMENT CONFIRMS COMPLIANCE WITH RBI FCCB GUIDELINES FOR PROPOSED FUND

USAGE

1)

2)

Company Management affirms that proposed fund will not be used for any debt repayment of
Sampre Nutritions Limited in India as it’s restricted by RBI’'s FCCB guidelines.

Company Management affirms that proposed fund will not be used for any working capital
requirement of Sampre Nutritions Limited as it’s restricted by RBI’'s FCCB guidelines.
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in the following section, including information with respect to our plans and
strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should read
“Forward-Looking Statements” on page 9 for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those
statements. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-
looking statements. Also read “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” on page 26 and 64, respectively, for a discussion of certain factors that
may affect our business, financial conditions or results of operations.

Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year, and references to a particular fiscal are to the twelve months
ended March 31 of that year. Unless otherwise indicated or the context requires otherwise, the financial
information included herein is based on our Audited Financial Statements and Unaudited Financial
Information included in this Offering Memorandum. For further information, see “Summary Historical
Financial Information” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” on pages [24] and [64], respectively.

Overview

We are one of the leading manufacturers of the confectionery prodcuts in India offering a wide range of
éclairs, candies, toffees, powder and centre filled confectionery products. We started with producing
just lolly pops in 1991 and later diversified into making multiple confectionery items. As on the date of
the Offering Memorandum, our product basket includes lolly pops, candies, vitamin enriched candies
and eclairs. We offer candies in a variety of flavours.

We have also been working as contract manufacturers for multinational FMCG companies since 2002.
We have manufactured confectionery products for companies like Procter & Gamble, Warner Lambert,
Boots, Nestle, Cadbury, Krafts Food and other indian companies. We are also an exclusive contract
manufacturing partner of Mondelez India Foods Private Limited (formerly known as Cadbury India Limited)
for manufacturing their “Eclairs” branded product, both for the domestic as well as the export markets.

Over the years, we have developed an extensive sales and distribution network across India. As of March 31,
2023, our distribution network with a pan-India presence included more than 10 distributors with whom we
have developed strong business relationships over the years. In the six months period ended March 31, 2023,
we supplied our products to over 60 districts across the country through a network of more than 5
distributors, trader and agents. In Fiscal Year 2022 and 2023, revenue generated from sales of our own
branded products represented 0% and 100% of our revenue from operations, respectively.

We currently operate two manufacturing units viz. Unit 1 and Unit 2, both located at Medchal, Rangareddy
district, Telangana. We have an aggregate monthly production capacity of 3,000 tonnes. Over the last three
Fiscal Years, we have increased our aggregate monthly production capacity from approximately [3000]
tonnes in Fiscal Year 2020 to 3,000 metric tonnes per month in Fiscal Year 2023 at a compound annual growth
rate (“CAGR”) of 3.5 % through brown-field expansion at our manufacturing facilities. As on the date of this
Offering Document, we manufacture approximately 1,500 metric tonnes per month in each of our two
manufacturing units. Our manufacturing facilities have been accredited with several quality certifications
from ISO, HACCP, BVQI and FSSA.

Our Company is led by B. K. Gurbani, Chairman and Managing Director of our Company, who has over three
decades of experience in the confectionery manufacturing industry. Our Chairman and Managing Director is
supported by our management team which includes Mr. Vishal Ratan Gurbani, Executive Director and Mr.
Vamshi Srinivas Vempati, Chief Financial Officer. Our leadership team also consists of experienced
professionals from various backgrounds and their capabilities are crucial for us in understanding and
anticipating market trends, managing business operations and growth, leveraging customer relationships and
responding to changes in customer preferences. We have an employee base comprising of 250 employees,
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as of March 31, 2024. For further details, see “Board of Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel” on page
[54].

In Fiscal Years 2021, 2022 and 2023, gross revenues from operations were %2499 lakhs 1823.33 lakhs, &
%3710.66 respectively. In Fiscal Years 2021, 2022 & 2023, profit after tax were X7.57 lakhs, X30.79 lakhs and
X34.70 lakhs, respectively. We have been able to increase our total revenue from operations from Fiscal Year
2021 to Fiscal Year 2022 at a CAGR of -2.22%, our profit before tax at a CAGR of -6.55%, and our profit after
tax at a CAGR of 110.69%, over the same period.

Strengths:

With a legacy of more than two decades in the confectionary manufacturing industry, we have numerous
strengths that enable us to thrive in the market place. We believe that following are our principal competitive
strengths:

One of the leading manufacturers with integrated operations.

Our Company has been in the confectionery industry since 1991. We have a good amount of experience and
a well designed and efficient distribution and sales network all over India. Our Company has a large product
catalogue with 3 brands comprising of different confectionery product categories.

We commenced our business operations by manufacturing lolly pops in 1991 and have over the years
strategically diversified with a focus on sugar based hard and soft candies. We have developed a diverse
product offering in line with requirements of target market. The different kinds of products manufactured by
us are toffees, hard and soft candies, powder and centre filled candies, vitamin enriched candies, lolly pops
and eclairs. We are exclusive contract manufacturer for Mondelez India Foods Private Limited (formerly
known as Cadbury India Limited) for manufacturing their “Eclairs” branded product, both for the domestic
as well as the export markets. For further description of our products see “Business — Products” on page [41].

In Fiscal Years 2021, 2022 and 2023, gross revenues from operations were $2,992,814 2,183,628.74, &
4,443,904.19respectively. In Fiscal Years 2021, 2022 & 2023, profit after tax were 9,065.87, 36,874.25 and
41,556.88, respectively. We have been able to increase our total revenue from operations from Fiscal Year
2021 to Fiscal Year 2022 at a CAGR of -2.22%, our profit before tax at a CAGR of -6.55%, and our profit after
tax at a CAGR of 110.69%, over the same period.

We believe that our positioning in the markets in which we operate and our established relationships with
our distributors, will enable us to benefit from any growth opportunities in our business segments and
markets in which we operate. Our longstanding presence in the confectionery manufacturing industry has
enabled us to understand the changing needs and demands of the industry and our consumers. With close
to three decades of experience in the confectionary industry, we have steadily grown to become one of
India’s leading confectionery manufacturers.

Modern facility and advanced machinery to deliver quality products.

We believe that our manufacturing facilities are advanced enough to cater to the requirements of our
contract manufacturing clients as well as to produce our in-house brands. While we began our operations
with lolly pops in the year 1991, we have progressed by adding new products in our product portfolio and
increasing our production capacity at our manufacturing facilities. We believe that we possess the scale,
product offerings, presence, quality and technology to cater to clients and end-consumers.

We are committed to maintaining quality standards at each step of our sourcing cycle. Our products go
through stringent quality control and quality assurance measures with an emphasis on continual
improvement. We believe that the quality of our manufacturing facility has allowed us to manufacture
products that meets the specifications of our contract manufacturing clients, which has allowed us to
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compete effectively and grow our business. Our manufcaturing facilities are currently equipped with
advanced automatic robotic machines. We believe in efficient quality control; and accordingly, deployed
quality monitoring systems at our facilities to ensure consistent quality. Our manufacturing facilities have
been accredited with several quality certifications from ISO, HACCP, BVQI and FSSA.

Wide geographic reach through our extensive sales and distribution network and strong customer relationships

As on the date of this Offering Memorandum, we have an aggregate installed monthly capacity of 3,000
metric tons at our manufacturing facilities. We have been expanding our production capacity for the past 3
years and in Fiscal Year 2023, we expect to capitalize on full capacity Due to delay in Ordering & installation
process full capacity was not capitalized. Further we have been also able increase our capacity of production
from Fiscal Year 2020 to Fiscal Year 2023 at a CAGR of 3%.

Experienced management team and workforce.

Our Company has undertaken considerable expansion of operations, both geographically and in terms of
product portfolio, under the leadership of our Chairman and Managing Director. Mr, B. K. Gurbani, our
Executive Chairman and Managing Director, has over three decades of experience in the confectionery
industry. Our senior management team consists of technically qualified and highly experienced professionals
in the industry we operate in. They bring with them, extensive experience in sales and marketing, order
management, design and engineering, testing, purchase, operations, human resources, finance and after
sales services.

We believe that our management framework allows us to maintain the flexibility to address the markets and
the geographies we operate in. We believe in high standards of ethical integrity and we ensure that all our
business functions are carried out in a transparent manner. For further information on our key managerial
personnel, please refer to “Board of Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel” on page 55.

Our human resources policies are aimed towards recruiting and retaining talented employees and facilitating
their integration into our Company and encouraging development of their skills. We believe the strength and
quality of our technically skilled team and the nature of our organizational structure has been instrumental
in implementing our business and growth strategies. We believe that our talented and motivated employees
have been key to our success so far and will further enable us to capitalize on future growth opportunities.
The total number of employees of our Company have grown from 180 in the Fiscal Year 2020 to 250 in the
Fiscal Year 2023.

Strategies
We intend to grow our business by implementing the following strategies:
Business Expansion by setting up a subsidiary and launch of new products in UAE & South African countries

We intend to expand our physical presence by setting up subsidiaries in uae and south african countries. With a view
to further expand our business operations outside India, we intend to launch our new products in UAE as well as in
South African countries. We are in the process of launching new vitaminised product for lactating mothers and
candies and lollypops for children. At present we are operating and manufacting in India only thus expanding in new
geographical areas will increase our revenue, customer base and ultimately enhancing brand awareness.

Enhance our manufacturing capabilities and expand our product portfolio.

We are in the process of exploring further expansion opportunities, to enhance our manufacturing capabilities for
product diversification and manufacturing of various new products. We believe that our expansion strategy is
devised to increase our revenue & customer base. We intend to further develop and strength our technology
platform by installing new lines of machinery to support our business expansion and improve the quality of our
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products. We will continue to update our machines to streamline physical and operational infrastructure to expand
our manufacturing capabilities.

Targeting new customer accounts and expanding existing customer business and increase our market share in
domestic market and set-up in International Market.

We intend to continue to grow domestically and internationally by way of organic growth in order to increase our
presence and our revenue. We believe that understanding the needs of our customers is of prime importance for
the continuous growth of our business. With a view to further diversify our customer base and increase our market
share, we intend to augment our sales in the geographic markets where we sell our products as well as expand into
new geographic market (UAE & South Africa). Towards this objective, we seek to continue to leverage our
relationships with our existing customer, who, presently, may be sourcing the products we manufacture from other
vendors.

Further, we also intend to increase the size of our addressable market by increasing the number of authorised dealers
and distributors. Currently, we have distribution channels majorly in Twin cities of Hyderabad & Secunderabad, Pune,
Jaipur, Bhubaneswar, Cuttack, Mumbai, Nagpur, Gauwahati, Kolkatta, Delhi, Ghajiabad, Bangalore, Coimbatore &
Chennai, thus expanding in new geographical areas will increase our customer base and ultimately enhancing brand
awareness. This will lead to increase in demand of our products ultimately ensuring optimum utilisation of our
capacities.

Our growth strategy in these markets will be to create strong local presence and connect and expertise with required
development capabilities to exploit growth potential offered by these markets. Our strong focus will remain on
acquiring new customers, retaining existing customers and offering high quality product.

Enhance our manufacturing capabilities and expand our product portfolio to leverage company’s growth drivers.

We believe that our expansion strategy is devised to meet the end-application and dynamic needs of the market and
our customers.

In order to capitalize on growth opportunities in this sector, we seek to invest in physical and operational
infrastructure to expand our manufacturing capabilities by establishing new factories for producing our Products.
Our focus is to continue to develop and adopt energy efficient technologies and practices, increase usage of
alternative raw material and fuels, and waste utilization technologies, to further improve the quality of our products
and optimize our production costs. We are also in the process of exploring further expansion opportunities, to
enhance our manufacturing capabilities for product diversification and manufacturing of value-added products.

Targeting new customer accounts and expanding existing customer business and increase our market share in
domestic and international markets

We intend to continue to grow domestically and internationally by way of organic growth in order to increase our
presence and our revenue.

We believe that understanding the needs of our customers is of prime importance for the continuous growth of our
business. With a view to further diversify our customer base and increase our market share, we intend to augment
our sales in the geographic markets where we sell our products as well as expand into new geographic market.

Further, we also intend to increase the size of our addressable market by increasing the number of authorised dealers
and distributors. We also plan to penetrate new towns through these additional dealers and distributions. Currently,
we have distribution channels majorly in india, thus expanding in new geographical areas will increase our customer
base and ultimately enhancing brand awareness. This will lead to increase in demand of our products ultimately
ensuring optimum utilisation of our capacities. Our growth strategy in these markets will be to create strong local
presence and connect and expertise with required development capabilities to exploit growth potential offered by
these markets. Our strong focus will remain on acquiring new customers, retaining existing customers and offering
high quality products.
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Our Products:

We have a variety of products and the brief details of the products manufactured and sold by our product portfolio
are as follows:

We are engaged in the business of manufacturing Confectionary products. Our manufacturing facilities are equipped
with various machinery for manufacturing our products. The brief description of the products manufactured and sold
by our Company is as follows:

LIST OF PRODUCTS
o | e | v | e

1 CHOCOLATE ECLAIRS

2 FLIPP CANDY KACHA AAM

3 FLIPP CANDY IMILI

4 FLIPP CANDY COLA

5 FLIPP CANDY NIMBU

6 FLIPP CANDY MINT
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7 2XITE CANDY KACHA AAM
8 FLIPP CANDY PAAN
9 2XITE CANDY MANGO
10 2XITE CANDY COLA
11 2XITE CANDY ORANGE
12 2XITE CANDY LITCHI
13 2XITE CANDY CSI;{?;&ET
14 2XITE LOLIPOP LITCHI
15 2XITE CANDY MANGO
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16.

2XITE CANDY STRAWBERRY

VITAMIN

17 CANDY NUTRI ENRICHED

OUR MAJOR CLIENTS
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INDUSTRY REPORT

Global Confectionery Market

The global confectionery market size was valued at USD 298.23 billion in 2021 and is projected to expand at
a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 4.3% from 2022 to 2028. The growing food and beverage industry
across the globe and the rising per capita consumption of these products are expected to promote market
growth. Moreover, consumers’ inclination toward gifting these products coupled with rising disposable
income and rapid urbanization across the globe are the major driving factors of the market. In addition, the
continuous development and attractive packaging increase the demand for confectionery products in
emerging economies

Continuous changing consumer behavior and dietary habit are propelling the growth of the market. The
growing trends toward consumers buying confectionery products made with natural ingredients are
gathering popularity in recent years. According to Dohler, approximately 50% of confectionery products
consumers want, asks for healthier options with at least 60% natural ingredients. Moreover, the increasing
popularity and demand for sugar-free confectionery products across the developed economies have led to
significant market demand over the forecast period.

Product Insights

The chocolate segment contributed to the largest market share of more than 45% in 2021 and is expected to
grow with a CAGR of 4.2% from 2022 to 2028. The increasing demand and consumption of chocolate products
from all age groups to satisfy their test buds is accelerating market growth. Moreover, chocolate is the highest
per capita consumed confectionery as compared to other products across the globe. Furthermore, increasing
demand for organic and premium chocolate products has projected market growth over the forecast period.

Indian Confectionery Industry

Confectionery refers to a wide range of food products that are rich in sugar and other sweeteners.
They are prepared by using several ingredients, such as stabilizers, emulsifiers, gelling, flavoring, and
thickening agents, which assist in enhancing the texture, taste, appearance, and elasticity of
products. Confectionery items commonly include chocolates and non-chocolate candies, such as
gum, ice cream, frozen desserts, sweet baked goods, etc. These products are widely available across
supermarkets, online platforms, retail shops, bakery stores, hypermarkets, etc.

Indian Confectionery Market Trends

The emerging trend of gifting confectionery products, especially during festivals or special events
such as birthdays, anniversaries, social meetings, etc., is primarily driving the Indian confectionery
market. Additionally, the elevating levels of urbanization, improving consumer living standards, and
increasing popularity of imported chocolates and candies, are some of the other key factors
augmenting the sales of confectionery products in the country. Besides this, several key players are
introducing limited-edition, premium confectionery products that are fortified with high-quality
nuts, grains, and cereals. This, in confluence with the growing consumer per capita expenditures, are
creating a positive outlook for the regional market. Moreover, the growing popularity of sugar-free
confectioneries on account of the rising health concerns regarding cardiovascular diseases, obesity,
diabetes, etc., is also propelling the product demand. Apart from this, the introduction of clean-
label, cruelty-free, vegan, organic, and sustainably sourced confectionery products with no chemical
additives and reduced allergens is further catalyzing the market growth. Numerous other factors,
such as continuous advancements in ambient storage conditions and the advent of anti-microbial
packaging solutions, are expected to drive the India confectionery market over the forecasted
period.
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India Confectionery Market Share, By Product Type {in %)
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The development of supermarkets and increase in per capita incomes of consumers has had a
positive impact on chocolate sales. People prefer buying international brands, as it offers them
several options under one roof. “The development of supermarkets, hypermarkets and convenience
stores coupled with the trend towards higher allowances for children are likely to be the primary
growth drivers for sugar confectionery.” States K Gupta.

Sales are also expected to increase in certain parts of India. “The high number of foreign products
and brand variants available in chocolate confectionery is expected to be a major factor in the more
economically advanced regions of North and West India, where there is already a visible preference
for chocolate confectionery,” he adds. With such vast growth potential, Indian chocolate companies
known they are in the right place at the right time.

Sugar-boiled confectionery

The Indian chocolate Industry holds a profitable position. It seems to be poised to grow by leaps and
bounds in the coming years. While the demand for chocolates is increasing in India, sugar-boiled
confectioneries (consisting of hard-boiled candy, toffees and other sugar-based candies) are more
popular in the country. Chauhan says, “According to a recent market research, chocolates have
penetrated just 5 per cent of Indian households. On the other hand, sugar-boiled confectionery
reached has 15 per cent households. This segment is expected to remain the most lucrative category
over the next five years and hence offers a high growth opportunity.”

But though sugar-boiled confectionery is the most consumed among children, a huge market for
chocolates still exists. The Indian chocolate market holds great potential for Western chocolate
manufacturers, as it is still at a nascent stage.

Improved Sales

The development of supermarkets and increase in per capita incomes of consumers has had a
positive impact on chocolate sales. People prefer buying international brands, as it offers them
several options under one roof. “The development of supermarkets, hypermarkets and convenience
stores coupled with the trend towards higher allowances for children are likely to be the primary
growth drivers for sugar confectionery.” States K Gupta.

Sales are also expected to increase in certain parts of India. “The high number of foreign products
and brand variants available in chocolate confectionery is expected to be a major factor in the more
economically advanced regions of North and West India, where there is already a visible preference
for chocolate confectionery,” he adds. With such vast growth potential, Indian chocolate companies
known they are in the right place at the right time.

Challenges

However, the industry has to overcome several challenges in order to tap this segment’s potential
to the fullest. One of the biggest bottlenecks faced by this segment is the rising price of ingredients
like cocoa, sugar and milk powder. Cocoa prices have gone up by one-and-a-half times in the last one
year, while sugar prices have doubled. Similarly, prices of milk powder have increased sharply in the
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last few months. At the same time, since consumers are not willing to pay more for confectionery
products, raising MRPs could kill sales. This is why despite the high manufacturing cost one can still
buy a premium Cadbury Dairy Milk for merely Rs 2 in India.

This widening gap has made cost engineering difficult. “Confessionary is a highly price-sensitive and
children-specific segment. It is largely sold as individual units at retail outlets. Also, children
generally have a limited budget. Hence, confectionery brands have mostly focused on price points
of 50 paise and Rs 1. This trend continuous till today because of restrictive coinage issues,” avers
Chauhan.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following management’s discussion and analysis of our Company’s financial condition and results
of operations is intended to convey management’s perspective on the operating performance and financial
condition of our Company as at and for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2020 ,2021 ,2022 and 2023 on a
consolidated basis. This disclosure is intended to assist in understanding and interpreting the financial
statements of our Company included in this Offering Circular. The discussion should be read in conjunction
with “Presentation of Financial Information”, “Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Information”,
“Capitalization”, and the Annual Consolidated Financial Statements of our Company and the accompanying
schedules and notes.

The following discussion contains certain forward-looking statements. These statements are based
on management’s current projections and expectations about future events. Our actual results may differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward- looking statements as a result of many important factors,
including those set out under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering Circular. See “Forward-Looking
Statements and Associated Risks.” Further information regarding the presentation of financial information is
set out under the heading “Presentation of Financial Information.”

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a leading confectionery manufacturer in India, offering a diverse range of products including éclairs,
candies, toffees, powders, and center-filled confectioneries. Originating with lolly pops in 1991, we have
expanded our offerings significantly. Our portfolio now includes lolly pops, candies, vitamin-enriched candies,
and éclairs, available in various flavors.

Since 2002, we have served as contract manufacturers for multinational FMCG companies, including Procter
& Gamble, Nestle, Cadbury, among others. We are an exclusive partner for Mondelez India Foods Private
Limited for manufacturing their "Eclairs" branded product.

With an extensive sales and distribution network, covering over 60 districts in India, we have established
strong relationships with more than 10 distributors. Revenue from our own branded products accounted for
100% of our revenue in FY 2023.

Operating two manufacturing units in Telangana, we have a combined monthly production capacity of 3,000
tonnes, achieved through brown-field expansions. Our facilities hold several quality certifications, ensuring
adherence to international standards.

FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULT OF OPERATIONS

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED (“the company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement and the statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023;

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of Financial Statements:

The restated summary statement of assets and liabilities of the Company as at March 31 2023, March 31,
2022, 2021 and 2020 and the related restated summary statement of profits and loss and cash flows for the
period/year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 (herein collectively referred to as
(“Restated Summary Statements”) have been compiled by the management from the audited Financial
Statements for the period/year ended on March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 & 2020. Restated
Summary Statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the provisions of Part | of
Chapter Ill of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (“ICDR Regulations”) issued by SEBI and Guidance note on Reports in Companies
Prospectuses (Revised 2019) (“Guidance Note”). Restated Summary Statements have been prepared
specifically for inclusion in the offer document to be filed by the Company with the NSE in connection with
its proposed IPO. The Company’s management has recast the Financial Statements in the form required by
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of restated Summary Statements.

The Restated Financial Statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention and
evaluated on a going-concern basis using the accrual system of accounting in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India (Indian GAAP) and the requirements of the Companies Act, including
the Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per normal operating cycle of the
Company and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements are separate financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time). The Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value

Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments). The standalone financial statements are presented in INR (Rupees)

Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation
i) Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: Its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates. Any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. If significant part of an item of property, plant and
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equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment are derecognised from financial statement,
either on disposal or when no economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment recognised in the statement of profit and loss
account in the year of occurrence.

ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the company.
iii) Depreciation

Depreciation amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value. Depreciation on assets has been provided on Straight line basis at the useful lives specified in
the Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions / deductions is calculated pro-rata from
/ to the month of additions / deductions. Assets costing less than INR 5,000/- are depreciated at 100% in the
year of acquisition.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment.

Interest income: Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable.

Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work-in-progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost,
calculated on weighted average basis, and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials and stores comprise of
cost of purchase. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis
of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Items
held for use in the production of inventory are not written below cost if the finished product in which these
will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Foreign Currencies
Functional currency: The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee.

Transactions and translations: Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign-currency-denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are translated into the relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet
date. The gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in net profit in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at fair value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at
historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the transaction.
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Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in
determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled. Revenue, expense and cash flow
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant functional currencies using the
exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability
during the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax: Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable income for
the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and
current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax: Deferred income tax is recognised using the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent it is probable that either future taxable profits or
reversal of deferred tax liabilities will be available, against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of a
deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority.

Impairment of Assets

Non-Financial Assets: The carrying value of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are
reviewed for impairment if any indication of impairment exists.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised
for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case any impairment loss of the revalued asset is
treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve for that asset. When there is indication
that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods
which no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In
case of revalued assets, such reversal is not recognised.

Financial assets: The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
its financial assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
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increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using
a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate
of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Financial Statements.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

(a) Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade Receivables and Loans: Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these
assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit
losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial
instrument.

Debt Instruments: Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) till de-recognition on the basis
of (i) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

Equity Instruments: All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either
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at FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
(b) Financial assets— Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost: Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these
financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial assets are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets are measured at fair value
through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Financial liabilities

Loans and borrowings: After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost on accrual basis.

Financial guarantee contracts: Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that
require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails
to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount
recognized less cumulative amortization.

(d) Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, carrying amounts approximate the fair value
due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(e) De-recognition

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Indian
Accounting Standard 109 “Financial Instruments”. A financial liability (or a part of financial liability) is de-
recognised from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

(f) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in financial statements if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle

on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Earnings Per Share
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Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary equity shares, for the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Although these estimates are
based upon management’s best knowledge of current events, actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgements In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Income taxes: The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Operating Cycle and Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification
in accordance with Part-I of Division- Il of Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013. An asset is treated as
current when (a) It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
(b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or (c) It is expected to be realised within twelve months after
the reporting period, or (d) The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as
non-current. A liability is current when (a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or (b) It is
held primarily for the purpose of trading; or (c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period, or (d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, results in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. The Company classifies all other
liabilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its normal operating cycle.

Segment Reporting:
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The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified
to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Inter-segment
revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair value
factors. Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the
operating activities of the segment.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue / expenses / assets /
liabilities”.

RESULTS OF OUR OPERATIONS

(Amounts in S - USD)

Particulars For the year ended March 31
% of % of % of % of
2023 Total znaz Total 202 Total 2u2l Total
INCOME
:i‘:s””e 44,43,904. | 99.81 |27,69,520. | 98.81 | 21,83,628. | 99.83 | 29,76,598. | 99.28
. 19 % 96 % 74 % 80 %
Operations
Other
o 8,670.66 |0.19% |33,257.49 |1.19% |3,736.53 |0.17% |21,497.01 | 0.72%
Total 44,52,574. | 100.00 | 28,02,778. | 100.00 | 21,87,365. | 100.00 | 29,98,095. | 100.00
Income (A) | 85 % 44 % 27 % 81 %
EXPENDITU
RE
;Zsttefi;zaw 18,21,736. | 41.38 | 7,89,808.3 | 28.64 | 4,41,377.2 | 2030 | 9,87,461.0 | 33.55
53 % 8 % 5 % 8 %
consumed
Direct 15,56,610. | 35.36 | 12,07,413. | 43.78 | 9,73,281.4 | 44.76 | 11,24,467. | 38.20
Expenses 78 % 17 % 4 % 07 %
Changes in
inventories
of work-in- 0.00% - | 0.00% 0.00% - | 0.00%
progress -
and finished
goods
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Employee

benefits 3’38’814“” 7.70% ;'28'059'8 4.64% 3'00'251'5 4.61% ;'06’2155 3.61%
expense

Finance 2,261556 |0 2115209 | |1848024 | _ . (2554730 | .
costs 9 6 0 5

Depreciatio

n o and 2181437 |, . 1957245 | (2165389 | oo (1787544 | o
Amortizatio | 1 5 2 9

n expense

Other 2411377 | oo 2256526 | o o |2581197 | 1187 [291,1137 | o
expenses 2 9 6 % 7

:;’tae'nses 44,02,598. | 100.00 | 27,58,179. | 100.00 | 21,74,371. | 100.00 | 29,43,485. | 100.00
(B)p 80 % 64 % 26 % 03 %
Profit 49,976.05 44,586.83 12,994.01 54,610.78

before tax

Tax

expense:

igx Current - |o0.00% - |o00% | 0.00% | 47.90 0.37%
(ii) Deferred 100.00 100.00 100.00 99.63
o 8419.16 |, 771257 |, 394002 |, 14359.28 |
Total Tax 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Expense 8419.16 |, 171257 |, 394012 |, 1440719 |
;:Zf;zar for | 41556.80 |0.93% |36,874.25 |1.32% |9,053.80 |o0.41% |40,203.50 | 1.34%

Main Components of our Profit and Loss Account

Income

Our total income comprises of revenue from operations and other income.
Revenue from Operations

Our revenue from operation as a percentage of our total income was 99.81%, 98.81%, 99.83% and 99.28%
for the period ending March 31, 2023 and for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and
March 31, 2020 respectively.

Other Income
It is the income earned from discounts, interest income, rental income, exchange fluctuation, etc.
Expenditure

Our total expenditure primarily consists of cost of raw materials consumed, direct expenses, changes in
inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods, employee benefit expenses, finance costs and Other
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Expenses.
Employee Benefit Expenses

Our employee benefits expense comprises of salary and allowances, Contribution to PF, ESIC, Director’s
remuneration, gratuity and staff welfare expenses.

Finance costs

Our Finance cost expenses comprises of interest on borrowings, interest on delayed payment of taxes, other
borrowing costs, etc.

Other Expenses

Other expenses primarily include remuneration to Auditor, solar plant maintenance expense, communication
expenses, insurance, stationary & printing expenses, legal and professional charges, repairs and maintenance
expenses, miscellaneous expenses, sales and promotion expenses, security charges, travelling expenses and
rates & taxes, etc.

Provision for Tax

The provision for current taxation is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulation. Deferred tax is
recognized on timing differences between the accounting and the taxable income for the year and quantified
using the tax rates and laws enacted or subsequently enacted as on balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a virtual certainly that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized in future.

Fiscal 2023 compared with fiscal 2022
Income

The total income of our company for fiscal year 2023 was 4,443,904.19 USD against 2,769,520.95 USD total
income for Fiscal year 2022. An increase of 37.68% in total income. This was due to utilisation of Additional
installed capacity

Expenditure
Cost of raw materials consumed

In Fiscal 2023, our Company incurred cost for raw materials consumed 1,821,736.52 USD against 789,808.38
USD expenses in fiscal 2022. An increase of 56.65%. This was due to sales were increased under P2P.

Direct Expenses

In Fiscal 2023, our Company incurred Direct cost of 1,556,610.77 USD against 1,207,413.17 USD expenses in
fiscal 2022. An increase of 22.43%. This was due to increase in Material cost

Employee Benefit Expenses

In Fiscal 2023, our Company incurred for employee benefit expenses 338,814.37 USD against 128,059.88 USD
expenses in fiscal 2022. An increase of 35.40%. This was due to Manpower cost was increased due to more
production.

Finance Costs

The finance costs for the fiscal 2023 was 226,155.69 USD while it was 211,520.95 USD for fiscal 2022. This
increase of 6.47% was because. Rate of interest on credit limits was increased.

Other Expenses
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In fiscal 2023, our other expenses were 241,137.72 USD and 225,652.69 USD in fiscal 2022. An increase of
6.42% was due to similar expenses were incurred for additional services

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

Our Company had reported a profit before tax for the Fiscal 2023 of 49,976.05 USD against profit before tax
of 44,586.82 USD in Fiscal 2022, a 10.79% increase. This was due to increase in sales and little control of
expenses

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax

Profit after tax for the Fiscal 2023 was at 41,556.88 USD against profit after tax of 36,874.25 USD in fiscal
2022, a 11.26% increase. This was due to increase in sales

Fiscal 2022 compared with fiscal 2021
Income

The total income of our company for fiscal year 2022 was 2,769,520.95 USD against 2,183,628.74 USD total
income for Fiscal year 2021. An increase of 21.15% in total income.

Expenditure
Cost of raw materials consumed

In Fiscal 2022, our Company incurred cost for raw materials consumed 789,808.38 USD against 441,377.24
USD expenses in fiscal 2021. An increase of 44.12%. This was due to increase in cost of consumption

Direct Expenses

In Fiscal 2022, our Company incurred Direct Expenses of 1,207,413.17 USD against 973,281.43 USD expenses
in fiscal 2021. A Increase of 19.39%. This was due to proportionally expenses increased

Employee Benefit Expenses

In Fiscal 2022, our Company incurred for employee benefit expenses 128,059.88 USD against 100,251.49 USD
expenses in fiscal 2021. An increase of 21.71%. This was due to increase in manpower cost

Finance Costs

The finance costs for the fiscal 2022 was 211,520.95 USD while it was 184,802.39 USD for fiscal 2021. This
increase of 12.63% was because finance cost was increased due to restructuring of credit facilities under Covid
19.

Other Expenses

In fiscal 2022, our other expenses were 225,652.69 USD and 258,119.76 USD in fiscal 2021. An decrease of
14.38% was due to reason of control of other operational expenses

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

Our Company had reported a profit before tax for the Fiscal 2022 of 44,586.82 USD against profit before tax
of 12,994.01 USD in Fiscal 2021, a 70.86% increase. This was due to control of cost, profits were increased.

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax

Profit after tax for the Fiscal 2022 was at 36,874.25 USD against profit after tax of 9,053.89 USD in fiscal 2021,
a 75.46% increase. This was due to in similar line of PBT

Fiscal 2021 compared with fiscal 2020
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Income

The total income of our company for fiscal year 2021 was 2,183,628.74 USD against 2,976,598.80 USD total
income for Fiscal year 2020. A decrease of 36.31% in total income. This was due to Covid 19, chocolate
consumption was decreased.

Expenditure
Cost of raw materials consumed

In Fiscal 2021, our Company incurred cost for raw materials consumed 441,377.24 USD against 987,461.08
USD expenses in fiscal 2020. A decrease of 123.72% was due to consumption of chocolate is decreased and
cost of consumption was down in proportionately

Direct Expenses

In Fiscal 2021, our Company incurred Direct Expenses of 973,281.43 USD against 1,124,467.06 USD expenses
in fiscal 2020. An increase of 237.41%. This was due to increased due to Fixed cost

Employee Benefit Expenses

In Fiscal 2021, our Company incurred for employee benefit expenses 100,251.49 USD against 106,215.56 USD
expenses in fiscal 2020. A decrease of 5.95% was due to increase — controlled manpower during Covid- 19
time.

Finance Costs

The finance costs for the fiscal 2021 was 184,802.39 USD while it was 255,473.05 USD for fiscal 2020. This
decrease of 38.24% was due to Sampre has availed moratorium period against payment of interest on Term
loans due to Covid 19

Other Expenses

In fiscal 2021, our other expenses were 258,119.76 USD and 291,113.77 USD in fiscal 2020. A decrease of
12.78% was due proportionately reduced in connection with production

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

Our Company had reported a profit before tax for the Fiscal 2021 of 12,994.01 USD against profit before tax
of 54,610.78 USD in Fiscal 2020, a 320.30% decrease. This was due to reduction in top sales has impacted on
net margins

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax

Profit after tax for the Fiscal 2021 was at 9,053.89 USD against profit after tax of 40,203.59 USD in fiscal 2020,
a 344.21% decrease. This was due to in line with PBT

Cash Flows
(Amount S USD)
Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2023 2022 2021 2020
Net Cash from Operating Activities $483,602 $442,759 $320,289 $343,168
Net Cash from Investing Activities $520,036 -$92,120 -$108,337 $151,602
Net Cash used in Financing Activities $419409 -$199,855 | $40,506 -$98,385
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities for the period ended March 31, 2023 was $483,602 as compared to the
Profit Before Tax at $49,976.05. Net cash from operating activities for the period ended March 31, 2022 was
at $442,759 as compared to the Profit Before Tax at $44,586.82, while for period ended March 31, 2021, net
cash from operating activities was at $320,289 as compared to the Profit Before Tax at $12,994.01. For period
ended March 31, 2020, the net cash from operating activities was $343,168 compared to Profit before Tax of
$54,610.78.

Cash Flows from Investment Activities

Net cash from investing activities for the period ended March 31, 2023 was $520,036. This was due to
Proceeds of Fixed Assets including Capex & WIP. Net cash from investing activities for fiscal 2022 was at
($92,120) due to Proceeds of Fixed Assets including Capex, while for fiscal 2021, net cash from investing
activities was at $108,337 due to Proceeds of Fixed Assets including Capex, the net cash from investing
activities for the fiscal 2020 was $151,602 due to transfer of certain capex to others.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash from financing activities for the period ended March 31, 2023 was $419409 due to Proceeds from
Equity.Net cash from financing activities for fiscal 2022 was at ($199,855) due to repayment of Long term
loans, while for fiscal 2021, net cash from financing activities was at $40,506 also due to increase in Term
Loans For fiscal 2020, the net cash from financing activities was ($98,385) due to repayment of certain credit
facilities.

OTHER MATTERS
1. Unusual or infrequent events or transactions

Except as described in this Draft Prospectus, during the periods under review there have been no
transactions or events, which in our best judgment, would be considered unusual or infrequent.

2. Significant economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from continuing
Operations

Other than as described in the Section titled “Summary Historical Financial Information” and chapter
titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations”,
beginning on Page 24 and 64 respectively of this Draft Prospectus, to our knowledge there are no
significant economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from continuing
Operations.

3. Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material adverse impact on
revenue or income from continuing operations

Other than as described in the chapter titled “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Conditions and Result of Operations”, beginning on Page 26 and 64 respectively of this Draft
Prospectus, best to our knowledge there are no known trends or uncertainties that have or had or are
expected to have a material adverse impact on revenues or income of our company from continuing
operations.

4. Future relationship between Costs and Income

Other than as described in the chapter titled “Risk Factors” beginning on Page 26 of this Draft Prospectus,
best to our knowledge there are no factors, which will affect the future relationship between costs and
income or which are expected to have a material adverse impact on our operations and finances.

5. Competition Conditions
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The industry in we are operating faces competition from organized as well as unorganized players in the
domestic market as well as in the international market. We have a number of competitors who
manufacture and supply products, which are similar to the products supplied by us. Even with a
diversified product portfolio, quality approach and modern technology used in our products, we may
have to face competitive pressures. We believe the principal elements of competition in our industry are
price, quality, timely delivery and reliability. We compete against our competitors by establishing
ourselves as a top solution provider of engineering services for engineering systems, built on automotive
chassis and allied areas with industry expertise, which enables us to provide our clients with appropriate
customized products suitable to their needs and market requirements.
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FOREIGN INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE CONTROLS

GENERAL

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as
amended, and the rules, regulations and directions issued thereunder (“FEMA”) and the various rules and
regulations issued thereunder from time to time, including the precise manner in which such investment may
be made. The Government has from time to time made policy pronouncements on foreign direct investment
(“FDI”) through press notes and press releases. The Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade
(“DPNT”), issued the Consolidated FDI Policy through a notification dated 28 October 2020 bearing DPIIT File
Number 5(2)/2020-FDI (“FDI Policy”), which, with effect from 15 October 2020, consolidated and superseded
all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI that were in force and effect as on 14 October
2020. The FDI Policy is amended and updated from time to time and will be valid until the DPIIT issues an
updated circular. The foreign investment in our Company is governed by, inter alia, the FEMA, the Foreign
Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 (“FEMA Non-Debt Rules”), the FDI Policy. The
FEMA Non-Debt Rules were enacted on 17 October 2019 in supersession of the Foreign Exchange
Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2017, except as
respects things done or omitted to be done before such supersession. Further, the RBI enacted the Foreign
Exchange Management (Mode of Payment and Reporting of Non-Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 on 17
October 2019, which was amended by the RBI through notification dated 15 June 2020, inter alia, regulates
the mode of payment and remittance of sale proceeds.

FOREIGN INVESTMENT

Foreign investment refers to any investment made by a person resident outside India on a repatriable basis
in equity instruments of an Indian company or to the capital of a limited liability partnership. An Indian
company may issue equity instruments to a person resident outside India subject to entry routes, sectoral
caps and attendant conditionalities prescribed in the FEMA Non-Debt Rules. FCCBs and depository receipts
having underlying of instruments being in the nature of debt shall not be included in the sectoral cap.
However, any equity holding by a person resident outside India resulting from conversion of any debt
instrument under any arrangement shall be reckoned under the sectoral cap. Foreign investment in India can
be either through the automatic route where no prior approval of any regulatory authority is required or
through the Government approval route. FEMA Non-Debt Rules prescribe sectoral caps for the sectors or
activities as a limit indicated against each sector. The total foreign investment shall not exceed the sectoral
or statutory cap. In sectors or activities not listed under the FEMA Non-Debt Rules or not prohibited under
the Schedule thereto, foreign investment is permitted up to 100 per cent. under automatic route, subject to
applicable laws or regulations, security and other conditionalities. These conditions, inter alia, include certain
minimum pricing requirements, compliance with the SEBI Takeover Regulations and ownership restrictions
based on the nature of the non-resident investor. Under the FEMA Non-Debt Rules, foreign investment up to
100 per cent. is permitted in “Other Financial Services”, which refers to financial services activities regulated
by financial sector regulators, including the NHB, as notified by the Government of India, subject to conditions
including minimum capitalisation norms, specified by the concerned regulator (in our case, the NHB and the
RBI), if any. The FDI Policy and the FEMA Non-Debt Rules prescribe the method of calculation of total foreign
investment (i.e., direct foreign investment and indirect foreign investment) in an Indian company. In relation
to indirect foreign investment, FEMA Non-Debt Rules prescribe that indirect foreign investment refers to
downstream investment received by an Indian entity from: (A) another Indian entity which has received
foreign investment and (i) the Indian entity is not owned and not controlled by resident Indian citizens, or (ii)
is owned or controlled by persons resident outside India; or (B) an investment vehicle whose sponsor or
manager or investment manager (i) is not owned and not controlled by resident Indian citizens or (ii) is owned
or controlled by persons resident outside India.

Equity instruments are required to be issued to the person resident outside India making such investment
within 60 days from the date of receipt of the consideration. Where such equity instruments are not issued
within 60 days from the date of receipt of the consideration the same shall be refunded to the person
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concerned by outward remittance through banking channels or by credit to his NRE/FCNR (B) accounts, as
the case may be within 15 days from the date of completion of 60 days. An Indian company issuing equity
instruments to a person resident outside India and where such issue is reckoned as foreign direct investment,
is required to report such issue in Form FC-GPR, not later than 30 days from the date of issue of equity
instruments. The RBI has introduced an online application, Foreign Investment Reporting and Management
System (“FIRMS”) to subsume all the existing reports. FIRMS provides for the Single Master Form (“SMF”).
With the implementation of SMF, the reporting of FDI, which was a two-step procedure viz., ARF and FC-GPR
is merged into a single revised FC-GPR. With effect from 1 September 2018, certain forms including FC-GPR
and FC-TRS were being made available for filing in SMF.

INVESTMENT BY FOREIGN PORTFOLIO INVESTORS

In terms of the SEBI FPI Regulations, the issue of equity shares to a single FPI or an investor group (which
means the multiple entities having common ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50 per cent. or
common control) must be below 10 per cent. of our post-issue equity share capital. Further, in terms of the
FEMA Non-Debt Rules, the total holding by each FPI, including its investor group, shall be below 10 per cent.
of the total paid-up equity share capital of a company and the total holdings of all FPIs put together, including
any other direct and shall indirect foreign investments in a company, not exceed 24 per cent. of the paid-up
equity share capital of a company on a fully diluted basis. In case the total holding of an FPI, including its
investor group, increases (i) beyond 10 per cent. of the total paid-up equity capital of a company, on a fully
diluted basis; or (ii) 10 per cent. or more of the paid-up value of any series of debentures or preference shares
or share warrants issued that may be issued by the company, the total investment made by the FPI will be re-
classified as FDI subject to the conditions as specified by the SEBI and the RBI in this regard and the company
and the investor will be required to comply with applicable reporting requirements. The aggregate limit of 24
per cent. may be increased up to the sectoral cap by way of a resolution passed by the board of directors
followed by a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the company. In terms of the FEMA Non-Debt
Rules, for calculating the aggregate holding of FPIs in a company, holding of all registered FPIs shall be
included. The existing individual investment limit for an FPI in our Company is not exceeding 10 per cent. of
the total paid-up equity share capital of our Company. Our Company has by way of a special resolution dated
17 January 2013 increased the limits for aggregate investment limits of FPIs to 100 per cent. of the paid-up
equity share capital of our Company.

INVESTMENT BY NON-RESIDENT INDIANS

An NRI may purchase or sell equity instruments of a listed Indian company on repatriation basis, on a
recognized stock exchange in India. The total holding by any individual NRI or Overseas Citizen of India is
restricted to (i) 5 per cent. of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis; or (ii) 5 per cent. of the
paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian
company and the total holdings of all NRIs and Overseas Citizens of India put together is restricted to 10 per
cent. of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or 10 per cent. of the paid-up value of each
series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants. The aggregate ceiling of 10 per cent. may be
raised to 24 per cent. if a special resolution to that effect is passed by the general body of the Indian company.
Investments made by NRIs on non-repatriation basis in accordance with the FEMA Non-Debt Rules will be
treated as domestic investments at par with the investments made by residents.

TRANSFER OF EQUITY INSTRUMENTS OF AN INDIAN COMPANY BY A PERSON RESIDENT OUTSIDE INDIA

A person resident outside India holding equity instruments of an Indian company or units in accordance with
the FEMA Non-Debt Rules may transfer such equity instrument or units in compliance with the applicable
conditions prescribed under the FEMA Non-Debt Rules. A person resident outside India (not being a non-
resident Indian or an overseas citizen of India or an erstwhile overseas corporate body) may transfer by way
of sale or gift the equity instruments of an Indian company or units held by him to any person resident outside
India. The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not require the prior
approval of the RBI, provided that (i) the activities of the investee company are under the automatic route
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under the FDI policy and transfer is in adherence with pricing guidelines and documentation as specified by
RBI, if such transfer attract the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations 2011; (ii) the non-resident shareholding is within the
sectoral limits under the FDI policy; and (iii) the pricing is in accordance with the guidelines prescribed by the
SEBI/RBI. Form FCTRS is required to be filed for transfer of equity instruments in accordance with the FEMA
Non-Debt Rules, between: (a) a person resident outside India holding equity instruments in an Indian
company on a repatriable basis and person resident outside India holding equity instruments on a non-
repatriable basis; and (b) a person resident outside India holding equity instruments in an Indian company on
a repatriable basis and a person resident in India. The onus of reporting is on the resident
transferor/transferee or the person resident outside India holding equity instruments on a non-repatriable
basis, as the case may be. Transfer of equity instruments on a recognised stock exchange by a person resident
outside India are required to be reported by such person in Form FC-TRS. The form FCTRS is required be filed
within 60 days of transfer of equity instruments or receipt/remittance of funds whichever is earlier.

LAWS IN RELATION TO ECB AND ISSUE OF FCCBS

The current laws relating to ECB as applicable to the issuance of the Bonds are embodied in the Foreign
Exchange Management (Borrowing and Lending) Regulations, 2018, Master Direction — External Commercial
Borrowings, Trade Credits and Structured Obligations dated 26 March 2019, as amended (“ECB Master
Directions”). Under the ECB Guidelines, ECBs can be accessed under two routes: (i) the automatic route; and
(ii) the approval route. The automatic route does not require a borrower to obtain any RBl approvals, whereas
the approval route requires a prior RBI approval. The ECB Guidelines classify ECB under the following
categories: (iii) foreign currency denominated ECB (“FCY ECB”); (iv) Indian Rupee denominated ECB (“INR
ECB”). The ECB Guidelines rationalise the erstwhile external commercial borrowings framework by merging
the erstwhile Track | (medium-term foreign currency denominated ECB) and Track Il (long-term foreign
currency denominated ECB) into one track as ‘FCY ECB’. The Ministry of Finance, Government of India,
through the Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds And Ordinary Shares (Through Depository Receipt
Mechanism) Scheme, 1993 and ECB Master Directions, regulate the issuance of FCCBs by Indian companies.
The notification relating to FCCBs has been amended from time to time by the Ministry of Finance, and certain
relaxations in the guidelines have also been notified by the RBI. An Indian company which is not eligible to
raise funds from the Indian capital market including a company which has been restrained from accessing the
securities market by the SEBI will not be eligible to issue FCCBs. Further, FCCBs should be without any
warrants attached. An eligible Indian company may issue FCCBs to persons resident outside India either,
through the automatic route, or with approval of the RBI, in accordance with the ECB Master Directions.

AUTOMATIC ROUTE

For the automatic route, the cases are examined by the Authorised Dealer Category-I banks (“AD Category |
Bank”). Under the ECB Guidelines, all entities which are eligible to receive foreign direct investment are
eligible to raise ECB. The minimum average maturity period for ECBs is at least three years, and longer
maturity periods apply in certain cases, depending on the end-use proposed for such ECB. The ECB Master
Directions require that lenders, with respect to ECB, should be residents of FATF or IOSCO compliant
countries. Further, the ECB Master Directions (i) considers the multilateral and regional financial institutions
where India is a member country as recognised lenders; (ii) permits individuals as ECB lenders, provided they
are foreign equity holders or for subscription to bonds/debentures listed abroad, and (iii) permits the foreign
branches and subsidiaries of Indian banks as recognised lenders only for FCY ECB. In relation to the utilisation
of the ECB proceeds, the negative list for both FCY ECB and INR ECB includes: (i) real estate activities, (ii)
investment in capital market, and (iii) equity investment. Further, proceeds from an ECB cannot be utilized
for (i) working capital purposes, (ii) general corporate purposes and (iii) repayment of rupee loans except in
certain cases as prescribed under the ECB Master Directions. Additionally, on-lending for any of the
aforementioned activities is prohibited under the ECB Master Directions except in case of ECB raised by non-
banking finance companies as prescribed therein. Further, the maximum amount which can be raised every
fiscal year by an eligible borrower under the automatic route is U.S.5750 million or its equivalent. The all-in
cost (which includes rate of interest, other fees, guarantee fees and expenses in foreign currency or Indian
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Rupees but does not include commitment fees, payments for withholding tax in Rupees) for both FCY ECB
and INR ECB is benchmark rate plus 450 basis points spread. The benchmark rate in case of FCY ECB refers to
6-month LIBOR of different currencies or any other 6-month interbank interest rate applicable to the currency
of borrowing, while the benchmark rate in case of Rupee denominated ECB (INR ECB) will be the prevailing
yield of the Government of India securities of corresponding maturity. As per the ECB Guidelines, various
components of all-in-cost have to be paid by the borrower without taking recourse to the drawdown of ECB,
i.e., ECB proceeds cannot be used for payment of interest or charges. Additionally, for FCCBs, the issue related
expenses should not exceed 4 per cent. of the issue size and in case of private placement, these expenses
should not exceed 2 per cent. of the issue size, etc.

APPROVAL ROUTE

All ECB falling outside the automatic route limits are considered by the RBI under the approval route, wherein
prospective borrowers are to send their requests to RBI through the Authorised Dealer banks (“AD Bank”).
PRICING GUIDELINES FOR FCCBS The pricing of FCCBs should not be less than the average of the weekly high
and low of the closing prices of the related shares quoted on the Indian stock exchanges during the two weeks
preceding the relevant date. The “relevant date” is the date of the meeting in which the board of directors of
the company or committee of the directors duly authorised by the board decides to open the proposed Issue.

FILING AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS IN RELATION TO ISSUANCE OF BONDS

An ECB borrower is required to obtain a LRN from the RBI before an issuance of Bonds is effected. To obtain
this, ECB borrowers are required to submit a completed Form ECB which also contains terms and conditions
of the ECB to the AD Category | Bank of the ECB borrower. The AD Category | Bank is then required to forward
the completed Form ECB to the RBI. An ECB borrower is required to submit an ECB-2 Return on a monthly
basis through its AD Category | Bank to the RBI.

PROCEDURE IN RELATION TO ANY CHANGE TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ECB

Subject to certain conditions, the AD Category | Bank can approve any requests from the borrowers for
changes in respect of ECB, except for FCCBs or foreign currency exchangeable bonds. Any redemption of the
Bonds prior to satisfaction of the minimum average maturity period prescribed under the ECB Guidelines will
require the prior approval of the RBI.

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS IN RELATION TO ISSUANCE OF FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED ECB

Pursuant to the ECB Guidelines, any entity which can accept foreign direct investment, can issue, among
others, FCCBs, foreign currency denominated floating/fixed rate notes/bonds/debentures (other than fully
and compulsorily convertible instruments) with a three-year minimum average maturity period (“MAMP”).
The Bonds can be subscribed or purchased by any recognised lender as detailed above. Foreign
branches/subsidiaries of Indian banks are permitted as recognised lenders only for FCY ECB (except FCCBs
and foreign currency exchangeable bonds). Foreign branches/subsidiaries of Indian banks, subject to
applicable prudential norms, can participate as arrangers/underwriters/market-makers/traders for Rupee
denominated bonds issued overseas. However, underwriting by foreign branches/subsidiaries of Indian banks
for issuances by Indian banks is not allowed.

The entities raising ECB are required to follow the guidelines for hedging issued, if any, by the concerned
sectoral or prudential regulator in respect of foreign currency exposure. The ECB borrower will be required
to cover principal as well as coupon through financial hedges. The financial hedge for all exposure on account
of ECB should start from the time of each such exposure (i.e., the day liability is created in the books of the
borrower). A minimum tenor of one year of financial hedge would be required with periodic rollover duly
ensuring that the exposure on account of ECB is not unhedged at any point during the currency of ECB. Natural
hedge, in lieu of financial hedge, will be considered only to the extent of offsetting projected cash
flows/revenues in matching currency, net of all other projected outflows. For this purpose, an ECB may be
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considered naturally hedged if the offsetting exposure has the maturity/cash flow within the same accounting
year. Any other arrangements/structures, where revenues are indexed to foreign currency will not be
considered as a natural hedge.

Change of currency of ECB from one freely convertible foreign currency to any other freely convertible foreign
currency as well as to INR is freely permitted.
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INDIAN GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS

The offering is being made entirely outside India. This Offering Memorandum or any other document or
material relating to the Bonds has not been and will not be circulated or distributed in India, directly or
indirectly, to the public or members of the publicin India. The Bonds have not been, and will not be, offered
or sold directly or indirectly in India or to, or for the account or benefit of, any person resident in India. If you
purchase any of the Bonds, you will be deemed to have acknowledged, represented and agreed that you are
eligible to invest in the Bonds and the Shares to be issued upon conversion of the Bonds under applicable
laws and regulations and that you are not prohibited under any applicable law or regulation from acquiring,
owning or selling the Bonds and the Shares to be issued upon conversion of the Bonds. Each purchaser of
Bonds will be deemed to represent that it is neither located in India nor a resident of India and that it is not
purchasing for, or for the account or benefit of, any such person, and understands that the Bonds will bear a
legend to the effect that the securities evidenced thereby may not be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise
transferred to any person located in India, to any resident of India or to, or for the Bonds account of, such
persons, unless we may determine otherwise in compliance with applicable law. This Offering Memorandum
has not been and will not be filed, registered, produced, published or made available as an offer document
(whether a prospectus in respect of a public offer or information memorandum or private placement offer
cum application letter or other offering material in respect of any private placement, under the Indian
Companies Act, 2013, as amended or any other applicable Indian laws) with the Registrar of Companies in
India, the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the Indian stock exchanges or any other statutory or
regulatory body of like nature in India save and except for any information from any part of this Offering
Memorandum which is (i) mandatorily required to be disclosed or filed in India under any applicable Indian
laws, including but not limited to, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations 2015, as amended, and under the listing agreement with any Indian stock exchange pursuant to
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended or (ii) pursuant to the sanction of any regulatory and adjudicatory body in India. This
Offering Memorandum or any material relating to the Bonds has not been and will not be circulated or
distributed to any prospective investor who is not a resident of an FATF or IOSCO compliant jurisdiction, and
the Bonds will not be offered or sold or transferred and have not been offered or sold or transferred to any
person who is not a resident of an FATF or IOSCO compliant jurisdiction. For the purposes of this section, FATF
compliant jurisdiction and I0OSCO compliant jurisdiction shall have the following meaning:

“FATF compliant jurisdiction” — a country that is a member of Financial Action Task Force (“FATF”) or a
member of a FATF-style regional body; and should not be a country identified in the public statement of the
FATF as (a) a jurisdiction having a strategic anti-money laundering or combating the financing of terrorism
deficiencies to which counter measures apply; or (b) a jurisdiction that has not made sufficient progress in
addressing the deficiencies or has not committed to an action plan developed with the FATF to address the
deficiencies.

“10SCO compliant jurisdiction” — a country whose securities market regulator is a signatory to the
International Organization of Securities Commission’s (“IOSCO’s”) Multilateral Memorandum of
Understanding (Appendix A Signatories) or a signatory to bilateral Memorandum of Understanding with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India for information sharing arrangements. This Offering Memorandum
has not been and will not be reviewed or approved by any regulatory authority in India, including the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, any Registrar of Companies or any stock exchange in India. This
Offering Memorandum and the Bonds are not and should not be construed as an advertisement, invitation,
offer or sale of any securities whether by way of private placement or to the publicin India. The Shares issued
on conversion of the Bonds are to be listed on the Indian stock exchanges on which the Shares are now listed.
We have undertaken to apply to have the Shares issuable upon conversion of the Bonds approved for listing
and trading on the BSE Under the FDI policy, issued by the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal
Trade (erstwhile Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion), Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Government of India, which is effective from 15 October 2020 foreign investment up to 100 per cent. is
permitted in the other financial services sector through the automatic route, subject to satisfaction of certain
conditions. As of 31 December 2020, the total foreign investment in our Company was 32.16 per cent. which
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may further increase upon completion of this Issue. The Company is required to make certain post-issue filings
with the RBI. However, as stated elsewhere in this Offering Circular, in all cases of early redemption or
repayment, under current regulations of the RBI applicable to convertible bonds, prior approval of the RBI for
such earlier redemption or repayment will be necessary. See Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Bonds and
the Shares — RBI approval is required for repayment of the Bonds in certain circumstances, including upon
redemption or an Event of Default” and “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Bonds and the Shares — The Issuer
may not have the ability to redeem the Bonds”. The Companies Act, 2013, as amended and the rules framed
thereunder, the Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and Ordinary Shares (Through Depository
Receipt Mechanism) Scheme, 1993, as amended, the Master Direction — External Commercial Borrowings,
Trade Credits and Structured Obligations dated 26 March 2019, as amended, the Foreign Exchange
Management (Borrowing and Lending) Regulations, 2018, as amended and circulars or notifications issued
thereunder by the RBI from time to time, allows all entities which are eligible to received foreign direct
investment are eligible to raise ECBs (including FCCBs) (i) exceeding U.S. $750 million under the “approval
route” (with prior approval of the RBI); and (ii) up to U.S. $750 million under the “automatic route” (without
prior approval of the RBI), and subject to compliance with certain conditions specified therein. In accordance
with the above rules and regulations, the Company is undertaking the present issue of Bonds. The following
filings are also required to be made by us in connection with issuance of the Bonds and at the time of
conversion of Bonds into Shares: (i) filing with the RBI (through an AD Category | Bank) on Form ECB, before
issuance of the Bonds to obtain the loan registration number; (ii) filing of return of allotment with the
Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi at the time of conversion of Bonds into Shares;
(iii) filing of information on the Foreign Investment Reporting and Management System upon conversion of
Bonds into Shares in the prescribed Single Master Form (for Form FC-GPR); and (iv) monthly filing with the
RBI (through an AD Category | Bank) in the prescribed Form ECB 2 Return.
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MANAGEMENT

The following is a summary of certain information concerning our management, certain provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Companies Act, 2013
and Indian law.

Board of Directors of the Issuer

The primary goal of our board of directors is to promote our corporate interests by representing us and
our shareholders in administering our assets, managing our business, and running our corporate
administration, defending the interests of shareholders, transparency, and the integrity of information.
Apart from the matters reserved to the general shareholders’ meeting, the board of directors is our
highest representative and decision-making body, without any substantial constraints other than those
established by the Companies Act, 2013 and our corporate purpose.

The following table sets forth, as of the date of this Offering Memorandum, the name, age, and title of
each member of the board of directors of the Issuer and is followed by a summary of biographical
information of each director.

Name Age Date of Position Residential Address(es)
Appointment in
current term

Mr. Brahma Gurbani | 70 Executive Plot No. 41, Paigad

1%t September Director,MD Colony, Behind Anand
2019 Cinema S.P. Road,
Secunderabad,
Hyderabad, Telangana,
500003

Mr. Vishal Gurbani 35 Wholetime Director H.NO.9-1-128, F. No.

21 August 2021 1003, Oxford Enclave
Near DBR Diagonostic,
S.D. Road,
Secunderabad,
Hyderabad, Telangana,
500003

Mr. Banala Non-Executive 1-8-184, Flat No: 007,
67 | 28™ September Independent Director | Tahsaiman  Chambers,
2019 PG Road, Innovation
Colony, Secunderabad,
Telangana, India

Jayprakash Reddy

Mrs. Umra Singh Non-Executive Flat No: 402, Prime Rose

60 | 28 September Independent Director | Apartment, PNR

2019 Nagarjuna Dream Lands,

Sirohi Kompally, Hyderabad-
500075

39 14 February 2019 | Non-Executive #19-1-635/1, UMDA

Independent Director | BZAR, Dood Bowli,

Mr. Vimal Suresh Charminar, Hyderabad-
500002
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS BIOGRAPHY

Mr. Brahma Gurbani, aged 70, is the first generation entrepreneur who started with two manually
operated Lolly Popmachines over 29 years ago with a team of just 10 persons in a tiny tenement rose to
become an international recognizable confectionary major from India, whose vision has driven the
companyto greater heights, Mr, Gurbani was President of ICMA & is member of various trade bodies and
associations. The testimony to his leadership is in fact that the company received the prestigious
international Quality Award at International Quality Summit 2012, New York, USA, besides of lots of other
prestigious awards from Prime Minister and President’s office..

Mr. Vishal Ratan Gurbani, aged 35, is post Graduate in Business Management having about 10 Years of
experience in Administration, finance and Manufacturing. He joined Gurbani Group during the year 2010
as Manager Under his Guidance, Sampre Nutritions Ltd has successfully developed new products for in-
house and for other Multi-National Companies such as M/s Dharampal Satyapal Ltd, M/s. Alkem Labs Ltd
and M/s. Patanjali Ayurved Ltd etc.,

Mr. Banala Jayprakash Reddy, aged 67 has travelled intensively and acquired experience of confectionary
industry and is very well worsed with equipments supplied and engineering development that contributes
for achieving more output and working with very efficient yields. Present he is working as consultant for
confectionery units with specialization on plant management.

Mrs. Umra Singh Sirohi, aged 60 has vast experience in Business Management in the manufacturing &
retail sales segments. She is a Member of Telangana Chamber of Commerce and ALEAP, which is a
woman’s. Entrepreneur'sorganization and active participant in the role of upliftment of woman.

Mr. Vimal Suresh, aged 39 has good experience in Business Development.

Corporate Governance

Corporate governance is the combination of rules, processes or laws by which businesses are operated,
regulated, or controlled. The term encompasses the internal and external factors that affect the interests of
a Company’s stakeholders, including shareholders, customers, suppliers, government regulators and
management. It essentially involves balancing the interests of a Company’s many stakeholders, such as
shareholders, senior management executives, customers, suppliers, financiers, the government, and the
community. The Company is committed to the letter and spirit of corporate governance and is in compliance
with the corporate governance norms as prescribed by SEBI. The Company has laid a strong foundation for
Corporate Governance by constituting a Board with a balanced mix of experts of eminence and integrity,
forming a core group of top level executives, inducting competent professionals across the organization, and
putting in place appropriate systems, process, and technology.

In compliance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), as amended from
time to time, the Company submits the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Board Practices

There are currently Five Directors including, Two executive Directors and Three non-executive Independent
Directors. Any proposals for the appointment of directors that the board of directors may bring before the
general shareholders’ meeting for its consideration.

The board of directors and the nomination and remuneration committee shall make an effort to ensure that
the candidates selected to act as external directors are persons of renowned reputation, credibility, solvency,
competence, and experience, and shall take special care in considering the individuals called upon to fill the
positions of independent directors.
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Board Committees

The Board Committee plays a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and has been
constituted to deal with specific areas/activities which concern the Company and need a closer review. The
Board Committee are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles which
are considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part of good governance practice.

The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees and is responsible for their
action. The Chairman of the respective Committee informs the Board about the summary of the discussions
held in the Committee meetings.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee’s role is to assist the Board fulfil its Corporate Governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to the Company’s financial reporting process carried out by the Management,
internal control system, risk management system and internal and external audit functions. The Audit
Committee functions according to its charter/terms of reference that defines its composition, authority,
responsibilities, and reporting functions. The Board has adopted a charter of the Audit Committee for its
functioning. All the items listed in Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18(3) read with Part C of Schedule Il
of the SEBI Listing Regulations are covered in its terms of reference.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the reports on dealings under Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations
and Related Party Transactions. During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the process
and controls for Insider Trading and also adopted a framework for levying penalties in case of any violation
under the Insider Trading Code.

The following table sets forth information regarding the principal shareholders holding shares of the Issuer
as per the shareholders register as of 31 March 2024.

The Audit Committee consists of:-

Namer::rﬁzzr:ittee Category Date Of Appointment
Urmra Singh Sirohi Eﬁ:i}lliozerzl;tr:ve - Independent Director, 27-03-2015
Vishal Ratan Gurbani Executive Director, Member 12-11-2018
Virmal Suresh sl(;r:r-]izercutive - Independent Director, 14-02-2019

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The Committee is constituted to supervise and ensure Share Transfer related matters and to look after the
Stakeholder’s Grievances. The members of the committee are
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During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, 4 (Four) meeting of Stakeholders Relationship Committee
were held on, 29.06.2021, 12.08.2021, 12.11.2021 & 02.02.2022.

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee consists of:-

Date Of

Name of Committee members Category Appointient
Umra Singh Sirohi Non-Executive - Independent Director, Chairperson 14-02-2019
Vishal Ratan Gurbani Executive Director, Member 12-11-2018

Non-Executive - Independent Director, Member 08-11-2019

Vimal Suresh

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) is to oversee the selection of Directors and
Senior Management Personnel based on criteria related to the specific requirement of expertise and
independence. The NRC evaluates the performance of Directors and Senior Management Personnel based on
the expected performance criteria. The NRC also recommends to the Board the remuneration payable to
Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company.

During the Financial Year ended March 31,2022, 1 (one) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting
was held on 27" August 2021.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of:

Name of Committee members Category Date Of Appointment

Umra Singh Sirohi Non-Executive - Independent Director, Member 27-03-2017

Banala Jayaprakash Reddy Non-Executive - Independent Director, Member 21-10-2014
Non-Executive - Independent Director, Chairperson 14-02-2019

Vimal Suresh

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Companies Act, 2013 provides for CSR under section 135. Thus it is mandatory for the companies covered
under section 135 to comply with the CSR provisions in India.

As the company doesn’t have net worth exceeding rupees five hundred crore or turnover exceeding rupees
one thousand crore or net profit exceeding five crore, doesn’t fall under the criteria to comply with provisions
of Corporate Social Responsibility u/s 135, hence the disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are not required to be made.
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Independent Directors Meeting

During FY 2021 - 22, one (1) meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 27.08.2021
as required under Schedule IV to the Act (Code of Independent Directors) and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations. At their Meeting, the Independent Directors reviewed the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole including the Chairman of the Board after taking the views
of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors and also assessed the quality, quantity, and timeliness of
flow of information between the Company’s management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Risk Management Committee

Risks are events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the Company's
businesses. Risk management is a structured approach to manage uncertainty. A formal enterprise wide
approach to Risk Management is being adopted by the Company and key risks will now be managed within a
unitary framework.

The Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy for identifying the risk associated
with business of the Company and measures to be taken to mitigate the same. The Audit Committee has
additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. All risks are well integrated with functional and
business plans and are reviewed on a regular basis by the senior leadership. There are no risks which in the
opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company.

89



SUMMARY OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE
&
PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

Summary of Capital Raised by the company:

Sampre Nutritions Limited has raised capital by allotment of Equity Shares and Convertible warrants to
Strategic Investor being non-promoter on preferential allotment basis through resolution dated 13" August
2022, passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting, pursuant to the provisions of section 42, 62 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Raised:

a) Equity Shares: the Company has raised Rs. 7,38,00,000/- on allotment of 20,50,000 Equity Shares.
(Issue price of Rs. 36 per equity share).

b) Convertible Warrants: the Company has raised Rs. 2,34,00,000/- on subscription of 26,00,000
convertible warrants. [Subscription price of Rs. 9 per warrant entitling the holder of the warrants to
exercise an option to subscribe to 26,00,000 equity shares of the company having face value of Rs.
10/- each at an exercise price of Rs. 26 per share. (Issue price of Rs. 36 per equity share)]

Conversion of Warrants: the last and the final date of the conversion of warrants shall be 19t April
2024 (i.e. within 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants). All the outstanding warrants in
respect of which the holder has not exercised his/her option shall lapse by 20t April 2024.

As a result of the aforesaid allotment of 20,50,000 equity shares, the paid-up equity capital of the company
has increased from Rs.4,82,00,000/- consisting of 48,20,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 6,87,00,000
consisting of 68,70,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

As of the date of this Offering Memorandum, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Issuer consists of
89,700,000 shares as of 31 March 2024. The face value of the shares is INR 10.00 each. The holding under
control of the promoter and Promoter group is 28.36% of the total equity share capital and the remaining
71.64% is held by the public as of 31%t March 2024.

The following table sets forth information regarding the principal shareholders holding shares of the Issuer
as per the shareholders register as of December 31, 2023.

Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares held Percentage of Shareholding
Mr. Brahma Gurbani 8,87,416 9.89
Mrs. Meera B Gurbani 5,30,762 5.92
Mrs. Sarita B Gurbani 7,61,762 8.49
Mrs. Saraswati B Gurbani 2,22,023 2.48
Mrs. Deepa B Gurbani 1,42,000 1.58
Total (a) 25,43,963 28.36%
71.64%
Public Shareholding (b) 64,26,037
TOTAL (a) + (b) 89,70,000 100
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

From time to time the Company enters into transaction with affiliates or related parties, and with its associate
company. The Company’s policy is that such transactions are made on an arm’s length basis and are on no
less favourable terms than if such transactions were carried out with unaffiliated third parties. Full details of
related party transactions with its subsidiary and associates as of 31 December 2023 are set out in the
Company’s financial statements included elsewhere in the Offering Memorandum.

The term “promoter” is defined in the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations
2011 as:

(i) the person or persons who are in control of the issuer; or

(ii) the person or persons who are instrumental in the formulation of a plan or programme pursuant to which
specified securities are offered to public

(iii) the person or persons named in the offer document as promoters

Provided that a director or officer of the issuer or a person, if acting as such merely in his professional capacity,
shall not be deemed as a promoter:

Provided further that a financial institution, scheduled bank, foreign institutional investor, and mutual fund
shall not be deemed to be a promoter merely by virtue of the fact that ten per cent. or more of the equity
share capital of the issuer is held by such person;

Provided further that such financial institution, scheduled bank, and foreign institutional investor shall be
treated as promoter for the subsidiaries or companies promoted by them or for the mutual fund sponsored
by them.

Statements for year ended on 31st March 2023 and unaudited financial statement of nine months till
31t December, 2023 included elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum. Similar disclosures are made in
each of the audited financial statements for each year.

Sampre Nutritions Ltd Annual Reports undefined, Sampre Annual Reports | BSE (bseindia.com)
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FINANCIAL INDEBTEDNESS

Our Company avails loans in the ordinary course of business to meet our working capital and operational
requirements, and for general corporate purposes.

Set forth below is a brief summary of the aggregate borrowings of our Company as of 31.12.2023:

(in Rs. lakhs)

Category of Initial Sanctioned | Revised Sanctioned Amount Outstanding Amount as on
Borrowings Amount post Restructuring® 31t December 2023

Fund Based

Secured

- Term Loan 1,004.45 771.20 643.03
- Vehicle Loan 65.00 0.00 56.34
- Cash Credit 400.00 525.00 618.35
Unsecured” NIL NA 482.50

Non Fund Based

Secured

- Usance Bill 300.00 265.00 NIL
Discounting

Unsecured NIL NIL NIL

Total 1754.45 1,561.20 1,800.22

#The unsecured loans have been taken by the Company from its Directors and their relatives and therefore
there is no sanctioned limit for the same.

AThe Company executed a revised sanction letter dated September 7, 2021 of The South Indian Bank Limited
for restructuring the existing cash credit and term loan facilities issued by The South Indian Bank Limited vide
sanction letter dated March 1, 2019, pursuant to the COVID-19 scheme of RBI.

Details of Secured Borrowing

The cash credit facility, Usance bill discounting facility and the term loans have been availed by the Company
from The South Indian Bank Limited (“South Indian Bank”). The term loans have been availed by the Company
for acquisition of plant and machinery, construction of factory buildings and for working capital purposes.
The facilities availed from South Indian Bank are secured by hypothecation of the entire current assets of the
Company, equitable mortgage over inter alia the land and buildings of the Company situated at Plot No. 133,
Industrial Estates, Medchal and charge over immovable properties belonging to the Promoter Directors and
their relatives, in favour of South Indian Bank. Further, the Directors and their relatives have also furnished
personal guarantees to secure such facilities of South Indian Bank.

The vehicle loans have been availed form Yes Bank Limited, Daimler Financial Services Private Limited,
Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited and Toyota Financial Service Limited under hire purchase
schemes. These loans have been secured by way of hypothecation of the vehicles owned by the Company.
The principal terms of the facilities sanctioned to the Company by South Indian Bank are:

1. Interest: The interest rate for a majority of the fund based facilities is the MCLR of South Indian Bank

plus a specified spread per annum, subject to a minimum interest rate. The spread of the various fund
based facilities vary from 1.20% to 4.55%. The effective rate of interest on the cash credit facility is
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10.75% per annum and the effective rate of interest of the term loans vary from 10.25% to 10.75%.

2. Tenor: The tenor of the term loans varies from 11 months to 111 months. Further certain of the
facilities, i.e. working capital facilities are repayable on demand and renewed every 12 months.

3. Security: The cash credit facilities are secured by hypothecation of the entire current assets (both
present and future) of the Company. The non-fund based Usance bill facilities are secured by charge over
the corresponding receivables of the bills discounted. The term loans have been secured by creating
mortgage over the assets acquired by the Company by utilising the proceeds of the facilities. The facilities
are also secured by way of an equitable mortgage over the (i) residential flat no. 402, 4*" floor of Blossoms
Residency (Sri Hari Classic) premises No. 6-3-347/22/1 admeasuring 3,100 sq. ft together with two car
parking lots admeasuring 200 sq. ft. each and land admeasuring 80 sq. yards out of total lands
admeasuring 1,080 sq. yards in survey nos. 136, 138 and 140 situated at Dwarakapuri colony, Punjagutta
village, Hyderabad along with all buildings existing and to be constructed in future thereon; (ii)
immovable industrial property of land and civil structures on Plot 133 admeasuring 6,633.67 sq. yards
along with factory, office and security room, in survey no. 865/2 situated at Industrial Estate, Medchal,
Medchal-Malkajgiri district, Telangana and (iii) immovable industrial property of open land between
plots 133 and 137 admeasuring 2,119.80 sq. mts in survey no. 865/2 situated at Industrial Estate,
Medchal, Medchal-Malkajgiri district, Telangana. The South Indian Bank also has a negative lien marked
in the industrial property admeasuring 2196.27 sg. yards in survey no. 844/2 in plots 127 and 128 of
Medchal Panchayat, Medchal district. Personal guarantees have been furnished by Mr. Brahma Gurbani,
Mr. Vishal Gurbani, Mrs. Saraswati Gurbani, Mrs. Meera Gurbani and Mr. Harnam Bathija.

4. Pre-payment: The facilities allow for pre-payment of the outstanding amount by serving prior notice.
Pre-payment is subject to payment of pre-payment charges which are in the range of 3% to 4%.

5. Penal Interest: The terms of the facilities availed from South Indian Bank by our Company prescribe
penalties for default in the repayment obligations of the Company and/or non-compliance of the
sanction stipulations. The penalty is 2% per annum. A penal interest of 2% may be charged if the limits
are not renewed within the validity period. Further, a commitment charge of up to 0.025% per annum
may be levied in case the sanctioned limits are not utilized.

6. Events of Default: Borrowing arrangements entered into by our Company contain standard events of
default, including, inter alia:

failure or inability to pay outstanding principal and interest amounts on due dates;

providing incorrect or misleading information, warranties and representations;

providing inadequate security or insurance;

liquidation or dissolution;

cessation or change in business or control;

e initiates proceedings for bankruptcy, commences negotiations with its creditors to reorganize debt,
becomes insolvent;

e default in the performance of any covenant, condition or undertaking on part of our Company.

This is an indicative list and there may be additional terms that may amount to an event of default under
the borrowing arrangements entered into by our Company.

7. Consequences of occurrence of events of default: In terms of our borrowing arrangements, the
following, inter alia, are the consequences of occurrence of events of default, whereby the lenders may:

terminate and cancel either whole or part of the facility;

suspend further access/ drawals, either in whole or in part, of the facility;
impose a monetary penalty;

enforce security; and
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e accelerate repayments/ initiate recall of the loans.

8. Revised key sanction terms: Pursuant to the sanction letter dated September 7, 2021 of the South
Indian Bank, the existing term loans of the Company were restructured, the terms of which are given

below:
Particulars Restructured Amounts Effective Rate of Repayment terms
(in Rs. lakhs) Interest

Term Loans — | 489.11 10.25% Repayable in range of

Machinery and 58 months to 111

Factory Buildings months including
moratorium period of
14 months

Working Capital | 122.79 10.25% Repayable in 79

Term Loan months including
moratorium period of
14 months

Funded Interest | 159.30 10.75% Repayable in 78

Term Loan months including
moratorium period of
18 months

9. Restrictive Covenants: The facilities sanctioned to our Company contain certain restrictive covenants,
which require prior consent of the South Indian Bank, including:

change in capital structure, or undertaking schemes of merger, amalgamation or

reconstruction, or any other type of corporate reconstruction;

undertaking any scheme of expansion or acquisition;

entering into borrowing arrangements;

invest in, extend any advance or loans, to any group companies or other related parties;
change in our constitution, structure, management control and legal and/or beneficial

ownership;

dispose of its assets, including its capital and fixed assets; and
repayment of loans and advances received from promoters, directors, relatives, friends.

This is an indicative list and there may be such other additional terms under the borrowing arrangements
entered into by our Company. We are also required to keep our lenders informed of any event likely to
have a substantial effect on our business.

There has been no default in repayment of principal and interest of the secured borrowings as of Sep 30,

2023.

For the purposes of this Issue, our Company has obtained the necessary consents from South Indian Bank as
required under the relevant borrowing arrangements for undertaking activities relating to the Issue, such as,
inter alia, entering into new borrowing arrangements.

Details of Unsecured Borrowing

The Company has raised certain unsecured loans from its directors and their relatives in the financial year
31.12.2023, the details of which are specified below.

(in Rs. lakhs)
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Name of lender Director / Relative of Director (specify Loan Current Outstanding
relationship) Amount Amount as on 31
December 2023
Mr. Brahma Managing Director 447.64 412.04
Gurbani
Mrs. Meera Relative of Director 97.10 70.46
Gurbani

95




TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE BONDS

The following terms and conditions (subject to completion and amendment) will apply to the Bonds and will
be endorsed on each definitive Bond certificate:

The following Conditions as defined herein shall, inter alia, govern the issue of the Bonds, the conversion into
Shares as well as the transfer of the Bonds. The application for the listing of the Bonds has been made
pursuant to the the Section 110 & 108 of the Companies Act 2013, read with rule 20(3) (xi) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by Companies (Management & Administration)
Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 and
other applicable MCA Circulars. Thereby Company has provided remote e-voting facility to the members
through e-voting platform provided by National Securities Depository Limited(NSDL), on the resolution
contained in the Company’s Postal Ballot dated 12th November,2022.

Mr. Vasanth Kumar Bajaj was appointed as Scrutiniser to scrutinise the votes casted through e-voting
platform. Remote e-voting has commenced on 23rd November, 2022 and ended on 22nd December 2022.
Scrutiniser prepared the report for remote e-voting as per the Regulation 44(3) of SEBI (LODR), 2015.
Resolution contained in Company Postal Ballot dated 12th November, 2022 has been passed as 99.9% of the
total votes casted were in favour of the passing of the Resolution.

Voting details are as follows:

Item No. 1 of the Notice Type of Resolution Votes in favour of Votes against the
(Special/Ordinary) resolution resolution
No. of Percentag No. of Percentage (%)
Votes e (%) Votes

To approve raising of

funds and issuance of

securities by the company | Special Resolution 26,54,997 | 99.996% 114 0.004%
through QIP and/or FCCB

and/or any other

permissible modes

The issue of Unsecured Foreign Currency Convertible Bonnds (the "Bonds", which expression shall, except
where otherwise indicated or where the context otherwise requires, include any further Bonds issued in
accordance with Condition 15 and standalone and forming a single series therewith) of Sampre Nutritions
Limited (the “Company”) was authorised pursuant to a resolution contained in Company Postal Ballot dated
12th November, 2022 has been passed as 99.9% of the total votes casted were in favour of the passing of the
Resolution. Result of the e-voting was declared on 23™ December 2022.

The Bonds are constituted by a RTA agreement/Deed dated 10™" May 2024 (the “Deed” and the "Issue Date"
respectively) between the Company, Sampre Nutritions Private Limited and Big share Services Private
Limited (the “Registrar” which term includes any successor Registrar under the Deed) and are in registered
form. The statements set out in these terms and conditions (the "Conditions") include summaries of, and are
subject to, the detailed provisions of the Deed. The holders of the Bonds as shown in the Register as defined
herein (the "Bondholders" and (in relation to a Bond), the “holder”)) are entitled to the benefit of, bound by
and are deemed to have notice of, all the provisions applicable to them of the paying and conversion agency
agreement dated 15" May 2024 the Issue Date (the "Agency Agreement") between the Company, SBM Fund
Services Private Limited as principal paying and conversion agent (the “Principal Paying and Conversion
Agent”), Big share Services Private Limited (the “Registrar”) and transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”) and
the other paying, conversion and transfer agents appointed under it (each a “Paying Agent”, “Conversion
Agent”, “Transfer Agent” (references to which shall include the Registrar) and together with the Registrar and
the Principal Paying and Conversion Agent, the “Agents” relating to the Bonds. References to the “Principal
Paying and Conversion Agent”, “Registrar”, “Transfer Agent”, “Conversion Agent” and “Agents” in these
Conditions are references to the principal paying and conversion agent, registrar, transfer agent, conversion
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agent and agents for the time being for the Bonds. Copies of each of the Registrar and Transfer Agent
Agreement and the Agency Agreement are available for inspection by Bondholders or prospective
Bondholders during usual business hours, on any weekday (except Saturdays, Sunday, and public holidays) at
the specified offices of the Agents.

1

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Form, register and transfer of Bonds

The Bonds will be traded OTC in a minimum board lot size of US$100,000.00 for so long as the Bonds
are listed on the Afrinex Securities List. The Bonds are issued in registered form in the denomination
of USS$ 1,00,000.00 (US dollars one hundred thousand) each (“Authorised Denomination”) or integral
multiples thereof. A Bond certificate may be issued to each Bondholder in respect of its total
registered holding of Bonds (each a "Certificate"). Each Bond will be numbered serially with an
identifying number which will be recorded on the relevant Certificate and in the Register (to be kept
in accordance with Condition 1.2). The Bonds will initially be represented by a global certificate
("Global Certificate") and deposited with a depository, and registered in the name of a nominee of
the depository or their respective participants. Except in the limited circumstances described in the
Global Certificate, owners of interests in Bonds represented by the Global Certificate will not be
entitled to receive definitive Certificates in respect of their individual holdings of Bonds. The Bonds
are not issuable in bearer form.

The Company shall at all times keep or cause to be kept at the specified office of the Registrar in
accordance with the terms of the Agency Agreement, a register (the "Register") showing the nominal
amount of the Bonds, the date of issue and all subsequent transfers and changes of ownership
thereof and the names and addresses of the Bondholders. The Bondholders may during office hours
of the Registrar, inspect the Register. The Register may be closed by the Company for such periods
and at such times (not exceeding in whole, thirty (30) days in any one year) as it may think fit provided
that notice should be given to the Bondholders, in accordance with Condition 19, fifteen (15) days
prior to the closure of the Register and notice in writing to the Principle Paying Agent and Agents
twenty-five (25) days prior to such closure.

Title to the Bonds passes only by transfer and registration in the Register. The registered holder of
any Bond will, except as otherwise required by law, be treated as the absolute owner for all purposes
and no person shall be bound to take notice or see to the execution of any trust, charge, or
encumbrance whether express, implied, or constructive to which any Bond may be subject and no
person shall be liable for so treating the Bondholder. The receipt of the Bondholder, or in the case of
joint Bondholders, the receipt of any of them, of the interest from time to time accruing in respect of
it or for any other monies payable on the Bond shall be a good discharge to the Company,
notwithstanding any notice it may have, whether express or otherwise, of the right, title, interest or
claim of any other person to or in such Bond, interest, or monies. No notice of any trust, charge,
encumbrance, or dispute, express, implied, or constructive shall be entered on the Register in respect
of any Bond.

Every Bondholder will be recognised by the Company as entitled to his Bonds free from any equity,
set-off or counter-claim on the part of the Company against the original or any intermediate holder
of the Bond.

Subject to Condition 1.12 and 1.14 Bond may be transferred by delivering the Certificate issued in
respect of that Bond, with the form of transfer on the back duly completed and signed to the specified
office of any of the Transfer Agents. No transfer of title to any Bond will be effective unless and until
entered on the Register. Transfers of interests in the Bonds evidenced by the Global Certificate will
be effected in accordance with the rules of the relevant clearing systems.

The Bonds are not transferable to U.S. persons (as defined in the United States Bonds Act 1933 (as
amended)) nor to persons that are resident in India. The Registrar may without incurring any liability
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1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

whatsoever and without giving any reason, refuse to register any such person as the holder of a Bond,
furthermore the Registrar is under no obligation to enquire as to the residency or tax status of a
holder or potential holder in determining whether to register the relevant person as the holder of the
Bond and shall not be liable to any person for any failure to do so. The Registrar will not be liable for
any registration made nor will it be liable where it abstains from making any registrations pursuant
to this Condition.

Every instrument of transfer must be signed by the transferor (or where the transferor is a
corporation given under its common seal) and the transferor shall be deemed to remain the owner
of the Bond to be transferred until the name of the transferee is entered in the Register in respect of
that Bond.

Every instrument of transfer must be deposited at the specified office of any of the Transfer Agents
accompanied by the Certificate for the Bond to be transferred and, if the instrument is executed by
some other person on his behalf, the authority of that person to do so as the Transfer Agent may
require as prescribed under the regulations referred to in Condition 1.14.

All instruments of transfer which shall be registered will be retained by the Registrar and all records
of transfer shall be maintained by the Registrar.

Delivery of New Certificates

Each new Certificate to be issued upon transfer of the Bonds will, within five (5) business days, at the
place of the relevant specified office, of receipt by the relevant Transfer Agent, of the duly completed
form of transfer together with original Certificate, be mailed by uninsured mail at the risk of the
Bondholder entitled to the Bond and at the expense of the Company to the address specified in the
form of transfer. Where some, but not all the Bonds, in respect of which a Certificate is issued are to
be transferred, converted or repurchased, a new Certificate in respect of the Bonds not so
transferred, converted or repurchased, will within five (5) business days at the place of the relevant
specified office of deposit or surrender of the original Certificate with or to the relevant Transfer
Agent, be mailed by uninsured mail at the risk of the holder of the Bonds not so transferred,
converted or repurchased at the expense of the Company to the address of such holder appearing on
the Register.

Formalities free of charge

Registration and transfer of the Bonds and issuance of new Certificates will be effected at the expense
of the Company and without charge by or on behalf of the Company or any of the Agents, subject to
payment (or the giving of such indemnity, pre-funding and/or provision of security as any Agent may
require to its satisfaction) in respect of any tax or other Governmental charges which may be imposed
in relation to it.

No transfer periods

No Bondholder may require the transfer of a Bond to be registered:

1.12.1 during the period of fifteen (15) days ending on (and including) the due date for any payment
of principal on such Bond;

1.12.2 during the period of seven (7) Business Days (as defined in Condition 8.9) ending on (and
including) any record date;

1.12.3 after a Bondholder Purchase Notice as defined in Condition 7.10 in respect of such Bond has
been delivered;
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1.14

3.1

1.12.4 after the Certificate in respect of such Bond has been deposited for conversion pursuant to
Condition 5.1 or Condition 5.4.1; and

1.12.5 during the period of closure of the Register pursuant to Condition 1.2.

Any person becoming entitled to a Bond in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the holder of
such Bonds may, on producing such evidence that he sustains the character in respect of which he
proposes to act under this clause or of his title as the Company shall think sufficient, be registered
himself as the holder of such Bond, or subject to the preceding condition, as to transfer may transfer
such Bonds. The Registrar shall effect such entries in the Register as the Company shall direct in
writing to reflect such entitlements.

All transfers of the Bonds and entries on the Register will be made subject to the detailed regulations
concerning transfer of the Bonds set forth in the Agency Agreement. The regulations may be changed
by the Company, with the prior written approval of the Registrar. A copy of the current regulations
will be mailed (at the Company's expense) by the Registrar to any Bondholder who asks for one.

Status

The Bonds will constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional, and unsecured obligations of the
Company and will at all times rank pari passu and without any preference or priority among
themselves. The payment obligations of the Company under the Bonds shall, save for such exceptions
as may be provided by mandatory provisions of applicable law, at all times rank at least equally with
all of its other present and future direct, unsubordinated, unconditional, and unsecured obligations.

Negative Pledge
Restriction: so long as any Bond remains outstanding :

3.1.1 The Company will not, and will procure that none of its Principal Subsidiaries will, create or
permit to subsist any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other form of encumbrance or security
interest ("Security") upon the whole or any part of its undertaking, assets or revenues present
or future to secure any Relevant Debt, or any guarantee of or indemnity in respect of any
Relevant Debt;

3.1.2 The Company will procure that no other person creates or permits to subsist any Security upon
the whole or any part of the undertaking, assets or revenues present or future of that other
person to secure (x) any of the Company’s or any Principal Subsidiary’s Relevant Debt, or any
guarantee of or indemnity in respect of any of the Company’s or any Principal Subsidiary’s
Relevant Debt, or (y) where the person in question is a Principal Subsidiary of the Company,
any of the Relevant Debt of any person other than that Principal Subsidiary, or any guarantee
of or indemnity in respect of any such Relevant Debt;

3.1.3 The Company will procure that no other person gives any guarantee of, or indemnity in respect
of, any of the Company’s or any Principal Subsidiary’s Relevant Debt. Unless, at the same time
or prior thereto, the Company’s obligations under the Bonds and the RTA Agreement, (aa) are
secured equally and rateably therewith or benefit from a guarantee or indemnity in
substantially identical terms thereto, as the case may be, or (bb) have the benefit of such other
security, guarantee, indemnity, or other arrangement as shall be approved by an Extraordinary
Resolution of the Bondholders;

3.1.4 “Principal Subsidiary” means any subsidiary of the Company and either (i) the revenues of
which, as shown by the accounts (standalone in the case of any entity which itself has
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subsidiaries) of such entity upon which the latest audited standalone accounts of the Company
have been based, are at least 25 percent of the revenues of the Company on a standalone basis
or (ii) the net tangible assets of which, as shown by the aforementioned accounts, are at least
25 percent of the net tangible assets, as applicable, of the Company on a standalone basis. A
certificate of the Company's Auditors as to whether a subsidiary is a Principal Subsidiary shall
be binding on the Company and (in the absence of manifest error, in the RTA’s opinion), the
RTA.

3.1.5 Relevant Debt: For the purposes of this Condition, "Relevant Debt" means any present or future
indebtedness in the form of, or represented by, bonds, notes, debentures, or other Bonds
which are for the time being quoted, listed, or ordinarily dealt in on any stock exchange, over-
the-counter or other Bonds market, having an original maturity of more than one year from its
date of issue and denominated, payable or optionally payable in a currency other than Rupees.

For the avoidance of doubt, indebtedness which does not fall within the definition of “Relevant
Debt” shall not be affected by the negative pledge described above (including for example
commercial paper with a maturity of less than one year and bank borrowings which are not in
the form of listed tradable Bonds).

The Company will not take any corporate or other action pursuant to Condition 5.3 that would cause
the Conversion Price to be adjusted to a price which would render conversion of the Bonds into
Shares at such adjusted Conversion Price to be in contravention of applicable law or subject to
approval from the Reserve Bank of India, the Ministry of Finance, Government of India and/or any
other governmental/regulatory authority in India (the “Regulatory Price Floor”). The Company also
covenants that prior to taking any action which would cause an adjustment to the Conversion Price
below the Regulatory Price Floor, the Company shall provide the RTA with a price adjustment opinion
of a legal counsel in India of international repute, stating that the Conversion Price as proposed to
be adjusted pursuant to such action, is in conformity with applicable law and that the conversion of
the Bonds to the Shares at such adjusted Conversion Price would not require approval of the Reserve
Bank of India, the Ministry of Finance, India and/or any other governmental/regulatory authority in
India (the “Price Adjustment Opinion”). To the extent that an event triggering an adjustment to the
Conversion Price occurs and the Company is unable to provide the RTA with a Price Adjustment
Opinion, the Company shall give notice to Bondholders of their Non-Permitted Conversion Price
Adjustment Event Repurchase Right, as defined in and pursuant to Condition 7.6 herein.

Interest

Interest Rate

The Bonds will bear Zero coupon interest
Conversion

Conversion Period and Price

The holder of each Bond that has not been redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled shall
have the right (the "Conversion Right") to convert ("Conversion") such Bond into registered equity
shares in the capital of the Company which at the date hereof are Rs.10 per Share ("Shares"), credited,
as fully paid, at any time (subject to any applicable fiscal or other laws or regulations and as
hereinafter provided) 24™ July, 2027 (the “Maturity Date”) to the close of business (at the place where
the relevant Bond is deposited for Conversion) on 17" July, 2027 (the date falling 7 calendar days
before the Maturity Date) (the "Conversion Period"). If such Bond has been called for redemption by
the Company prior to the Maturity Date, the Conversion Period for that Bond ends at the close of
business (at the place where the Certificate is deposited for conversion of that Bond) on the seventh
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5.1.4

5.1.5

Business Day prior to the date fixed for redemption. Each Bond may be converted at the Conversion
Price (as herein defined) during the Conversion Period at the option of the Bondholder.

A Conversion Right may not be exercised in relation to any Bond during the period (a "Closed Period")
commencing on (i) 7 days after the date of Book Clauser (ii) Maturity Date (iii) the date that the
Company notifies the BSE of the record date for determination of shareholders entitled for receipt of
dividends, subscription of shares due to capital increase or other benefits, and ending on the record
date for the distribution or allocation of the relevant dividends, rights and benefits or (iv) on such
date and for such period as determined by Indian law applicable from time to time that the Company
is required to close its stock transfer books. The Company will give notice of such Closed Period to
the Bondholders, the RTA and each of the Agents at least 10 Business Days in writing prior to the
beginning of each such period except in the case of (iii) above in which case, the Company shall give
notice in writing to the Bondholders, the RTA, and the Agents on the same day it notifies the BSE.

For the avoidance of doubt, Conversion Right may not be exercised (i) in respect of a Bond where the
Bondholder shall have exercised its right to require the Issuer to repurchase its Bonds in accordance
with Conditions 7.4, 7.5 and 7.6.

A Conversion Right may only be exercised in respect of an Authorised Denomination of Bonds and in
integral multiples thereof.

The number of Shares to be issued on exercise of a Conversion Right shall be determined by dividing
the principal amount of the relevant Bond (translated into Rupees at the rate of Rs.(Exchange Price
of the date of conversion) to USD1.00 (the “Fixed Exchange Rate”) by the Conversion Price in effect
on the Conversion Date as calculated by reference to Condition 5.2. Fractions of Shares will not be
issued on conversion and no cash adjustment will be made in respect thereof. However, if the
Conversion Right in respect of more than one Bond is exercised at any one time such that Shares to
be issued on conversion are to be registered in the same name, the number of such Shares to be
issued in respect thereof shall be calculated on the basis of the aggregate principal amount of the
Bonds being so converted. Shares to be issued on conversion will be deemed to be registered as of
the relevant Conversion Date in the name of the holder of the Bonds completing the Conversion
Notice (as defined in Condition 5.4.1) or his nominee as specified by the Bondholder in such
Conversion Notice.

Neither the Principle Paying Agent nor any of the Agents shall be responsible for calculating,
determining or verifying the number of Shares to be issued on conversion of a Bond or the method
used in such determination or for verifying the Company’s determination of such number of Shares
or method of determination and neither the Principle Paying Agent nor any of the Agents shall be
responsible or liable to the Bondholders or any other person for any loss arising from any failure to
do so or for any erroneous determination by the Company or any delay or failure of the Company in
making such determination.

"Shares" means (1) shares of the class of share capital of the Company which, at the Issue Date, are
designated as equity shares of the Company, together with shares of any class or classes resulting
from any sub-division, consolidation or re-classification of those shares, which as between
themselves have no preference in respect of dividends or of amounts payable in the event of any
voluntary or involuntary liquidation or winding-up of the Company, and (2) fully-paid shares of any
class or classes of the share capital of the Company authorised after the Issue Date which have no
preference in respect of dividends or of amounts payable in the event of any voluntary or involuntary
liquidation or winding-up of the Company; provided that shares to be issued on conversion of the
Bonds means only "Shares" as defined in Condition 5.1.1.
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5.2 Conversion Price

e Subject to the provisions of Condition 5.3, the Bonds shall be subject to following conversion prices:

5.2.1 The price at which Shares will be issued upon Conversion as adjusted from time to time (“Conversion
Price”) will be at a price calculated as per the 6 months average or 15 days average, whichever is
higher in line of equity issue price guidelines for new allotment of equity shares as per SEBI pricing
Guidelines but will be subject to adjustment in the manner provided under the Condition 5.3. The
Company shall give notice of any adjustment of the Conversion Price to the Registrar, the Exchange
and the Agents immediately after the determination thereof and to the Bondholders in accordance
with Condition 5.3.22 and 19. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Condition, the Company
covenants that the Conversion Price shall not be reduced below such price as may be prescribed by
the applicable laws and regulations for the time being in force.

5.2.2 Exchange rate on conversion

e For the purpose of this Condition 5, the exchange rate of US dollars to rupees shall be the Exchange Rate
of the date of conversion.

5.3 Adjustment to Initial Conversion Price

The Initial Conversion Price will be subject to adjustment as follows:

5.3.1 Free distribution, bonus issue, division, consolidation, and reclassification of Shares:

5.3.1.1 Adjustment: If the Company shall (a) make a free distribution of Shares, (b) make a bonus

5.3.1.2

issue of its Shares, (c) divide its outstanding Shares, (d) consolidate its outstanding Shares
into a smaller number of Shares, or (e) re-classify any of its Shares into other Bonds of the
Company, then the Initial Conversion Price shall be appropriately adjusted so that the holder
of any Bond, the Conversion Date in respect of which occurs after the coming into effect of
the adjustment described in this Condition 5.3.1 shall be entitled to receive the number of
Shares and/or other Bonds of the Company which he would have held or have been entitled
to receive after the happening of any of the events described above had such Bond been
converted immediately prior to the happening of such event (or, if the Company has fixed a
prior record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive any such free
distribution or bonus issue of Shares or other Bonds issued upon any such division,
consolidation or reclassification, immediately prior to such record date), but without
prejudice to the effect of any other adjustment to the Initial Conversion Price made with
effect from the date of the happening of such event (or such record date) or any time
thereafter.

Effective date of adjustment: An adjustment made pursuant to Condition 5.3.1.1 above shall
become effective immediately on the relevant event referred to above becoming effective
or, if a record date is fixed therefore, immediately after such record date; provided that in
the case of a free distribution or bonus issue of Shares which must, under applicable laws of
India, be submitted for approval to a general meeting of shareholders or be approved by a
meeting of the Board before being legally paid or made, and which is so approved after the
record date fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution
or issue, such adjustment shall, immediately upon such approval being given by such
meeting, become effective retroactively to immediately after such record date.

5.3.2 Declaration of dividend in Shares:

If the Company shall issue Shares as a dividend in Shares or make a distribution of Shares which is
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5.3.3

treated as a capitalisation issue for accounting purposes under International Financial Reporting
Standards (including but not limited to capitalisation of capital reserves and employee stock bonus),
then the Conversion Price in effect when such dividend and/or distribution is declared (or, if the
Company has fixed a prior record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such
dividend and/or distribution, on such record date) shall be adjusted in accordance with the following
formula:

NCP = OCP x [N/(N + n)]

where:

NCP = the Conversion Price after such adjustment.
OCP = the Conversion Price before such adjustment.

N = the number of Shares outstanding, at the time of issuance of such dividend and/or
distribution or at the close of business in Mumbai on such record date as the case may be).

n = the number of Shares to be distributed to the shareholders as a dividend and/or distribution.
Concurrent adjustment events:

If the Company shall declare a dividend in, or make a free distribution or bonus issue of Shares and
such dividend, issue or distribution is to be paid or made to shareholders as of a record date which is
also:

5.3.3.1 the record date for the issue of any rights or warrants which requires an adjustment of the
Conversion Price pursuant to Conditions 5.3.5 to 5.3.7;

5.3.3.2 the day immediately before the date of issue of any Bonds convertible into or exchangeable
for Shares, which requires an adjustment of the Conversion Price pursuant to Condition 5.3.9;

5.3.3.3 the day immediately before the date of issue of any Shares which requires an adjustment of
the Conversion Price pursuant to Condition 5.3.10 or, if applicable, the record date for
determination of stock dividend entitlement as referred to in Condition 5.3.10;

5.3.3.4 the day immediately before the date of issue of any rights, options or warrants which requires
an adjustment of the Conversion Price pursuant to Condition 5.3.11; or

5.3.3.5 determined by the Company and notified by the Company to the Principle Paying Agent and
Principal Paying and Conversion Agent in writing to be the relevant date for an event or
circumstance which requires an adjustment to the Conversion Price pursuant to Condition
5.3.13;

then (except where such dividend, bonus issue or free distribution gives rise to a retroactive
adjustment of the Conversion Price under Conditions 5.3.1 and 5.3.2) no adjustment of the
Conversion Price in respect of such dividend, bonus issue or free distribution shall be made under the
Conditions 5.3.1 and 5.3.2, but in lieu thereof an adjustment shall be made under Conditions 5.3.5,
5.3.6,5.3.7,5.3.9,5.3.10, 5.3.11 or 5.3.13 (as the case may require) by including in the denominator
of the fraction described therein the aggregate number of Shares to be issued pursuant to such
dividend, bonus issue or free distribution.

103



534

Extraordinary Cash Dividends:

In case the Company shall, by dividend or otherwise, distribute cash (excluding any dividend or
distribution that is not an Extraordinary Cash Dividend) to all holders of Shares then, in such case, the
Conversion Price shall be adjusted (with such adjustment to be effective on the record date for the
determination of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution) in accordance with the following
formula:

NCP = OCP x [(M - C)/M]

where:

NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in Condition 5.3.5 below.
M = the Current Market Price per Share on such record date.

C = the amount of cash so distributed (and not excluded as provided for above) applicable to one
Share.

If such dividend or distribution is not so paid or made, the Conversion Price shall again be adjusted to
be the Conversion Price which would then be in effect if such dividend or distribution had not been
approved.

For purposes of this Condition 5.3.4, an Extraordinary Cash Dividend occurs if, at the effective date,
the total amount of:

a. any cash dividends paid or declared by the Company on the Shares, prior to deduction of any
withholding tax plus any corporate tax attributable to that dividend; and

b. all other cash dividends paid or declared on the Shares in the 365 consecutive day period prior
to the effective date (other than any dividend or portion thereof previously deemed to be an
Extraordinary Cash Dividend) (the “previous dividends”), except that where the date of
announcement for dividends for two different fiscal years has occurred in such 365 day period,
such dividends relating to the earlier fiscal year will be disregarded for the purpose of
determining the previous dividend ((a) and (b) together being the “total current dividend”),

equals or exceeds on a per Share basis five percent of the Average Closing Price (as defined below) of
the Shares during the Relevant Period (as defined below) provided that any dividend paid or declared
by the Company will not constitute an Extraordinary Cash Dividend if the amount paid or declared by
the Company is equal to an amount not greater than 300% of the dividends paid or declared by the
Company in the previous fiscal year. For the avoidance of doubt, all amounts are on a per Share basis.

The “Average Closing Price” is the arithmetic average of the Closing Price per Share for each Trading
Day during the Relevant Period.

The ‘“Relevant Period” means the period beginning on the first Trading Day after the record date for
the first cash dividend aggregated in the total current dividend, and ending on the Trading Day
immediately preceding the record date for the cash dividend which caused the adjustment to the
Conversion Price pursuant to this Condition 5.3.4. However, if there were no cash dividends declared
during the 365 consecutive day period prior to the record date for the cash dividend which caused
the adjustment to the Conversion Price pursuant to this Condition 5.3.4, the relevant period will be
the entire period of 365 consecutive days.
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Rights Issues to Shareholders and others:

Adjustment: If the Company shall grant, issue, or offer to the holders of Shares rights entitling them
to subscribe for or purchase Shares, which expression shall include those Shares that are required to
be offered to employees and persons other than shareholders in connection with such grant, issue or
offer:

5.3.5.1 ataconsideration per Share receivable by the Company (determined as provided in Condition
5.3.16) which is fixed on or prior to the record date for the determination of shareholders
entitled to receive such rights and is less than the Current Market Price per Share at such
record date; or

5.3.5.2 at a consideration per Share receivable by the Company which is fixed after the record date
for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such rights and is less than the
Current Market Price per Share on the date the Company fixes the said consideration,

then the Conversion Price in effect (in a case within 5.3.5.1 above) on the record date for the
determination of shareholders entitled to receive such rights or (in a case within 5.3.5.2 above) on
the date the Company fixes the said consideration shall be adjusted in accordance with the following
formula:

NCP = OCP x [(N + v)/(N + n)]

where:

NCP = the Conversion Price after such adjustment.
OCP = the Conversion Price before such adjustment.

N = the number of Shares outstanding at the close of business in India (in a case within 5.3.5.1 above)
on such record date or (in a case within 5.3.5.2 above) on the date the Company fixes the said
consideration.

n = the number of Shares initially to be issued upon exercise of such rights at the said consideration
being (aa) the number of Shares which underwriters have agreed to underwrite as referred to below
or, as the case may be, (bb) the number of Shares for which applications are received from
shareholders as referred to below save to the extent already adjusted for under (aa).

v = the number of Shares which the aggregate consideration receivable by the Company (determined
as provided in Condition 5.3.16) would purchase at such Current Market Price per Share specified in
5.3.5.1 or, as the case may be, 5.3.5.2 above.

Effective date of adjustment: Subject as provided below, such adjustment shall become effective
immediately after the latest date for the submission of applications for such Shares by shareholders
entitled to the same pursuant to such rights or (if later) immediately after the Company fixes the said
consideration but retroactively to immediately after the record date mentioned above.

Rights not taken up by Shareholders: If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the holders of
Shares of rights entitling them to subscribe for or purchase Shares, any Shares which are not
subscribed for or purchased by the persons entitled thereto are underwritten by other persons prior
to the latest date for the submission of applications for such Shares, an adjustment shall be made to
the Conversion Price in accordance with the above provisions which shall become effective
immediately after the date the underwriters agree to underwrite the same or (if later) immediately
after the Company fixes the said consideration but retroactively to immediately after the record date
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mentioned above.

If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the holders of Shares of rights entitling them to
subscribe for or purchase Shares, any such Shares which are not subscribed for or purchased by the
underwriters who have agreed to underwrite as referred to above or by the shareholders entitled
thereto (or persons to whom shareholders have transferred such rights) who have submitted
applications for such Shares as referred to above are offered to and/or subscribed by others, no
further adjustment shall be made to the Conversion Price by reason of such offer and/ or subscription.

Warrants issued to Shareholders:

Adjustment: If the Company shall grant, issue, or offer to the holders of Shares warrants entitling
them to subscribe for or purchase Shares:

5.3.6.1 ataconsideration per Share receivable by the Company (determined as provided in Condition
5.3.16) which is fixed on or prior to the record date for the determination of shareholders
entitled to receive such warrants and is less than the Current Market Price per Share at such
record date; or

5.3.6.2 at a consideration per Share receivable by the Company which is fixed after the record date
mentioned above and is less than the Current Market Price per Share on the date the
Company fixes the said consideration,

then the Conversion Price in effect (in a case within 5.3.6.1 above) on the record date for the
determination of shareholders entitled to receive such warrants or (in a case within 5.3.6.2 above)
on the date the Company fixes the said consideration shall be adjusted in accordance with the
following formula:

NCP = OCP x [(N + v)/(N + n)]
where:
NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in Condition 5.3.5.

N = the number of Shares outstanding (having regard to Condition 5.3.17) at the close of business in
India (in a case within 5.3.6.1 above) on such record date or (in a case within 5.3.6.1 above) on the
date the Company fixes the said consideration.

n =the number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of such warrants at the said consideration which,
where no applications by shareholders entitled to such warrants are required, shall be based on the
number of warrants issued. Where applications by shareholders entitled to such warrants are
required, the number of such Shares shall be calculated based upon (aa) the number of warrants
which underwriters have agreed to underwrite as referred to below or, as the case may be, (bb) the
number of warrants for which applications are received from shareholders as referred to below save
to the extent already adjusted for under (aa).

v = the number of Shares which the aggregate consideration receivable by the Company(determined
as provided in Condition 5.3.16) would purchase at such Current Market Price per Share specified in
5.3.6.1 or, as the case may be, 5.3.6.2) above.

Effective date of adjustment: Subject as provided below, such adjustment shall become effective (i)
where no applications for such warrants are required from shareholders entitled to the same, upon
their issue and (ii) where applications by shareholders entitled to the same are required as aforesaid,
immediately after the latest date for the submission of such applications or (if later) immediately after
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5.3.7

the Company fixes the said consideration but in all cases retroactively to immediately after the record
date mentioned above.

Warrants not subscribed for by Shareholders: If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the
holders of Shares of warrants entitling them to subscribe for or purchase Shares in the circumstances
described in Conditions 5.3.6.1 and 5.3.6.2, any warrants which are not subscribed for or purchased
by the shareholders entitled thereto are underwritten by others prior to the latest date for the
submission of applications for such warrants, an adjustment shall be made to the Conversion Price in
accordance with the above provisions which shall become effective immediately after the date the
underwriters agree to underwrite the same or (if later) immediately after the Company fixes the said
consideration but retroactively to immediately after the record date mentioned above.

If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the holders of Shares of warrants entitling them to
subscribe for or purchase Shares, any warrants which are not subscribed for or purchased by the
underwriters who have agreed to underwrite as referred to above or by the shareholders entitled
thereto (or persons to whom shareholders have transferred the right to purchase such warrants) who
have submitted applications for such warrants as referred to above are offered to and/or subscribed
by others, no further adjustment shall be made to the Conversion Price by reason of such offer and/or
subscription.

Issues of rights or warrants for equity related Bonds to Shareholders:

Adjustment: If the Company shall grant, issue, or offer to the holders of Shares rights or warrants
entitling them to subscribe for or purchase any Bonds convertible into or exchangeable for Shares:

5.3.7.1 ataconsideration per Share receivable by the Company (determined as provided in Condition
5.3.16) which is fixed on or prior to the record date mentioned below and is less than the
Current Market Price per Share at such record date; or

5.3.7.2 at a consideration per Share receivable by the Company (determined as aforesaid) which is
fixed after the record date mentioned below and is less than the Current Market Price per
Share on the date the Company fixes the said consideration,

then the Conversion Price in effect (in a case within 5.3.7.1 above) on the record date for the
determination of shareholders entitled to receive such rights or warrants or (in a case within 5.3.7.2
above) on the date the Company fixes the said consideration shall be adjusted in accordance with the
following formula:

NCP=0CPx  [(N+V)/(N+n)]
where:
NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in Condition 5.3.5.

N = the number of Shares outstanding (having regard to Condition 5.3.17) at the close of business in
India (in a case within 5.3.7.1 above) on such record date or (in a case within 5.3.7.2 above) on the
date the Company fixes the said consideration.

n =the number of Shares initially to be issued upon exercise of such rights or warrants and conversion
or exchange of such convertible or exchangeable Bonds at the said consideration being, in the case
of rights, (aa) the number of Shares initially to be issued upon conversion or exchange of the number
of such convertible or exchangeable Bonds which the underwriters have agreed to underwrite as
referred to below or, as the case may be, (bb) the number of Shares initially to be issued upon
conversion or exchange of the number of such convertible or exchangeable Bonds for which
applications are received from shareholders as referred to below save to the extent already adjusted
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5.3.8

for under (aa) and which, in the case of warrants, where no applications by shareholders entitled to
such warrants are required, shall be based on the number of warrants issued. Where applications by
shareholders entitled to such warrants are required, the number of such Shares shall be calculated
based upon (aa) the number of warrants which underwriters have agreed to underwrite as referred
to below or, as the case may be, (bb) the number of warrants for which applications are received
from shareholders as referred to below save to the extent already adjusted for under (aa).

v = the number of Shares which the aggregate consideration receivable by the Company (determined
as provided in Condition 5.3.16) would purchase at such Current Market Price per Share specified in
5.3.7.1 or, as the case may be, 5.3.7.2 above.

Effective date of adjustment: Subject as provided below, such adjustment shall become effective (a)
where no applications for such warrants are required from shareholders entitled to the same, upon
their issue and (b) where applications by shareholders entitled to the warrants are required as
aforesaid and in the case of convertible or exchangeable Bonds by shareholders entitled to the same
pursuant to such rights, immediately after the latest date for the submission of such applications or
(if later) immediately after the Company fixes the said consideration; but in all cases retroactively to
immediately after the record date mentioned above.

Rights or warrants not taken up by Shareholders: If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the
holders of Shares of rights or warrants entitling them to subscribe for or purchase Bonds convertible
into or exchangeable for Shares in the circumstances described in this Condition 5.3.7, any convertible
or exchangeable Bonds or warrants which are not subscribed for or purchased by the shareholders
entitled thereto are underwritten by others prior to the latest date for the submission of applications
for such convertible or exchangeable Bonds or warrants, an adjustment shall be made to the
Conversion Price in accordance with the above provisions which shall become effective immediately
after the date the underwriters agree to underwrite the same or (if later) immediately after the
Company fixes the said consideration but retroactively to immediately after the record date
mentioned above.

If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the holders of Shares of rights or warrants entitling
them to subscribe for or purchase Bonds convertible into or exchangeable for Shares, any convertible
or exchangeable Bonds or warrants which are not subscribed for or purchased by the underwriters
who have agreed to underwrite as referred to above or by the shareholders entitled thereto (or
persons to whom shareholders have transferred such rights or the right to purchase such warrants)
who have submitted applications for such convertible or exchangeable Bonds or warrants as referred
to above are offered to and/or subscribed by others, no further adjustment shall be made to the
Conversion Price by reason of such offer and/ or subscription.

Other distributions to Shareholders:

Adjustment: If the Company shall distribute to the holders of Shares evidences of its indebtedness,
or shares of capital stock of the Company (other than Shares), or assets (including any dividends in
cash) or rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase Shares or Bonds (excluding those rights and
warrants referred to in Conditions 5.3.5, 5.3.6 and 5.3.7 above), then the Conversion Price in effect
on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution shall
be adjusted in accordance with the following formula:

NCP = OCP x [(CMP — fmv)/CMP]

where:

NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in Condition 5.3.5.
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5.3.9

CMP = the Current Market Price per Share on the record date for the determination of shareholders
entitled to receive such distribution.

fmv = the fair market value (as determined by the Company or, if pursuant to applicable law of India
such determination is to be made by application to a court of competent jurisdiction, as determined
by such court or by an appraiser appointed by such court) of the portion of the evidences of
indebtedness, equity share capital shares of capital stock, assets (including cash), rights or warrants
so distributed applicable to one Share less any consideration payable for the same by the relevant
Shareholder.

In making a determination of the fair market value of any such evidences of indebtedness, shares of
capital stock, assets (other than cash), rights or warrants, the Company shall consult an Independent
Financial Institution (as defined herein) and shall take fully into account the advice received from such
institution.

Effective date of adjustment: Such adjustment shall become effective immediately after the record
date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution. Provided that (a) in
the case of such a distribution which must, under applicable law of India, be submitted for approval
to a general meeting of shareholders or be approved by a meeting of the Board before such
distribution may legally be made and is so approved after the record date fixed for the determination
of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution, such adjustment shall, immediately upon such
approval being given by such meeting, become effective retroactively to immediately after such
record date and (b) if the fair market value of the evidences of indebtedness, shares of capital stock,
assets, rights or warrants so distributed cannot be determined until after the record date fixed for
the determination of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution, such adjustment shall,
immediately upon such fair market value being determined, become effective retroactively to
immediately after such record date.

Issue of convertible or exchangeable Bonds other than to Shareholders or on exercise of warrants:

Adjustment: If the Company shall issue any Bonds convertible into or exchangeable for Shares (other
than the Bonds, or in any of the circumstances described in Conditions 5.3.7 and 5.3.9 or grant such
rights in respect of any existing Bonds and the consideration per Share receivable by the Company
(determined as provided in Condition 5.3.16) shall be less than the Current Market Price per Share on
the date in India on which the Company fixes the said consideration (or, if the issue of such Bonds is
subject to approval by a general meeting of shareholders, on the date on which the Board fixes the
consideration to be recommended at such meeting), then the Conversion Price in effect immediately
prior to the date of issue of such convertible or exchangeable Bonds shall be adjusted in accordance
with the following formula:

NCP = OCP x [(N + v)/(N + n)]
where:
NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in Conditions 5.3.5.

N = the number of Shares outstanding (having regard to Condition 5.3.17) at the close of business in
India on the day immediately prior to the date of such issue.

n = the number of Shares to be issued upon conversion or exchange of such convertible or
exchangeable Bonds at the initial conversion or exchange price or rate.

v = the number of Shares which the aggregate consideration receivable by the Company would
purchase at such Current Market Price per Share.
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5.3.10

5.3.11

Effective date of adjustment: Such adjustment shall become effective as of the calendar day in India
corresponding to the calendar day at the place of issue on which such convertible or exchangeable
Bonds are issued.

Other issues of Shares:

Adjustment: If the Company shall issue any Shares other than Shares issued upon conversion or
exchange of any convertible or exchangeable Bonds (including the Bonds) already issued by the
Company or upon exercise of any rights or warrants granted, offered or issued by the Company or in
any of the circumstances described in Conditions 5.3.1 and 5.3.2 or issued to shareholders of any
company which merges with the Company in proportion to their shareholdings in such company
immediately prior to such merger, upon such merger but including Shares issued under any employee
dividend or profit-sharing arrangements for a consideration per Share receivable by the Company
(determined as provided in Condition 5.3.16) less than the Current Market Price per Share on the
date in India on which the Company fixes the said consideration (or, if the issue of such Shares is
subject to approval by a general meeting of shareholders, on the date on which the Board fixes the
consideration to be recommended at such meeting), then the Conversion Price in effect immediately
prior to the issue of such additional Shares shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula:

NCP = OCP x [(N + v)/(N + n)]
where:
NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in Condition 5.3.5.

N = the number of Shares outstanding (having regard to Condition 5.3.17) at the close of business in
India on the day immediately prior to the date of issue of such additional Shares.

n = the number of additional Shares issued as aforesaid.

v = the number of Shares which the aggregate consideration receivable by the Company (determined
as provided in Condition 5.3.16) would purchase at such Current Market Price per Share.

Effective date of adjustment: Such adjustment shall become effective as of the calendar day in India
of the issue of such additional Shares.

Issue of equity related Bonds:

Adjustment: If the Company shall grant, issue or offer options, warrants or rights (excluding those
rights and warrants referred to in Conditions 5.3.5 to 5.3.7) to subscribe for or purchase Shares or
Bonds convertible into or exchangeable for Shares and the consideration per Share receivable by the
Company (determined as provided in Condition 5.3.16) shall be less than the Current Market Price
per Share on the date in India on which the Company fixes the said consideration (or, if the offer,
grant or issue of such rights, options or warrants is subject to approval by a general meeting of
shareholders, on the date on which the Board fixes the consideration to be recommended at such
meeting), then the Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to the date of the offer, grant or issue
of such rights, options or warrants shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula:

NCP = OCP x [(N + v)/(N + n)]
where:

NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in Condition 5.3.5
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5.3.12

N = the number of Shares outstanding (having regard to Condition 5.3.16) at the close of business in
India on the day immediately prior to the date of such issue.

n = the number of Shares to be issued on exercise of such rights or warrants and (if applicable)
conversion or exchange of such convertible or exchangeable Bonds at the said consideration.

v = the number of Shares which the aggregate consideration receivable by the Company (determined
as provided in Condition 5.3.16) would purchase at such Current Market Price per Share.

Effective date of adjustment: Such adjustment shall become effective as of the calendar day in India
corresponding to the calendar day at the place of issue on which such rights or warrants are issued.

Tender or Exchange Offer:

In case a tender or exchange offer made by the Company or any subsidiary of the Company for all or
any portion of the Shares shall expire and such tender or exchange offer shall involve the payment by
the Company or such subsidiary of consideration per Share having a Fair Market Value (as determined
by the Board, whose determination shall, if made in good faith, be conclusive) at the last time (the
“Expiration Date”’) tenders or exchanges could have been made pursuant to such tender or exchange
offer (as it shall have been amended) that exceeds the Current Market Price per Share, as of the
Expiration Date, the Conversion Price shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula:

NCP = OCP x [(N x M) / a+[(N-n) x M]]
where:
NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in Condition 5.3.5 above.

N =the number of Shares outstanding (including any tendered or exchanged Shares) on the Expiration
Date.

M = Current Market Price per Share as of the Expiration Date.

a = the Fair Market Value of the aggregate consideration payable to the holders of Shares based on
the acceptance (up to a maximum specified in terms of the tender or exchange offer) of all Shares
validly tendered or exchanged and not withdrawn as of the Expiration Date (the Shares deemed so
accepted up to any such maximum, being referred to as the ““Purchased Shares’’).

n = the number of Purchased Shares.

Such reduction to become retroactively effective immediately prior to the opening of business on the
day following the Expiration Date.

If the Company is obligated to purchase Shares pursuant to any such tender or exchange offer, but
the Company is permanently prevented by applicable law from effecting any such purchase or all
such purchases are rescinded, the Conversion Price shall again be adjusted to be the Conversion Price
which would then be in effect if such tender or exchange offer had not been made.

“Fair Market Value” means the price that could be negotiated in an arm’s length free market

transaction for cash between a willing buyer and a willing seller neither of which is under pressure or
compulsion to complete the transaction.
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5.3.13 Analogous events and modifications:

5.3.14

5.3.15

If (a) the rights of conversion or exchange, purchase or subscription attaching to any options, rights
or warrants to subscribe for or purchase Shares or any Bonds convertible into or exchangeable for,
or which carry rights to subscribe for or purchase shares are modified (other than pursuant to and as
provided in the terms and conditions of such options, rights, warrants or Bonds) or (b) the Company
determines that any other event or circumstance has occurred which has or would have an effect on
the position of the Bondholders as a class compared with the position of the holders of all the Bonds
(and options and rights relating thereto) of the Company, taken as a class which is analogous to any
of the events referred to in Conditions 5.3.1 to 5.3.12, then, in any such case, the Company shall
promptly notify the Principle Paying Agent thereof in writing and consult with an Independent
Financial Institution, not being a shareholder or Bondholder as to what adjustment, if any, should
be made to the Conversion Price to preserve the value of the Conversion Right of Bondholders and
will make any such adjustment.

Simultaneous issues of different classes of Shares:

In the event of simultaneous issues of two or more classes of share capital comprising Shares or rights
or warrants in respect of, or Bonds convertible into or exchangeable for, two or more classes of share
capital comprising Shares, then, for the purposes of this Condition, the formula:

NCP = OCP x [(N + v)/(N + n)]

shall be restated as:
NCP =0OCP x [(N+v1+v2+v3)/(N+nl+n2+n3)]

where vl and nlshall have the same meanings as “v"” and “n” but by reference to one class of Shares,
v2 and n2 shall have the same meanings as “v”’ and “n’’ but by reference to a second class of Shares,
v3 and n3 shall have the same meanings as “v"’ and “n”” but by reference to a third class of Shares
and so on.

Current Market Price per Share:

For the purposes of these Conditions, the “Current Market Price” per Share on any date means the
lower of:

i) the Conversion Price prevailing on such date plus the premium so determined so as to give a
YTM of 5.32% till such date on the Conversion Price prevailing on such date; or

ii) the average of the daily closing prices (as defined below) of the relevant Shares for the 30
consecutive Trading Days (as defined below) before such date.

If the Company has more than one class of share capital comprising Shares, then the relevant Current
Market Price for Shares shall be the price for that class of Shares the issue of which (or of rights or
warrants in respect of, or Bonds convertible into or exchangeable for, that class of Shares) gives rise
to the adjustment in question.

If during the said 30 Trading Days or any period thereafter up to but excluding the date as of which
the adjustment of the Conversion Price in question shall be effected, any event (other than the event
which requires the adjustment in question) shall occur which gives rise to a separate adjustment to
the Conversion Price under the provisions of these Conditions, then the Current Market Price as
determined above shall be adjusted in such manner and to such extent as an Independent Financial
Institution shall in its absolute discretion deem appropriate and fair to compensate for the effect
thereof.
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For the purposes of these Conditions:

the “Closing Price” of the Shares for each Trading Day shall be the last reported transaction price of
the Shares on the BSE for such day or, if no transaction takes place on such day, the average of the
closing bid and offered prices of Shares for such day as furnished by a leading independent Bonds
firm licensed to trade on the BSE selected from time to time by the Company and notified to the
Principle Paying Agent in writing for the purpose; and

“Trading Day”’ means any day of the week during which the BSE is open for business, but does not
include a day when (a) no such last transaction price or closing bid and offered prices is/are reported
and (b) (if the Shares are not listed or admitted to trading on such exchange) no such closing bid and
offered prices are furnished as aforesaid. If the Shares are no longer listed on the BSE and have been
listed on another stock exchange as required by Condition 12.4, references in the above definitions
to the BSE will be taken as references to that stock exchange.

5.3.16 Consideration receivable by the Company:

For the purposes of any calculation of the consideration receivable by the Company pursuant to
Conditions 5.3.5 to 5.3.7 and 5.3.9 to 5.3.11and 5.3.14 above, the following provisions shall be
applicable:

5.3.16.1 in the case of the issue of Shares for cash, the consideration shall be the amount of such
cash, provided that in no such case shall any deduction be made for any commissions or
any expenses paid or incurred by the Company for any underwriting of the issue or
otherwise in connection therewith;

5.3.16.2 in the case of the issue of Shares for a consideration in whole or in part other than cash,
the consideration other than cash shall be deemed to be the fair value thereof as
determined by the Company (and in making such determination the Company shall consult
an Independent Financial Institution and shall take fully into account the advice received
from institution ) or, if pursuant to applicable law of India such determination is to be made
by application to a court of competent jurisdiction, as determined by such court or an
appraiser appointed by such court, irrespective of the accounting treatment thereof;

5.3.16.3 in the case of the issue (whether initially or upon the exercise of rights or warrants) of
Bonds convertible into or exchangeable for Shares, the aggregate consideration receivable
by the Company shall be deemed to be the consideration received by the Company for such
Bonds and (if applicable) rights or warrants plus the additional consideration (if any) to be
received by the Company upon (and assuming) the conversion or exchange of such Bonds
at the initial conversion or exchange price or rate and (if applicable) the exercise of such
rights or warrants at the initial subscription or purchase price (the consideration in each
case to be determined in the same manner as provided in this Condition 5.3.16) and the
consideration per Share receivable by the Company shall be such aggregate consideration
divided by the number of Shares to be issued upon (and assuming) such conversion or
exchange at the initial conversion or exchange price or rate and (if applicable) the exercise
of such rights or warrants at the initial subscription or purchase price;

5.3.16.4 in the case of the issue of rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase Shares, the
aggregate consideration receivable by the Company shall be deemed to be the
consideration received by the Company for any such rights or warrants plus the additional
consideration to be received by the Company upon (and assuming) the exercise of such
rights or warrants at the initial subscription or purchase price (the consideration in each
case to be determined in the same manner as provided in this Condition 5.3.16) and the
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5.3.17

5.3.18

5.3.19

5.3.20

consideration per Share receivable by the Company shall be such aggregate consideration
divided by the number of Shares to be issued upon (and assuming) the exercise of such
rights or warrants at the initial subscription or purchase price;

5.3.16.5 if any of the consideration referred to in any of the preceding paragraphs of this Condition
5.3.16 is receivable in a currency other than Rupees, such consideration shall (in any case
where there is a fixed rate of exchange between Rupees and the relevant currency for the
purposes of the issue of the Shares, the conversion or exchange of such Bonds or the
exercise of such rights or warrants) be translated into Rupees for the purposes of this
Condition 5.3.16 at such fixed rate of exchange and shall (in all other cases) be translated
into Rupees at the mean of the exchange rate quotations (being quotations for the cross
rate through US dollars if no direct rate is quoted) by a leading bank in India for buying and
selling spot units of the relevant currency by telegraphic transfer against Rupees on the
date as of which the said consideration is required to be calculated as aforesaid; and

5.3.16.6 in the case of the issue of Shares (including, without limitation, to employees under any
employee bonus or profit sharing arrangements) credited as fully paid out of retained
earnings or capitalisation of reserves at their par value, the aggregate consideration
receivable by the Company shall be deemed to be zero (and accordingly the number of
Shares which such aggregate consideration receivable by the Company could purchase at
the relevant Current Market Price per Share shall also be deemed to be zero).

Cumulative adjustments:

If, at the time of computing an adjustment (the “later adjustment”) of the Conversion Price, the
Conversion Price already incorporates an adjustment made (or taken or to be taken into account
pursuant to the proviso to Condition 5.3.18) to reflect an issue of Shares or of Bonds convertible into
or exchangeable for Shares or of rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase Shares or Bonds, to
the extent that the number of such Shares or Bonds taken into account for the purposes of calculating
such adjustment exceeds the number of such Shares in issue at the time relevant for ascertaining the
number of outstanding Shares for the purposes of computing the later adjustment, such excess
Shares shall be deemed to be outstanding for the purposes of making such computation.

Minor adjustments:

No adjustment of the Conversion Price shall be required if the adjustment would be less than 1% of
the Conversion Price then in effect; provided that any adjustment which by reason of this Condition
5.3.18 is not required to be made shall be carried forward and taken into account (as if such
adjustment had been made at the time when it would have been made but for the provisions of this
Condition 5.3.18) in any subsequent adjustment. All calculations under this Condition 5.3.18 shall be
made to the nearest Rs.1. Except as otherwise set out in Condition 5.3.19, the Conversion Price may
be reduced at any time by the Company.

Minimum Conversion Price:

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Condition, the Company covenants that Conversion Price shall
not be reduced below the par value of the Shares (Rs.1 at the date hereof) as a result of any
adjustment made hereunder unless under applicable law then in effect the Bonds may be converted
at such reduced Conversion Price into legally issued, fully-paid and non-assessable Shares.

Employee share scheme:

No adjustment shall be required to the Conversion Price where Shares or other Bonds or options,
rights or warrants for shares or other Bonds, are issued, offered, allotted, appropriated, modified or
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5.3.21

5.3.22

5.3.23

5.3.24

5.3.25

granted to employees (including directors) or former employees of the Company or persons related
to such employees (including directors) or former employees, directly or indirectly, pursuant to any
employee share scheme generally or as required by law.

Reference to fixed:

Any references herein to the date on which a consideration is “fixed” shall, where the consideration
is originally expressed by reference to a formula which cannot be expressed as an actual cash amount
until a later date, be construed as a reference to the first day on which such actual cash amount can
be ascertained.

Whenever the Conversion Price is adjusted as herein provided the Company shall compute the
adjusted Conversion Price in accordance with Condition 5.3 and shall prepare a certificate signed by
two directors of the Company setting forth the Conversion Price before adjustment, the adjusted
Conversion Price including reference to which provision in Condition 5.3 has been triggered, the
effective date of such adjustment and certifying that such adjustment is permitted under the
prevailing applicable Indian laws and regulations and showing in reasonable detail the facts upon
which such adjustment is based, and such certificate shall forthwith be delivered to the Principle
Paying Agent and the Agents and will be notified to Bondholders at least ten Business Days in advance
of the effective date of such adjustment.

Principle Paying Agent and Agents not obliged to monitor:

The Principle Paying Agent and the Agents shall not be under any duty to monitor whether any event
or circumstance has happened or exists within this Condition 5 and shall assume no such event has
occurred until it has express written notice from the Company of such event and will not be
responsible to the Bondholders or any other person for any loss arising from any such assumption or
any failure by it to monitor.

The Initial Conversion Price will be subject to adjustment in accordance with the provisions of this
Condition 5.3. If the Company fails to notify the Agents of the Conversion Price or any adjustments
to it in accordance with Condition 5.3.22, the Principal Paying and Conversion Agent shall have no
duty to apply the adjusted Conversion Price or to convert the Bonds and shall not be liable to any
person for such failure to do so. If the Company fails to notify the Principle Paying Agent of the
Conversion Price or any adjustments to it in accordance with Condition 5.3.22, the Principle Paying
Agent shall have no liability to any person for any of its actions or omissions under this Condition 5.

No adjustment for conversion of the Bonds:

No adjustment of the Conversion Price shall be required as a result of the conversion of any of the
Bonds.

Principle Paying Agent, Agents and Lead Manager Not Liable

None of the Principle Paying Agent, the Agents and the lead manager appointed by the Company for
the purpose of issuance of the Bonds (the “Lead Manager”) shall be responsible for any failure of the
Company to make such payment or to issue, transfer or deliver any Shares or other Bonds or property
upon the surrender of any Bond for conversion and none of the Principle Paying Agent, the Agents
and the Lead Manager shall be responsible for or liable to any Bondholder or any other person for
any failure of the Company to comply with any of the Company’s covenants in relation to conversion
or any of the Company’s actions or omissions under this Condition 5.

Neither the Principle Paying Agent nor any of the Agents shall be responsible or liable to the
Bondholders or any other person for the selection of any Independent Financial Institution made by
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5.3.26

5.3.27

5.4

54.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

the Company or for any acts, decisions, or omissions of the Company as a result of any determination,
calculation or advice provided by such Independent Financial Institution.

Independent Financial Institution

For the purposes of these Conditions, “Independent Financial Institution” means an independent
investment company or a commercial bank or a chartered accountant firm of international repute in
either case, not being a shareholder or a Bondholder and selected by the Company and notified in
writing to the Principle Paying Agent. All costs, charges, liabilities, and expenses incurred in
connection with the appointment, retention, consultation, and remuneration of any Independent
Financial Institution appointed under these Conditions shall be borne by the Company.

Whenever the Conversion Price is adjusted in accordance with Condition 5.3, the Company, so long
as the Bonds are listed on the AFRINEX , Mauritius and the rules of the AFRINEX Securities List so
require, will also publish a notice via website of the AFRINEX, Mauritius of such adjustment to the
Conversion Price at least ten Business Days in advance of the effective date of such adjustment.

Procedure for Conversion

A Conversion Right may be exercised by a Bondholder delivering at its own expense the relevant
Certificate, if applicable, to the specified office of any of the Conversion Agents between 9:00 am
and 3:00 p.m. (local time on any business day in such place) during the Conversion Period,
accompanied by a duly completed and signed notice of conversion (a "Conversion Notice") in
duplicate and in the form (for the time being) obtainable from the specified office of any of the
Agents together with the representation by the Bondholder, in the Conversion Notice, that it is not a
U.S. person or located in the United States (within the meaning of Regulation S under the Securities
Act of 1933 of the United States, as amended) and any certificates and other documents as may be
required under the laws of the Republic of India and the jurisdiction in which the specified office of
such Conversion Agent is located. The Conversion Agent may reject any incomplete or incorrect
Conversion Notice or any Conversion Notice that is not accompanied by any relevant Certificates in
respect thereof.

Conversion Rights shall be exercised subject in each case to any applicable fiscal or other laws or
regulations applicable in the jurisdiction in which the specified office of the relevant Conversion Agent
to which the relevant Conversion Notice is delivered is located. A Conversion Notice deposited
outside the hours specified above or on a day which is not a business day at the place of the specified
office of the relevant Conversion Agent shall for all purposes be deemed to have been deposited
with that Conversion Agent between 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. local time on the next business day.
Bondholders that deposit a Conversion Notice during a Closed Period will not be permitted to convert
their Bonds into Shares until the next business day following the last day of that Closed Period, which
(if all other conditions to conversion have been fulfilled) will be the Conversion Date for such Bonds.
The price at which such Bonds will be converted will be the Conversion Price in effect on such
Conversion Date.

The conversion date in respect of a Bond (the “Conversion Date”) shall be the Business Day
immediately following the date of receipt of a Conversion Notice and other applicable documents. A
Conversion Notice once delivered shall be irrevocable and cannot be withdrawn and the relevant
Bond the subject of such Conversion Notice shall be cancelled by the Principal Paying and Conversion
Agent on the Conversion Date in accordance with the Agency Agreement.

A Bondholder delivering a Conversion Notice must pay any taxes and capital, stamp, issue and
registration duties arising on conversion (other than any taxes or capital duties or stamp duties
payable by the Company in respect of the allotment and issue of Shares on conversion) and such
Bondholder shall pay all, if any, taxes arising by reference to any disposal of a Bond in connection
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5.4.4

5.4.5

with such conversion. The Company will pay all other expenses arising on the issue of Shares on
conversion of the Bonds and all charges of the Agents and the share transfer agent for the Shares in
connection with conversion.

Any Bondholder exercising the Conversion Right must provide the relevant Conversion Agent and the
Company with the certificate of payment of the relevant tax authorities or certify to the Principal
Paying and Conversion Agent in the Conversion Notice that such Bondholder has paid or will pay taxes
to the relevant authorities. None of the Principle Paying Agent nor any of the Conversion Agents shall
be under any obligation to determine whether a Bondholder or the Company is liable to make any
payment (and the amount of any such payment) under Condition 5.4.3 and shall not be liable for any
failure by any Bondholder or the Company to make such payment to the relevant tax authorities.
None of the Principle Paying Agent nor any of the Agents shall be concerned with, nor shall any of
them be obliged or required to enquire into the sufficiency of any amount paid for this purpose.
Furthermore, the Conversion Agent will be relying on the documents provided by the Bondholder in
relation to taxation liability and the issuance of Shares on conversion of the Bonds is not a
confirmation by the Conversion Agent that any taxation liability has been met and will have no liability
whatsoever if the documents were later found to be insufficient.

Upon successful exercise by a Bondholder of its Conversion Right pursuant to this Condition 5, the
Company will, on or with effect from the relevant Conversion Date, enter the relevant Bondholder or
his/their nominee in the register of members of the Company in respect of such number of shares to
be issued upon conversion (notwithstanding any retroactive adjustment of the Conversion Price
referred to below prior to the time it takes effect) and will as soon as practicable, and in any event
within 35 Business Days of the Conversion Date, cause the relevant Bonds account of the Bondholder
exercising his Conversion Right for Shares or of his/their nominee, to be credited with such number
of relevant shares to be issued upon conversion (notwithstanding any retroactive adjustment of the
conversion price referred to below prior to the time it takes effect) and shall further cause the name
of concerned Bondholder or its nominee to be registered accordingly, in the record of the depositors,
maintained by a depository registered under the 1996 Depositories Act with whom the Company has
entered into a depository agreement and subject to any applicable limitations then imposed by Indian
law and regulations, shall procure the share transfer agent to, as soon as practicable, and in any event
within 35 Business Days of the Conversion Date, despatch or cause to be dispatched to the order of
the person named for the purpose in the relevant Conversion Notice at the place and in the manner
specified in the relevant Conversion Notice (uninsured and the risk of delivery at any such place being
that of the converting Bondholder), in respect of any conversion and such assignments, the
documents (if any) as required by law to affect the transfer thereof.

The crediting of the shares to the relevant Bonds account of the converting Bondholder will be deemed
to satisfy the Company’s obligation to pay the principal and premium (if any) on the Bonds.

Notwithstanding the Conversion Right for each Bondholder in respect of each Bond, if the Company
is unable to convert the Bonds into Shares within 35 Business Days after receiving the Conversion
Notice, the Company shall have the option to pay to the relevant Bondholder an amount of cash in
U.S. dollars equal to the Cash Settlement Amount (as defined below) in order to satisfy such
Conversion Right in full or in part (in which case the other part shall be satisfied by the delivery of
Shares) (the "Cash Settlement Option"). In order to exercise the Cash Settlement Option, the
Company shall give written notice of the exercise of the Cash Settlement Option (the "Cash
Settlement Notice") to the relevant Bondholder (with a copy to the Principle Paying Agent and the
Principal Paying and Conversion Agent) as soon as practicable but no later than the 34th Business Day
after receiving the Conversion Notice (the "Cash Settlement Notice Date"). The Cash Settlement
Notice must specify the number of Shares in respect of which the Company will make a cash payment
in the manner described in this Condition 5.4.5. The Company shall pay the Cash Settlement Amount
along with any other amounts payable by it within [nine] Trading Days directly to the Bondholders
following the Cash Settlement Notice Date and shall prompt notify the Principle Paying Agent and the
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Principal Paying and Conversion Agent that such payment has been made. If the Company exercises
its Cash Settlement Option in respect of Bonds held by more than one Bondholder which are to be
converted on the same Conversion Date, the Company shall make the same proportion of cash and
Shares available to such converting Bondholders.

"Cash Settlement Amount" means, in respect of the Bonds submitted for conversion by the relevant
Bondholder, the US dollar amount equal to the aggregate of (i) the principal amount of such Bonds
and (ii) 12 per cent per annum of the principal amount of such Bonds commencing from (and
including) the date of the Conversion Notice to (but excluding) the date of payment of the Cash
Settlement Amount.

As soon as practicable on or after the relevant Conversion Date, and in any event not later than 35
Business Days following the relevant Conversion Date, the Shares deliverable on conversion of the
relevant Bonds shall be allotted by the Company to the Bondholder (or its nominee). The Company
shall deliver to the Bondholder a letter certifying such allotment and, pursuant to the provisions of
the Agency Agreement, provide confirmation of the allotment of Shares to the Principal Paying and
Conversion Agent. With effect from the relevant Conversion Date the Company shall treat the
Bondholder (or its nominee) as the holder of relevant number of Shares, which the exercising
Bondholder is entitled upon conversion of the relevant Bonds. Immediately after each Conversion
Date the Company will ensure that all necessary steps are taken for the due issue of the Shares
issuable on conversion of the relevant Bonds. As soon as practicable on or after the relevant
Conversion Date and in any event, not later than 35 Business Days after the Conversion Date, the
Company will register the Bondholder or its nominee as holder(s) of the relevant number of Shares
to be issued on conversion in the Company’s share register with effect from the Conversion Date and
notify in writing to the Conversion Agent of the said conversion.

If the Conversion Date in relation to any Bond is on or after a date from which an adjustment to the
Conversion Price takes retroactive effect pursuant to any of the provisions referred to in Condition
5.3 and the relevant Conversion Date falls on a date when the relevant adjustment has not yet been
reflected in the then current Conversion Price, the Company will use its best endeavors to procure
that the provisions of this Condition 5.4.5 shall be applied, with appropriate alterations, to such
number of Shares (“Additional Shares”) as is equal to the excess number of Shares which would have
been required to be issued on conversion of such Bond if the relevant retroactive adjustment had
been made as at the said Conversion Date and in such event and in respect of such Additional Shares
references in this Condition 5.4.5 to the Conversion Date shall be deemed to refer to the date upon
which such retroactive adjustment becomes effective (notwithstanding that the date upon which it
becomes effective falls after the end of the Conversion Period).

Entitlements

The Shares issued upon conversion of the Bonds will in all respects, subject to listing, rank pari passu
with the Shares in issue on the relevant Conversion Date (except for any right excluded by mandatory
provisions of applicable law) and such Shares shall be entitled to all rights, the record date for which
falls on or after such Conversion Date to the same extent as all other fully paid-up shares of the
Company in issue as if such Shares had been in issue throughout the period to which such rights
relate. A holder of Shares issued on conversion of the Bonds shall not be entitled to any rights the
record date for which precedes the relevant Conversion Date.

Shares allotted on conversion will be fully paid and will rank pari passu in all respects with the fully
paid Shares in issue on the Conversion Date (except for any right excluded by mandatory provisions
of law), except that the Shares so allotted will not rank for any dividend or other distribution declared
or paid or made by reference to a record date for the payment of a dividend or other distribution
with respect to the Shares prior to such Conversion Date.

118



5.5

5.6

7.1

Purchase by Company of its own Shares

The Articles of Association, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, contains authority for the
Company to exercise such rights as it may from time to time enjoy to purchase its own Shares without
the consent of the Bondholders provided that any such purchase shall have been duly authorised by
the Shareholders and is subject to compliance with applicable law.

Mergers

No consolidation, amalgamation or merger of the Company with any other corporation (other than a
consolidation, amalgamation or merger in which the Company is the continuing corporation), or sale
or transfer of all, or substantially all, of the assets of the Company shall take place unless the Company
shall have notified the Bondholders, the Principle Paying Agent and the Agents of such event in
accordance with Condition 19 and the Company and such corporation, entity or person shall have
executed a RTA Agreement supplemental to the Agency Agreement (in form and substance
satisfactory to the Principle Paying Agent) whereby such corporation, entity or person assumes the
obligations of the Company under the RTA Agreement, the Agency Agreement and the Bonds and to
ensure that the holder of each Bond then outstanding will have the right (during the period when
such Bond shall be convertible) to convert such Bond into the class and amount of shares, cash and
other Bonds and property receivable upon such consolidation, amalgamation, merger, sale or
transfer by a holder of the number of Shares which would have become liable to be issued upon
conversion of such Bond immediately prior to such consolidation, amalgamation, merger, sale or
transfer. Such supplemental RTA Agreement will provide for adjustments which will be as nearly
equivalent as may be practicable to the adjustments provided for in the foregoing provisions of this
Condition 5. The Principle Paying Agent shall be entitled to require from the Company such opinions,
consents, documents, and other matters at the expense of the Company in connection with the
foregoing as it may consider appropriate. Immediately after giving effect to any such merger, no Event
of Default (as defined herein) shall have occurred or be continuing or would result therefrom. The
corporation formed by such merger, or the person that acquired such properties and assets, shall
expressly agree, among other things, to indemnify each holder of a Bond against any tax, assessment,
or governmental charge payable by withholding or deduction thereafter imposed on such holder
solely as a consequence of such merger with respect to the payment of principal and premium (if any)
on the Bonds.

Such supplemental RTA Agreement shall provide for adjustments which will be as nearly equivalent
as may be practicable to the adjustments provided for in the foregoing provisions of Condition 5,
except that if the Company is the surviving entity, no supplemental RTA Agreement will need to be

executed.

The above provisions of this Condition 5.6 will apply in the same way to any subsequent
consolidations, amalgamations, mergers, sales, or transfers.

Cancellation

All Bonds redeemed or converted or purchased by the Company pursuant to any of the provisions
herein will be cancelled forthwith and may not be reissued or resold and will not be deemed to be
outstanding for any of the purposes contained herein. Certificates in respect of all Bonds cancelled
will be forwarded to or to the order of the Registrar.

Redemption and Repurchase

Maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and cancelled as provided herein the Company
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7.3

will redeem each bond at 100% of its principal amount to such date on 24t July, 2027 (the "Maturity
Date”) by way of allotment of equivalent number of underlying shares at floor price.

Redemption for Taxation Reasons

At any time the Company may, having given not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the
Bondholders, the Principle Paying Agent and the Agents (which notice shall be irrevocable), redeem
all but not some of the Bonds at their Early Redemption Amount and all amounts due pursuant to
Condition 9 on the date fixed for redemption, if (i) the Company provides the Principle Paying Agent
with an opinion of an independent legal or tax advisors of recognised international standing
immediately prior to the giving of such notice that the Company has or will become obliged to pay
additional amounts as provided or referred to in Condition 9 as a result of any change in, or
amendment to, the laws or regulations of (1) India or any political subdivision or any authority thereof
or therein having power to tax, (2) any jurisdiction from or through which any payment on the Bonds
is made, or any political subdivision or authority thereof or therein having the power to tax, or (3) any
other jurisdiction in which the Company or any other entity obligated to make any payment on the
Bonds is organised or engaged in business for tax purposes or otherwise considered to be resident
for tax purposes, or any political subdivision or authority thereof or therein having the power to tax
(each of clause (1), (2) and (3) a “Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction”), or any change in the general
application or official interpretation of such laws or regulations, which change or amendment
becomes effective on or after the Closing Date, and (ii) such obligation cannot be avoided by the
Company taking reasonable measures available to it including, without limitation, changing the
jurisdiction from which or through which payments are made, provided that no such notice of
redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the Company would
be obliged to pay such additional amounts were a payment in respect of the Bonds then due and
unless at the time such notice is given, such obligation to pay the additional amounts remains in
effect. Prior to the giving of any notice of redemption pursuant to this paragraph, the Company shall
deliver to the Principle Paying Agent (a) a certificate signed by two directors of the Company stating
that the obligation referred to in (i) above cannot be avoided by the Company taking reasonable
measures available to it and; (b) an opinion of an independent legal or tax advisors of recognised
international standing to the effect that such charge or amendment has occurred (irrespective of
whether such amendment or charge is then effective) and the Principle Paying Agent shall accept and
rely, without further enquiry on such certificate and opinion whether such certificate or opinion is
sufficient and conclusive evidence of the satisfaction of the condition precedent set out in (ii) above
in which event it shall be conclusive and binding on the Bondholders and the Principle Paying Agent
will not be liable to the Bondholders on accepting the opinion and certificate provided to it by the
Company nor any of its actions or omissions undertaken pursuant to this Condition 7.2

Upon expiry of such notice, the Company would be liable to redeem the Bonds at the Early
Redemption Amount and all amounts due pursuant to Condition 9 on the date fixed for redemption

Under regulations of the RBI applicable to convertible bonds, the Company will require the prior
approval of the RBI before providing notice for or effecting such redemption prior to the Maturity
Date. Such approval may or may not be forthcoming.

Issuer Clean-up Call
At any time the Company may, having given not less than 60 days’ notice to the Bondholders (which
notice shall be irrevocable), redeem all but not some of the Bonds at their Early Redemption Amount

and all amounts due pursuant to Condition 9 on the date fixed for redemption, if outstanding Bonds
fall below 10% of the principal amount of the Bonds originally issued.
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Under regulations of the RBI applicable to convertible bonds, the Company will require the prior
approval of the RBI before providing notice for or effecting such redemption prior to the Maturity
Date. Such approval may or may not be forthcoming.

Repurchase of Bonds in the Event of Delisting

To the extent permitted by applicable law, unless the Bonds have been previously redeemed,
repurchased and cancelled or converted, in the event that the Shares cease to be listed or admitted
to trading on the BSE and the NSE (a “Delisting”), the Company shall, within 10 Business Days after
the Delisting, notify the Bondholders, the Principle Paying Agent and the Agents of such Delisting, and
each Bondholder shall have the right (the “Delisting Repurchase Right”), at such Bondholder’s option,
to require the Company to repurchase all (or any portion of the principal amount thereof which is
USS$100,000 or any integral multiples thereof) of such Bondholder’s Bonds at a price equal to the Early
Redemption Amount and all amounts due pursuant to Condition 9 (the “Delisting Repurchase Price”)
on the date set by the Company for such repurchase (the “Delisting Repurchase Date”), which shall
be not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days following the date on which the Company notifies the
Bondholders of the Delisting.

Under regulations of the RBI applicable to convertible bonds, the Company will require the prior
approval of the RBI before providing notice for or effecting such redemption prior to the Maturity
Date. Such approval may or may not be forthcoming.

Repurchase of Bonds in the Event of Change of Control

To the extent permitted by applicable law, if a Change of Control, as defined below, occurs with
respect to the Company, each Bondholder shall have the right (the “Change of Control Repurchase
Right”), at such Bondholder’s option, to require the Company to repurchase all (or any portion of the
principal amount thereof which is US$100,000 or any integral multiples thereof) of such Bondholder’s
Bonds on the date set by the Company for such repurchase (the “Change of Control Repurchase
Date”), which shall be not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days following the date on which the
Company notifies the Bondholders, the Principle Paying Agent and the Agents of the Change of
Control, which notice shall be delivered not later than 10 Business Days after the Company becomes
aware of a Change of Control, at a price equal to the Early Redemption Amount and all amounts due
pursuant to Condition 9 (the “Change of Control Repurchase Price”).

In this Condition:

The term “Control” means the right to appoint and/or remove all or the majority of the members of
the Board or other governing body of the Company, whether obtained directly or indirectly, and
whether obtained by ownership of share capital, the possession of voting rights, contract or
otherwise.

A “Change of Control” occurs when:

(1) any person or persons (as defined below) acting together acquires Control of the Company if such
person or persons does not or do not have, and would not be deemed to have, Control of the
Company on the Closing Date;

(2) the Company consolidates with or merges into or sells or transfers all or substantially all of the
Company’s assets to any other person, unless the consolidation, merger, sale, or transfer will not

result in the other person or persons acquiring Control over the Company or the successor entity; or

(3) one or more other persons acting together acquire the legal or beneficial ownership of more than
50% of the Company’s Voting Stock.
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However, a Change of Control will not be deemed to have occurred solely as a result of the issuance
or transfer, with the Company’s co-operation, of any preferred shares in the Company’s capital.

For the purposes of the Change of Control Repurchase Right, a “person” includes any individual,
company, corporation, firm, partnership, joint venture, undertaking, association, organisation, trust,
state, or agency of a state, in each case whether or not being a separate legal entity. A “person” does
not include the Board or any other governing board and does not include the Company’s Subsidiaries
or affiliates.

For the purposes of this Condition 7.5:

“Voting Stock” means any class or classes of Capital Stock pursuant to which the holders thereof have
the general voting power under ordinary circumstances to elect members of the board of directors,
managers, or Principle Paying Agents of any person (irrespective of whether or not, at the time, stock
of any other class or classes shall have, or might have voting power by reason of the happening of
any contingency).

“Capital Stock” means, with respect to any person, any and all shares, ownership interests,
participation, or other equivalents (however designated), including all common or ordinary stock and
all preferred stock, of such person.

Under regulations of the RBI applicable to convertible bonds, the Company will require the prior
approval of the RBI before providing notice for or effecting such redemption prior to the Maturity
Date. Such approval may or may not be forthcoming.

Repurchase of Bonds in the Event of Non-Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment

To the extent permitted by applicable law, unless the Bonds have been previously redeemed,
repurchased, cancelled or converted, in the event that an event triggering an adjustment to the
Conversion Price occurs and the Company is unable to provide the Principle Paying Agent with a Price
Adjustment Opinion as set forth in Condition 3.2 (a “Non-Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment
Event”), prior to occurrence of an event triggering an adjustment to Conversion Price, the Company
shall, within 10 Business Days after the occurrence of the relevant event triggering such adjustment,
notify the Bondholders, the Agents and the Principle Paying Agent of such Non-Permitted Conversion
Price Adjustment Event, and each Bondholder shall have the right (the “Non-Permitted Conversion
Price Adjustment Event Repurchase Right”), at such Bondholder’s option, to require the Company to
repurchase all (or any portion of the principal amount thereof which is USD [ ]Jor any integral multiples
thereof) of such Bondholder’s Bonds at a price equal to their Early Redemption Amount and all
amounts due pursuant to Condition 9 (the “Non-Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment Event
Repurchase Price”), on the date set by the Company for such repurchase (the “Non-Permitted
Conversion Price Adjustment Event Repurchase Date”), which shall be not less than 30 days nor more
than 60 days following the date on which the Company notifies the Bondholders of the Non-
Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment.

Under regulations of the RBI applicable to convertible bonds, the Company will require the prior
approval of the RBI before providing notice for or effecting such redemption prior to the Maturity

Date. Such approval may or may not be forthcoming.

Applicable Indian regulations stipulating minimum pricing for issues of convertible bonds currently in
effect have set a floor price of Rs.100 per share for this issue of Bonds as at the date of issue.

Repurchase Procedures
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Promptly after becoming aware of, and in any event within 10 Business Days after a Delisting or a
Change of Control or Non-Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment Event , the Company will deliver
to each Bondholder a notice regarding such Delisting Repurchase Right or Change of Control
Repurchase Right, as the case may be, which notice shall state, as appropriate:

a) the Delisting Repurchase Date or the Change of Control Repurchase Date or Non-Permitted
Conversion Price Adjustment Event Repurchase Date, as the case may be (each, a “Purchase
Date”);

b) inthe case of a Delisting, the date of such Delisting and, briefly, the events causing such Delisting;

c) in the case of a Change of Control, the date of such Change of Control and, briefly, the events
causing such Change of Control;

d) in the case of Non-Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment Event, the date of such Non-Permitted
Conversion Price Adjustment Event and, briefly, the events causing such Non-Permitted
Conversion Price Adjustment Event;

e) the date by which the Bondholder Purchase Notice must be given;

f) the Delisting Repurchase Price or the Change of Control Repurchase Price or Non-Permitted
Conversion Price Adjustment Event Repurchase Price, as the case may be, and the method by
which such amount will be paid;

g) the names and addresses of all Paying Agents;

h) the current Conversion Price;

i) the procedures that Bondholders must follow and the requirements that Bondholders must satisfy
in order to exercise the Delisting Repurchase Right or Change of Control Repurchase Right or Non-
Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment Event Repurchase Right, as the case may be, or the
Conversion Right; and

j) that a Bondholder Purchase Notice, once validly given, may not be withdrawn.

To exercise its right to require the Company to repurchase the Bonds, pursuant to the Delisting
Repurchase Right or the Change of Control Repurchase Right or Non-Permitted Conversion Price
Adjustment Event Repurchase Right, as the case may be, the Bondholder must deliver a written
irrevocable notice of the exercise of such right (a “Bondholder Purchase Notice”) to any Paying Agent
on any Business Day prior to the close of business at the location of such Paying Agent on such day
and which day is not less than 10 Business Days prior to the Purchase Date.

Payment of the Delisting Repurchase Price upon exercise of the Delisting Repurchase Right or
payment of the Change of Control Repurchase Price upon exercise of the Change of Control
Repurchase Right or payment of the Non-Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment Event Repurchase
Price upon exercise of the Non-Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment Event Repurchase Right for
any Bond for which a Bondholder Purchase Notice has been delivered is conditional upon (i) the
Company obtaining all approvals required by applicable law and (ii) delivery of the Certificate relating
to such Bond (together with any necessary endorsements) to any Paying Agent on any Business Day
together with the delivery of such Bondholder Purchase Notice. Payment will then be made promptly
following the later of the Purchase Date and the time of delivery of such Certificate. So long as the
Bonds are listed on AFRINEX, Mauritius and the rules of that stock exchange so require, the Company
shall, once in each year in which there has been a partial redemption of the Bonds, cause to be
published in a leading newspaper of general circulation in Mauritius and via website of
AFRINEX, Mauritius (https://www.afrinexexchange.com) which there has been a partial
redemption of the Bonds, cause to be published in a leading newspaper of general circulation, a
notice specifying the aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding and a list of the Bonds drawn
for redemption but not surrendered.

Neither the Principle Paying Agent nor any of the Agents shall be required to take any steps to
ascertain whether a Delisting or a Change of Control or Non-Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment
Event or any events which could lead to the occurrence of a Delisting or a Change of Control or a Non-
Permitted Conversion Price Adjustment Event, have occurred and shall assume no such event has
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occurred until it has express written notice from the Company of such event and will not be liable to
any person for any failure by it to do so.

Repurchase

The Company may, if permitted under the laws of India, at any time repurchase Bonds. The Company
is required to submit to the Registrar for cancellation the Certificates in respect of any Bonds so
purchased.

Early Redemption Amount

“Early Redemption Amount” means an amount equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds
to be redeemed plus the Redemption Premium at the relevant date fixed for redemption.
“Redemption Premium” means an amount that is determined so that such Redemption Premium
represents for each Bondholder a gross yield of 5% per annum (which is identical to the gross yield in
the case of redemption at maturity), calculated on the basis of a 360 day year consisting of 12 months
of 30 days each and, in the case of an incomplete month, the actual number of days elapsed.

Redemption Notices

All notices to Bondholders given by or on behalf of the Company pursuant to this Condition will
specify the date fixed for redemption, the redemption amount, the Conversion Price as at the date
of the relevant notice, the Closing Price of the Shares, and the aggregate principal amount of the
Bonds outstanding, in each case, as at the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the notice,
all in accordance with Condition 19. Neither the Principle Paying Agent nor any of the Agents shall be
under any duty to ascertain whether the requisite approval relating to any early redemption has been
obtained.

Multiple Notices

If more than one notice of redemption is given pursuant to this [Condition 7], the first of each such
notice to be given shall prevail.

Closed Periods

No notice of redemption given under Condition 7 shall be effective if it specifies a date for redemption
which falls during a Closed Period or within 15 Business Days immediately after the expiry of any
Closed Period. Upon the expiry of any effective notice of redemption, the Company will be bound to
redeem the Bonds to which such notice relates at the date fixed for redemption.

Payments; Business Day

Subject to Condition 8.9, payments of principal, premium (if any) will be made to the Bondholder,
details (including a Bondholder’s registered account and registered address) of which appear on the
Register at the close of business on the record date which is 15 calendar days prior to the due date
for redemption or payment, on delivery of the Certificate to any Paying Agent.

Each such payment will be made (i) by transfer to the registered account of the Bondholder or (ii) by
US dollar cheque drawn on a bank in New York City mailed to the registered address of the
Bondholder if it does not have a registered account (by ordinary uninsured mail and the risk of
delivery being that of the Bondholder and at the expense of the Company). Payments will be subject
in all cases to any applicable fiscal and other laws and regulations, but without prejudice to the
provisions of Condition 9. Payment of principal and premium (if any) will only be made after
surrender of the relevant Certificate at the specified office of any of the Agents.
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If the amount of principal, premium (if any), which is due on the Bonds on any date is not paid in full,
the Registrar will annotate the Register and any Certificates surrendered for payment with a record
of the amount or principal, premium (if any) in fact paid and the date of such payment.

When making payments to Bondholders fractions of one cent will be rounded down to the nearest
whole cent.

Bondholders will not be entitled to any payment for any delay after the due date in receiving the
amount due if, and to the extent that, the due date is not a Business Day, if the Bondholder is late in
surrendering its Certificate (if required to do so) or if a cheque mailed in accordance with this
Condition arrives or is cleared after the due date for payment.

All payments in respect of the Bonds are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws and
regulations, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 9. No commissions or expenses shall
be charged to the Bondholders in respect of such payments by the Company or its agents.

Where payment is to be made by transfer to a registered account, payment instructions (for value
the due date or, if that date is not a Business Day, for value the following Business Day) will be initiated
and, where payment is to be made by cheque, the cheque will be mailed, (i) on the Business Day on
which the relevant Certificate is surrendered at the specified office of any of the Agents or (ii) on the
next Business Day following the due date.

No payments of principal by the Company will be made if the requisite approvals of the Reserve Bank
of India have not been obtained or any other applicable Indian laws and restrictions have not been
complied with, which approvals the Company will use reasonable endeavors to obtain but the
Company will not be in default for not making payment if the requisite approvals have not been
obtained.

In these conditions “Business Day” means a day on which the clearing banks in London, Mumbai and
New York, are open for business and for the purpose of this Condition 8 only, in the case of the
surrender of a Certificate, in the place where the Certificate is surrendered.

Subject to compliance with applicable Indian laws and regulations, if the amount of principal,
premium (if any) or any other amounts due (including the principal amount and any additional
amounts payable under these Conditions) that is due on the Bonds on any date is not paid in full, the
Registrar will annotate the Register and any Certificates surrendered for payment with a record of
the amount of principal, premium (if any) and any other amounts due, any amounts paid and the date
of such payment.

Taxation

All payments of principal, premium (if any) in respect of the Bonds by the Company shall be made
without deduction of, or withholding for or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties,
assessments, or charges imposed by the Government of India of whatever nature imposed or levied
by or in India or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax,
unless such deduction or withholding is required by law. In such event, the Company shall pay such
additional amounts as may be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the holders of
Bonds after such deduction or withholding shall equal the amounts which would have been receivable
by them had no such deduction or withholding been required (except that no additional amounts
shall be payable in respect of any Bond (i) held by a person resident in India for taxation purposes or
(ii) where such withholding or deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required to
be made pursuant to European Directive 2003/48/EC, as amended from time to time or any other
Directive implementing the conclusions of the ECOFIN Council Meeting of 26-27 November 2000 on
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the taxation of savings income or any other law implementing or complying with or introduced in
order to, conform to, such Directive).

Prescription

Claims in respect of principal and other sums payable in respect of the Bonds will become prescribed
unless made within ten years from the date upon which such payments become due. Neither the
Principle Paying Agent nor any Agent will have any responsibility, obligation, or liability with respect
to any Bondholders for any amount so prescribed.

Undertakings
Whilst any Conversion Right remains exercisable, the Company will:

issue Shares to Bondholders on the exercise of Conversion Rights in accordance with these Conditions
and at all times keep available forissue free from pre-emptive rights out of its authorised but unissued
capital such number of Shares as would enable the Conversion Rights and all other rights of
subscription and exchange for and conversion into Shares to be satisfied in full;

save with the approval of an Extraordinary Resolution of the Bondholders, not issue or pay up any
Bonds, in either case by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves, other than (i) by the issue of fully
paid Shares to the Shareholders and other holders of Shares in the capital of the Company which by
their terms entitle the holders thereof to receive Shares on a capitalisation of profits or reserves or
(i) by the issue of Shares paid up in full out of profits or reserves (in accordance with applicable law)
and issued wholly, ignoring fractional entitlements, in lieu of a cash dividend or (iii) by the issue of
fully paid equity share capital (other than Shares) to the holders of equity share capital of the same
class and other holders of Shares in the capital of the Company which by their terms entitle the
holders thereof to receive equity share capital (other than Shares) on a capitalisation of profits or
reserves, unless, in any such case, the same gives rise (or would, but for the fact that the adjustment
would be less than 1% of the Conversion Price then in effect, give rise) to an adjustment to the
Conversion Price;

if any offer is made to all (or as nearly as may be practicable) the Shareholders other than the offeror
and/or any associate of the offeror to acquire all or a majority of the issued equity share capital of
the Company, or if any person proposes a scheme with regard to such acquisition, give notice in
accordance with Condition 19 of such offer or scheme to the Bondholders, the Principle Paying Agent
and the Agents at the same time as any notice thereof is sent to its Shareholders (or as soon as
practicable thereafter) and such notice to state that details (provided that such details have been
provided to the Principal Paying and Conversion Agent by the Company) concerning such offer or
scheme may be obtained from the specified offices of the Principal Paying and Conversion Agent
and, where such an offer or scheme has been recommended by the Board of Directors of the
Company, or where such an offer has become or been declared unconditional in all respects, use all
reasonable endeavors to procure that a like offer or scheme is extended to the holders of any Shares
issued during the period of the offer or shares arising out of the exercise of the Conversion Rights
and/or to the holders of the Bonds;

use its best endeavors to ensure that the Shares issued upon conversion of any Bonds will be admitted
to trading on the BSE and will be listed, quoted, or dealt in on any other stock exchange or securities
market on which the Shares may then be listed, quoted, or dealt in;

for the above purposes, "Extraordinary Resolution" means a resolution passed at a meeting of the

holders of the Bonds duly convened and held in accordance with the provisions of the RTA Agreement
by a majority consisting of not less than three quarters of the votes cast thereon;
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11.6.2

11.6.3
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12.1

12.2

use its best endeavors (a) to obtain and maintain a listing of the Bonds on AFRINEX, Mauritius and
(d) if the Company is unable to obtain or maintain such listing, to obtain and maintain a listing for all
the Bonds and the Shares issued on the exercise of the Conversion Rights, on an alternate stock
exchange where Bonds may be eligible to be listed, as the Company may from time to time (with the
prior written consent of the Lead Manager) determine and will forthwith give notice to the
Bondholders and the Principle Paying Agent in accordance with Condition 19 below of the listing or
delisting of the Shares or the Bonds (as a class) by any of such stock exchanges;

pay the expenses of the issue of, and all expenses of obtaining listing for, Shares arising on conversion
of the Bonds; and

not reduce the Conversion Price below the par value of the Shares of the Company as a result of any
adjustment made unless under applicable law then in effect, Bonds may be converted at such reduced
Conversion Price into legally issued, fully-paid and non-assessable Shares.

The Company has also given certain other undertakings in the RTA Agreement for the protection of
the Conversion Right.

Events of Default

If any of the following events (an “Event of Default”) occurs the Principle Paying Agent at its discretion
may (but shall not be obliged to), and if so requested in writing by the holders of not less than 25
percent in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary
Resolution shall (subject to being prefunded and/or indemnified and/or provided with security by
the Bondholders to its satisfaction), give notice to the Company that the Bonds are, and they shall
accordingly thereby become, immediately due and repayable at their principal amounts together
with the Redemption Premium determined in accordance with Condition 7.9. Provided always that,
within 10 Business Days from the date of such notice, any Bondholder may, at its absolute discretion,
exercise its Conversion Right in the manner provided in Condition 5. The Conversion Date shall be the
Business Day immediately following the date of receipt of the Conversion Notice from such
Bondholder. The Company shall register such Bondholder or his/their nominee in the register of
members of the Company and credit the securities account of such Bondholder with such number of
Shares to be issued upon conversion in accordance with Condition 5.4. The Company shall promptly
notify the Principal Paying and Conversion Agent in writing when it has issued and allotted Shares to
such Bondholder in respect of a Conversion Notice. Upon the successful exercise of such Bondholder
of its Conversion Right and the delivery of such number of Shares by the Company pursuant to
Condition 5 so as to satisfy the Conversion Right, the principal amount due and repayable under the
notice provided by the Principle Paying Agent to the Company shall be reduced by the principal
amount of Bonds for which the Conversion Right has been exercised. Provided always that the
Bondholder shall exercise such Conversion Right only where the Company is able to convert the
Bonds in Shares and the Cash Settlement Option described in Condition 5.4.5 shall not apply.

if default is made in the payment of principal, premium (if any), due on the Bonds or any of them on
the due date (including Cash Settlement Amounts under Condition 5.4.5 where such amount
becomes due and payable in circumstances otherwise than exercise of Conversion Option pursuant
to EOD under this Condition 12), whether at maturity or on redemption or otherwise, and such
default continues for a period of 10 calendar days;

if the Company fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under the Bonds, these
Conditions or the RTA Agreement or if any event occurs or any action is taken or fails to be taken
which is (or, but for the provisions of any applicable law, would be) a breach of any of the covenants
contained in Condition 12 and (where the Principle Paying Agent may (but is not obliged to do so) in
its absolute discretion determine such failure is capable of remedy) in any such case such failure
continues for the period of 30 days next following the service on the Company of a notice requiring
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the same to be remedied;

the Company or any subsidiary is (or is, or could be, deemed by law or a court to be) insolvent or
bankrupt or unable to pay its debts, stops, suspends or threatens to stop or suspend, payment of all
or substantially all of (or of a particular type of) its debts, proposes or makes an agreement for the
deferral, rescheduling or other readjustment of all or substantially all of (or all of a particular type of)
its debts (or of any part which it will or might otherwise be unable to pay when due), proposes or
makes a general assignment or an arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of the relevant
creditors in respect of any of such debts or a moratorium is agreed or declared or comes into effect
in respect of or affecting all or any part of (or of a particular type of) the debts of the Company or any
of its proposed subsidiaries, except for the purpose of and followed by a merger (i) in accordance
with, and complying with the relevant provisions or (ii) on terms approved by an Extraordinary
Resolution of the Bondholders;

if any other present or future indebtedness of the Company or any of its subsidiaries for or in respect
of money borrowed or raised becomes (or becomes capable of being declared) due and payable prior
to its stated maturity by reason of any default or event of default, or (ii) any such indebtedness is not
paid when due or, as the case may be, within any applicable grace period, or (iii) the Company or any
of its subsidiaries fails to pay when due any amount payable by it under any present or future
guarantee for, or indemnity in respect of which one or more of the events mentioned above have
occurred equals or exceeds USS5 million or its equivalent currency against the Indian Rupees as
quoted by any independent leading bank of international repute on the day on which amount
becomes due and payable or is not paid under any such guarantee or indemnity;

if a distress, attachment, execution, or other legal process is levied, enforced, or sued upon or against
any material part of the property, assets, or revenues of the Company or any of its proposed
subsidiaries, which is material to the Company and its subsidiaries as a whole, and is not discharged
or stayed within 30 days;

if the Company fails to repay borrowed money (i) prior to its stated maturity by reason of an Event of

Default (ii) within any applicable grace period originally provided for (iii) amount payable under any
present or future guarantee or indemnity, provided that aggregate principal amount of relevant
indebtedness exceeds USS5 million, and default shall be deemed to have been waived or cured if
such default is waived or cured;

if any order is made or an effective resolution passed for winding up or an administration order is
made in relation to the Company or any of its subsidiaries (save for the purpose of amalgamation,
merger, consolidation, reorganization, or other similar arrangements on terms approved by an
Extraordinary Resolution of the Bondholders);

if the Company or any of its subsidiaries ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its business;

if an encumbrancer takes possession or an administrative or other receiver is appointed of the whole
or any material part of the undertaking or assets of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or if a
distress, execution, or any similar proceeding is levied or enforced upon or sued out against any of
the chattels or property of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and in any of the foregoing cases is
not discharged within 30 days;

if an encumbrancer takes possession or an administrative or other receiver or an administrator is
appointed in respect of the whole or any substantial part of the property, assets, or revenues of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries (as the case may be) and is not discharged within 30 days. Any step
is taken by any person with a view to the seizure, compulsory acquisition, expropriation or
nationalisation of all or a material part of the assets of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is material to the Company and its subsidiaries as a whole; or
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if any event occurs which under the laws of any relevant jurisdiction has an analogous effect to any
of the events referred to in any of the foregoing paragraphs.

Replacement of Bond Certificates

Should any Certificate be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced, or destroyed it may be replaced at the
specified office of any Agent subject to all applicable laws and stock exchange requirements upon
payment by the claimant of the expenses, taxes and duties incurred in connection therewith and on
such terms as to evidence as to beneficial ownership and indemnity (with or without security) as the
Company and such Agent may require. Mutilated or defaced Certificates must be surrendered before
replacements will be issued.

Meetings of Bondholders

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of Bondholders to consider
matters affecting their interest, including the modification of any of these Conditions or any
provisions of the Agency Agreement. Any such modification may be made if sanctioned by an
Extraordinary Resolution. The quorum for any meeting convened to consider an Extraordinary
Resolution will be two or more persons holding or representing over 50% in principal amount of the
Bonds for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting two or more persons being or
representing Bondholders whatever the principal amount of the Bonds held or represented, unless
the business of such meeting includes consideration of proposals, inter alia, (i) to modify the maturity
of the Bonds, (ii) to reduce or cancel the principal amount of or premium (if any) on the Bonds, (iii) to
change the currency of payment of the Bonds, (iv) to modify or cancel the Conversion Right or shorten
the Conversion Period, or (v) to modify the provisions concerning the quorum required at any meeting
of Bondholders or the majority required to pass an Extraordinary Resolution, in which case the
necessary quorum will be two or more persons holding or representing not less than two-thirds, or
at any adjourned meeting two or more persons holding or representing not less than one-third, of
the principal amount of the Bonds for the time being outstanding. Any Extraordinary Resolution duly
passed shall be binding on all Bondholders, whether or not they were present at the meeting at which
such resolution was passed and will be conclusive and binding on all future Bondholders. The Agency
provides that a written resolution signed by or on behalf of the holders of not less than two-thirds of
the aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding shall be as valid and effective as a duly passed
Extraordinary Resolution.

Further issues of Bonds

The Company may from time to time, without the consent of the Bondholders, create and issue
further notes, bonds or debentures either having the same terms and conditions in all respects as the
outstanding notes, bonds or debentures of any series (including the Bonds) and so that such further
notes, bonds or debentures shall be standalone and form a single series with the outstanding notes,
bonds or debentures of any series (including the Bonds) or upon such terms as to interest,
subordination (if any), premium, conversion, redemption and otherwise as the Company may
determine at the time of their issue. Any further notes, bonds or debentures forming a single series
with the outstanding notes, bonds, or debentures of any series (including the Bonds) constituted by
the Agency Agreement or any deed supplemental to it shall, and any other notes, bonds or
debentures may, be constituted by a deed supplemental to the Agency Agrement. The Agency
Agreement contains provisions for convening a single meeting of the Bondholders and the holders of
notes, bonds, or debentures of other series.

Enforcement
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At any time after the Bonds become due and payable and amounts in respect thereof remain
outstanding, the Principle Paying Agent may, at its discretion and without further notice, institute
such proceedings against the Company as it may think fit to enforce the terms of the Agency
Agreement and the Bonds, but it will not be bound to take any such proceedings unless (i) it shall
have been so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution or so requested in writing by the Bondholders
holding not less than 25 percent of the principal amount of the Bonds outstanding and (ii) it shall have
been prefunded and/or indemnified and/or provided with security by the Bondholders to its
satisfaction. No Bondholder may proceed directly against the Company unless (i) the Principle Paying
Agent, having become bound to proceed, fails to do so and such failure shall have continued for a
period of 60 days and no direction inconsistent with such written request or Extraordinary Resolution
has been given to the Principle Paying Agent during such 60 day period by the holders of a majority
in principal amount of the outstanding Bonds or (ii) such action relates to any failure by the Company
to issue shares to such Bondholder following delivery of a Conversion Notice.

Modifications and Waiver

The Principle Paying Agent may (but shall not be obliged to) agree, without the consent of the
Bondholders, to (i) any modification of any of the provisions of the Bonds, the RTA Agreement or the
Agency Agreement which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest
error which is proven to the Principle Paying Agent's satisfaction or in the opinion of the Principle
Paying Agent, necessary to comply with mandatory provisions of law or regulation, and (ii) any other
modification, and any waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach, of any of the
provisions of the Bonds, the RTA Agreement or the Agency Agreement which is in the opinion of the
Principle Paying Agent not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders. Any such
modification, authorisation, or waiver shall be binding on the Bondholders. The Principle Paying
Agent's agreement may be subject to any condition that the Principle Paying Agent requires, including
but not limited to obtaining, at the sole expense of the Company, an opinion of any investment bank
or legal or other expert satisfactory to the Principle Paying Agent and being prefunded, indemnified
and/or provided with security to its satisfaction. If the Principle Paying Agent instructs the Company,
any such modification, waiver or authorisation shall be notified by the Company to the holders of the
Bonds as soon as practicable thereafter in accordance with Condition 19, and for so long as the Bonds
are listed on AFRINEX, Mauritius and the rules of that exchange so require, to AFRINEX, Mauritius.
For the purpose of notification to the holders of the Bonds, the Principle Paying Agent is entitled to
rely on any information, reports and certifications provided by ACHL, as to details of the Bond
holdings and the Accountholders (as defined in the Global Certificate).

Entitlement of the Principle Paying Agent

In connection with the exercise of its functions (including but not limited to those in relation to any
proposed modification, authorisation or waiver) the Principle Paying Agent shall have regard to the
interests of the Bondholders as a class and shall not have regard to the consequences of such exercise
for individual Bondholders and the Principle Paying Agent shall not be entitled to require, nor shall
any Bondholder be entitled to claim from the Company any indemnification or payment in respect of
any tax consequences of any such individual Bondholders. Following delivery of a Conversion Notice,
the holder of the Bonds to which such Conversion Notice relates shall no longer be treated as a
Bondholder in respect of such Bonds, unless the Company has failed to issue and allot shares to such
Bondholder pursuant to Condition 5.

Notices
All notices to Bondholders shall be validly given if mailed to them at their respective addresses in the
Register maintained by the Registrar and so long as the Bonds are listed on AFRINEX, Mauritius and

the rules of AFRINEX, Mauritius so require, any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on
the earlier of such publication and the seventh day after being so mailed. The Notices will also be
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published via website of the Afrinex Mauritius of such adjustment to the Conversion Price at least ten
Business Days in advance of the effective date of such adjustment.

Agents

The initial Agents and Registrar and their initial specified offices are listed below. Subject to the terms
of the Agency Agreement, the Company reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the
appointment of any Agent and appoint additional or other Agents, provided that it will maintain (i) a
Principal Paying and Conversion Agent, (ii) a Registrar outside the United Kingdom, (iii) an Agentin a
European Union member state that will not be obliged to deduct tax pursuant to European Union
Directive 2003/48/EC (as amended) or any other Directive implementing the conclusions of the
ECOFIN Council meeting of 26-27 November 2000 on the taxation of savings or any law implementing
or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive, (iv) an Agent having a
specified office in London, (v) a share transfer agent having a specified office in India; and (vi) a paying
agent, transfer agent and conversion agent upon the issue of Bonds in definitive form (as long as the
Bonds are listed on AFRINEX, Mauritius and the rules of that exchange so require). Notice of any
change in the Agents or their specified offices will promptly be given to the Bondholders in
accordance with Condition 19.

Subject to the terms of the Agency Agreement, in acting hereunder and in connection with the Bonds,
the Agents shall act solely as agents of the Company and will not thereby assume any obligations
towards, or relationships of agency or trust for, any of the Bondholders.

Governing law

These Conditions, the Agency Agreement, the Deed, and the Bonds are governed by, and shall be
construed in accordance with, laws of Mauritius. The Company has in the Deed irrevocably agreed
for the benefit of the Bondholders that the courts of Mauritius are to have jurisdiction to settle any
disputes which may arise out of or in connection with the Agency Agreement or the Bonds and that
accordingly any suit, action or proceedings arising there from or in connection therewith (together
referred to as "Proceedings") may be brought by the Bondholders in the courts of Mauritius. The
Company has in the Deed irrevocably and unconditionally waived and agreed not to raise any
objection which it may have now or subsequently to the laying of the venue of any Proceedings in
the courts of Mauritius and any claim that any Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient
forum and has further irrevocably and unconditionally agreed that a judgment in any Proceedings
brought in the courts of Mauritius shall be conclusive and binding upon the Company and may be
enforced in the courts of any other jurisdiction. Nothing in this Condition shall limit any right to take
Proceedings against the Company in any other court of competent jurisdiction, nor shall the taking of
Proceedings in one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction,
whether concurrently or not.

Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of the Bonds under the Contracts
(Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 except and to the extent (if any) that these Conditions expressly
provides for such Act to apply to any of its terms.

Indemnification

The Deed contains provisions for the indemnification of the Registrar and for its relief from
responsibility, including provisions relieving it from taking proceedings to enforce repayment unless

prefunded, indemnified and/or provided with security to its satisfaction. Where the Principle Paying
Agent so requires, an indemnity must be provided on a joint and several basis. The Registrar is entitled
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to enter into business transactions with the Company and its subsidiaries without accounting for any
profit.

The Registrar may rely without liability to Bondholders on any certificate prepared by the directors
or authorised officers of the Company and accompanied by a certificate or report prepared by the
auditors of the Company or an internationally recognised firm of accountants or any expert called for
or provided to the Registrar pursuant to the Conditions and/or the Deed satisfactory to the Registrar,
whether or not addressed to the Registrar and whether or not the auditors of the Company or the
internationally recognised firm of accountants’ liability in respect thereof or the liability of any expert
is limited by a monetary cap or otherwise limited or excluded. Any such certificate or report shall, in
the absence of any manifest error, in the Principle Paying Agent’s opinion, be conclusive and binding
on the Company, the Principle Paying Agent and the Bondholders.

24.  Information Rights
The Bondholder must have access to all information and material, financial or otherwise provided to
a member of the Board. The Promoters will ensure that the Bondholder has the right to discuss /
consult with the senior management of the Company.
In particular, the Company will provide all Board Members with:
a) quarterly management accounts and financial information,

b) consolidated annual management accounts,

c) consolidated audited accounts,

d) annual business plan, annual budget and projected financial statement, and

e) such other operating statistics and other trading and financial information, MIS reports in such
form as required by the Board from time to time
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GLOBAL CERTIFICATES

The Global Certificate contains provisions which apply to the Bonds in respect of which the Global Certificate
is issued, some of which modify the effect of the Conditions set out in this Offering Circular. Terms defined in
the Conditions have the same respective meanings in the paragraphs below. The following is a summary of
those provisions:

Meetings

The registered holder of the Bonds hereof shall be treated as two persons for the purposes of any quorum
requirements of a meeting of Bondholders and, at any such meeting, as having one vote in respect of each
USS$100,000 in principal amount of Bonds in respect of which the Global Certificate is issued. The Principle
Paying Agent may allow to attend and speak (but not to vote) at any meeting of Bondholders, any
accountholder (or the representative of any such person) entitled to Bonds in respect of which the Global
Certificate is issued, on confirmation of entitlement and proof of his identity.

Conversion

Subject to the requirements of ACHL, Mauritius the Conversion Right attaching to Bonds in respect of which
the Global Certificate is issued may be exercised by the presentation to or to the order of the Conversion
Agent of one or more Conversion Notices (which may be by facsimile while the Bonds are represented by the
Global Certificate) duly completed by or on behalf of an Accountholder (as defined below) in such system with
an entitlement to such Bonds. Deposit of the Global Certificate with the Conversion Agent together with the
relevant Conversion Notice shall not be required. The exercise of the Conversion Right shall be notified by the
Conversion Agent to the Registrar and the holder of the Global Certificate.

Registrar’s Powers

In considering the interests of Bondholders while the Global Certificate is registered in the name of a nominee
for a clearing system the Registrar may, to the extent it considers it appropriate to do so in the circumstances,
(a) have regard to such information as may have been made available to it by or on behalf of the relevant
clearing system or its operator as to the identity of its accountholders (either individually or by way of
category) with entitlements in respect of Bonds and (b) consider such interests on the basis that such
accountholders were the holders of the Bonds in respect of which the Global Certificate is issued.

Enforcement

For all purposes, each person who is for the time being shown in the records of ACHL Mauritius as a holder of
a particular principal amount of Bonds in respect of which the Global Certificate is issued, (in which regard
any certificate or other document issued by ACHL, Mauritus as to the principal amount of Bonds represented
by a Global Certificate standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes)
shall be recognised as the holder of such principal amount of Bonds.

Cancellation
Cancellation of any Bond required by the Conditions to be cancelled following its redemption, conversion or
purchase by the Issuer will be effected by reduction in the principal amount of the Bonds in the Register.

Repurchase of the Bonds at the Option of the Bondholders

The Bondholders’ options in Conditions 7.4, 7.5 and 7.6 may be exercised by the holder of the Global
Certificate giving written notice to the Principal Paying and Conversion Agent of the principal amount of Bonds
in respect of which the option is exercised and presenting the Global Certificate for endorsement or exercise
in the form specified by, and within the time limits specified in, the Conditions.

Exchange and Registration of Title

133



In circumstances where the Bondholders are entitled to receive definitive Certificates, the Issuer will make
arrangements for the exchange of interests in the Global Certificate in whole but not in part for definitive
Certificates and will cause sufficient individual definitive Certificates to be executed and delivered to the
Registrar in sufficient quantities for completion, authentication, and dispatch to the relevant Bondholders. A
person exchanging interests in the Global Certificate for one or more of the definitive Certificates must provide
to the Registrar, through the relevant clearing system, a written request containing instructions and such other
information as the Issuer and the Registrar may require to complete, execute and deliver such individual
definitive Certificates. Any definitive Certificates delivered in exchange for the Global Certificate or beneficial
interests therein will be registered in the names requested, and issued in any denominations approved, by
the relevant clearing system.

In the case of definitive Certificates issued in exchange for any Global Certificate, such definitive Certificates
will bear, and be subject to, such legends, as the Issuer requires in order to assure compliance with any
applicable law. The holder of such restricted definitive Certificates may transfer the Bonds represented by
such definitive Certificates, subject to compliance with the provisions of such legend. Upon the transfer,
exchange or replacement of definitive Certificates bearing the legend, or upon specific request for removal of
the legend on a definitive Certificate, the Issuer will deliver only definitive Certificates that bear such legend,
or will refuse to remove such legend, as the case may be, unless there is delivered to the Issuer such
satisfactory evidence, which may include an opinion of counsel, as may reasonably be required by the Issuer
that neither the legend nor the restrictions on transfer set forth therein are required to ensure compliance
with the provisions of the Securities Act.

Payments

Payments of principal, premium (if any) in respect of Bonds represented by the Global Certificate will be made
against presentation and, if no further payment falls to be made in respect of the Bonds, surrender of the
Global Certificate to or to the order of the Principal Paying and Conversion Agent or such other Paying Agent
as shall have been notified to the Bondholders for such purpose

Transfers
Transfers of interests in the Bonds with respect to which the Global Certificate is issued shall be made in
accordance with the Agency Agreement.

Transfers of interests in the Bonds with respect to which the Global Certificate is issued shall be effected
through the records of ACHL , Mauritius and their respective participants in accordance with the rules and
procedures of ACHL , Mauritius and their respective direct and indirect participants.

The laws of certain jurisdictions require that certain purchasers of the Bonds take physical delivery of such
Bonds in definitive form. Accordingly, the ability of beneficial owners to own, transfer or pledge beneficial
interest in the Global Certificate may be limited by such laws.

Conversion through participants in ACHL , Mauritius will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with
their respective rules and operating procedures.

Accountholders

For so long as any of the Bonds are represented by the Global Certificate and such Global Certificate is held
on behalf of ACHL, Mauritus, each person who is for the time being shown in the records of ACHL, Mauritius
as the holder of a particular principal amount of such bonds (each an “Accountholder”) (in which regard any
certificate or other document issued by SBM Fund Services Limited as to the principal amount of such Bonds
standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes) shall be treated as the
holder of such principal amount of such Bonds for all purposes (including for the purposes of any quorum
requirements of, or in the right to demand a poll at, meetings of the Bondholders) other than with respect to
the payment of principal, premium (if any) on such Bonds, the right to which shall be vested, as against the
Issuer and the Registrar, solely in the holder of the Global Certificate in accordance with and subject to its
terms and the terms of the Deed. Each Accountholder must look solely to the Registrar, or the Issuer as the

134



case may be, for its share of each payment made to the holder of the Global Certificate. The Registrar is
entitled to rely on any information, reports and certifications provided by ACHL, Mauritius as to details of the
holdings of Bonds and the Accountholders.

Definitive Certificate

In the case of definitive Certificates issued in exchange for any Global Certificate, such definitive Certificates
will bear, and be subject to, such legends, as the Issuer requires in order to assure compliance with any
applicable law. The holder of such restricted definitive Certificates may transfer the Bonds represented by
such definitive Certificates, subject to compliance with the provisions of such legend. Upon the transfer or
replacement of definitive Certificates bearing the legend, or upon specific request for removal of the legend
on a definitive Certificate, the Issuer will deliver only definitive Certificates that bear such legend, or will
refuse to remove such legend, as the case may be, unless there is delivered to the Issuer such satisfactory
evidence, which may include an opinion of counsel, as may reasonably be required by the Issuer that neither
the legend nor the restrictions on transfer set forth therein are required to ensure compliance with the
provisions of the Securities Act.

Notices

So long as the Bonds are represented by the Global Certificate and the Global Certificate is held on behalf of
ACHL , Mauritius, notices required to be given to Bondholders may be given by their being delivered to the
relevant clearing system for communication by it to entitled Accountholders in substitution for notification,
as required by the Conditions and so long as the Bonds are listed on AFRINEX and the rules of the
Afrinex Securities List so require, of AFRINEX Mauritius. The Notices will also be published via website of
AFRINEX, Mauritius of such adjustment to the Conversion Price at least ten Business Days in advance of the
effective date of such adjustment
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BOOK-ENTRY, DELIVERY AND FORM

General

The Bonds sold outside the United States pursuant to Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act will
initially be represented by one or more global certificate in registered form without interest coupons
attached (the “Regulation S Global Certificate”). The Regulation S Global Certificate will be deposited,
on the closing date, with a depository and registered in the name of the nominee of the depository for
the accounts of Afrinex Clearing House Ltd.

Ownership of interests in the Regulation S Global Certificate (the “Regulation S Book-Entry
Interests,”) will be limited to persons that have accounts with Afrinex Clearing House Ltd or persons that
may hold interests through such participants. Book-Entry Interests will be shown on, and transfers
thereof will be effected only through, records maintained in book-entry form by Afrinex Clearing House
Ltd and their participants. The Book-Entry Interests in the Global Certificate will be issued only in
denominations of USD 100,000.00 each or integral multiples of USD 100,000.00 thereof.

The Book-Entry Interests will not be held in definitive form. Instead, Afrinex Clearing House Ltd will
credit on their respective book-entry registration and transfer systems the account of a participant with
the interest beneficially owned by such participant. The laws of some jurisdictions, including certain
states of the United States, may require that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of
such securities in definitive form. The foregoing limitations may impair the ability to own, transfer or
pledge Book-Entry Interests. In addition, while the Bonds are in global form, holders of Book-Entry
Interests will not have the Bonds registered in their names, will not receive physical delivery of the
Bonds in certificated form and will not be considered the registered owners or “holders” of Bonds under
the RTA Agreement for any purpose.

So long as the Bonds are held in global form, the nominee of the depository for Afrinex Clearing
House Limited, as applicable, will be considered the sole holders of Global Certificate for all purposes.
As such, participants must rely on the procedures of ACHL and indirect participants must rely on the
procedures of ACHL and the participants through which they own Book-Entry Interests in order to
transfer their interests.

None of the Issuer, the Principle Paying Agent, the Paying Agent, the Transfer Agent, or the
Registrar or any of their respective agents will have any responsibility or be liable for any aspect of the
records relating to the Book-Entry Interests.

Payments on Global Certificate

Payments of amounts owing in respect of the Global Certificate (including principal, premium, and
additional amounts) will be made by the Issuer to the Paying Agent.

Action by Owners of Book-Entry Interests

Afrinex Clearing House Ltd have advised the Issuer that they will take any action permitted to be
taken by a holder of Bonds only at the direction of one or more participants to whose account the Book-
Entry Interests in the Global Certificate are credited and only in respect of such portion of the aggregate
principal amount of Bonds as to which such participant or participants has or have given such direction.
ACHL will not exercise any discretion in the granting of consents, waivers or the taking of any other
action in respect of the Global Certificate. Nevertheless, if there is an event of default under the Bonds,
Afrinex Clearing House Limited reserves the right to exchange the Global Certificate for Definitive
Registered Bonds in certificated form and to distribute such Definitive Registered Bonds to their
respective participants.
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Issuance of Definitive Registered Bonds

Owners of Book Entry Interests will receive definitive Bonds in registered form (the “Definitive
Registered Bonds”):

 if Afrinex Clearing House Ltd notify the Issuer that it is unwilling or unable to continue to
act as depository and a successor depository is not appointed by the Issuer within 120 days;

« if Afrinex Clearing House Ltd so requests following an Event of Default; or

« if the owner of a Book Entry Interest requests such exchange in writing delivered
through eitherAfrinex Clearing House Ltd following an Event of Default.

In such an event, the Registrar will issue Definitive Registered Bonds, registered in the name or
names and issued in any approved denominations, requested by or on behalf of Afrinex Clearing House
Ltd, as applicable (in accordance with their respective customary procedures and based upon directions
received from participants reflecting the beneficial ownership of Book Entry Interests), and such
Definitive Registered Bonds will bear the restrictive legend referred to in “Notice to Investors,”
unless that legend is not required by the applicable law.

In the case of the issue of Definitive Registered Bonds, the holder of a Definitive Registered Bond
may transfer such Definitive Registered Bond by surrendering it to the Registrar. In the event of a partial
transfer or a partial redemption of one Definitive Registered Bond, a new Definitive Registered Bond
will be issued to the transferee in respect of the part transferred, and a new Definitive Registered Bond
will be issued to the transferor or the holder, as applicable, in respect of the balance of the holding not
transferred or redeemed; provided that a Definitive Registered Bond will only be issued in
denominations of USD 100,000.00 each or integral multiples of thereof.

If Definitive Registered Bonds are issued and a holder thereof claims that such Definitive Registered
Bonds have been lost, destroyed, or wrongfully taken, or if such Definitive Registered Bonds are
mutilated and are surrendered to the Registrar or at the office of the applicable Transfer Agent, we will
issue and the Principle Paying Agent or an authenticating agent appointed by the Principle Paying Agent
will authenticate a replacement Definitive Registered Bond if the Principle Paying Agent’s and our
requirements are met. We or the Principle Paying Agent may require a holder requesting replacement
of a Definitive Registered Bond to furnish an indemnity bond sufficient in the judgment of both the
Principle Paying Agent and us to protect us, the Principle Paying Agent, the Transfer Agent, the Registrar,
and the applicable Paying Agent appointed pursuant to the Agency Agreement from any loss which any
of them may suffer if a Definitive Registered Bond is replaced. We and/or the Principle Paying Agent
may charge for expenses in replacing a Definitive Registered Bond.

Definitive Registered Bonds may be transferred and exchanged for Book-Entry Interests only in
accordance with the Conditions and, if required, only after the transferor first delivers to the applicable
Transfer Agent a written certification to the effect that such transfer will comply with the transfer
restrictions applicable to such Bonds. See “Notice to Investors.”

To the extent permitted by law, we, the Principle Paying Agent, the Paying Agent, the Transfer Agent,
and the Registrar shall be entitled to treat the registered holder of any Global Certificate as the absolute
owner thereof and no person will be liable for treating the registered holder as such. Ownership of the
Global Certificate will be evidenced through registration from time to time at the registered office of
the Issuer, and such registration is a means of evidencing title to the Bonds.

We will notimpose any fees or other charges in respect of the Bonds; however, owners of the Book-

Entry Interests may incur fees normally payable in respect of the maintenance and operation of
accounts in Euroclear and/or Clearstream Banking, as applicable.
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Information Concerning Afrinex Clearing House Limited

All Book-Entry Interests will be subject to the operations and procedures of Afrinex Clearing House
Limited, as applicable. The Issuer provides the following summaries of those operations and procedures
solely for the convenience of investors. The operations and procedures of each settlement system are
controlled by that settlement system and may be changed at any time. Neither the Issuer nor the
Initial Purchasers are responsiblefor those operations or procedures.

Afrinex Clearing House Limited hold securities for participating organizations. They also facilitate
the settlement of securities transactions between their respective participants through electronic book-
entry changes in the accounts of such participants. Afrinex Clearing House Limited provide various
services to their participants, including the safekeeping, administration, settlement, lending and
borrowing of internationally traded securities. Afrinex Clearing House Limited interface with domestic
securities markets. Afrinex Clearing House Limited participants are financial institutions such as
underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and certain other organizations.
Indirect access to Afrinex Clearing House Limited is also available to others such as banks, brokers,
dealers, and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Afrinex
Clearing House Limited participant, either directly or indirectly.

Because Afrinex Clearing House Limited can only act on behalf of participants, who in turn act on
behalf of indirect participants and certain banks, the ability of an owner of a beneficial interest to pledge
such interest to persons or entities that do not participate in the Afrinex Clearing House Limited systems,
or otherwise take actions in respect of such interest, may be limited by the lack of a definite certificate
for that interest. The laws of some jurisdictions require that certain persons take physical delivery of
securities in definitive form. Consequently, the ability to transfer beneficial interests to such person
may be limited. In addition, owners of beneficial interests through Afrinex Clearing House Limited
systems will receive distributions attributable to the Global Certificate only through Afrinex Clearing
House Limited participants.

Global Clearance and Settlement Under the Book-Entry System

The Bonds represented by the Global Certificate are expected to be listed on the Securities List of
AFRINEX, Mauritius . Transfers of interests in the Global Certificate between participants in Afrinex
Clearing House Limited will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with their respective system'’s
rules and operating procedures.

Although Afrinex Clearing House Limited are expected to follow the foregoing procedures in order
to facilitate transfers of interests in the Global Certificate among participants in ACHL, as the case may
be, they are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such
procedures may be discontinued or modified at any time. None of the Issuer, , the Principle Paying
Agent, the Transfer Agent, the Registrar, or the Paying Agent will have any responsibility for the
performance by ACHL or their respective participants or indirect participants, of their respective
obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.

Initial Settlement

Initial settlement for the Bonds will be made in USD. Book-Entry Interests owned through Afrinex
Clearing House Limited accounts will follow the settlement procedures applicable to Regulation S Bonds
in registered form. Book-Entry Interests will be credited to the securities custody accounts of Afrinex
Clearing House Limited holders on the business day following the settlement date against payment for
value on the settlement date.

Secondary Market Trading

The Book-Entry Interests will trade through participants of Afrinex Clearing House Limited and will
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settle in same-day funds. Since the purchase determines the place of delivery, it is important to establish at
the time of trading of any Book-Entry Interests where the accounts of both the purchaser and the seller are
located to ensure that settlement can be made on the desired value date.

Special Timing Consideration
You should be aware thatinvestors will only be able to make and receive deliveries and other communications

involving the Bonds through Afrinex Clearing House Limited on days when those systems are open for
business.
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TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

You are advised to consult legal counsel prior to making any offer, resale, pledge, or other transfer
of any of the Bonds offered hereby.

The Bonds have not been, and will not be, registered under the U.S. Securities Act or any state
securitieslaws and, unless so registered, may not be offered or sold except pursuant to an exemption
from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and
applicable state securities laws. Accordingly, the Bonds offered hereby are being offered and sold only
to persons outside the United States in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation S under the U.S.
Securities Act.

We have not registered and will not register the Bonds under the U.S. Securities Act and,
therefore, the Bonds may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or
benefit of U.S. persons, except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the
registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act. Accordingly, the Issuer is offering and selling the
Bonds only to non-U.S. persons purchasing the Bonds outside the United States in accordance with
Regulation S.

We use the terms “offshore transaction,” “U.S. person” and “United States” with the meanings
given to them in Regulation S.

Each purchaser of Bonds, by its acceptance thereof, will be deemed to have acknowledged,
represented to, and agreed with us as follows:

(1) Youunderstand and acknowledge that the Bonds have not been registered under the U.S. Securities
Act or any other applicable securities laws and that the Bonds are being offered for sale in
transactions not requiring registration under the U.S. Securities Act or any other securities law,
including sales pursuant to Rule 144A, and, unless so registered, may not be offered, sold or
otherwise transferred except in compliance with the registration requirements of the U.S.
Securities Act or any other applicable securities law, pursuant to an exemption therefrom or in any
transaction not subject thereto and in each case in compliance with the conditions for transfer set
forth in paragraphs (5) and (6) below.

(2) Youare

(i) are a non-U.S. person purchasing the Bonds in an offshore transaction in accordance with
Regulation S.

(3) You acknowledge that none of the Issuer, nor any person representing the Issuer, has made any
representation to you with respect to the offering or sale of any Bonds, other than the information
contained in this Offering Memorandum, which Offering Memorandum has been delivered to you
and upon which you are relying in making your investment decision with respect to the Bonds. You
acknowledge that neither the Issuer nor any person representing the Issuer including the Lead
Manager makes any representation or warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of this Offering
Memorandum. You have had access to such financial and other information concerning us and the
Bonds as you have deemed necessary in connection with your decision to purchase any of the
Bonds, including an opportunity to ask questions of, and request information from, the Issuer, and
the Initial Purchasers.

(4) You are purchasing the Bonds for your own account, or for one or more investor accounts for which
you are acting as a fiduciary or agent, in each case for investment, and not with a view to, or for
offer or sale in connection with, any distribution thereof in violation of the U.S. Securities Act or
any state securities laws, subject to any requirement of law that the disposition of its property or
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®)

the property of such investor account or accounts be at all times within your or their control and
subject to your or their ability to resell such Bonds pursuant to Regulation S or any other
exemption from registration available under the U.S. Securities Act.

You agree on your own behalf and on behalf of any investor account for which you are purchasing
the Bonds, and each subsequent holder of the Bonds by its acceptance thereof will be deemed to
agree, to offer, sell or otherwise transfer such Bonds (in the case of Regulation S Global Bonds only,
40 days after the later of the date of the original issue and the last date on which the Issuer or any
affiliate of the Issuer was the owner of such Bonds (or any predecessor thereto)) only pursuant to
a registration statement that has been declared effective under the U.S. Securities Act,

(i) pursuant to offers and sales to non-U.S. persons that occur outside the United States in

compliance with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act, or

(ii) prior to 40 after the later of the commencement of the offering of the Bonds and the latest
closing date of the issue of the Bonds pursuant to a registration statement which has been
declared effective under the U.S. Securities Act, or

(iii) pursuant to any other available exemption from the registration requirements of the U.S.
Securities Act, subject in each of the foregoing cases to any requirement of law that the disposition
of seller’s property or the property of such investor account or accounts be at all times within the
seller or their control and in compliance with any applicable state securities laws and any
applicable local laws and regulations, and further subject to the Issuer’s and the Principle Paying
Agent’s rights prior to any such offer, sale or transfer (I) pursuant to clauses (i) and (ii) to require
the delivery of an opinion of counsel, certification and/or other information satisfactory to each
of them and

(iv) in each of the foregoing cases, to require that a certificate of transfer in the form appearing
on the reverse of the security is completed and delivered by the transferor to the Principle Paying
Agent. The foregoing restrictions on resale will not apply subsequent to the Resale Restriction
Termination Date. Each purchaser acknowledges that each Bond will contain a legend substantially
to the following effect:

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “U.S. SECURITIES ACT”), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR
OTHER JURISDICTION. NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION HEREIN
MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED,ENCUMBERED OR OTHERWISE
DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION ORUNLESS SUCH TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT
FROM, OR NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT.
THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF AGREES ON ITS OWN BEHALF AND
ON BEHALF OF ANY INVESTOR FOR WHICH IT HAS PURCHASED SECURITIES TO OFFER, SELL OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFER SUCH SECURITY: PRIOR TO THE DATE WHICH 1S 40 DAYSAFTER THE LATER
OF THE ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE HEREOF AND THE LAST DATE ON WHICH THE ISSUER OR ANY
AFFILIATE OF THE ISSUER WAS THE OWNER OF THIS SECURITY (OR ANY PREDECESSOR OF THIS
SECURITY)] ONLY (A) PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WHICH HAS BEEN DECLARED
EFFECTIVE UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT, (B) PURSUANT TO OFFERS AND SALES TO NON-U.S.
PERSONS THAT OCCUR OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATION S
UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OR (C) PURSUANT TO ANY OTHER AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM
THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT, SUBJECT IN EACH OF THE
FOREGOING CASES TO ANY REQUIREMENT OF LAW THAT THE DISPOSITION OFITS PROPERTY OR
THE PROPERTY OF SUCH INVESTOR ACCOUNT OR ACCOUNTS BE AT ALL TIMES WITHIN ITS OR
THEIR CONTROL AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND ANY
APPLICABLE LOCAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS AND FURTHER SUBJECT TO THE ISSUER’S AND THE
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PRINCIPLE PAYING AGENT’S RIGHTS PRIOR TO ANY SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER (I) PURSUANT
TO CLAUSE (C) TO REQUIRE THE DELIVERY OF AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, CERTIFICATION AND/OR
OTHER INFORMATION SATISFACTORY TO EACH OF THEM,

(1) IN EACH OF THE FOREGOING CASES, TO REQUIRE THAT A CERTIFICATE OF TRANSFER INTHE
FORM APPEARING ON THE OTHER SIDE OF THIS SECURITY IS COMPLETED AND DELIVERED BY THE
TRANSFEROR TO THE PRINCIPLE PAYING AGENT AND (I1I) AGREES THAT IT WILL GIVE TO EACH PERSON
TO WHOM THIS SECURITY IS TRANSFERRED A NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE EFFECT OF THIS
LEGEND.

If you purchase Bonds, you will also be deemed to acknowledge that the foregoing restrictions
apply toholders of beneficial interests in the Bonds as well as to holders of the Bonds.

(6) You agree that you will give to each person to whom you transfer the Bonds notice of any
restrictions on transfer of such Bonds.

(7) You acknowledge that until 40 days after the commencement of the Offering, any offer or sale of
the Bonds within the United States by a dealer (whether or not participating in the Offering) may
violate the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act if such offer or sale is made
otherwise than in accordance with rules under the U.S. Securities Act.

(8) You acknowledge that the Registrar will not be required to accept for registration of transfer
any Bonds except upon presentation of evidence satisfactory to us and the Principle Paying Agent
that the restrictions set out therein have been complied with.

(9) You acknowledge that the Issuer, the Lead Manager, and others will rely upon the truth and
accuracy of your acknowledgements, representations, warranties, and agreements and agree that
if any of the acknowledgements, representations, warranties, and agreements deemed to have
been made by your purchase of the Bonds are no longer accurate, you shall promptly notify the
Issuer. If you are acquiring any Bonds as a fiduciary or agent for one or more investor accounts, you
represent that you have sole investment discretion with respect to each such investor account and
that you have full power to make the foregoing acknowledgements, representations, and
agreements on behalf of each such investor account.

(10) You understand that no action has been taken in any jurisdiction (including the United States) by
the Issuer that would result in a public offering of the Bonds or the possession, circulation or
distribution of this Offering Memorandum or any other material relating to us or the Bonds in any
jurisdiction where action for such purpose is required. Consequently, any transfer of the Bonds will
be subject to the selling restrictions set out herein.

(11) Each purchaser that is acquiring notes pursuant to Regulation S under the Securities Act represents
that it is not acquiring the notes with a view to the resale, distribution, or other disposition thereof
to a U.S. person or in the United States.

142



SELLING RESTRICTIONS

No action has been taken in any jurisdiction, including the United States, Canada, Spain, the United
Kingdom, the EEA, Austria, Belgium, France, Germany, Italy, Luxembourg, Mauritius, the Netherlands,
and Switzerland, by the Issuer or the Initial Purchasers that would permit a public offering of the Notes
or the possession, circulation or distribution of this Offering Memorandum or any other material
relating to the Issuer or the Notes in any jurisdiction where action for this purpose is required.
Accordingly, the Notes may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Offering
Memorandum nor any other offering material or advertisements in connection with the Notes may be
distributed or published, in or from any country or jurisdiction, except in compliance with any applicable
rules and regulations of any such country or jurisdiction. This Offering Memorandum does not
constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase in any jurisdiction where such offer or
solicitation would be unlawful. Persons into whose possession this Offering Memorandum comesare
advised to inform themselves about and to observe any restrictions relating to the Offering, the
distribution of this Offering Memorandum and resale of the Notes. See “Notice to Investors” and
“Transfer Restrictions” .
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The Lead Manager has, pursuant to subscription agreements dated 15™ April 2024 between the Company
and the Lead Manager (the “Subscription Agreements”), agreed with the Company, subject to the satisfaction
of certain conditions, to use reasonable endeavors to procure subscribers for the principal amount of Bonds
at 15% discount of their principal amount.

The Merchant Banker is GYR Capital Advisors Private Limited and Lead Arranger is Aries Capital Ltd.

The Subscription Agreements entitles the Lead Arranger to terminate the Subscription Agreements in certain
circumstances prior to payment being made to the Company as set out therein. In such circumstances, the
issue may be cancelled at any time until the Bonds are issued, and therefore the issuance and listing of the
Bonds may not become effective.

The distribution of this Offering Memorandum or any offering material and the offering, sale or delivery of
the Bonds is restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. Therefore, persons who may come into possession of
this Offering Memorandum or any offering material are advised to consult with their own legal advisors as to
what restrictions may be applicable to them and to observe such restrictions. This Offering Memorandum
may not be used for the purpose of an offer or invitation in any circumstances in which such offer or invitation
is not authorised.

In connection with this offering, the Lead Arranger (or its affiliates) may, for its own accounts, enter into asset
swaps, credit derivatives or other derivative transactions relating to the Bonds or the Shares at the same time
as the offer and sale of the Bonds or in secondary market transactions. As a result of such transactions, the
Lead Arranger may hold long or short positions in such Bonds or derivatives or in the Shares. These
transactions may comprise a substantial portion of the offering and no disclosure will be made of such
positions.

The Company estimates that the Company’s portion of the total expenses of this offering will be below 4% of
size of issuance of fccb’s prinicipal amount.

The Lead Arranger expects to deliver the Bonds against payment on or about the date specified in the last
paragraph of the cover page of this Offering Circular. Payment for the Bonds will be made by investors through

the Lead Manager in U.S. dollars in same day funds on the Closing Date.

The Lead Arranger and its affiliates may, from time to time, engage in transactions with and perform services
for the Company and/or its associated companies in the ordinary course of their business.

The Company has agreed to indemnify the Lead Arranger against certain liabilities or to contribute to
payments that the Lead Arranger may be required to make because of any of those liabilities.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE SHARES

Set forth below is certain information relating to the Company’s share capital, including brief summaries of
certain provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Companies Act 2013, the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956 of India (as amended) (the “SCRA”) and certain related legislation of India, all as
currently in effect.

General

As at, March 31, 2024 the Company’s authorised share capital is Rs. 18,00,00,000 and the issued and paid up
capital is Rs. 89,700,000. All of the company’s issued and paid-up shares are in registered form and
substantially all are held in dematerialised form.

Dividends

Under the Companies Act, unless the Board recommends the payment of a dividend, the shareholders at a
general meeting have no power to declare any dividend. Subject to certain conditions laid down by Section
123 of the Companies Act 2013, no dividend can be declared or paid by a company for any financial year
except out of the profits of the company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act or out of
the profits of the company for any previous financial year(s) arrived at after providing for depreciation in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and remaining undistributed or out of both or out of
moneys provided by the Central or State Government for payment of dividend in pursuance of a guarantee
given by that government. Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the shareholders at a general
meeting may declare a lower, but not higher, dividend than that recommended by the Board. Dividends are
generally declared as a percentage of the par value. The dividend recommended by the Board and approved
by the shareholders at a general meeting is distributed and paid to shareholders in proportion to the paid-up
value of their Shares as of the record date for which such dividend is payable. In addition, as permitted by the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Board may announce and pay interim dividends. Under the Companies
Act, dividends can only be paid in cash to shareholders listed on the register of shareholders on the date
which is specified as the “record date” or “book closure date” or to those shareholders keeping their shares
in dematerialised form, a list of which is provided by the National Securities Depository Limited (the “NSDL")
and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (the “CSDL”). No shareholder is entitled to a dividend
while any lien in respect of unpaid calls on any of his/her Shares is outstanding.

Any dividend declared shall be deposited in a separate bank account within five days from the date of the
declaration of such dividend. Dividends must be paid within 30 days from the date of the declaration and any
dividend which remains unpaid or unclaimed after that period must be transferred within seven days of the
expiry of the 30-day period (mentioned aforesaid) to a special unpaid dividend account held at a scheduled
bank. Any money which remains unpaid or unclaimed for seven years from the date of such transfer must be
transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the Government
pursuant to which no claim shall lie against the Company or the Investor Education and Protection Fund.
Directors of the company may be held criminally liable for any default of the provisions.

Pre-Emptive Rights and Alteration of Share Capital

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Company may increase its share capital by issuing new
Shares. Such new Shares shall be offered to existing shareholders listed on the members’ register on the
record date in proportion to the amount paid-up on those Shares at that date. The offer shall be made by
notice specifying the number of Shares offered and the date (being not less than 15 days from the date of the
offer) after which the offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to have been declined. After such date, the Board
may dispose of the Shares offered in respect of which no acceptance has been received, in such manner as
they think most beneficial to the Company. The offer is deemed to include a right exercisable by the person
concerned to renounce the Shares offered to him/her in favour of any other person provided that the person
in whose favour such Shares have been renounced is approved by the Board in their absolute discretion.
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Under the provisions of the Companies Act, new Shares may be offered to any persons whether or not those
persons include existing shareholders if a special resolution to that effect is passed by the shareholders of the
issuer in a general meeting.

The Company may, by ordinary resolution, from time to time, alter the Company’s Memorandum of
Association to subdivide the Shares for a larger amount than is fixed by the Memorandum of Association
provided that the same proportionate liability shall continue on the Shares so reduced or increased as existed
on the original Shares before such subdivision or consolidation, or it may cancel Shares which, at the date of
passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amount
of its share capital by the amount of Shares cancelled.

The Company’s issued share capital may, among other things, be increased by the exercise of warrants
attached to any of the Company’s securities, or individually issued, entitling the holder to subscribe for the
Company’s shares or upon the conversion of convertible debentures issued. The issue of any convertible
debentures or the taking of any convertible loans, other than from the Government and financial institutions,
requires the approval of a special resolution of shareholders.

The Company can also alter its share capital by way of a reduction of its capital or by undertaking a buyback
of its shares under the prescribed SEBI guidelines. The Company’s Articles of Association provide that the
Company may in a general meeting, from time to time increase its capital by the creation of new shares and
may consolidate or sub-divide its share capital, convert all or any of its fully paid-up Shares into stock and
reconvert that stock into fully paid-up Shares or cancel Shares which have not been taken up by any person.
The Company may also from time to time by special resolution reduce its capital and pay capital on the
grounds that it may be called up again or otherwise.

The Company’s Articles of Association also provide that if at any time the Company’s share capital is divided
into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any one class (unless otherwise provided by the terms
of issue of the shares of that class) may be varied with the consent in writing of the holders of three-fourths
of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of a special resolution, passed at a separate meeting of
the holders of the shares of that class.

Preference Shares

Preference share capital is that part of the paid-up capital of the company which fulfils both of the following
requirements, namely:

(i) that as respects dividends, it carries or will carry a preferential right to be paid a fixed amount
or an amount calculated at a fixed rate; and

(ii) that as respects capital, it carries or will carry on a winding-up of the company, a preferential
right to be repaid the amount of the capital paid up or deemed to have been paid-up.

The preference shares do not confer any further rights to participate in the Company’s profits or assets.
Holders of preference shares are not entitled to vote at the Company’s general meetings except:

(A) in relation to resolutions placed before the company that directly affect the rights attached to the
holder’s preference shares and/or

(B) where the dividend due on such capital has remained unpaid:

(i) in the case of cumulative preference shares, in respect of an aggregate period of not less than
two years preceding the date of commencement of the meeting; and

(ii) in the case of non-cumulative preference shares, either in respect of a period of not less than
two years or in respect of an aggregate period of not less than three years comprised in the
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six years ending with the expiry of the financial year immediately preceding the
commencement of the meeting.

Under the Companies Act, the Company may issue redeemable preference shares, but (i) no such shares shall
be redeemed except out of the profits which would otherwise be available for dividends or out of the
proceeds of a fresh issue of shares made for the purposes of the redemption; (ii) no such shares shall be
redeemed unless they are fully paid; (iii) the premium, if any, payable on redemption shall have been provided
for out of the Company’s profits or out of the Company’s securities premium account, before the shares are
redeemed; (iv) where any such shares are redeemed otherwise than out of the proceeds of a fresh issue,
there shall be transferred, to a reserve fund to be called the Capital Redemption Reserve Account, out of
profits which would otherwise have been available for dividends, a sum equal to the nominal amount of the
shares redeemed; and (v) the provisions of the Companies Act relating to the reduction of the share capital
of a company shall apply as if such reserve account were paid-up share capital of such company. Preference
shares must be redeemable before the expiry of a period of 20 years from the date of their issue.

General Meetings of Shareholders

The Company must hold its annual general meeting each year within 15 months of the previous annual
general meeting and in any event not later than six months after the end of each accounting year, unless
extended by the Registrar of Companies at the Company’s request for any special reason. The Board may
convene an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders when necessary or at the request of a shareholder
or shareholders holding in the aggregate not less than 10.0% of the Company’s paid-up capital (carrying a
right to vote in respect of the relevant matter on the date of the deposit of the requisition).

Written notices convening a meeting setting out the date, place and agenda of the meeting must be given to
members at least 21 days prior to the date of the proposed meeting. A general meeting may be called after
giving shorter notice if consent is received from all shareholders, in the case of an annual general meeting,
and from shareholders holding not less than 95.0% of the Company’s paid-up capital, in the case of any other
general meeting. Currently, the Company gives written notices to all members and, in addition, give public
notice of general meetings of shareholders in a daily newspaper of general circulation in New Delhi. General
meetings are generally held in New Delhi. The quorum for a general meeting of the Company is five
shareholders personally being present.

A company intending to pass a resolution relating to matters such as, but not limited to, amending the objects
clause of the Memorandum, issue of shares of differential voting rights as to voting or dividend or otherwise,
variation in the rights attached to a class of shares or debentures or other securities, buyback of shares under
the Companies Act or giving loans or extending guarantees in excess of limits prescribed under the Companies
Act and guidelines issued thereunder, is required to obtain passage of the resolution by means of a postal
ballot instead of transacting the business in the general meeting of the company. A notice to all shareholders
shall be sent along with a draft resolution explaining the reasons thereof and requesting each shareholder to
send his/her assent or dissent in writing on a postal ballot within a period of 30 days from the date of posting
the letter. Postal ballot includes voting by electronic mode.

Voting Rights

At a general meeting, upon a show of hands, every member holding shares and entitled to vote and present
in person has one vote. Upon a poll, the voting rights of each shareholder entitled to vote and present in
person or by proxy, are in the same proportion as the capital paid-up on each share held by such shareholder
to the total paid-up capital of the company. Voting is by show of hands unless a poll is ordered by the
Chairman of the meeting or demanded by a shareholder or shareholders holding at least 10.0% of the voting
rights in respect of the resolution. The Chairman of the meeting has a casting vote.

Ordinary resolutions may be passed by simple majority of those present and voting at any General Meeting

for which the required period of notice has been given. Special resolutions require that the votes cast in
favour of the resolution by those present and voting must be at least three times the votes cast against the
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resolution. Under the Companies Act some of the matters that require special resolution are amendment to
the Articles of Association, members voluntary winding up, dissolutions, merger, or consolidation.

A shareholder may exercise his voting rights by proxy to be given in the form required by the Articles of
Association of the company. The instrument appointing a proxy is required to be lodged with the company at
least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. A shareholder may, by a single power of attorney, grant a
general power of representation regarding several general meetings of shareholders. Any shareholder of the
company may appoint a proxy. A corporate shareholder is also entitled to nominate a representative to
attend and vote on its behalf at general meetings. A proxy may not vote except on a poll and does not have
a right to speak at meetings. A shareholder which is a legal entity may appoint an authorised representative
who can vote in all respects as if a member both by show of hands and by poll.

The Companies Act allows for a company to issue shares with differential rights as to dividends, voting or
otherwise, subject to certain conditions. In this regard, the laws require that, for a company to issue shares
with differential voting rights: (i) the company must have had distributable profits (in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act) for the three financial years preceding the year in which it was decided
to issue such shares; (ii) the Company must not have defaulted in filing annual accounts and annual returns
for the three financial years immediately preceding the financial year of the year in which it was decided to
issue such shares; (iii) the Articles of Association must allow for the issuance of such shares with differential
voting rights; and (iv) such other conditions set forth in the Companies (Issue of Share Capital with Differential
Voting Rights) Rules, 2001.

Registered holders of the Shares withdrawn from the depository arrangements will be entitled to vote and
exercise other direct shareholder rights in accordance with applicable Indian law.

Convertible Securities/Warrants

The Company may from time to time issue debt instruments that are partly or fully convertible into Shares
and/or warrants to purchase Shares.

Annual Reports and Financial Results

The Annual Report must be laid before the annual general meeting. This report includes certain financial
information, a corporate governance section and management’s discussion and analysis. It is sent to the
Company’s shareholders, and also made available for inspection at the Company’s registered office during
normal working hours for 21 days prior to the annual general meeting.

Under the Companies Act, the Company must file its Annual Report with the Registrar of Companies within
30 days from the date of the relevant annual general meeting. Under the Listing Agreement, six copies of the
Annual Report and of all periodical and special reports which may be issued by the company are required to
be sent to the stock exchanges on which the Company’s Shares are listed and one copy to all other recognised
stock exchanges in India. The Company must also publish its financial results in at least one English language
daily newspaper circulating in the whole or substantially the whole of India and also in a newspaper published
in the language of the region where the Company’s registered office is situated.

The Company files certain information online, including its Annual Report, quarterly financial statements,
report on corporate governance and the shareholding pattern statement, statement of action taken against
the company by any regulatory agency and such other statements/information/report as may be specified by
SEBI from time to time in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Agreement.

Transfer of Shares
Following the introduction of the Depositories Act, 1996, and the repeal of Section 22A of the SCRA, which

enabled companies to refuse to register transfers of shares in some circumstances, the equity shares of a
public company became freely transferable, subject only to the provisions of Section 59 of the Companies
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Act. Since the Company is a public company, the provisions of Section 59 will apply to the Company. The
Company’s Articles of Association currently contain provisions which give the Company’s Board discretion to
refuse to register a transfer of shares in some circumstances. However, the enforceability of such a provision
is uncertain. Furthermore, in accordance with the provisions of Section 59 of the Companies Act, the
Company’s Board may refuse to register a transfer of shares within two months from the date on which the
instrument of transfer or intimation of transfer, as the case may be, is delivered to the company, if they have
sufficient cause to do so. If the Company’s Board refuses to register a transfer of Shares, the shareholder
wishing to transfer his, her or its shares may file an appeal with the National Company Law Tribunal and the
National Company Law Tribunal can direct the company to register such transfer.

Pursuant to Section 59(4), if a transfer of shares contravenes any of the provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or any other law for the time being in force, the Tribunal may, on an
application made by the depository, company, depository participant, the holder of the securities or the
Securities and Exchange Board, direct any company or a depository to set right the contravention and rectify
its register or records concerned.

Shares held through depositories are transferred in the form of book entries or in electronic form in
accordance with the regulations laid down by the SEBI. These regulations provide for the functioning of the
depositories and the participants and set out the manner in which the records are to be kept and maintained
and the safeguards to be followed in this system. Transfers of beneficial ownership of shares held through a
depository are exempt from stamp duty. The Company has entered into an agreement for such depository
services with the NSDL and the CSDL.

The SEBI requires that for trading and settlement purposes, the Company’s Shares be in book-entry form for
all investors, except for transactions that are not made on a stock exchange and transactions that are not
required to be reported to the stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Listing Agreement, in the event the Company has not affected the transfer of Shares within
one month or where the Company has failed to communicate to the transferee any valid objection to the
transfer within the stipulated time period of one month, the Company is required to compensate the
aggrieved party for the opportunity loss caused during the period of the delay.

Acquisition of the Company’s Own Shares

The Company is prohibited from acquiring its own shares unless the consequent reduction of capital is
effected by an approval of at least 75.0% of its shareholder’s voting on the matter in accordance with the
Companies Act and is also sanctioned by the High Court of Judicature at New Delhi (that is, the city where the
Company’s registered office is situated). Moreover, subject to certain conditions, a company is prohibited
from giving whether directly or indirectly and whether by means of aloan, guarantee, the provision of security
or otherwise, any financial assistance for the purpose of or in connection with a purchase or subscription
made or to be made by any person of or for any shares in the company or its holding company.

However, pursuant to certain amendments to the Companies Act, a company is empowered to purchase its
own shares or other specified securities out of its free reserves, the securities premium account or the
proceeds of any shares or other specified securities (other than the kind of shares or other specified securities
proposed to be bought back), subject to certain conditions, including:

(i) the buyback should be authorised by the Company’s Articles of Association;
(ii) a special resolution should have been passed in a general meeting authorizing the buyback;
(iii) the buyback is for less than 25.0% of the total paid-up capital and free reserves provided that

the buyback of equity shares in any financial year shall not exceed 25.0% of the total paid-up
equity share capital in that year;
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(iv) the debt (including all amounts of unsecured and secured debt) the Company owes is not
more than twice the capital and free reserves after such buyback; and

(v) the buyback is in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulation, 2018.

The condition mentioned in (ii) above would not be applicable if the buyback is for less than 10.0% of the
total paid-up equity capital and free reserves of the company and provided that such buyback has been
authorised by the board of directors of the company. Further, a company buying back its securities is not
permitted to buyback any securities for a period of one year from the buyback or to issue new securities for
six months from the buyback date. The aforesaid restriction relating to the one year period does not apply to
a buyback authorised by a special resolution of the shareholders in general meeting. Every buyback has to be
completed within a period of one year from the date of passing of the special resolution or resolution of the
Board of directors as the case may be.

A company buying back its securities is required to extinguish and physically destroy the securities so bought
back within seven days of the last date of completion of the buyback.

A company is also prohibited from purchasing its own shares or specified securities through any subsidiary
company, including its own subsidiary companies or through any investment company (other than a purchase
of shares in accordance with a scheme for the purchase of shares by Principle Paying Agents of or for shares
to be held by or for the benefit of employees of the company) or if the company is defaulting on the
repayment of deposit, redemption of debentures or preference shares or payment of dividend to a
shareholder or repayment of any term loan or interest payable thereon to any financial institution or bank,
or in the event of non-compliance with certain other provisions of the Companies Act.

The buyback of securities can be from existing security holders on a proportionate basis or from the open
market or from odd lots, that is to say, where a lot of securities of a public company, whose shares are listed
on a recognised stock exchange, is smaller than such marketable lot, as may be specified by the stock
exchange or by purchasing securities issued to the employees of the company pursuant to a scheme of stock
option or sweat equity.

Disclosure of Ownership Interest

Section 89 of the Companies Act requires beneficial owners of shares of Indian companies who are not holders
of record to declare to the company details of the holder of record and the holder of record to declare details
of the beneficial owner. Any person who fails to make the required declaration within 30 days may be liable
for penalty. Any charge, promissory note or other collateral agreement created, executed, or entered into
with respect to any share by the registered owner thereof, or any hypothecation by the registered owner of
any share pursuant to which a declaration is required to be made under Section 89 shall not be enforceable
by the beneficial owner or any person claiming through the beneficial owner if such declaration is not made.
Failure to comply with Section 89 will, inter alia, not affect the obligation of the company to register a transfer
of shares or to pay any dividends to the registered holder of any shares pursuant to which such declaration
has not been made.
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CERTAIN INDIAN TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion describes the material Indian income tax, stamp duty and estate duty consequences
of the purchase, ownership and disposal of the Bonds and the Shares to be issued upon conversion of the
Bonds. The Income Tax Act, 1961 (the “IT Act”) is the law relating to taxation of income in India. The IT Act
provides for the taxation of persons resident in India on their global income and persons not resident in India
onincome received, accruing, or arising in India or deemed to have been received, accrued, or arisen in India.

This summary is not intended to constitute a complete analysis of the Indian tax consequences to any
particular individual holding a status of Non-Resident as per the Indian Income Tax Act. Individual tax
consequences of an investment in the Offering may vary for Non-Residents in various circumstances. Further,
the following is based on the provisions of Indian tax laws as of the date hereof, which are subject to change,
possibly on a retroactive basis.

YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE INDIAN TAX IMPLICATIONS AND
CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF BONDS AND THE UNDERLYING EQUITY
SHARES IN YOUR PARTICULAR SITUATION AND THE JURISDICTION OF YOUR RESIDENCE AND ANY TAX
TREATY BETWEEN INDIA AND YOUR COUNTRY OF RESIDENCE.

The information provided below has been prepared in accordance with the following Indian Income tax
legislation in force at the date of this Offering Memorandum:

Taxation of the Bonds/Notes

The offering is in accordance with Section 115AC of the IT Act, 1961, and non-resident Investors of the Bonds
will therefore have the benefit of tax concessions available under the Section 115AC of the IT Act are subject
to the fulfillment of certain conditions of that section. Such tax concessions include taxation at a reduced
income tax rate of 10 per cent, (which will then subject to the applicable rate of surcharge on income tax and
education cess on income tax and surcharge having regard to fact that the person is a corporate or non-
corporate assessee ) on the amount of interest on bonds or long term capital gain arising on transfer of Bonds.

Section 115AC of the IT Act provides that payment of interest on the Bonds paid to the non-resident
Bondholders will be subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10 per cent plus surcharge (if applicable) and
education cess at the applicable rate. The IT Act requires that such tax be withheld at source. Under Section
47(viia) of the IT Act, the transfer of Bonds outside India by a non-resident holder to another non-resident
shall not give rise to any capital gains tax in India.

Taxation of Shares Issued upon Conversion of Bonds/Notes

Under Section 47(x) of the IT Act any conversion of Bonds into Shares will not give rise to any capital gains
liable to income tax in India. However, the issue of Shares by the Company upon conversion of Bonds will be
chargeable to stamp duty as described below under “Stamp Duty”.

Taxation of Dividends on the Shares

Section 10(34), which provides an exemption to the shareholders in respect of dividend income, is withdrawn
from Assessment Year 2021-20. Thus, dividend received during the financial year 2020-21 and onwards shall
now be taxable in the hands of the shareholders. Consequently, Section 115BBDA which provides for
taxability of dividend in excess of Rs. 10 lakhs have no relevance as the entire amount of dividend shall be
taxable in the hands of the shareholder. The taxability of dividend and tax rate thereon shall depend upon
many factors like residential status of the shareholders, relevant head of income. In case of a non-resident
shareholder, the provisions of Double Taxation Avoidance Agreements (DTAAs) and Multilateral Instrument
(MLI) shall also come into play.
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Issue of Right Shares

Distribution to non-residents of additional shares or rights to subscribe for Shares (for the purposes of this
section, “Rights”) made with respect to shares are not subject to Indian tax unless those rights are transferred.

Benefits available to Non-Resident Indians

Non-Resident Indians have an option to be governed by the special provisions of Chapter XIIA of the IT Act,
according to which:

1. Under provisions of section 115F of the IT Act, long term capital gains (in cases not covered under section
10(38) of the IT Act) arising to a non-resident Indian, as defined in Clause (e) of Section 115C, from the
transfer of shares of the Company subscribed to in convertible foreign exchange (in cases not covered
under section 115E of the IT Act) shall be exempt from Income tax if the net consideration is invested in
specified assets within six months after the date of transfer. If only part of the net consideration is so
invested, the exemption shall be proportionately reduced. However the benefit is subject to the
conditions regarding holding period specified under sub section 2 of Section 115F of the IT Act.

2. Under Section 115G of the IT Act, it shall not be necessary for the non-resident Indians to furnish their
return of income, under section 139(1) of the IT Act, if their source of income is only investment income
or income by way of long term capital gains or both, provided income tax deductible at source under the
provisions of chapter XVII-B has been deducted from such income.

3. Under Section 115H of the IT Act, the benefit conferred on a non-resident Indian assessee will be available
even after the assessee becomes a resident if declaration in writing is filed along with the return of income
under Section 139(1) of the IT Act, to the effect that the provisions of Chapter XII-A shall continue to apply
to him in respect of investment income derived from foreign exchange asset vide Section 115C(f)(ii)(iii)(iv)
or (v) of the IT Act, until the transfer or conversion (otherwise than by transfer) into money of such assets.

4. Under Section 115-1 of the IT Act, a non-resident Indian, if he elects by so declaring in the return of his
income for that assessment year, not to be governed by the special provisions of chapter XII-A, then he
will be entitled to tax benefit available to resident individuals.

For the purpose of computing capital gains tax on the sale of the Shares under the Section 115AC of IT Act,
the cost of acquisition of the shares will be treated as the cost of acquisition of bond before conversion of
bonds into shares.

Neither the Section 115AC of IT Act nor the FCCB Scheme deals with capital losses arising on a transfer of
Shares in India. In general terms, losses arising from a transfer of a capital asset in India can only be set off
against capital gains. A long-term capital loss can be set off only against a long term capital gain (if not exempt)
and short term capital loss can be set off against any capital gain. To the extent that the losses are not
absorbed in the year of transfer, they may be carried forward for a period of eight assessment years
immediately succeeding the assessment year for which the loss was first determined by the assessing
authority and may be set off against the capital gains assessable for such subsequent assessment years. In
order to set off capital losses as above, the non-resident investor would be required to file appropriate and
timely tax return in India and may undergo the usual assessment procedures.

Tax Credit

A non-resident investor would be entitled to tax credit with respect to any withholding tax paid by the
Company or any other person for its account in accordance with the laws of the applicable jurisdiction.

Tax Treaties
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The provisions of the Agreement for Avoidance of Double Taxation entered into by the Indian Government
with the country of residence of such non-resident investor will be applicable to the extent they are more
beneficial to the non-resident investor.

Stamp Duty

Under the laws of India, the transfer of shares in physical form would be subject to stamp duty at the rate of
0.25 per cent. Of the market value of the shares, and such stamp duty customarily is borne by the transferee,
that is, the purchaser. In order to register a transfer of Shares in physical form, it is necessary to present a
stamped deed of transfer. However, since the Company’s Shares are compulsorily deliverable in
dematerialised form (except for trades of up to 500 Shares, which may be delivered in physical form) there
would be no stamp duty payable in India on transfer of the Shares in dematerialised form. There is no stamp
duty liability on the sale or transfer of Bonds.

Education Cess

In all the above cases, the amount of income tax and surcharge as stated would be increased by an education
cess of 3 per cent.

Taxation on buyback of Shares

If Shares held by a non-resident investor are purchased by the Company, the non-resident investor will be
liable to pay income tax in respect of the capital gains arising on such buyback under the provisions of Indian
tax laws and capital gains tax arising there from shall be withheld at source before repatriation of sale
proceeds from India.
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LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

Except as stated in this section, there are no (i) outstanding criminal proceedings (ii) outstanding actions taken
by regulatory or statutory authorities; (iii) outstanding claims related to any direct or indirect taxesin
a consolidated manner; (iv) other pending litigation/ arbitration proceedings as determined to be material by
our Board as per the Materiality Policy, in each case involving our Company, Promoters or Directors
(“Relevant Parties”); or (v) outstanding litigation which has a material impact on our Company. Further,
except as stated in this section, there are no disciplinary actions including penalties imposed by SEBI or stock
exchanges against our Promoters in the last five Fiscals including any outstanding action.

For the purposes of (iv) above, in terms of the Materiality Policy adopted by resolution of our Board.

A. Any pending litigation / arbitration proceedings (other than litigations mentioned in point (i) to (iii)
III

above)involving any of the Relevant Parties shall be considered “materia
disclosure in this Offering Memorandum, if:

for the purposes of

i the aggregate monetary the aggregate monetary claim/dispute amount/ liability made by or
against the Relevant Party, in any such pending litigation / arbitration proceeding is equal to or
in excess of 1% of standalone turnover or 1% of consolidated restated profit after tax, whichever
is lower, as per the latest fiscal year in the Standalone Financial Information. The total income
of our Company for the Fiscal 2022 is X 2340.31 Lakhs and profit/(loss) for the year for the
Fiscal 2022 is R 37.22 Lakhs and accordingly, all litigation involving the Company, Directors,
Promoters, and the Subsidiaries in which the amount involved exceeds X 100,000.00 have been
considered as material, if any; or

ii. any monetary liability is not quantifiable, or which does not fulfil the threshold as specified in A(i)
above, but the outcome of which could, nonetheless directly or indirectly, or together with similar
other proceedings, have a material adverse effect on the business, operations, performance,
prospects, financial position or reputation of our Company.

B. Any pending litigation / arbitration proceedings (other than litigations mentioned in points (i) to (iii)
above) involving any person other than the Relevant Parties shall be considered “material” for the
purposes of disclosure in this Offering Memoragndum, if the outcome of such litigation could have a
material adverse effect on the business, operations, performance, prospects, financial position or
reputation of the Company.

It is clarified that for the purposes of the above, pre-litigation notices received by our Company, Promoters,
Directors from third parties (other than notices issued by statutory/regulatory/tax authorities or notices
threatening criminal action) have not and shall not, unless otherwise decided by our Board, be considered as
material litigation until such time that our Company, the Subsidiaries, Promoters, Directors, as the case may
be, are impleaded as a defendant/s in proceedings before any judicial / arbitral forum.

Unless stated to the contrary, the information provided below is as of the date of this Offering Memorandum.
All terms defined herein in a particular litigation disclosure pertain to that litigation only.

We have also disclosed matters relating to direct and indirect taxes involving the Relevant Parties in a
consolidated manner giving details of number of cases and total amount involved in such claims.
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Litigation involving our Company
Litigations against our Company

Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities

NIL
Civil Proceedings

NIL
Criminal proceedings

NIL

Litigations by our Company

Civil proceedings
NIL
Criminal proceedings
NIL
Matters filed by our Bank under Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881
NIL

Litigation involving our Promoters
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities
NIL
Civil proceedings
NIL
Criminal litigation
NIL
Disciplinary action taken against our Promoters in the five Fiscals preceding the date of this Offering
Memorandum by SEBI or any stock exchange
NIL

Litigation involving our Directors
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities
NIL
Civil proceedings
NIL
Criminal litigation
NIL

Tax proceedings
Set out herein below are details of claims relating to direct and indirect taxes involving our Company,
Promoters and Directors.

Nature of Cases Number of cases Amount involved (in X Lakhs)
Company

Direct NIL NIL

Indirect NIL NIL

Directors

Direct NIL NIL

Indirect NIL NIL

Promoters

Direct NIL NIL

Indirect NIL NIL

Micro, small and medium enterprises or any other creditors- NIL
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LIMITED REVIEW REPORT

[To be attached separately]

RRK & Associates

Chartared Accountants
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LIMITED REVIEW REPORT ON THE UN-AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS OF
SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMTED, PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF
REGULATION 33 OF THE SEBI (LISTING, OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015,

Ta

Baard of Directors of Sampre Nutritions Limdited
Hyderahad.

We have revlewed the BLcompanying stetement of unaudited financial results of
Sampra Nutritions Limited (the “Company”) for the period ended December 31,

This: statement is the respongibility af the Company's Management and has boan
approved by the Board of Derectors of the Company. The preparation of ithe

We conducted our review In accordance with the Standard on Raview Engagement
(SRE) 2410, “Review of Interm Financial Information  Performed by the
Indepandent Auditer of the Entity” Issued by the Institute af Charterod
Accountants of India, This standard requires that we plan and perform the review
o obtain moderate assurance as to whether the financlal statements are fras of
material misstatement. A review is limited primarity to inquiries of company
parsonnel and analytical procedures applied ta financial date and thus provides
le== assurance than an audit. We have fot performed an audit and accordingdy, we
00 not express an swudt aplnion,

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come o our sttention Ehat
Causas us to belimve that the accompanying statement of wralidited financial
results prepared in secordanes with gpplicable sccounting standards and othar
recognized accounting practices and policies has nat disdased the infarmation
required to be disclosod In terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disciosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 including the manner in which it
i to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement,

Branch - 0 Mo T-130 Fiar Mo 1L Labisn Garaao Resadency, ™alkswan Boed Arasthapor - 515 000 Andha Prodes
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LIMITED REVIEW REPORT ON THE UN-AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS OF
SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMTED, PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF
REGULATION 33 OF THE SEBI (LISTING, OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015,

Our opinlon en the Statement is not modified In respect of the above matters

For RRK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRMODOFESS

gjhsﬂ;?& .‘
R.Radha Krizshna
Partner

M.No.210777

Date: 09" February, 2023
Place: Hyderabad

DIN Mo: 2321077 TEGTIDGZBA8

Fage 2|2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

M/s. RRK & Associates, Chartered Accountants is the independent statutory auditors with respect to our
Company as required by the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the guidelines prescribed by ICAI.

The standalone financial statements of the Issuer as of and for each of the financial year ending on 31 March
, 2020, 2021 and 2022 have been audited by M/s. RRK & Associates, Chartered Accountants.

Further, M/s. RRK & Associates, is registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India under
number (Firm Registration No. [009785 S] and has its registered address at #A04, IFF The Annexe, Near
Hitech City Rly Station, 13th Phase, KPHB, Hyderabad-500085
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SERVICE OF PROCESS AND ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The enforcement by investors of civil liabilities under the securities laws of jurisdictions outside India, including
the ability to effect service of process and to enforce judgments of foreign courts may be affected adversely by
the fact that the Company is incorporated as a limited liability company under the laws of India and a majority
of the Company’s executive officers, Directors and all of the experts named in this Offering Memorandum, are
residents of India. A substantial part of the Company’s assets and the assets of all of its executive officers,
Directors and all of experts named in this Offering Memorandum, are also located in India. As a result, it may
be difficult to effect service of process outside India upon the Company and these persons or to enforce foreign
judgments obtained against the Company and these persons, including judgments predicated upon the civil
liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States.

India is not a party to any international treaty in relation to the recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments.
Recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Section 13 and Section 44A of the
Indian Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, and subsequent amendments thereto (the “Civil Code”). Section 44A of
the Civil Code provides that where a foreign judgment has been rendered by a superior court in any country or
territory outside India which the Government has by notification declared to be a reciprocating territory, it may
be enforced in India by proceedings in execution as if the judgment had been rendered by the relevant court in
India. Section 44A of the Civil Code is applicable only to monetary decrees not being in the nature of amounts
payable in respect of taxes or other charges of like nature or in respect of fines or other penalties and does not
include arbitration awards, even if such awards are enforceable as a decree or judgment. Certain territories
which inter alia include, The United Kingdom, Luxembourg, and Hong- Kong have been declared by the
Government to be reciprocating territories within the meaning of Section 44A of the Civil Code. The United
States and Luxemburg have not been declared by the Government to be a reciprocating territory for the
purposes of Section 44A.

In the case of reciprocating territories, a judgment of a court outside India may be enforced either by initiating
execution proceedings pursuant to Section 44A of the Civil Code or by a suit upon it. However, in the case of a
non-reciprocating territory such as the United States and Luxemburg, a judgment of a court outside India may
be enforced in India only by a suit upon the judgment, subject to Section 13 of the Civil Code and not by
proceedings in execution. Section 13, which is the statutory basis for the recognition of foreign judgments (other
than arbitration awards), states that a foreign judgment is conclusive as to any matter directly adjudicated upon
except:

Where the judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction;

Where the judgment has not been given on the merits of the case;

Where the judgment appears on the face of the proceedings to be founded on an incorrect view of international
law or a refusal to recognise the law of India in cases where such law is applicable;

Where the proceedings in which the judgment was obtained were opposed to natural justice;

Where the judgment has been obtained by fraud; or

Where the judgment sustains a claim founded on a breach of any law in force in India.

The suit must be brought in India within three years from the date of the judgment in the same manner as any
other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. Generally, there are considerable delays in the disposal of suits
by Indian courts. It is unlikely that a court in India would award damages on the same basis as a foreign court if
an action is brought in India. Furthermore, it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if
it viewed the amount of damages awarded as excessive or inconsistent with Indian practice. A party seeking to
enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval from the RBI under FEMA to repatriate
any amount recovered. We cannot predict whether a suit brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in a
timely manner or be subject to considerable delays.
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LISTING AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Listing
Application will be made for the Bonds to be admitted to AFRINEX, Mauritius and to be admitted for
listing on the ASL, in accordance with the rules of that exchange.

For so long as the Bonds are admitted to listing on the Securities List of AFRINEX, Mauritius and the
rules of that exchange require, copies of the following documents may be inspected and obtained free of
charge at the specified office of the Paying Agent and Company’s registered office during normal business
hours on any weekday:

the organizational documents of the Issuer;

the most recent audited standalone financial statements of the Issuer; and
Agency Agreement
A copy of the Offering Memorandum

The issuer shall ensure that notices in respect of the Bonds are duly published in a manner which
complies with the rules and regulations of AFRINEX and the rules of Afrinex, Mauritius so require, notices
will also be published on the website of AFRINEX, Mauritius. Any such notice shall be in English and shall
be deemed to have been given on the date of such publication, or if published more than once or on
different dates, on the first date on which publication is made.

We have appointed SBM Fund Services Limited, as our paying agent; its address is SBM Tower 1,
Queen Elizabeth Il Avenue, Port Louis, Mauritius]

The issue of the Bonds was authorised by a special resolution of the Shareholders of the Company
passed through E- Voting on December 22, 2022. The terms of the offering and the issue of the Bonds
were approved pursuant to a resolution contained in Company Postal Ballot dated 12th November, 2022
has been passed as 99.9% of the total votes casted were in favour of the passing of the Resolution.

Except as disclosed in this Offering Memorandum, we have not been involved in any governmental,
legal or arbitration proceeding relating to claims or amounts that are material and may have or have
had during thel2 months preceding the date of this Offering Memorandum, a significant effect on our
financial condition nor so far as we are aware is any such litigation or arbitration pending or threatened.

As of the date of this Offering Memorandum, the most recent audited standalone financial
statements available for the Issuer were as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023. Except as disclosed
in this Offering Memorandum, there has been no significant or material adverse change in our financial
condition or prospects since March 31, 2023.

The Principle Paying Agent will be acting in its capacity of Principle Paying Agent for the holders of
the Bonds and will provide such services to the holders of the Bonds as described in the Agency Agreement

Settlement Information

The Bonds have been accepted for settlement through the facilities of Afrinex Clearing House Limited.
Certain trading information with respect to the Bonds is set forth below.

ISIN: MUO000000321 Common code
Regulation S Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds .

160



General Information

1.

The Company was incorporated under the Companies Act in India and is registered with the
Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad. The Company’s corporate identity number is
L15499TG1991PLC013515. The Company’s registered office is situated at Plot no 133, Industrial
Estate, Medchal, Hyderabad, Telangana -- 501401.

The Company’s principal object being :-

b)

c)

d)

The main objects of the Company as set out in its MoA are as follows:

To manufacture, produce & process food products, beverages, soft drinks, confectionary
products, medicinal formulations, ayurvedic & unani formulations, cosmetics, toiletries,
personal care, health care, personal hygiene, sanitary, beauty care, casual medicines etc.

To buy sell, manufacture to carry on liaison work, act as agents, importers, exporters,
distributors. Stockists and to represent manufacturers, producers, importers, exporters of food
and other health care products, together with various allied items to market in India or abroad
for both Indian & foreign companies, firms, merchants either individually or in association with
any other person or persons.

To acquire, develop, process and deal in scientific know-how and process of manufacturing food
and other health products.

To take up projects and enter into collaboration agreements in India or abroad for setting up
similar industries to manufacture or to deal in food and other health products.

To manufacture, fabricate machineries, import, export equipment, necessary types and dyes
and any other article or articles considered necessary for manufacturing food and other health
products.

The objects are set out in Clause IlIA of the Memorandum of Association. The Company operates its
business in conformity with its constitutional documents.

1.

The Independent Auditors who have audited the Company’s standalone financial statements for
fiscal 2021, 2022 and 2023, have rendered audit reports in respect of the Company’s financial
statements which they have audited, and these audit reports are set out on pages 120-. The
qualifications referred to in their audit reports are shown in the Auditor’s Reports contained in
this Offering Memorandum.

The Company prepared its financial statements as at and for fiscal 2021, 2022 and 2023 and its
unaudited financial statements as at 31% March 2023 and for the 9 months ended on 31%
December, 2023, each as contained herein, in conformity with Indian GAAP which differs in
certain material respects from IFRS.

Except as disclosed in this Offering Memorandum, there has been no significant change in the
Company’s financial or trading position and no material adverse change in the Company’s
financial position or prospects since March 31, 2023

Except as disclosed in this Offering Memorandum, the Company is not involved in any material
litigation or arbitration proceedings that may have, or have had during the 12 months preceding
the date of this Offering Memorandum, a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position, nor, so far as the Company is aware, are there any such proceedings pending or
threatened.
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10.

The Agency Agreement and the Bonds are governed by English law. The Company’s submission
to the jurisdiction of the English courts and the appointment of an agent for service of process
are valid and binding under Indian law.

The Bonds provide for the Principle Paying Agent to take action on behalf of the Bondholders in
certain circumstances, but only if the Principle Paying Agent is prefunded, indemnified and/or
provided with security to its satisfaction. It may not be possible for the Principle Paying Agent to
take certain actions and accordingly in such circumstances the Principle Paying Agent will be
unable to take such actions, notwithstanding the provision of an indemnity to it, and it will be
for the Bondholders to take such actions directly. The Principle Paying Agent may require any
such indemnity to be given on joint and several basis.

The Principle Paying Agent may rely without liability to Bondholders on any certificate prepared
by the directors or authorised officers of the Company and accompanied by a certificate or
report prepared by the auditors of the Company or an internationally recognized firm of
accountants or any expert called for or provided to the Principle Paying Agent pursuant to the
Conditions and/or the Agency Agreement satisfactory to the Principle Paying Agent, whether or
not addressed to the Principle Paying Agent and whether or not the auditors of the Company or
the internationally recognized firm of accountants’ liability in respect thereof or the liability of
any expert is limited by a monetary cap or otherwise limited or excluded. Any such certificate or
report shall in the absence of manifest error be conclusive and binding on the Company, the
Principle Paying Agent, and the Bondholders.

For so long as the Bonds are listed on AFRINEX, Mauritius and the rules of the Afrinex Securities
List so require, the Company will appoint and maintain a paying agent, where the Bonds may be
presented or surrendered for payment or redemption, in the event that the Global Certificate is
exchanged for Certificates in definitive form. In addition, in the event that the Global Certificate
is exchanged for Certificates in definitive form, announcement of such exchange shall be made
by or on behalf of the Company through the AFRINEX, Mauritius and such announcement will
include all material information with respect to the delivery of the Certificates in definitive form.

The Conditions do not provide Bondholders with any participating rights in the event of a
takeover offer for the Shares.

The address of the Company’s website is https://www.sampreltd.com/ Information contained
on this website does not constitute part of this Offering Memorandum.
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S.no. Particulars
1 Unaudited Financial Statements as on Apr-Dec 2023
2 Standalone Audited Statement Financial Results for the year ended 315t March,
2023

3 Standalone Balance Sheet for the year ended March 31, 2023

4 Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statement Year ended 31*
March, 2023

5 Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statement Year ended 31
March, 2022

6 Standalone Balance Sheet for the year ended March 31, 2022

7 Standalone Statement of Profit and loss for year ended March 31, 2022

8 Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2022

9 Standalone Statement of Change in Equity Year ended 315 March, 2022

10 Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements Year ended 31% March, 2022

11 | Independent Auditor’s Report of the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year

ended 31 March, 2021

12 Standalone Balance Sheet for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

13 Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31% March, 2021

14 Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31 March, 2021

15 Standalone Statement of changes in Equity for the Year ended 31 March, 2021

16 Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the Year ended 31 March, 2021
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Chartered Accountants
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Mear Hitech City Railway Station
KPHE, Hyderabad - 500 085
Tefangana, Cell : SO000 | 1445
E-mmil caradhakrizhna@gmail oo

% RRK & Associates

LIMITED REVIEW REPORT ON THE UN-AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS OF
SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMTED, PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF
REGULATION 33 OF THE SEBI (LISTING, OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015.

To
Board of Directors of Sampre Nutritions Limited
Hyderabad.

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results of
Sampre Nutritions Limited (the "Company”) for the period ended December 31,
2023 together with notes thereon (the "Statement”). This statement s the
responsibility of the Company’s Management and has been approved by the Board
of Directors. Our responsibility is to issue a report on these financial statements
based on our review.

This statement is the responsibility of the Company’s Management and has been
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The preparation of the
statement is in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in the Indian Accounting Standards 34, “Interim Financial Reporting”(Ind
AS), prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant
rules there under and other accounting principles generally accepted In India. Our
responsibility Is to issue a report on the statement based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagement
(SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity* issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review
to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company
personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides
less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we
do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to belleve that the accompanying statement of unaudited financial
results prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and other
recognized accounting practices and policles has not disclosed the information
required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including the manner in which It
Is to be disclosed, or that It contains any material misstatement.

Bore
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LIMITED REVIEW REPORT ON THE UN-AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS OF
SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMTED, PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF
REGULATION 33 OF THE SEBI (LISTING, OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015.

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matters

For RRK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRMOD9785%

|
-

—

R.Radha Krishna
Partner
M.No. 210777

DIN No: 242107 77TBKASCS8767

Date: 12" February, 2024
Place: Hyderabad
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Audited
Standalone Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to the Regulation
33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended

(_As RRK & Associates

To
The Board of Directors of
Sampre Mutritions Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date
standalone financial results of BSE Limited (the “Company™) for the quarter and
year ended March 31, 2023 (“Statement”), attached herewith, being submitted by
the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (the
"Listing Regulations™).

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Statement:

l. 1= presented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations in
this regard; and

il. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net profit, other
comprehensive income and other financial information of the Company for the
quarter and year ended March 31, 2023,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the
Act™). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“aAuditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results”
section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalene annual financial
statements. The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the Staterment that gives a true and fair view of
the net profit and other comprehensive income of the Company and other finapelal--
information in accordance with the applicable accounting standards prestl -




under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with
Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. This responsibility also Inciudes
maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Staternent that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error In preparing the Statement,
the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors elther intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Results

Cur abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abaut whether the Statement
as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to Issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect 8 material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material [f,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the clrcumstances. Under
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.




= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pollcies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going
concern basls of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial results or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the
underlylng transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, ameong other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

Other Matters

The Statement Includes the financial results for the quarter ended 31 March, 2023,
being the balancing figures between the audiced figures In respect of the full
financial year and the published unaudited year-to-date flaures up to the third
quarter of the current financial year, which were subject to limfted review by us.

For REK & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.O0O97855

oL L&

R.Radha Krishna
Parthner
M.No.210777
UDIN: 232707 77BGTILLT6E

Place: Hyderabad
Date;30/05/2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To The Members of SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Report on the Finandial Statemeants

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statemenls of SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
(*the company*}), which comprise the Balance Sheset as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
anded, and a summary of slgnificant accounting policies and other explanatory Inforrmation,

In our opinion and to the best of aur Information and accarding to the explanations given o us, thia
afaresaid financial statements, glve the information required by the Act In the manner so recquired
and give a true and falr view In conformily with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India;

a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company a5 at March 31, 2022;

b In the case of the Statement of Profit and Logs, of the profit for the year ended on that date;
and

¢} Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, af the cash Mows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described In the
Auditer's Respensibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements sectlon of our report. We are
Independant of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant (o our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
there undsr, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblalned is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinlon,

Key Audit Mattars

Key audit matters are those mattars that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed In the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming alf
opinion thereon, and we do not pravide & separate opinlen on these matters.

We have determined that there were no such key auvdit matters to commurifcate in our report.

Responsibility of Managament for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Baard of Directors s responsible for the matters |n section 134({5) of the
Companies Ack, 2013 ("the ACE") with respect to the preparation of theze financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financlal performance and cash [lows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, Including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specilied under Section 133 of tha Acl, read with Rule 7
of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the malnten-:{me of
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adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the
asseta of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of Internal financlal
control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
glve a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as @ going concern, disclosing, as applicabla, matbers related o going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends Lo liguidate the
Company or to cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Dur objectives are to abtaln reasenable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a
whole are free from maberial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable essurance ks a high level of assuranca, but =
not & guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerod
material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be axpected to influence the
econamilc decisions of users taken on the basic of these financial statements.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Drder, 2020 (“the Order™) issucd by the Central
Government of India In terms of sub-sectlon (11) of section 143 of the act, we given in the
“Annexure A' statement on the matters specified In the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to the
extent applicable.

Ais required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of aur
knowledge and belief were nacessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account &s required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books,

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of atcount,

d) 1In our oplnion, the aforesaid financlal statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

&) On the basis of written representations recelved fram the directors as on 31 March, 2022,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is disqualified as on 31 March,
2022, from being appointed as a director In terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

£ With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrels ovar financlal reparting af the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
‘Annexure B, and

g) With respect to the other matters Included In the Auditors Report in accordance with the Rule
11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, to our best of our info i and
according to the explanatons glven to us @ . =



I. The Company has disclosed the impact of panding litlgations on |ts financlal position in its
standalone Minancial statements.

ii, Company did not have any long-term contracts incuding derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foresecable losses

iii. Thera has been no delay in transfarring amaunts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

bv. {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and bellef, other
than as disclosed in the Note to the Standalone Financial Staterments, no funds have
bean advanced or loaned or invested (elther from borrowed funds or share premium or
any ather sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(les) Including foreign entities (“Intermediaries” ), with the understanding,
whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
Indirectly bend or Invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsogver
by ar on behalf of the Company ["Ultimate Beneficiares®) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ullimale Beneficiaries,

{b) The Management has represanted, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either Individually or in tha aggregate) have been recelved by
the Company from any person or entity, Including forelgn entities (*Funding Parties™),
with the undarstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwiza, that the Company
shall, whether, direstly or indirectly, land or Invest in obther persans ar entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimata
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimale
Beneficiaries;

{ €} Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and approprate
In the elreumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i} and (il} of Rule 11{e), as provided In {a) and
(b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or pakd any dividend during the year in contravention of the
orovislons of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

With respect to the matter to be included In the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best our Information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its director during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section197 aof the Act, The remuneration paid to directors
I not In excess of the limit laid down under section 197 (16) which are required bto be
commentad upon by us.

For R R K & Assoclaltes
Chartered Accountants

FAM Mo, 097855
‘}'!1 n_:ﬁéb o,
i e R

. Radha Krishna

Fartner

M. Mo 210777

UDiN: 222107 TTRIUFVL2ZS22

Date: 28/05/2022
Place: Hydembad



Annexure A’ To The Independent Auditor's Report
{This is the Annexure referred to in our Report of even date)

To the hest of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the baoks of account and records examined by us In the normal course of audil, we state that:

R In respect of the Company's Properly, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assels:
(a) (A} The Company has maintained preper records showing Full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Planlt and Equipment and refevant
details of right-of-use assets,

{B) The Company has malntained proper records showing full particulars of intangibie
assets.

(b} The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and
right=of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our epinlon, Is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the rature of its assels. Pursuant o
the pragram, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year
and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

{c) Based on our verification and according to the explanations provided Lo us by the
Company, we report that, the title in respect of free hold land as disdesed In the finandal
statements Included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the
Cranpany as al the balance sheet date.

(d} The Company has not revalued any of its Properly, Plant and Equipment {including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(&} Ne proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending agairnst the Company
as ot March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prehibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} and rules made thereu nder.

Bl

a. The physical verfication of inventory {excluding stocks with third parties) has been
conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, In our
npinian, the coverage and procedures of such werification by Management |s
appropriate. In respect of Inventories of slores and spares, the Management has
aporopriate verification programme designed to cover all the items. The discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not
10% ar more in aggregate for each dass of inventory.

b, The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, In
aggregale, from banks on the basis af security of current assets, acconding to the
Information and explanation given to us and on the basis of records examined by ws,
the quarterly returns and statements comprising stock and creditors statemants, ool
debts and other stipulated financial information filed by the company with banks are
not having material differences with the unaudited books of account of the Company
for such respectlive quarters,

iii, The Company has not made any investments In, or nol provided any guaranbee or security or
grankted any loans or advances In the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
lirms, Limited Lizbility Partnerships, or Lo other parties, during the year, except for unsecured
trade advances In normal course of business and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the
Drder s not applicable, 3

iv. The Company has been complied with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companles
#ict, 2013 wherever applicable In respect of loans, imvestments, guarantees, and security.



wi.

wil.
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The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, accordingly, the paragraph 3
(v} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
not required to malntain cost records and accounts as provided under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, accordingly, the paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

{a) According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on records provided
to us, the Company has not been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dires, Including
Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Servica Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to It with the appropriate authorities. Thera have been skynificant
delays in large number of cases in depositing statutory dues with appropriate autharities.

Further according to the information and explanations given to us, except for below
mentioned, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respecl of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tox, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more thon six months from the date they became
payvable.

| Particulars ‘Rs. In Lakhs |
EFF 5 13.67

| EST 2.42
o5 A 1CS 14.58
Professlonal Tax b e

(b) According to the records of the Company and on the basis of the information and
explanations given to us, except for below mentioned, there are no dues In respect of VAT,
Service Tax, Duty of Excise, Income Tax, customs duty, waalth tex that have nol been
deposited with the appropriate authorities en account of any disputa.

Mature of | Perlad to  which | Forum  Where the | Armount In Lakhs.
Dues the amount | dispute Is pending
relates ~
Central Excise | F.Y.2010-11 DGCET Re 86 24
Ack, 1994

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
eurrendered or disclosed as Income during the year in the lax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1561).

fa) hccording to the Information and uxplanation given to us, as also on the basis of the
books and recards examined by us, the Company hae not defaulted in repayment of dues Lo
financial institutions or banks or any lenders. The Company has not taken any loan or
barrawing fram Government and has not issued any debentures during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financlal Institution or
governmant of any government authority.

{£) According to the information and axplanation given to us and on the basis of the books
and recards examined by us, the term loans taken during the year have been applied for the
purpose for which those were obtained.

11
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(d} Aceording to the Information and explanation given to us and an an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we mport that funds ralsed on short term basis
hrave ot been utifised for long term purposes,

(@) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account af or to meaet the obligations of its
associate companies,

(F) According to the information and explanation given to us and as per our examination, the
Company has not ralsed any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or assoclate Compandes,

{a) The Company has not ralsed moneys by way of Initfal public affer or further public offer
lincluding debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable,

{b] During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or cenvertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order I8 not applicable.

(@) Mo fraud by the Company and no matedal froud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b} Mo report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has bean filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report

(e} The Company has not recelved any whistle blower complaints during the vaar (and upto
the date of this report), and hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order iz not
applicabla.

The Company is not a Nidhl Company and hence reporting under clause (xii} af the Order |5
not applicable,

In our epinien, the Company is in enmpliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed In the standalone financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(a) According to the information and explanation glven to us, and In our opinion the company
has an adeguate internal audit system commensurate with the slze and nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the Internal audit reports for the year, issued to the Company during
the year and LIl date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procadunss.

In our opinien during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with [ts Directars or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192
af the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

{a} In our opinjon, the Company IS not required o be registered under section 43-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvij(a}, (b} and (c} of Lhe:
Order |s not applicable.

(b5} In our opinion, there is no core Investment company within the Group {as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions; 2016) and accorlingly reporting
under clause 3{xvii(k) of the Order 15 not applicabie. 4

- RS
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The Company has not incurred any cash lasses durng the financlal year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financlal year, accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvii) of
the Order is not applicable.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financlal ratlos, agelng and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other Information accompanying the fnancial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Managament plans and based on
aur examination of the evidence supporting the assumptlons, rothing has come 1o oour
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertalnty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company Is not capable of meeting iLs liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of ane year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the aud|t
repolt and we nelther glve any guarantes nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due,

The Company Is not reguired to make provision towards Corporote Social Responsiblity
{CSR), accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order |5 not applicable for the year.

For K R K & Associates
Chariered Accountanls

=
- - ===l Tt
“R. Radha Krishna

Partnar

M.Me, 210777
UDIN: 222107 T7TAJUFVL2E22

Date: 26/05/2022
Flace: Hyderabad
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Annexurs - B to The Independant Auditor's Report

Report on tha Internal Financial Contrals under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companles Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the inkernal finencial ontrals over linanclial reporting of SAMPRE NUTRITIONS
LIMITED (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS
Financial Statements of the Campany lfor the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteda established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit cf
Internal Financlal Controls over Finandal Reporting issued by the [nstitute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*ICALY). These responaibilities include the design, Implementation and
malntenance of adeguate internal financial conlrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the
arderdy and efficient conduect of its business, induding adherence to company’'s pollcies, the
safequarding of ils assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy ond
completeness of the accounting records, and the tmely preparation of relisble fnancial
information, as required under the Companias Act, 2013,

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an oplnion on the Company's internal financial controls owver
financial reporting based on our audit. We contducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reperting (the “Gukdance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10} of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls, both
applicable to an oudit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Mete regquire that we comply with athical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate Internal financial controls over financial reparting was ectablished and malnkained and if
such controls cparated effectively In all material respacts.

Qur sudit Involves parforming procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financlal reparting and thelr operating effectiveness. Our
audit of Internal finandial controls over financial reporting Included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial eontrols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intarnal control based
an the assesced risk. The procedures sefected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the
asepgsment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Finandial Statements, whethar due
ta fraud or error, We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate
ta provide & basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s Intemal financlal centrols system. over
financlal reporting.

|

F
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Meaning of Internal Financial Centrols over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting Is o process designed Lo provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rellability of financial reperting and the preparation of Ind AS
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting Includes those policies and
pracedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of recards that, in reasonable detall, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2] provide reasonabla
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of nd AS Financlal
Siatements In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thal receipis and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
managemeant and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
aseets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS Financial Staterments.

Inhorent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the Inherent limitations of internal financlal controls over financial reporting, includirg
the possibllity of callusion or Improper management averride of controls, maoterial misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluatian of the
internal financlal controls over Mnancial reporting to future perods are subject ta the risk that the
intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate becausae af changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or proceduras may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respacts, an adequate intermal financial contreds
system ower financial reporting and such intermal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, hased on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Naote on Audit of Internal Finandal Controls Over Financial Reparting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For R R K & Associatas
Charbered Accolntants

Dabe:; 28/05/2022 !

Place: Hyderabad gt = | fi
. Radha Krishna
Partner

M.MNo 210777
UDIN; 2221077TAIUFVL2522
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Statement of prodit and |osa fog (he year ended Manh 31, 2022
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Cagh flow satanyent for the year andes) 1k March, 2022
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SAMPEEMUTHITIONS LIBATIED

 Stabemend of Changes in Equily for the year ended 3t March, 20¥2
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SAMTRE MUTRITIONS LIMITED
Muobes o funascial salcmenks
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITIEY
Mndies la fliandal slatemends
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SAMIPIEE MLTRITIONS LIMITED
Wnkes 1o finsisinl statomenes
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27, Contingent Habilitles not provided for in respect of;

SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements

The comgany wes in reoept of demansd onder in respect of Centeal Excise for Y 2000-11, againsi
the: said order, the company bas filed an appenl before the appellaie asthorifics in respective
Formama., The Conspany is expecting o favoralibe resalt frons the oppellate autharity,

28, Secured Loans ([Refer Molbe Blo14)

a.  Term loans From Bankss
The lorm loans from banks were availod for acquisilion ol Mankt & Maﬂn'nnr_'f.
constructions of [n.-l:l'nr].' I:-l.n.Il:Ei.nE' from “TheSonth Indian Bank Lid’. Dl.lr.i.l':ﬂ thie e, e
Company executed restructuring of existing ke loans under BBl Covid-19 scheme as

i
Particulars s In Rate of Repayment terms
Lakha [ Interest

Torm  loans - #8911 | 10.5% Repayable in range of 58 monihs to 111
Machinery iz months including moratorium pericd of
Factory Building Mmenths,
Working  Capital 12279 | 105% | Ropayable in 79 months including
Term Loan- miaratoriam peviod of T manths,
(WCTLA)
Punded Tnskerast TS0 | 10.25% Bepayable in YB  onlhs  including
tevm loan maratorium pariod of 18 months.
(FIT1.1, 2 &3}

The above stated terms loans were secured by equitable mortgnge of Tndustrial Froperty
of Jand & building sitwated in plot o133, Industrial estates, Medchal of the Company,
further secured by collateral asseds in the form of Immovable properties belonging to the
Promaoter Directors and their refatives, 18 s forther secored by persomnal guarantees of the
directors and their relatives.

b, Vehicle Loans from Banks:
Velicls Loans from banks are from Yes Bank Lid under hive purchase schemes, secured by
Iy pothecation of vehicles owned by the Company.

. Oither VWehicle Loan

Other wehicle loans were obtained from M/ Dalmiler Pinancial Services Imdia Pyblbd,
Mahindra & Mahindra Finmcial Services Tid and M/s Toyota Pnancial Service Lid under
hire purchase schomes, secured by hypothecation of vehicles owned by the Company.

29, Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Ad per the information avaflable with the company, it appears that no dues outstanding for more
than 30 days in excess of Ka,1.00 Lakh as on 31st March 2022 in respect of Small Scake Industrial
Undertakings, It is reported that there are no specific claims on the company from the small seale
industrial supplier under the “Interest on Delayed Payments te small Scale aned Ancillary
Industrial Undertaking Act, 1993 during the said year,

303, Payment to Awditors

Particulars 314 March, 2022 1% March, 2021
Audlif Fee 155
| Tax Audil Matters s 0.30
Certification & Other Services 01,20
Total 205
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Motes to financial statements

31, There are no debts outstanding as eo 31t March 2R2 from Directors or olker officers of the
comipany obher than lmprest cash iy ovder o mest nunning expenses,

32 Segment Reporting:

it} Dusiness Segment
The company’s business consists of one primary reportable uiiness segment of manufacudog of
sugar boiled andies & voffees and consisls of major revenue on acconnt of processing charges;
hence no separate disclosure is required in the context of Indian Accounting Standard 108

TCipesaling Segment”,

by Geagraphical Segment:
During the period under report, the Company has engaged ln ls business primarily within India
with two mapmfacturing facilities including of leasehold unit. The conditions prevalling in Indin
Leing uniferm, no separate peopgraphieal dischosure is considered necessary,

33, Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability]):

The movement of Provision of Deferred Tax for the year ended 31-00-2022 |s as given below:

(SAMPRE

Particulars Aswetf Recognised | Others Asset/
{Liability} | m Profit & {Liability)
As on Loss As on
R JL0a.2021 Account FL.03.2022
Timing Differences on
account of Depreciation (F2.53) (1.14) (71.38)
Linabsorbed Tas Losses
® ik Lioss)] 12.65 (7.58) - 5,05
MAT Credit Entitlernent/ & 49
(Utilisation) _ Bg2 G40 1
Total G | (3 - (5102 |

34, Earnings per Share (EPS)
The earnings considered in ascertaining the company's Earnings per share comprise of et profil

afler tax. The number of shares used in computing Baske earnings per share is the weiglted
average number of shares outstanding during the year. The mumerators and denaminators wsed
to calculate earmings per share.

Particules 2021-22 _ 20-21
Profit attribulable lo Bquity Share Holdess (A)
(Rs. In Lakhs) a7 7.55

Basic / Weighted Average Mumber of Bquity
Shases outstanding during the year (B}

| (Mo & in Lakhs) 4820 : 4R, A
Nominal value of each equity Share Ra 104~ Ks.10/-
EBarnings Per share {144 016
Diluted EPS 0.64 D16

r LY

| %

I\\
Y/
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED @]

Motes to Minancial statements

35, Taxes on income

The company made necessary provision for ioeme b as per the provisions of income fax ach,
1581,

6. Financial dsk management and policies

36,1  Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments m light of changes in
economic conditiony and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjus!
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharehelders, retum
capital to shareholders or fssue new shames, The Company manitors capital using a graring
ratio, which is net debt divided by intal capital plos net debt. The Compang's policy is o keep
optimum gearing ratio, The Company includes within net deld, mterest bearing loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontiniued

operatizns,
Year ensded Yoar seeled
March 31, 2022 Blarch 7, 2031

g FAFFALE
{inchuding Current matarities of kg lemns delas) B s k)

Tridde payaides =TS 8448
Dityer financial Uabilishes 1G58 [T
Lasas: Cisly anel cash equivalent 453 073
et debas {A] ETTTE AR
Tatal Equity(i) 110955 LINE.16
Capital and net debt{C=A 4B 3FIs 3,770
| Gearing Rithn (%) (A/C) = am

362  Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial labilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and othee
gayables. The main purpose of these financial linbilities is lo finance and support the
Company's operations. The Company's prifcipal financial assets comprise investments, cash
and bank balance, trade and other receivables.

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such s market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk, The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in sccordance with

the Company’s policies and risk objectives.
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED

Notes to financial statemants

Markel risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the foancial risk of changes in foregn
currency exchange rates and changes in interest mates. There have been no changes to the
Company's exposure o market risk or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk
in recent past.

barket risk is the rlsk that the [air valae of Fubure cash Aows of a Brancial insteaswent will
fluctuate becanse of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk:
interest rate visk and corrency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
barrowings and bank deposits.

Interest rate rigk

Interest rate risk is the risk thal the falr value or futore cash flivws of o financial nstremenl
will fluctuate because of changes in market intercst rabes, The Company’s exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest vabes is Hmited o the Company has only fixed deposst with
Traik .

it Foreign currency risk

Farelgn currency risk is the risk that the Fair walue or future cash Aows of an exposure will
Auciuaie because of changes in forelgn exchange mics. The Campany’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rabes melabs primarly to the Company’s Finarcial Liabilliies.
The Company’s foreign carrency risks are identified, measured and managed at periodic
intervala in accordance with the Company’s policies.

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will default on lis contractual obligations resulting in
financial lass o the company, The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy customers,

In many cases an apprapriate advance or letter of eredil [ bank guarantes 15 taken from the
customers ko cover the tisk. In other cases credit limit is granted o customer after assessing
tie credit worthiness based on the information supplied by credit mting agencies, publicly
available financial information or ik awn past rading records and trends.

At March 31, 2022, the company did not consider there to be mny significant concentration of
credit tisk, which had not bem adequately provided for, The carrying amount of the financial
ausels recorded in the financial stalements, gressed up for any allowarces for losses,
represants the maximum exposure bo credit risk.

"

(SAMPRE]

33



SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED

Haotes to financial statements

[

av.

Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sdequate reserves and banking
facilities, by contimmonsly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the
matarity profiles of financinl aseets and Habilites for the Company. The Company has
established an approprinte liguidity risk management {ramework for it's shovl-term, msdiom

termn and kong-=term funding requirement.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s fimancial labilites based
on contractusl undizcounted payments:

s, In lakh|

Pagficulars Carrpiag Value Less thanm Tyear | 1-5 yeass =8 yeam
Fefasch ¥4, M2

Traihe vl ndher paynbles TR ARG

Crihwr Tiassinl lialdliies TR 165

Tlarch 33, B0

Borrowlngs LR L HE

Trade avel ther payables FTRE] ELE

Dother financial linbikties T 7]

Fair Value messwrement

The falr value of the financial assets are included at amounts at which the instruments could
be exchanged in a cument transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or

Tigguiiciation sale.

The fallowing methods and assumpticns were usod to ostimaka the falr value:

{a) Fair value of cash and shert term deposits, trude and other short berm receivables, bade
payables, other current linbilities, approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the

shard-ferm maturities of these inatruments.

(b) Fleancial instruments with fixed and varlable interest rates are evaluated by the Company

based on parameters such as interest rabes and Individual credit werthiness of the
counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are mken 1o account for the expected

lisses of {hese tecelvables,
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Motes to financlal statements

A. Finangial insteaments by category

XTI

The carrying vahin and fair value of financial instroments by eategories as at Pfarch 31,
2022 wera ag followes:

Firerwial Tirsainial
woota/ Mabdlithes nb fadr | sssriuflinldkiles al
A p walue theowgly praliy [air walue thooapgl Tatil ik
Male Mo or ks e i) Carrghag
Particulars edl eoat e bz
il grasal =TT
wyumi iniial | Bapileney g dalil | Masdsbay
gl rragiiee
Arels
[l Trovke mecwrvaliis A WAl BAD. | FTAD
i) Chiber limascial nsseis e} 12130 12150 12150
o} Cashh atd caaly vapuivalenl 9 725 25 [T
(1} Bank balanees (aiher
than cxsh and cash - = =
cijaivilen}
Lizbilities:
{n) Borrawing 1d& 15 212533 TR b b W
[} Fraife mud oibei paymldes [ R A% EHi B
A (Iyee—
(e O her finpncial Hehilicies 1713 ess 1{B.56 10854

B. The carrying vahue and fair value of Anancial instruments by categories as al March 31, 2021 were

as follows: -
Firancial Terianiial
s by liaillieles at s iailicies at
fatlr valee through i valee through ‘Tnda
: Amertised . Tk dir
Fariiculws HMobe Mo flx proiik o hoss ool EE;::E_ S

[ igrten] Lrmgraed

wpon doiilel | Miststary | upon iebish | Maeiory

imogil ks [ L]
LELTES
fiay Trale receivaldbes H [ i a1z GaT a3
(h] Crtlwey Ginancial assets Nt HEI i GLTY
{ry Cesh an cash egalvalend 9 T T3 973
{7 Bank balamers (idlisr
tha ezl mnd casfh r i "
eajilkwalent}
Tiakili e
[i1] Barrowirgs H&ki1s | Zizm LIZm | 22240
() Trnibs wind ofhar payailes i A AT LA Tr
i) Cibver Bnamcnl Bakilibes | 17 & 13 1.9 ( i s2ai iz o
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36, Belated Party Disclogures

“Related Parly Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Inchin are s

Tallows:

Mame of the velated partics and deseription of relationship

a) Enterprise which are owner o have significant inllucnce of or are partners with key
management personnel and their relative:

M.l'r:"- “.EJTH Indlustries Limited
bl . Baturalle Health Products T, Tid,

b} Key Managerial Personnol
Shri Brahma K Gurband (I
Shei Wizhal I Gucbpni {(WTE-YT)

) Related Farty Transactions:

Mame of Related Party Malure of irapsaction Current Year Frevious Year
Shri. Brahma KGurir;nI Managerial Remuneration 24.00 24.00
Shri Vishal K Gurbani Managerial RBemuneration Tl.69 10,69
Shri. Brahma K Gorbani Unsecured Borrowings Tob B9.56
Smi. Meera B Gurband Unsecured Borrowings {202) 137
Royas Industries Linsited Lease Rentals Gl 600,010
Royes Industries Limited Purchases of Faw Mataedal 381.29 42 87
Revyes Industries Limited Sale of Raw Materials 423.05 =
Royes Industries Limited | Sales of Machinery - 162,02
b) Balanoes receivable /Payable o

Asat March | Asat March
Pame of Belaled Parly Matire of lransaction 31, M2 a1, 20
Royes Industries Limited Recaivables 270,20 M1.67
Maturalle Health Products Put Lid Recelvables 29.55 20,53
Shri, Bralma K Gurbani Ureeacurad Borrowings 44T R 435,597
Smt. Meera B Gurbani Ungecured Borrowings a7.10 14412

¢} Disclostre of Unsecured Loans receivesd from Directors and Relatives of Direciors Parsuant to
Rulis 16A of Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 314 s as follows,

& Mo,

MWama of Lendier

Mature of Relation

Amiount

1 Shii. Brahma K Gurbani

[Hreehi

A47.63

2 Cmt, Meera B Curbomni

Relative of Directar

57D
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35 CIF Value of Tmports

Itaw materials

Packing maberials

Traded poods
Capital goods

FY 2021-22 (fs,) 2020-21 (Ks.)

(SAMPRE]

. Previcis yeads flgures have been re grouped / and or re-armanged wherever necessacy fo
confirm with the current year classifiction.

41, Provision for acoruing lability for Super Annuation / Retirement benefits have been made in
the basis of the lability as actually determined as ab the year end.

42, Depreciation has been provided on the straight-line mcthod as per the ratos prescribed ns of
Schodule IT of The Companies Act 2003,

43, There were no employees drawing remuneration of Ru600d lacs or more per annum or
Ru.5.00 lacs or more per month, if employed for part of the pear,

dd, Miers and Medivum Seale Boginesz Bnlites: There are no micre, small and mediam
enterprises, o whom the compary over dues, which are oulstanding lor more than 45 days as
at Xlst March 2022, This information s required to be disclosed under the Micro, Bmall and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 206 has been defermined to the extent such partias
have been identified on the basis of informaticn svailable with He company.

45, Ratios
Varkiwr
Pasticulare MNaiseimlor [Lrenominnior ot in% Holes
ALOR 0 30507
(i) Current Ratio {ln
i Current aveein Cutrend lalilifoe 11 1 11.E%
E] Cheii-Equdiy Patin Slsaie Haililiis
il “Total Dbt Peuiby 24§ 0 L7%
(e} Dl Sepwkos Covergee | Earnings Avalloble
Fitio fior Dalst Servien [Chabi Beryicn 1 1.2 i 1
fal) Fetarmnn Byuty Ratio owy Shae
timk ] Ben Peodil afier Tax- | Holders Touity 15% A% B3 P
) Trvpevatiory Briie
i [ timwes Twarien Avernpe Invenbory » L ) 3
il Teade Broeivables Average Trade
v walio {ln Himes) Turmowes Revivabhes 5 ) 11.5%
11 Towd e pay whiia Avermgy Trada )
harvensier milka {Tn limes) Parchases Tayaldes 10 i AAEE | 4
{111 Meet enpital fumover Workdny Capilal
raibin (In binies) Turnoees ¥k (i | SIRT R 5
£} Khet preodi) sl h %] et Prahk siter Tax | Turnower Li% A% NIIE &
i) Betern o Capital Earmilngs befare
ermployed {in &) Inlereat mnad T Capial Employed BEL 7.0% 24.9%
[ st e vestment
[im %) - k
Wuolag:
1) M by b enargins mid domprros e during fha yaar,
9} Faatica it miprorve] vith imceesssed] salon ¢ maerging during (e year after Cosid fmngact b

T4 Ratzada improend with incevased asles ¢ marging during the yeor afer Covhd inspact
oy T b clizrsini i Joby werek males o deenzase (s sibes duaring the yenr
24 Teabin i fmpuimvnd due o betier werkings caplial mnagmenl

#) Peakin is [mepeovod with inomased salin § srgine cimyg the year alter Covicd ingpact.
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464, Additienal Information prursunt o provisions of the Compankes Act, 2003,
m) The Company does it have any Benami propecty, where any proceedings has been
imitinted or pending sgainst the Company for holding Berami property.

B The Company has o working copital Umits of Po0L00 Lakhs comprising of fund based
lintdtz of Bs 52500 Lakhs and non-fund besed [imits of Ra, 26500 Lakha, For the said
credit farilitics, the company has submitled stock and book debt statements o the londer
bank on monthly/ quarkerdy basis and there s no material differences with the books of
accouils for the year.

c} The f..'nm]_:nn:lr Iz ol been declared mu o weilbinl defaulber |.'r:.I any bank or hoancial
instituition or any other lender.

d) The Company do not have any such transactions which has not been reconded in the
books of nccounts bat has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments ander the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as sewch or survey or any other
relevant provisions of e Tncome Tax A, 7961

¢l The Company does not have any transactions with struck off Companics,

The Compuny dass not have any charges or satisfaction which is yot to be regishered
with ROC bayond the statu tory perioad.

g} Tha Company has not traded or invested in Crypto corrency or Virtual Corrency during
the finanenal Yo

hi| Cuantitative Details;

{As certified by Managemant of the Company)

Padicalars By 2021-22 Y -2
Cruantity Yalue (K, Druantily Value (Ha,
(Kz) Lalhs) (Kg) Lakhs)

Opening Stock 651151 J23.22 THREIG FICLG2
Produrken [EuE_I_'__hMEd canies) TalET s A A7 7244 A
Closing Stock [ L e PR AE1151 TE029
Sales - Own product (Sugar based candios

Confechionery) & [ob Work '.'-"'.514-12'.'-’ _ PRI e i
Sales - Job Wark = = " %

‘The quantitative detail indicated above includes production e dispatches made on principal to

principal basks and Loan license basis,
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Material Congiimied Fyana-2 FY H20-21
Quantity (Kgh | Valuein Cruamlity Value in
Lalkshs (Ke] Lakshs
Ko Makerial (Ma, J Epa)
. Supar 532087 195.02 333117 12162
- Glugose 443584 377 277240 54.00
= Flavors & Others A5204 215,15 G3ZR00 13448
Tistal 1BYHIRS i L 1143166 410
Frimnary packing Materials K75 154,64 Rl 54.45
Others =
Total TEIE0H0 650,49 1162104 348.55
B. Value of Imports on CIF Basks M. Il il il
C. Expenses on Foreign Curmency Mil il Ml il
D, Valuwe of Imporied and Indigenous Materials consumed and % of each to tota] Consumption
Pacticulars Yoear ended March 31, 2022 Period ended March 31, 2021
Value % Walue *
Indigenous 65549 10n Indigenaus 368,55 o
Trrapasrhid - - Imported . -
Total 650,40 100 Total 358,55 100

The accompanying notes referred above form an integral part of the financial statements.

Ag per our report of even dabe attached

For RRK & Azsaociates ; For and an behalf of the Board af Divectors
Clarterad Accosmianty 2 of Sampre Mutritions Limited
ﬂfl%- s e 4
o LB E: : g ] T —
= it e e, ;
© RRadha Krlshma Brahma Gerbani

Partner Mmiaging Direcfor

Membesship Mo, 210077 LR DOAIETE0

Placiz Fhyderabad

Duate : 28 May, 2022 ¥ ¥uns nlvas

LR Cmepany Secvetary
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Motes to finamscial statéments for the year ended 31sE, March, 2022

1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

a)

a) Compamy Dvarviow

Sampre Mutritions Ltd' (the company) s & public limited company incorported ander the
provielens of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company's shares are listed on Bombay
Stk EHIL'hHI:'IEr_'. mc‘mn'pln:.' ks drkes the EI'."H'-I'H}I' af lnnnuﬁ'l.rluﬁna af Eu.Eu.r Candics, The Frl.nn'Fu]
ploce of business is situated at 123, TSIC Indostrinl Estate; Medchal 300400, Medchal Malkajpiri
Dk, Telangnos,

b} Basis of preparation of Financials Statements

The financial statements are separate Anancial statements prepared in accordance with lidian
Accounting Stavlards (Ind AS) notified under the Compaiies (Indinn Accounting Handards)
Ruiley, 2015 (az amended from time o lime). The Conpany prepared il fnancial stalements in
pecordance with accounting standards notiffed under e section 133 of the Companies Act 2003,
red topether with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAD). The
stanclalone financial stbements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, excepl for the
following assets and linbilities which have been measuned ot fair value

Cartain finsmeinl accate and Hahilities avs meagured ot fair wvalue (refer acenombing palicy regarding
financial instruments). The standalone financinl statements are presented in TNE {Ro pees)

2 A) Significant Accounting Policies

Praperty, Plant and Eqoipment & Depreclation
1) Recugnition and Measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipnent ase measured at cost less scoumubated depreciation sid
impairment lnsses, if any. The costof an itemn of property, plant and equipment comprises;

Tis purchase price, including lmport duties and non-relndoble purchose taxes, affer deducting
Irade discoonts and rebates.

Any costa directly attributable ko bringing the asset to the locafion and conditien necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manmer intended by managenent,

IF significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate itema (major compenents) of property, plant and eguipment.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised om financial stabement, elther on disposal or
when no economic benefits ure expected from ils use or disposal. The gain or boss arising [rom
dispesal of property, plant and equipment are determined by compacing fhe procgeds from
chisgpesal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment recopnised in fhe stnfement of
profitand loss account bn the year of ocourrence.

if) Subsaquant expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if its s probable that the future econamic benefits
ansocinted with the expendibure will flow o the company, "
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Motes to financial skatements for the year ended 3st, March, 2022

iil} Depreciation
Depreciation amount for assets ks the cost of an assel, or other amount substituled for cost, besy ils
estimatzd residual value,

Depreciabion on assets has been provided on Straight line basis at the useful lives specitied in the
Sehedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, Dapreciation on additions / deductions is caleolated pro-
rata From f to the month of additions / deductions.

Arsots costing bes than TNR 5,000/ - are deprociated at 100% in the year of acquisition.

) Revenoe recognition

Revenue s recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will Fow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment i being
made, Bevenue s measured sl the fair value of the conslderation received or receivable; taldng inlo
aceoumt contractually ceflned terms of payment,

Interest income: Interest income is accrued on a lime basis, by reference (o the principal
wutskinding and at the effective interest rale applicabie.

g Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work-in-progress, traded and finlshed goods are stated at e lower of
cost, cakeulnted on weighted average basis, and nel realizable value, Cost of raw matersals and
stores comprisa of cost of purchase. Cost of work-in-progress and finished poods comprises direct
materinls, direct labour and an appropriste propartion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure,
the latter being allocated on the basks of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventaries also include
all other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present Jecation and condition, Cuses of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts, MNet realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimaled costs of completion
and (he pstimated costs necessary to make e sale, llems held for use in the producton of
inventory are ot written below cost if the finished product in which these will be incorporabed ane
expictod b ba sold at or above cost,
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Mobes bo financial statements for the year ended 3st, arch, 20032

h) Fereign Currencici
Functional curreney; The functional currency of the Company is the Tndian ropes.

Transactions and ranslations: Foreign currency iransections ae translated inte the functional
currency using the exchange rales at the dates of the ransaction. Fuorelgre-curmency-denominated
menetary assets gnd ligbilities are translated into the relevant functional currency sl exchange rates
imi effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains er lesses resulting from such translations are fecladed
kn met profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Nen-monetary assets and non-monetary Habilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at Rir value are tanslited at the exchange Tk
prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined, Non-menetary assels and non-monetary
liabilities denominatod in a foreign curvency and measured at historical cost are translabed af the
exchange rate prevalent at the date of the transaction.

Transachion galns or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included
in determining net profit for the period in which the ransaction is seltled, Revenue, expenss and
cash flaw ltems denominated in forelpn currencies are translated into the relevant functional
currencios asing the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction,

1} Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current lax expense and the net charge in the deferred dae azset or
liability during the year, Current and deferred taxes are recognised in Staterment of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in sther comprehensive income or directly in
aquity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income ar-directly In equity, respectively,

Current taxe Cuerent tax is measared at the amount of tax expected o be payable on the tosa bl
income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1991,
Curront tax assets and cureent tix liabdlitios are offset when there is a legally enforceable ight bo el
off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the Liabslity on a net
basis.

Deferred tax: Deferved income tax is recognised vsing the Balance Sheet approach, Deferred
income tax assels and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable femporary differences
avising between Lhe tax base of assels and Habiliges and their carrying amount, eecept when the
deferred income tox arises from the initial recognition of an asset or Hability in a trarsaction that i
ot i business combination and affects neither accounting vor taxable profit or lass at the Hme of

Deferred tax assels are recogaised only to the éxtent it is probable that either future taxable prodiis
or reversal of deferred tax Liabilitiss will be available, against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused bax eredits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The
carrying amount of a defered to assel i revicwed ot te ond of each reporting date and mduced
to thie exctent that it is ne longer probable that sufficient lasable profit will be available to aflove all

or part of the deferred incame tax asset b wtilised. |t !
N
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMMITEDY
Mokes to financial statements for the year ended 388, March, 2022

Deferred tax sssets and liabilities are messured using the tax retes and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting peried and are expected o apply
when the related deferred tax asset 5 realised or the deferred tax lability is settled, Dreferred tax
assets and labilides are offset when there is a legally enforeeable fight 1o sel current tax assets antd
linkilitios and when the deferved tax balanees relate (o the same tation authorlty,

i]- Impairment of Assels

Mon Financial Assets :The carrying value of assets / cash genemting units at each balance sheet
dlate ave roviewed for impaimment if soy imdication of Impaiment exists.

If the carrying amount of ke assets excoed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is
recognised for such cxcess amount The impairment boss is recopnised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset & carrled at revalued amount, in which case any
impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the cxtenta revaluation
reserve for that asset.

When thers is indication that an impairment Irss recognised for an asset (other than o revalued
asset) in earlier accounting parinde which no langer exists or may have decreasad. such reversal of
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extant the amount was
previously charged to the Statement of Frofit and Loss, In case of revalued assely, such reveraal is

nak reciognised,

Financial assets: The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with ils financial assets. The unpairment methadelogy applied depends on whather
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, For trade receivables only, the Company applics
the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which medquires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised fram initial recognition of the receivables.



SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Motes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st, March, 2022

I} Prowisions and Confingent Liabilities

Pravigiony are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
rosnlt of a past event, it s probable that an owtflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be yaquired to gettle the obligation and a relishle sstimate can be made of the amount of Hhe
obligation. Provisions ave measured at the hest sstimate of the expenditire required o settle the
p;n‘.nmt n‘bliﬂ::!i.nn ot B Balamce Sheet dabe.

If the effect of the time value of money is materlal, provisions are discounted to reflect its presend
value using & current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the Hme value of
maney and the risks specific to the obligntion. When discounting §s used, the increase i the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Centingent Liabilitios are disclased when there is & possible obligrstiom arising Fron past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the oosurrence or nan-noourrenos of one or maore
urcertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arisen from past events where it is either not probable that an cutflow of resources will be reguieed
to setle twe oliigalien o a reliable estimate of the smount connok be mosde.

Combingent asests ave nol recognised in the Financial Statements.




SAMPRE NUTRETTIONS LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31st, March, 2022

1) Mom-derivative Financial instromaents

Fimancial assets and liabilibes are recogmised when the Company becomes a party fo the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and labilities are inidally messurad at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly aticibulable b the acquisition or ssue of financial assets
and finnncial liabilites (other than financial assets and fimancial linbilities at fair valwe through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measored on initial recognition of
finnncial asset or financial Rakdlity,

{a) Financinl asszts

Cash and cash equivalents For the parpese of presentation bn the statement ol cash Aows, cash and
cishy eguivalents includea eash on hand, deposits hald al call wills Hoaneinl institutions, olher shoet-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that arno roachily
eomvertible to known amoonts of cash and which are subject to an insipnificant risk of changes in
value,

Trade Receivables and Loans: Trade veceivables are initally recopndsed at fair valos,
Subsaquently, thesa assets are held at amortisad cost, ueing the effoctive interest rate (EIR) method
il of any expected credit Iosses. The EIR ks the rate that discounts estimated fubure cagh income
thraugh the expectad e of Mnancial instrument.

Dbt Instrumenis: Debt instroments are mibially meassured at amortised cost, faic value treugh
other comprehensive income (FVOCT) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTELY) till
derecognition on the basis of (i) the enfity's business moded for managing the financial asscts and
{if) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset,

Equity Instruments: All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are
initially measured at falr value, the Company may, on initial recognition, irevocably elect o
mensure the same either at FVOCT or FYTPL. The Company makes such eleclion on an instrument-
by-inetrument basis.

(b} Financial assets— Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost: Financlal assets are subsespuently measured al amortsed cost if
{hese financial assets ane held within o business whose objective & to hold these assets in order o
collect contractual cash Hows and the contractual terms af thi financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
oiikstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT): Financial assets
are measured al fale value throongh other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
weithin a business whose oljective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows Lhat give
rise on specified dates 1o salely payments of princlpal and interest on the principal amount
oulstanding and by selling financial asgets.




SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Motes o financial stalements for the vear ended 3isi, March,

Flnancial assets at fuir value through profit or loss (FVTEL): Financial assets are measured at fakr
value through profit or loss unkess it is measured ot smortised cost or at fair valoe through other
comprehensive income on inital recognition. The lansaction costs directly atfributable © the
arquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair valoe throagh profit or loss are immediately
recopiised i profit or Inss,
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Maotes Lo financial statements far the year ended 31st, March, 2022

i ¢} Financial liabilithes
Loans and borrowings: After Inilal recognition, mberest-bearing loans and borrowings. am
subsequently measured af amortised cost on accrual basis,

Financial guarantee contracts: Pinancial guarantee conlracts lssoed by the Company are thoge
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburss e baldes for a boss 1t curs because the
specified deblor fails 0 make a payment when due in accondmpoe with the terms of a delt
instrument, Pinancial guamnter contracts are recognized indtially as a Lability a1 fair valoe,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly ativibutable o the issiaoce of e guarmnbes
Subsequenily, the lability is measured at the higher of the anvount of loss allowanoe determined a5
per impaimment requivements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recopgnized less comulative
amoriixation,

{d) Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement

Financial labilities are nwasured al amortsed cost using the effective interest mathod, For frade
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, carrying amounts
approximate the fair value due to the short matority of these instruments,

(e} Derceognition

The Company de-recognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights In the cash flows from
the financial asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and the ransler qualifies for
dercopnition under Tndizn Accounting Standard 109 “Financial Instruments™. A financial Habilisy
{or a part of financial lability) is de-recognised from the Company’s balance sheet when the
oblipation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires,

[} OxFsetting of financial instruments

Financial asscts and financia] liabilities are offsetted and the net amount is reported in financial
statements if these is o currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounds aml these
i an intenfion to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the Habilities simullanecusly.

m) Barnings Per Share
Baskc EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss altributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary shares oulstanding, during the year,
Diluted EFS is computed by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity
sharshobders and the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares, for the effects of all
dilutive potential Qrdinary shares.

\
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SAMIRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31s1, March, 2022

B} Critlcal accounting judgments and ey sources of estimstion uncerlainly
C|

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Tnd AS reguines managenient L
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of sccounting pelicies and
the reported amounis of assets, labilittes and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of the révenues and expenses [or the years presented. The estimates and
assnciatad pssumplions are based on historical experience and other factors that are conaidared o
be relevant, Although (hese estimates are based ppon management™s best knowledge of cumrent
events, actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

b [hie eatimates and onderlying ssumptions are seviewed on an ongolng basis. Revisions o
acconnting csimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised i the revision
affects only that period, or in the perdod of the revision and foture pericds if the revision allects
both currént and futars pericds,

€ Critical Judgements In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amoanis
recognized in the financial shfemen b

d Koy sources of estimalion uncertainty + The key assumptions concerning the future, and olier key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the and of the reporting period, Bat have 4 significant risk of
causing A material adjustment o the carrying amounts of assels and labilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:

© Key sources of estimation uncertainty : The key assumptions concerming the future, aml other key
sources of estimaHon uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing & malerial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year ane discussed below:

f lneome taxes: The Company's tax Jurisdiction is Endia. Sigaificant judgments are invelved in
determining the provision for income taxves, inclading ameunt expected to be paid / recovered for
pncertain tax poaitions.




SAMPRE NUTREITIONS LIMITED
Mutes to financial statements for the year ended 31st, March, 2022

g Operating Cyele and Corrent versus non-current elassifieation

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-curment
clussification in accordance with Part-l of Division- Il of Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013,

An asset i treated as current when (@) It is expected to be realised or intended 0 be sold o
consumed in normal operating cycle; (b) 1t is beld primarily for the purpese of trading; or (c) Tt is
expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or (d) The asset i3 cash or
ensh equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used o settle a liability for ot least
twelve months after the reporting pedod. All other assets are classified a8 non-current.

A liahility is current when (a) 11 is expected to be seltled in normal operating cycle; or (b) 1t is hekd
primacily for the porpese of trading or (c) [# is due fo be setled within twelve monthy after the
reporiing period, or (d) There is no unconditional rght to defer the sstement of e Bability for ot
benst fwelve months after the reparting period. Terms of a Habdlity that could, at the aption of the
counterparty, results n its settlement by the issue of equily instruments do not affect s
classification, The Company classifies all other labilities as non-current.

The aperating cycle is the time between the acguisition of assets for processing and their realization

in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its normal operating
cyela,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To The Members of SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statemants

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of SAMPRE NUTRITIONS
LIMITED ("the company™), which comprise the Balance Sheel as al 31 March 2021,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
pollcles and other explanatory information.

In our opinlan and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesald financial statements, give the information reguired by the Act
in the manner so required and give @ true and fair view In conformity with the
geoounting principles generally accepted in India;

@] In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affalrs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021

b} in the cose of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on
that date; and

g} In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the yaar ended on
that dabe.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specifled under
section 143(10) of the Act. Qur respansibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report, We are independent of the Company In accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilibes in accordance with these requiremeants and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
approprists to provide a basis for our opinion,

Koy Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In cur professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinjon thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
an thesse matters.

We have debermined that there were na suich key audll metters to communicale in our
report,
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directars is responsible for the matters in sectlon 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Acl™) with respect to the preparation of these financial
ctatements that give a true and falr view of the financial pasition, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the accounting principles genarally
accepted n India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
saction 133 of the Ack, read with Rule 7 of the Companles (Aceounts) Rulas, 2014. This
responsibility also (ncludes the malintenance of adequate accounting reconds  in
accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assefs of the Company
and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other rregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policles: making judgments and estimates that ane
reasonable and  pradent; and  design,  implementation and  mainkenance
af Internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
amd completeness of the accounting records, relevant Lo the preparation and
presentation of the financial statemaents that glve a true and fair view and are free from
matertal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statemants, management k8 responsible for assessing Lhe
Company's ability to continue as a golng concern, disclasing, as applicable, mallors
relatad 1o going concern and using the golng concem basle of accounting unless
managemant either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic altermative but to da 50,

Those Board of Directors are elsa responsible for pversesing the company's financial
reparting process,

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain roaconable assurance about whether the financial
ckatements as @ whole are free from material misstatement, whether due w0 fraud or
arrar, and to issue an auditor's report that indudes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee that an oudit conducted in
accordance with SAs will Elways delect a malerial misstaterment when [t exists,
Migetaternents can arise from frawd or error and are considerad matarial if, individually
or in the sggregate, they could reasonably be expected ko influence the economic
dacisions of users taken on the basis of these finandal skatermeants.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Reguiraments

s reguired by the Companies (Auditar's Report} Order, 2016 (“the Order™) Issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-saction (11) of section 143 of the act,
we glven in the ‘Annexure A' statement on the matters specifiad In the paragraph 3 and
4 of the erder, to the extent applicable

A requited by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the infarmation and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinien proper books of account as requlred by law have been kept by the
Cotrpany so far as appears from our examination of thosa books.

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Staternent of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agresment with the books of account.

4] In our opinien, the afcresaid financial statements comply with the Indkain
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounls) Rules, 2014, 4,
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On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2021, teken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is
disqualified as en 31 March, 2021, from belng appointed as a director In terms of
Soction 1642} of the Act.

With respeet to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financlal
reparting of the Company and the cparating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
pur separate report in 'Annexure B, and

With respect to the other matters included in the Auditar's Report in accordance
with the Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, to our best of
our infarmation and according to the explanations given tous

i. The Company has disclosed the Impact of pending ltigations on Its financial

posltian in its standalone financial skatemants.,

i, Compary did not have any long-term contracts Including derivatives contracls
far which there were any materlal foraseeable |ossns

iii. There has been ro delay In transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For R R K & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
FiM Mo, 097855
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Fartner
M. Mo, 210777
UDIN: 2121077 7AAAMLLITO34

Date: 20006/2021
Place: Hyderabad
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iii.

Annexure ‘A’ To The Independent Auditor's Report
(This Is the Annexure referred to in our Report of even date)

a, The Company has maintainad proper records showing full particulars, Including
quantitative detalls and situation of fixed assets.

b, All fized asests have been physically verified by the Managemant during the
year, in aur opinlon, Is reasonable having regard Lo the size of the Company and
the nature of it's Assels, Mo meaterial discrepancies were noticed on sueh
venfication.

e According te the information and explanations glven Lo US all the titte deeds of
immovabte properties are held in the rame of the company,

a, The Management has conducted physical verification of Invenlory at reasonable
[mtervals during the year.

b. The procedures af physical verfication of Inventory followed by the management
are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the
natura of jts business.

¢. Tha Company s maintaining proper records of Inventory and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification,

The Company has net granted any loans (o the parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, pxcept for unsecured
trade advances in normal course of business.

The Company has been complied with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Ack, 2013 wherever applicable In respect of loans, imvestments,
guarantees, and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits fram the public.

In our opinien, and accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to maintain cost records and accounts as provided under
sub section {1} of section 148 of the Campanies Act, 2013,

a. According to the records provided to us, the Company |5 regular except for
feltowing cases in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Lncome Tax;
G5T Tax, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other statulory
dues applicable to it with appropriate authoriies and according 1o the
Irformation and explanations given ko us, no undisputed amaounts payabie n
respact of Incoma- tax, Sales-tax, Wealth-tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Exclse Duty and Cess were in arrears as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payeble.

Particulars Amount in Bs.

Tax Deducted at Source o 1,58,237
Employees Provident Fund 8,70,200
Professicnal Tax 1,232,150
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b, Acenrding to the records of the Company and on the basis of the information and
explanations given to us, except for below mentioned, there are no dues In
respect of VAT, Service Tax, Duty of Excise, Income Tax, customs duty, wealth
tax that have not bean deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of

any dispute.
Name of the | Nature | Amount Rs. Period to Forum
Statute of the rilates idhiEre
Dues —— pending
Ceniral Exgse | Enclse | Excise Duly on FY.2000-11 | DGLET
Act, 1944 Rty Valuakion far
Ris.B6,23,672/ .

will. The Company has not defaulted In repayment of loans or borrowings to the
financial Institutians or banks or govemnment or dues to debenture holders,

1x. In our opinian, Term Loans were applied for the purpose for which the sald Ipans
were obtained,

¥. As per the checks carried out by us, ne fraud on or by the company has been
noticed or reported during the year under report,

¥l According to the records of the Company and on the basis of the Information and
explanations given ko us, managerial remuneration has bean pald or provided in
avcordance with the requisite approvals mandatad by the prosdisinns of section 197
read with schedule V of the Companles Act, 2014,

il The Company is not @ Midhi Company.

bl Tn our opinien, and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are In compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 whera applicabie and the details have been disclosed In the
Ind AS Financial Statements ete., as required by the applicable accounting
slandards;

xiv, tn our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
campany has not made any preferantial allotmant or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under raview.,

Y, In our opinion, and according te the infermation and explanations glven to us, the
company has not entared Into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

wwl, The company I8 not reguired to be registered under sactlon 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of ITndia Act, 1934.

For B R K B Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN Mo, 097855 =l
Datte: 29/06/ 2021 V4 [ B>
PIE‘:E: HWEFahﬂd _hlhl | |||Il:l. L

N

R. Radha Krishna s YINT P
Partner o
M.Mo. 210777
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Annexura - B to the Auditors” Report

Report on the Intarnal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-sectlon 3 of Section
141 af the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act™)

We have audited the Internal finandal controls over financial reporting of SAMPRE
NUTRITIONS LIMITED ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in canjunckion with
our audit of the IND AS Financial Staternents of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financlal controls based on the Intermal contral over financlal reporting criterla
sstablished by tha Company considering the essential components al mnternal control
gtated In tha Guidance Mete on Audit of Internal Financlal Controls over Financial
Reporting ksued by the Instifuvte of Chartered Accountants of India {*ICALY), These
respensibiiiies include the design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and
efficient conduct of Its business, including adherence te company's polices; the
safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and complateness of the accounting records, and the timaly praparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility |s to express an opinion on the Campany's internal linanclal controls
over financial reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guldance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporling [the
nGuidance Nete*) and the Standards an Auditing, |ssued by ICAL and deemed Lo he
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Campanies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, bath appficabile to an audit of Internal Financial
Contrais and, both lssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and tha Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requiremaents and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
intemal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
guch contols aperated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and thelr operating
effactivencss. Our audit of internal financlal controls over financial reporting Included
abtaining an understanding of internal financlal conlrols over financial reporting,
asssceing the risk that a material weakness exisls, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectivensss of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assassment of the
fisks of material misstatament of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error. Wa believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is su Miclent and
appropriate to provide a basts for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
contrals system over financial reparting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designad to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fAnandal reporling and the
preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes In accordanee with
ganerally accepted sctcounting principies. A company's intarnal financial contral aver

financial reporting includes those policies and procedunss that (1) partaln te pﬂ'!%'-
maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, securately and falrly reflect 'HE :

.

9

o

95



transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
Financial Statemants In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that recaipts and expenditures of the company are being made only In accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Ind AS Financlal Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the Inherant limitations of Internal financial controls ower Mnancial rEporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of conires,
materlal misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting bo
future perods are subject to the risk that the Internal financal control over financial
reporting may become inadenuate because of changes In conditions, or that the degrae
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate inbernal financial
contrels system over financial reporting and such internal financial santrols over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 21 March 2021, hased an the intarnal
wontiol over financial reporting critera established by the Company consldering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For R R K B Associates
Chartered Accountants

No. 097855 /) 5

Date: 29,/06/2021 ‘\T f heg ﬂ \

Place: Hyderabad W 3 L | Wjomdbad |
__—-—I"-

~ R. Radha Krishna JK:%.. s
Partner
M. Mo 210757
UDIN: 212107 7 TAARAALLIL034




SAMPRE WMUTREITICNNS LINTTELE
‘aladioe Shieet as af Mareh 35, 2021
(ALl amwmnks anein ndisn rupees excepl 05 otherwise siated)

II'_AE'H{TULJ'LR! Moles 31-Mar-21 -Mlar-2b
1. ASSTTE
1. Moan-Currend Assols
a) Property, Plant & Equl prsent 3 LF b 18,54, 19,737
]I:l I:'npil:.] Wit k-En-progress i 500,055,584 847,59 K
)} Finaiwial assets
Irvestrnerits in Sabsldhanes & Others ] £, O B0 1,000
ey Finmncinks Meocts & 98 E7 5R3 AR 19,105
) Oihier non-cumrent namld - -
B4 0663, 58] A5, 08 AR
L Curvenl Assels
) Trivenborias 7 7.2 2RAER FIE NN A
I} Financial Assets
Trnde Recaivalblen ¥ 6,2271,RA 557,715,182
Casly el Cash Egquivalents 8 9,735,124 4,744,384
Uilers Cmrent Financial Asaets ) B2.TH 542 147 50,11
e Crthoe Correnit Assein - -
4, 2001240 12,314,755
TOTAL ASSITS 36, 20.64.106 37,39,23,552
I BQUITY AND LIARTLITIES
1. BOUITY
a) Bguity Shane Copdtsl T 48200000 A RN LD
b Cther Equity r 5.96,75,7 23 588,69, 047
Total Bsuity 10,78,35.723 10,7069, 947
2, LIABILETIES
Drederred tax Hability {nef) 12 50,98, 13 49,40.674
Mon-currenk lizbilifies
TFieancial Llabliities
Lo term: borrawings 3 12.20,55.916 107977 F
7L 5805 T1.29,28,752
Curvant lHabilities
TFinwmzin] Lisbilities
Ehied-tearnn Borronsings 14 B39 A0912 b B |
Trade payablos 15 A B AR BS5 o, 71,58,301
Oilver current lishdlites 16 1.e35.08 90T 250,55 408
Chork-furm provisbons 1% 180,768 F1,404
14,78,A0.533 15,392,324, 5894
TOTAL BOUITY & LIARILITIES| 3.20,64105 37,309,273 5492
Cummary ol egnillcont acrounting policies I-2

As per our report ol even dabe stiached
Fow RIEK & Associates _
Chartered Aopuntonks C,

Place: Hiyderakzad
Dl - 204 [une, XeA

e
F ,*‘n:lm . il 'E"l il Ii II.I
. Tl I o
T — — __I""" %, __.--"I.I I:-: 1
®.Radha Krisl "\; 4
. R -
cmibership SBo MOFTF Y, et

For and on behalf of the Eeard ﬂfﬂlilnnl:-m

['he acoompanying notis referved above form an integeal parl of the financnl stokements.

mishil Srinfas
CEC

[HIM: F7RHEES

{ H-"!ll """I

¢
!L'.Iup.uk Blssa

Conprmny Secnihinry
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SAMPRE NUTRITTONS LIMITED

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All pmounts ave m Indinn rupess socepe as pthervwlse stated)

[PARTICULARS Mates F1-Mar-21 1. Mar-20
REVENLUE
Rovarie from operationg 18 TH23,32,970 W A
{®har ineame 149 312495 17,595,000
18,26, 45405 25,013,40,815
EXFENGRES
st of Materials Consamed a0 368,55, 152 52,5206
Manu facturing expencin: 2 #,12,68,517 9,28,92, 768
Employe: berafils expense 22 B3.71,313 BE,GE, Q03
o perises = 2,15,52,783 2,43, 006,028
Depreciativn A 1.80H1,172 14926873
Pinamee cosls 24 1.54.51,351 21331702
18.15,060,401 2.57.80,550
Prafit before exceptionnl and extraordinary itema and e 10,45, 00k 45,61, 245
Excoptivnol benms - -
Profit before Estraord inary oy and Tax 10,3500 45,60, 265
Profiff (1oss) before tas 100,45,004 45,601,285
Ghort [ {Fxress) Provision for Taxation - R s
Deferved tax (eredit)/charge 3 3,209,227 11,98,573
Prodity (Ios) far the period 7.55,776 33,57,247
]Dihn' Camprehensive Lroome - -
MTotal Comprehensive Income for the period TARTTE J!,.E'F,iﬂ_
Bagle 16 0.
riluted (ER ] 0.7
Wedghted average no. of equity shares 48, 20,00 43, 20,000

a -"l

As per our report of even date attnched

Flve acconpanying notes referred above form an inkegral part of the finiancial stotemments.

For RRK d Associates = Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants: [ 1 of Sa utritions Linith .
mmm;r?nﬁs el ___., A — E "
L ,,Elﬂpéq idumbed |3 T "_ i
. Brahma Gurbani ‘u"l:nlmilﬂ.
R..Ihdhn Kriahma e -'-,_ I = et .': o '-__.'-" Firg
bt i), it ;|:-| ,.:nl Mm% Wl
Mambership Mo, 210777 e E E%gQ =
N -]‘r-'l--.l I..-||
lace; Hydlerabad V. ¥amslhi Srinivas Dm.-F-H Bissa
I:Eh:n: 1291k June, 2021 CFo Chpany. Secrin ey

58



—

-

SAMPHE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Cauh (s Alalamanl For Hie year ended St March, 2L
(Al amounlsarein ndisn fopees saepd s athonvis stated)

lace Hydernhud
Dinle @ 25 [vooe, A0

Cowpani j Soorrbary

IF.H'ITTI CULARS Al-Dlaz-31 H-Nar-210
(A Cmsh Ao from apusnling nekvitic
Penfh) (lnss] before tax 13,805,104 £3,00,20%
PMun-gash s justoent ke recontle profit Before ts jo el s fovs
hepeclatinn 1,308 172 1,82 2581
Profit / (L) o sala of fed assels | CWIP - L b
Hanl dzbba werilben odl 3 -
Inkerest incoims accriid (]| | R ERE
Tirrest Bupense P4, 25450 G, 62412
Chperailug pralll before working capital dianges 25,8336 2,84, R3 71T
Bdonemmonits i Working Capital @
{Inicresee Decredis in inventaries (25,595 (1,807 4|
{Incremw]l D reise in Flosinciabs Ansels (.16 16,720 e TR
revsis) Do revisn Ennither nos-oarrent sasets - ERF
[ncremsn)f Disrenss dn Oer Currerit Mon Francial Assis - .
logwgise | {Docrease) n Trads pagnbis 750,305 J ﬂ,.-ﬂ.il‘.',&lﬂ:l]
Increasey {ibecrease) i other current Finoacial Lishilites {22, AL 2, 14 AR}
wreve || {Dorroase) i Other Mon-Finanginl Linhililies = =
Crals prewialed [ meed in operations LEE 5pE LELIETIE
Dot o (padi), Refend (net) P LT |
Pt ol eneratedy (wsed) fram opematig sstivitics (A 71,483 2,57 0k, 4B
B, Cash flow from investlng adivitiess
Procepde of fiked sasets inchiding Cagdinl wek - n - proposs LRI (1,547 58 =
Prewescls from sale of (lxed ngsels 145,55 20 0. M715
nferesd pacisived L3R 181,510
Mot cagh geneiatady [used) in invesling setivilbes [B) (8982221 [1,25.83,1
i Cash flosw fram Hmancing activitio
Eram lonyg torm borrowings (Mo of repaymen) R0 A
o ot e bosrsssings 24A1.151 234,408
lnberest eperess pak] 1
post cash Fliow genembed (rsed) in feanding sclivities (O 282441 15,
Pet imereiisf (deercase) Incanh and easly dquivalenia (A & B+ O (5.0 36 Ly LI
sl amd canh e ubvalents af [l beglaning of the year Bl 74560 A543
Cashand rash syubvalents 3 the end of the pear %,73124 B4, 74,250
Comipanents of eash ned casl equivalents:
ko haared 4,807 EEG
Deesprizsils vy bande 12790 55,000
Voillh banks « on oo aceaunis An7 0 BLAOETR
iy and eash equivalanis 073,024 4, 74,380
Tha arcompanying nodes febecrod aboee farns onindegeal part of the francinl shatemests,
far WINK # Asdociated tx, Par sl oo hd-l!n!lhrﬂmr-:'-{f'ﬂi
ricredd Acrommtanls B 1:| Mytritions
FRMo 0071 ' (B X% e Ny —
ii ﬁ e s el | . Yo o
k.ﬂ_ i Ll Fud e . Brahind Curbanl
FEThA Krinhwa % __,-"fr.____""' i ™\ iy i
Por e gt et S\ e JR DR
Membership Mo Z0FFT Ty {
e
. W, riivas
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SAMPRE MUTHITIONS LIMITED
Btatement of Chanpges In Bquity for i year ended 3351 Maseh, 2023
(Al amounts ave in Ddian copees cepl as othersise stated)

a} Egjity Shave Capital

Partenlars Mo, ol Bhares I Maiposa
Balance an ab April, 01 2004 42, 20,000 4,1%2,00,000
Chenryres i euily share cagatal dreramg, 2019-10 = .
mumuumnzm 48, 20,000 4B 200000

-1' i g =
Balance as at .Iq_ml o1, EEI 48, Z0O00 4 82.00,000
[Changes in equity share capital durng 220-21 - -
| Balanee as at fateh 31, 2071 48,2000 14,82,00,000
b] Oither Equily

CrTHER BOLUITY
Particulars Securities Retained it
prrem |um Earnings

Balance az ab April, 01 2019 4700000 §,10,12,700 55,1000
Total Compreharsive Income for the Year - ;

i} Additions during the year . -

if] Ulileation during the year - - .
{i) Profit / (Loas) for the year - 33,5707 57,047
vy Other Comprebensive hoome . - -
Balance as at March 31, 2000 37,00,000 5,51,60,947 5,88,69.947
Ralance ns at Apell 00 2000 37,00,0) 551,609 947 5,400,659, 545

tal Cornprehensive Income for the Year - - .

iy Addidiors durlag the year - - ~
Il Ui lisationy dhuring the yoai - -
iig) Profit / (Loss) for fhe vear ? 55, 7Ta 75597
vy Otlser Comprehensive Inconms e - -
Balance as af March 31, 2021 37,00,000 T1,10,95,670 11,47,95, 670

Thee accompany ng netes refersed above form an integral part of the finaneial slidements,

For RRK & Associates

Chartored Accountants X _._.:';.'rf-‘,ak
O o NCT7REE ; ;,x" " L:_ .:-.
E | P enn st | Moy "
* et -
e K .
Hnmhn:ﬂi:F B, 210077
Pl Hyderabae

Frabe ;26 June, 20F)

Far and on behall of the Board of Directors
of Sampre Nytritions Limited)

—=

Brahma Gurbini
Maireging Direchar

) Bz

"-"ﬂul

E;up.uk Blesm
Courpry Seceetary
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2071
1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies:

a) Company Overview

Sampre Mutritions Lid' (the company) is a public Hmited company incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company’s shares are listed on Bombay
Sock Exchange, The Company is inko the activity of memulacturing of Sugar Cendies, The
principal place of business is situated at 133, TSIC Industrial Estate, Medchal-500401, Meadchal

Malkajgiri Dist, Telangana,

b} Basis of preparation of Financials Stalements

The financlal statements are separate financlal statements peepared in accordance with Indian
Aceounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Aceounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (a5 amended from lime Lo time). The Company prepared it financlal statements in
accordance with accounting standards notified under (he section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,
read topether with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAF). Ths
standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value

Cortain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value {refer apcounting policy regarding
financial instruments), The standalone financial stalements are presented in TNR {Rupees)

24 Significant Accounting Policies

i)

Property, Flant end Bquipment & Depreciation
1) Recognition and Measarement

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated deprecintion ard
impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of properly, plant and equipment comprises:

fts purchase price, including import duties and non-fefundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discourds and rebates.

Any costs directly altribatable to bringing the asset (o the location and eondition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

If significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment have dilferent useful lives, then they
are acconnted for as separate ilems (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised from financial statement, either on disposal or
when no sconcmic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from
disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by camparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of praperty, plant and equipment recognised in the stalement
of profit and loss sccount in the year of ocurrenae,

ii}smmqupuntupeﬁmn- 'n “'—. H'Q:k }\
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Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if ils is probable that the future ecoromic benelits
associated with the expenditure will [ow Lo the company,

il Depreciation

Depreciation amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substitubed for cost, less its
estimated residual value.

Depreciation on assets has been provided on Straight line basis at the useful lives specified in the
Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013, Depreciation on sdditions / deductions is calculated pro-
rata froani /o the month of additions / deductions,

Agents costing less than INR 5,000/ are depreciated at 100% in the year of acquisition.

f) Revenus recognition

Fevenue iz recopnized o the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o the
Company and the revenue can be relisbly measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made, Revenue is measured at the fair value of the conslderation recerived or recvivabls, taking
into account contracttally defmed terms of payment.

Interest income: Interest income is accrued on a Hime basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective intevest rate applicalsle.

g} Tnventories

Raw materials and stores, work-in-propress, traded and fndshed goods are stated at the lower of
cost, calculated on weighted average basis, and net realizable value, Cost of mw materials and
stores comprise of cost of purchase, Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct
malerials, divect labour and an appropriate proportion of varisble and fived overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal opesating capecity. Cont af
inventories also include all other cost incurred in bringlng the inventories to their present location
and eondition. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
petimated caske of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. [tems held far
use i the production of inventory are not written bolow cost if the (inished product in which these
will be incorporated are expected bo be sold al or above cosl.

h) Foreign Currencles
Functional curreney: The functional curtency of the Company is the [ndian rupee.

Transactions and translations: Forsign currency transactions are translated imo the functional
currency using the mxchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign-currency-denomiisted
monetary assets ancl liabilities are translated into the relevant functional currency at exchinge
mtes in effect at the Balance Shest date, The gains or Josses resulting from such Lanslations are
included in net profit in the Statemient of Profit and Loss, Non-monetary assels and non-monetary
lighilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value are translated at the
exichange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and
non-monetary labilities denominated in a forsign currency and measured at historical cost are
translate:] al theexchange rabe prevalent at the date of the ransaction,



S — .

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settfement of forelgn currency transactions ane Included
in delermining net profit for the period in which the transaction is setted. Revenue, expense and
cash flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translited into the relevant functicnal
carrenries using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the fransaction.

i} Income tax

Incomme tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or
liahility during the year, Current and deferred taxes are yecognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
axcept when they relate to ibems that are recognised in other comprehensive income or divectly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred lax are also recogrised in ather comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectiviely,

Curvent tax Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable
income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, T061.
Current fax assets and current tax Habilitles are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
sat off the recognized amounts and theve is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net
basis,

Defarred tas: Deferrad income tax is recognised using the Balance Sheet approach, Deferred
income ax assets and liabilitiea are recopnised for deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and lisbilities and thelr carrying amount, except when the
deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset er lability in a transaction thal is
not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of
the lransachion.

Deferred tax assets arc recognised anly to the extent it is probable that either future taxahle profits
ar reversal of deferred tax liabilities will be available, against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, The
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting date and recluced
lo the extent that it is no langer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deforred tax assats and Habilities are measured nsing the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted o substantively enocted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deforrod tax asset is realised or the deferved tax liability is settled. Deferred tax
assets and linhilities are affset when thero is a legally enforceable right to set current tax assets and
linbilitias and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority,

i} Impairment of Assets

Man Financial Assets {The carrying value of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet
date are reviewed for impairment if any indication of impairment exists,

o
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If the carrying amoant of the assets exceed the estimated recnwverable amount, an mpairment is
recognised For such excess amount, The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the
Sratement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried al revalued amount, in which case any
impatrment loss of the revalued asset is treated as @ revaluation docrease o the exlent a
revalualion reserve for that asset.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset {other thana revalued
assel) in earfier socounting periods which no longer exists or may have decreasad, such reversal of
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was
previonsly charged to the Statement of Prafit and Loss. In case of revalued assets, such reversal is
not recognised,

Financial assets: The Company assesses on a forward-looking basia the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets, The impairment methadology applied depends on whether
there has been o significant increase in credit risk, For trade receivables only, the Comypany applies
the simplified approsch permitted by Ind AS T8 Financial Instruments, which requires expected
lifetime bosses (o be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

k} Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or conatructive) as a
resull of a past event, it & probabile that an outflow of resources embodying econcmic benefils will
be requited to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation. Provisions are measared at the best estimate of the axpanditure required in gettle the
present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

It the effect of the Hime value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present
value using a current pre=tax rate that reflects the current rarket assessments of the Hme valoe of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting s used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a Anance cost

Combingent lisbilities are disclosed when thers is a possible obligation arising from past events, thi
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-ocrurrence of cne of more
uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from pest events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
ko settle the cbligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assels are rot recognised in the Financial Statements.

'ﬂ-_.r ¥ ol n;_,:.
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1} Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets and labilities are recopnised when the Company becomes o party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and Labilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial labilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at Fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on mikial recognition
af financial asset or financial lability.

(a) Financial assels

Cash and cash equivalents For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash fows, cash
anid cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held al call with financial institutions, other
short-berm, highly liquid investments with original maturities of twee months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which ave subject ta an imsigrificant risk of
chianges in value.

Trade Receivables and Loans: Trade receivables are initially recognised st fair value.
Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
et of any expected credit losses. The BIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income
through the expected life of financial instrument,

Debt Instruments: Debt instruments are indtially measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprohensive income (FVOCT) or fadr valee through profit or loss {'FVTPLY) tll
derecognition o the basis of (i) the entity's business mede] for managing the financial assets and
{ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Eaquity Instruments: All investments in equity instrumenls classified under financial assets are
initially messured at fair value, the Company may, on iritial recognition, ireevocably elect to
measure the same cither at FVOCT or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrumment basks.

{b) Financial assels- Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost: Financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost if
these financizl assets are held within & business whose objective is to hold these assets in ovder 1o
eollect rantractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of princdpal and interest on the principal amount
oubstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCT): Finaneial assels
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assots are hald
within @ business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash Hows that give
rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
putstanding and by selling financial nssets,
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Finaneial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets are meagired at [air
value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amartised cost or at fair value through other
eomprehensive income on initial recopnition. The ransaction costs directly attributable o the
acquisition of financial assets and lisbilities at fair value through profit or loss are tumediately
recogrised in profit or loas,

( ¢) Financial Kabilities
Loans and Borrowings: After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost on accrual hasis,

Financial guarantee contracts: Financial guarantee contracts fssued by the Company are thoss
contracts that require a payment Lo be macle to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified deblor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financal guarantee contracts are recopnized initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for teansaction costs that are directly atiributable to the issuance of the guaranbee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined o
per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumalative
amaortization,

{d) Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective intevest methad. For tade
and cther payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, carying amounts
approvdimate the fair value due to the short maturity of these instroments.

(¢) Derecognition

The Company de-recognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expives or il tansfers the financial assets and the transfer qualifies for
dercoprition under Indian Accounting Standard 109 “Financial Instruments”, A financiel Bability
{or a part of financial Hability) is de-recognissd from the Company’s balance sheet when the
obligaticn specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

{f) Dffsetting of financial instruments

Financial asiets and [inancial linbilities are offactted and the net amount is reportad in financial
statements if there is a currently enforcoable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a et basts, to realise the assels and setthe the lHabilities simultanecusly.

m) Eamings Per Share

Basic IS s computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary shares oulstancling during the yeos,
Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the profit or lnss attributable to the ordinary equity
sharehalders and the welghted average number of ordinary equity shares, for the effects of all
dilutive potential Ordinary shares.
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2B Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncerlainty

[

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind A5 requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, labililies and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimabes wnd
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that ave considered to
be relevant. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current
events, actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and condztons.

b The estimates and undetlying assumptions are reviewed on en ongoing basis, Revisions to
accounling estimates are recognized in the peviod in which the estimate is revised [f the revision
affects anly that period, or in the period af the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods,

¢ Critical Judgements In the process of applying the Company’s accounting palicies, management
has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recopnized in the financial statements:

d Key sources of estimation uncertainty : The key assumptions concesning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reparting period, that have a significant risk of
camsing 4 material adjustinent lo the carrying amounis of assets ond Hobilities within the next
financial year are discussed belaw:

& Key sources of estimation uncestainty : The key assumplions concerning the future, and ather key
sources of esbmation uncertainty at the end of the reporting pericd, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next
financial vear ave discussed below:

f Tncome taxes: The Company's tax jurisdiction is Indin. Significant judgowents are involved in
determining the provision for income taxes, inchading amount expected to be paid / recoverad for
uncertain tax posibions.

g Operating Cyele and Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current, nem-current
classification in accordance with Part-1 of Diviston- I of Schedule T of the Companies Act, M3,

An asset is toated as current when (a) It is expected to be realised or intendecl t be sold or
consumed in normal operating cycle; (b) It is held primarily for the purpose of tradling; ov (c) 1L is
expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or (d) The asset is cash or
ensh equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twalve months after the reporting periad. All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is current when (a) It is expecied Lo be settled in normal operating cyele; or (b) It is held
primarily for the purpose of trading; or (¢} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period, or (d) There is no unconditional dght to defer the setflement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period, Terms of a lisbility that could, at the option of the
counterparty, results in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect it
classification. The Company classifies all other Habilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the rime between the acquisition of assets for procesging and their

realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its normal
operating cycle.
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Motes to Onancial statements
(Al amounts and i ldian fupess despl as othernsSe sinbid)

&

Man-Crrrent Inveshinenls
32-Prlar-21 Sl-Mar-30
[westment in equily Bstruments in other comprnies = 3
Ulpsquoted, Pully Paidap equily nsiremenis
1000 exquiity shive of Rs. 140 each af Cosmvos Co-Op Bank Ted 100,004 100.0m
100,000 1,100,000
Other Mop-cugment aod Corrent Flnanclal Asscis
Man-curenl Canrrunt
31-hdar-Z1 I1-Mar-10 A1-Mar-H J-Max-20
Securiby deposils
Lingmoured, comsidored pood b T 48,1919 -
Caher loans sl sdvances
Audvarices e employess BAT 40 S il
Ralanee with Resvenue gulboritis Sid4.801 11666917
Advanees b Suppliens 4386545 F s 10,54,564
0A.57.552 A8 19,195 2, Th o2 BAT 86,113
frrvenbories (valusd at Iowes of eosf and net eealisable vodoo)
3i-Mar-21 JA=Mar-20
Taw Materials 4,19,71,561 34,106,697 |
Pnckang, Mabstals 085715 35,1943 277
7,29, 20668 FARGT,074
Trade reccivables
Fi-Mar-21 =Dl -2
« Unsecnned, considered pgood
Trade Rereivalles iOutstanding for o period of nvare than i monts) - -
Lissis thinn Six Months 6,22, 21,4670 357,75, 182
BELE1LAT 55775162
% Cash and Cash Ejuivaleriks
Tl-Aelar-I1 Sl-Mar=20
Cash and Cash equivalents
Balance wilh lnnks
« Ol currenl &TCoIInts 257,000 1,60, %02
Blargin momey cleprsil 12T MR 233,60
Cash om hand §.88, 70 80,393
73,129 B4,74, 3
;O
|II ] |
A y
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SAMPRE NUTETTIONS LIMITER?
Motes o Hnanciul gtelements

(AL amsounts are in Indian rupees moept as otherwise stated)

10

1z

Share Caphial
J1-Ivlas-ZL J1-Mar-20
Aulthlorized Shares
A 0000000 {Adirch 21, 202k S000.000 equity shares of Bs, 1 each E@ ﬁﬂw
Teaued and subacribed sharea
A8 200000 (Mlarch 31, 2000 48,20 000 equity shore of B, 1reach 4,B200,000 4,52, 000
4, B2 00,00 4,452,010, 0000
a) Heconeillation of the cquity shares ontstanding at the beginning and at thr el ol e waar
J1-Mar-21 Fi-Max-20
M, of shaes Marwarnd o aof shnres Mok
Ak the begivming of the yoar A& 00 (R ] 820000 AH,20,000
change during the yosr . - - =
Carssanding ot theend of tie pear 48 20000 AR, 00,000 48.20,000 A8, 20,000

b Termsafright altached lo equily shares

The: Company has issuad only ooe class of equity shares having par valoe of Bs 10/- per share, BEach ladder of equily shares &
piutitled 1o ane vote per share. The dividend propesed by (he Board of Direciors is subject to tie approval of the shareholders in
the ersmiing Aruminl General Mesting, sxcept in case of interim dividend. In the event of Lignidation of the Company, the halders of
equity shares will be entitled o roceive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The
distribuwtion will be in proportion fe the numher of equity shams bold by the sharehokdens.

¢} Details of shareholders olding more than 5 shares in the Company

» J1-Mar-Z1 FlMlar-20
A - B of ehadis Mo oif ghares “h
lalima K Gurbani EE7ALG 1841 BRI 1841
Sarjthe. I Gurbami i el 125 T7417EL 152
Sdeera B Garbaiid 550,751 1nm HANTED 11l
As pur tho secoeds of the Compary, inchiding ss rogister of sharsholdess memieers, e above shareholding represents
legnland beneficial awnesship,
Cler Equily
31-hfus 20 Sl M)
Securities preminm secoad 37 00 AT 0000
Surplus in the statement of peofit and loss
Balanon as per last Enancisl staloments 514997 S0 P00
Profit / [loms) For Ehe periad ) year TASTTE 385,047
Met surplig{doficli) in the statement of profit and los 502572 55169047
5.96,25,721 58,58, 007
Deferved Tax Liability (Met) - (Refer Note No,d1)
31-Mar-71 71-dias-20

Dieferred Tax Linbility, Mud S0 R0 T |
Diefevred Tax Assel, Net . =
telat Creclil Enditlensent {Net) i [592170 [7.11,40H)

e, I“\ﬁ} 50,58 134 AL

A
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SAMITRE MUTRITIONS LIMITEE

Motes o finandal statements

[Allamounts are i Hling Fupsss meept as othernwise saied)
13 ﬂiﬂm brmowings

A-iviva-21 a1-Kar-20
Secured Loans
Term Lowms (Refer Note Mo26)
« Term loams From Banka 60T AR LA 31,056,004
- Viehicle Loans From Banks ATATY LoEF M
= Ctiher Wehicle Loan froos Faancial institutions 573185 1335072
Lags: Currenk haturites of lang ferm bormwings RO LanT5, 770

b PS0052 24,62, 044
Uneecured Loans
L Croan, Dripsctors and relitives S At 4,55,16,724 |
12.20,58,516 10,79, 79,077

Mo
= Vehicle Loang Fram Bl
Veliicks oniis wore aldatned from Yes Bank under hine jiuncsse s hemes, scoaned by hy pothocation of vehicles owaed by tho

COMPRT

=0ther Yehicle Taan
{ther Vehicle loans were abtned from Daimler Flsanclal Services Indis Private Lid © & Toyota Financial Secvioe, under hire
purchiase schems, secured by hypothecation of vehicles avwned by the company.

- There has nio defsall in repayment of Inam amd interest as af Balalance Sheet.

14 Shod benm bomowings

A1-Mar-21 Al-Mar-20
Tl Soutls Indinn Bk Ball Disesumbing 0000000 30,0, 000
The Sl Indian Bunk Casly Credit F2nAnEL 5.0d 50,7R1

Mt
a, Working capital Timits sre-availed from The south Indian Bank are &s takeover of existing limits from The Cosos Co-Op Bank

b Thaiwe has no dofuadt in mepayment of loan and interest as 3t Bakalance Sheet
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BAMPRE MUTHITIONS LIMITED

M o fimancial atvtements

(Al amounts are i Todlan rupses moceptas otherwise slated)

15 Trade payables

1-Mac-21 3 -Bdar-200
., Tragle Cralitors. TEO2 AR 2,56 534, Wb
b, Creclitar for Expensds 1L0ESRFR0 TH,O8, 630
r, Creclibors for Capitl Gocsads 3 A7 43 11355404
4,84, 40 555 4,76,56,301

Mate!

Detalls of dwes o nibas wnd small enterprises 38 defised under the MEMEL ACT, 3G

Agsec) an indormation avallabie with the Campany, these are no supplivss whe ane regestered ns miceo, small or mediom

16 Oileer eurrent lalsilibies

H-Dlax-Z1 Al Alaw-30
Carrent menturiles of kg Leon delt T2,00,000 T30
Advances from customers S0 LLADEH
Dues ta employins F850627 63,1046
Clther statusory liabilities S4G3T 44 23,151
Pravision for expenses 205,000 .
1,63.09597 7.50,55,1018
17 Shott term provisions
25 AMar2l | 31-Mardl
Travision far mcame @y 180768 714D
180,76 711400
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SAMPIE NUTRITIONS LIMITHED

Motes b financlal statemonis

{M]mﬂurﬂ;amhhﬁmﬂmpﬁﬂtﬁﬂeﬁunﬂﬂﬂﬁdﬁhﬂ}
18 Kevenue from operatioss

I-Plar-T1 Ji-Mar-20
S|y b Y H73,5.0006
Jol weorlk eabes 14,30 18348 16,12, 10,555
1,23 3337 24,55,45,815
19 Other income
31-Blar-21 31 -Mr-20
Inlerest Incame 5738 LETEG |
Ciher non opernting, ncome 3, 04607 T, 13,984
312435 17,895,000
0 Costaf Materials Conguimed
Fl-Blar21 Sl-Mar30
Dpening Stack L0 50T 592.95.604
Addcl Purchasen 504 1A BT 035 26674
Lemss Chasing stock 729284684 T30 07 4
36655160 8,248,513, 06
21 Manufacturing exgremlilun
Fil-Blan=Z1 J=Nlar-20
Pl f Fovwes consuphon 15722 LA 2503
Tactary anfuries anvd Wiges & EEA5R68 3,74, 06,06°3
Packary Expense .54, 7300 7355850
Transgert & Hamali Clrges f.3R,127 12, 00,5493
Rognirs & Milnbenance Sha0AF AR
Packing Expemics 487 -
& 1768517 AN FETER
22 Employee benofiis expensa
F=Mar-21 Tl=har20
“Salaries, bonws and allowances 4002111 B, W0 58
Dirgctors Rewnmmeration S4.60.300 34,650, 20
E3.71313 B, 68,593

(b

%&H. ‘Ill :

. g g
S o
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITEL
Maotes to finandal siatemionis
{ Al amvounts ars i Bdlan rapees ecept as othenyise stued)

EL  CWher expenies

Fi-Mar-X1 Si-hac-2
Adwartivement Expenses BT G600
AGH Fxpenses 3,200 350
Tuilding Muinbenanee 510110 B.EZINT
Busimess Promolian Expeases 5,84.038 i,005,144
Campuler kMaintemnce 105468 (et [
Coanusunbcntion Expenses A 1AM G515
Dasalions &, ARaEN
Blactricily Changes [, B0 A,84141
Genere] Bxponses T4, 96,542 021455
[nEuance 005573 1047 482
Ky B Insuradce Exp BT 2435020
Logit] nnd professional 1061088 4,548,730
Loss an cale of Asget 086 il B53
Medical Eopamses 2,600,970 L0200
wlembership and Subscriptien Fee 4500 6,860
(HTace Expenses 35807 ¥ Al 602
Payments (o auditars OG0 208,[KE
Printing and stationery 416,859 506,279
Frofessonnl Tax 500 1,04 (HXE
Rakes and Baxed 715560 12,66,5%
Reatal Clarpes TLAT A i, 2 2
Repaies aned saintenance 4,15 2468
Securiy Services 5,560,357 6,590 881
Siting; Pos 2,015,500 | B
Sl Wollare Expontes 1521382 647 BT
Tubephone [Ty ses X 11,558 295,571
Trawelling asd onveyancs AT A8 e 001
Vildcle Maintainenoe 5,28.770 400917
sdembership Fee (Mon G5T) 5,000 £
2155173 43,015,008
3 Pinance oosls
M-Mar21 Hi-Mav-2

Imlerest an Term Loans 74,23 554 G A2 A1
Tntevest on Woeking Capital loans Fa30354 oA AT
Intepesi-on Vehick: Loans 1,17 524 A,48,100
Infesesl on Smbubary Payments 40009 B, 250
Dank charges 128117 11,53, 555
154,31 354 213,51, 702
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
Motes to Financlal Statements for the year ended March, 2021
25. Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of;

The company i in receipt of assessment arders in respect of Central Bxcige and Income
tax for various yeats, against the said assesiment order, the company has preferred for
appeal before the appellate authorities in respective forums. The Company ia expocking 4
favarable result from the appellate authorily.

2, Secured Loans {Refer Note No.13)

Term loans From Banks:

1. The term loan from banks includes Re12,20,59,916/- from “The South Indian
Bank Lid, which were availed for acquisition of Plant & Machinery at 9.20% p.a.
eote of interest, and is secured by cquitable mortgage of Industrial Property of
fand & building situated in plot o133, Industrial estates, Madchal of the

Company.

b All termn foans are repayable as per the repayment schedule as atipulated in
sanction letter of the bank.

Vehicle Loans from Banks:
Viehicle loans were obtained from Yes Bank under hire purchase schemes,
secured by hypothecation of vehicles owned by the company.,

Oher Vehicle Loan
Other Vehicle loans were obtained from "Daimler Financial Services India Private
Ltd * & Toyoka Financial Services, under hire purchage schemes, secured by
hypothecation of vehicles owned by the company.

¥7, Diues to Micro and Small Enterprises

As per the information available with the company, it appears thal no dues outslanding
fo more fhan 30 days in excess of Rs,1,00,000/- as an 315t March 2021 in respect af Small
Seale Industrial Undertakings, 1t is reported that there are no specific claims on the
company from the small scale indusirial supplier under the “Inkerest an Delayed
Paymments to small Scale and Ancillary Industrial Undertaking Acl, 15993 during the said

yeit,

26, Payment to Auditors:

i Particulars 31 !'-E_-Ir-:h,.' 201 Fst Marveh, 200K
(Amount in Rs.) {Amount in Rs.}
_Audit Fee 1,553,000 155,008
Tax Audit Matters DEIE:I.:J 30,000
| Certification 4 Other Services 20,000 20,000
Tolal 2,005,000 206000 |
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29, There ore no debls outstanding as on 31st March 2071 frovm Threckars or olther officers
al the comparny other than imprest cash in order b mest running expenses.

3. Segment Reporting:

A} Busingss Segonent
The company’s business consists of eme primary reportable business segment of
manufacturing of sugar boiled candies & toffees and consists of major evenne on
account of processing charges, hence no separate disclosure is required in the context of

Inclian Accotmting Standard 108 “Operating Segment”,

b) Geographical Segment:

Dhiring the periad

within India with

under vreport, the Company has enga
two manufactuding facilities including of leasehold unit. The

ged in its business primearily

conditions prevailing in India being uniform, no separate peopraphical discosure is
comsidered necessary.

#1, Deferred Tax Assel / (Liakility)

The movement of Provision of Deferred Tox for the yoar snded 31-03-2021 ie as given

balowr:
Farticalam | Asset/ {Liability) | Recognised in Others | Asset/ {Liability)
As on 31.03.2020 Profil & Loss Az om 31.03. 2021
Arcount
Timing,
ifferenc
E;; ol (69,59,74) (2,93,150), (72,52,965)
Diepreciation )
Unabsorbed Tax
Losses
(Depresiation 12,498,600 (36,037) . 12,542,608
Loss)
MAT Credit
Entitlement, 711,404 180,768 3972172
(UHTization)
Total (49,49,674) (14B,459) - (540,98, 134]
“pat :_?*%
.f_-';‘l' b T N o G
l'.'.."r'" gl k g
N S A o, X




32, Earnings per Share (EPS)

The eamings consicdered in
nel profit ather o, The

ascertaintng the company's Farnings per share comprise of
mumber of shares used in cormputing Basic earnings per share is

the welghted average number of shares outstanding during the year. The numeralors
and denominators wsed to caleulate earnings per share.

| Parlicules - B 2020-21 2019-20
Profit attributable to Equily Share Holders '
() _ _ 755,776 33,57,247
Basic / Weighted Average Number of
Beuity Shares outstanding during the year
(MNe. s) (3 48, 20,000 4820000
Mominal value of each equily Share Rs.10/- Rs.10/ -
Harnings Per shave 0.16 .71
Diluted BPS (.16 0.70

33, Taxes on income

The company made necessary

kax ack 1951

34, Related Party Disclosures
“Related Party Disclosures” imsned by the Insbtute of Charteved Accountants of Indis e

a5 Follows:

Mame of the related parties and description of relationship

provision for income tax as per (e provisions of income

a) Enterprise which are owner or have significent influence of or are partoers with key
management personnel and their relative:

M/s. Roves Industries Limited
M/ 5. Maturalle Health Procducts Purk. L,

b} Key Managerial Parsonnel
Shri Brahma K Gurbani (ML)
Siwi Vishal B Garbani (WTD-VF)

n) Related Party Transactions:

Current Year

MName of Related Party Mature of transaction I'revious Year
Ghrl. Brahma K Gurbani | Managerial Remuneration 24,00,000 24,010,000
Shri Vishal RGurbani | Managerial Remunetation 10,69,200 10,69,200

d:':;v.i.ui. Brahma K Gurbani | Unsecured Barrowings B, 55,629 1,19,01 303
St Mecra B Gurband | Unsecived Borrowings 1,937,227 57,904,362
Royes Industries Limited | Lease Rentals 0,00,000 0,0 LI
Reyes Tnulustries Limited | Purchases of Raw Maberial - 42,156,760
Royes Industries Limited | Sales of Machinery 162,010,742
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) Balances receivable /Payable

As at March

As at March
Mame of Related Party Mature of transaction 1, 2081 31, 2020
‘Royes Industries Limited Advances Receivables 24167082 | 100405,664
Naturalle Health Products Pvi Lid | Advances Recetvables aps2E72 | 1550198
Shri. Brahma K Gurbani Unsecured Bortowings | 42997,092| 35041403
Smt. Meers B Gurbari Unsecured Borrowings | 10612052 |  1,04,74,825

I

n::}ugiaduwm of Unsecured Loans received from Dirvectors and Relatives of Divectors
uant to Hule 16 of Companies [Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 is as follows,

5 No. Name of Lender Natare of Relation Amotnt
1 Shri. Brahma K Gurbani Director 43007032
2 | Smi Meem B Gurbani Relstive of Director 10612052

15, CIF Value of Imports

7.

34,

1.

Y 2020-21{Rs.) 20149-20(Rs.)
Raw materials - —
Packing materials - -

Traded goods _— -
Capilal goods — =

. Previous year's figures have been re grouped / and or re-arranged wherever

necessary (o confirm with the current year classification,

Provision for acetuing liability for Super Annuation / Retirement benefits have been
made in the basis of the lability as actually determired as at the year end

Depreciation has been provided on the straight-line methiud as per the rates

preseribed as of Schedule [T of The Companies Act 2013,

Thers were no employees drawing remunerition of Bs.60.00 lacs or mare per annum
or Ru.5.00 lacs er more per month, if employed for part of the year,

. Paiss is roanded off 1o nearest rupes.

Micro and Medium Scale Business Entities: There are no micro, small and mediam
enterprises, o whom the campany over dues, which are outstanding for more than
45 days as at 315t March 2021. This information as required to be disclosed under the
Micro, Small and Mesium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined
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to the extent such partes hawe heen identified on the basis of mformation available

with the company.

42, Additional Information pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2003,

(As cerlified by Management of the Company)

Particulars Y 2020-21 FY 20149-20
Quantity | Value (Rs. | Quantity | Value (Ra.
' (Kg) | Lakhs) Lakhs)
Oipening Stock THB22E 700.69 A3962 S92.95
| Production (Supar based candies) 6772491 N.A | B6ETIES LA
Closing Slock 651151 7RI 7o 360
Salkes - Own product [Sugar based
fies Confectionery) & Job Work lEE??ﬁEI_E 182335 HI4E7 T 240036
Eﬁlﬂﬂ T Iﬂh wmk = - - -
The yuantitative detall indicated above includes production & dispatches made on
principal to principal basis and Loan license basia,
Material Consumed FY 200021 ] FY 2019-20
Quantity Value Quantity Value
Ej (Kg) (Kg)
| Raw Material (No. / Kgs) -
) Sugar 233117 121.62 668340 243,94
g Clucose FFFM0 SR SHIGTH 1X0R1
- Flavoss & Others 502A09|  13448| 1192422 30095
(Toll 1143166]  314.10]  2481280| 67470
Prirnary packing Materials 18538 54.45 52114 140,83
Cithers = -1 L =
Total 1162104 A6R.55 25333 B24.53
[ B. Value of imports on CIF Basis N.A il [ Nil
| C. Expences on Foreipn Currency il Bil pil il
0. Value of Tmported and Indigenous Maberials cansimed and % of each to total
Cronsumplion
Paliculars | Year ended March 31, 2021 Period ended March 31, 2020
Value % Value % |
Indigenous 3,68,55,262 100 Indigennis 8,2453.206 100
Imported - | Imported - -
Tatal 3,68:55,262 10 Totl B,24.53.206 100

The accompanying rotes referred above form anintegral part of the financial statements.

Ag per our report of even date attached

For RRK & Associates
.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Brahma Gurbani
Minaging Director
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Vishal R Gurbani
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
1o The Members of SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
geport on the Financlal Statements

Qpinion

We have audited the accompanying Financlal Statements of SAMPRE RUTRITIONS
LIMITED [“the company”), which comprise e Balanc: Sheet as al 31 March 2020,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement ol
Changes In Equity for the year then anded. and & summary of slgnificant sccounting

nolicies and othar explanatory information,

In our splnion ard to the best of our information and according to the explanations
ghvan to us, the aforesakd financial statements, give the information requinad by the Act
in tha manner so required and give a tue and Ffair view in conformity with the

arcounting principles generally accepted In India;

al in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state af affalrs of the Compary as at

March 31, 2020;

b}  In tha case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit Tar the year ended on

that date; and

€]  in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash fiows for the vear ended on

that dake.

Basle for Opinion

Wa conducted our awdit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing spacifiad under
section 143(10) of the Act. Gur responsibilities under those Slandards ara further
described In the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
epction of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethles Issued by the Institute of Chartared Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ainancial statements under the
provisions of the Companics Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilied
aur other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these regulremeants and the Code af
Ethits. We believe that the audit evidence we have phtained I sufficlent and

appropriote to provide a hasis Tor our oplnion,

Koy Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, wenz ol most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial stalements of the current period.
Thess matbers were addressed in the context af our audit of the financlal stalements as
a whale, and In farming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

o thase matbers.

Wi have delermined that there were no such key Sudit malters b comimircate iy our

(ralit

i

Branch DM 13 Flar Mo (0, Lakshmi Gandiota Resdency, Falleswars Bosd, Snanthapor

515 000, Aadlep Pradesh
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is respansible for the matbers in section 134(5} of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements thal give a true and fair view of the financial positien, financal performance
anid rash Aows of the Company |n accordance with the accounting principles generally
accapted In India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This
responsibiity also includes the maintenance of adeguate accounting recerds In
accordance with the provision of tha Act for safeguarding of the assels of the Company
and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregulanties; selection and
application of appropriate accounting polides; making judgmenls ard estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and ~malnienance
of internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant o Lhe preparation and
presentation of the financial staterments that give a true and fair view and are free fram
miatarial misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar,

In preparing the finencial statements, manggement ls responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
refated to going concem Bnd using the going concern basis of accounting urless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operalions, or has no
pealistic aliemative but to do so,

Thase Bosrd of Directors are also responsible for gverseeing the company’'s financlal
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasanable assurance about whether the financial
ctatements as a whole are free from matarial misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to |ssue an auditer's report that includes our opinien. Reasonable assurance
e & high level of mssurance, but Is not a guarantze that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, Individually
ar In the agagregate, they could reascnably be expected to Influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requiremants

Ac required by the Companles (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the act,
we given In the "Annexure A’ statement on the matters speafied In the paragraph 3 and
4 of the order, to the extent appiicabla.

As reguired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report (hal.

2] We have sought and obtained all the Infarmation and explanations which Lo the best
of our knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Y In our epinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company sa far as appears from our examination of those books.

¢} the Balance Sheet, the Statemant of Profit ard lLoss, and Cash Flenwr Statément
dealt with by this Beport are in agreement with the backs of account.

d) In our opinlon, the aforasaid fnancial statemants pomply  with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified vnder Saction 133 af the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014 J
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2} On the basis of written represantations recelved From the directors as on 31 March,
2020, taken on record by the Board of Directors, nong of the directors I8
disqualified as on 31 March, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Sectlon 164(2) of the AcL

f1  With respect lo the adeguacy af the intemal financial controds ower finandal
raporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer te
our separate report in "Annexure B, and

g) With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Repart In sccordance
with the Rule 11 of the Compantes [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, to our bost of
our information and according to the explanations given tous @

(. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financlal
position in (ts standalons financial statements.

ii. Company did not have any leng-term contracts Including derivatives contracls
for which there were any material foreseeable losses

iil, There has boan no delay in transferrdng amounts, required o be transferred, Lo
the Invesktor Education and Protectian Fund by the Company.

For @ i K & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN Mo, 0978

e

R. gadha Krishna
Partner

M. Mo, 210777
LIDIN: 2021077 7AAAAHIS548

Date: 29/06/2020
Place: Hyderabad
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vii.

Annexure A’ To The Independent Auditor's Report
(This is the Annexure referred to in our Report of even date)

a. The Company has malntained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative detalls and situation of fixed assets.

b. Al fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management during the
year, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of It's Assats, Mo material discrepancies were noticesd) ©n such
verification.

o Accarding to the information and explanations given Lo us all the title deeds of
immevable properties are held in the name of the company.

a, The Management has conducted physical verificalion of Inventory al reasonable
intarvals during tha year.

b. The procedures of physical verification of inventory followad by the management
are reasonable and adequate In refation to the size of the Company and the
nature of its business.

g, The Company is maintaining proper recards of inventory and ne material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans to the partles covered in the reglster
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, excapt for unsecured
trade advances in normal course af Business

The Company has been complied with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable in respect of loans, Imvestiments,
guarantees, and security’.

The Campany has not accepted any deposits fram the public.

In our epinion, and according to the Infermation and explanalons given to us, the
company s not required to maintain cost records and accounts as provided under
sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. According te the records provided to us, the Company is reqular axcept for
following cases in depositing undispuled statutory dues Including Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any
other statutory dues applicable to it with appropriake guthorities and accerding to
the information and explanations glven ta us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Income- Eax, Sales-tak, Wealth-tax, Service Tax, Qustoms Duly,
Excise Duty and Cess were in arrears as al 31st March, 2020 for # perlod of
mare than six menths from the date they bacame payable.

Particulars | Amount in R,
Tax Deducted ot Seurce 105,625
Professional Tax " _ 15,000
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b, According to the records of the Company and on the basls af the information and
explanatione given to us, except for befow mentioned, there are no dues In
respect of VAT, Service Tax, Duty of Excise, Income Tax, customs duty, wealth
tax that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on aecount of

any dispute,
Name of the | Nature Amaunt Rs. Pariod Lo Forum where
Statute of the ralates pending
B— .. s
Central Excise | Exclse Excisa Duty on F.¥.2010-11 DGCEL
Act, 1944 Dty Waluation for
s R5.86,23672- .
Income Tax lrcoime Ra.42 Lakhs AN Z005-06 | CLT (&), Circdle 301},
Act, 1961 Tax | Hyderahad
will, The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to [hie
financial Institutions or banks or government ar dues to debantura holders,
. In our opinien, Term Loans were applied for the purpoese Tor which the said Ioans
were cbtained.

H A5 per the checks ecarrled out by Us, no fraud on or by the company has been
noticed or reported during the year under report.

xl. According to the records of the Company and on the basts of the Information and
explanations given to us, managerial rermuneration has been paid or provided in
acenrdance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 137
read with schedule V of the Companles Act, 2013,

=i, The Campany is aob a Nidhi Company.

%1l In our oplnden, and according to the information and explanations glven ta us, afl
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 aof
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the detalls have been disclosed In the
iInd A5 Financial Statements ete., as required by the gpplicable accounting
standards;

iV, In our opinien, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debantures during thie year under review.

W, In cur opinkon, and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the
eompany has not entered into any non-cash tramsactions with directors or persons
connecked with him.

®Wis The company |15 not required to be registérad under section 45-1A af the Reserya
Banl of India fAct, 1934,

For B R K & Associates
Chartered Accounbants

FRM No. 097855 75 hsso
Date:29/06/2020 M e,
Flace: Hyderabad —_ Qﬁ i H"-'-ﬂ-l'fn
- . .'_ Tesbed] 'I:I Il
A Tadha Kiishna  Gas, A0

Partner g T et

M.Me. 210777 -
UDTN: 2021077 7AAAAHISS548



Annexurs - B to tha Auditors’ Report

Repart an the Internal Financial Contrals under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of 5ection
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of SAMPRE
NUTRITIONS LIMITED ("ths Company") as of 31 March 1020 in conjunction with
sur audlt of the Ind AS Finandal Statements of the Company for the year ended on thal
date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Contrals

The Company’s management Is responsible for sstablishing and mainkalning internal
financial contiols based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria
ackablished by the Company considering the eccantial components of Internal contral
stated in the Guldance Mote on Audit of Internal Financlal Controls over Financlal
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAT"). These
responsibilitios Include the design, implementatien and maintenance of adequate
internal finandal controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of Iits business, induding adherence o company’s polides, the
safeguarding of its assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial Information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responeibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion gn the Company's internal finangial controls
aver financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Canlbrols aver Financlal Reparting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companias Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, bath applicable ta an audit of Internal Finandial
Controds and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those
standards and the Guidance Note require that we comgly with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reaschable assurance aboul whether adequate
internal financial contrals over financial reporting was established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respecls.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the Intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their aperating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
sssassing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness af internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures sefected depend on the auditar's judgment, including the assessment of the
rigks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Slatements, whether due to fraud
ar error, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and
appropriate bo provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s Intemal firancial
controls system over financlal reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intermnal financal contral over financial reparting 1s a process designed fo

provide reasonable assurapce regarding the reliability of financlal reporting and the

preparation of Ind AS Financlal Statements far external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted sccounting principles. A company's Internal financial control over

financial reporting Includes those pelicies and procedures that (1} pertaln—to. the

maintenanee of racords that, in reasonable detall, accurately an fal;FF..r_Taﬁ'E'Et:- 2
L

|'||_ I ”ﬂ,‘l—""" I':




transactinns and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit preparation of Ind AS
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accapted accounting principles, arnud
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of The COMmMpany; and (3} provide
repsonable assurance regarding prevention or  tmely detection of unouthorized
acquisition, ese, of disposition of the company’s assets that could have & malkerial effect
on the Ind AS Financial Statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Becauss of the inherent limitations of intarnal finandal controls over financlal reporting,
including the possibility of collusion er improper management override of cantrots,
material misstatements due te error or fraud may oceur and not e detected. Also,
prajections of any evaluation of the Internal financial controls over financial reparting Lo
future perods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degrae
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriarala,

In aur opinian, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate miernal firancial
controls system aver financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reparting were operating effectively as al 31 March 2020, based on the internal
contrel ouer financlal reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
gssontial components of Internal control stated In the Guldance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Cantrols Over Finandial Reparting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India,

For it it K & Associates
Chartered Accountznls

FRN No. ﬂa?sis RE g
M{ _n:.f!':_'l.‘-' i

Partner
M.No. 210777 —_

1l &
R. Radha Krishna %00

Date;20/06f 2020
Placa: Hyderabad

UDIN: 20210777AAAAHIS548

i
e
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SAMIFRE NUTHITIHINE LIMITER
Anlnace Fhet i il March b, 2020
{ A1 iy e i BAGhan TURIDS SRs i sk W e

ERETICL LA l MAfeS | gsm Wliore 30, 20200 Aa i Mnrch 31, m;]
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EAMPIRE MUTEITHONS LIMITED
Stutement af profit nml s for the yonr onded March 31, 2020
{ Al ameunis ire i Ddean npees cxespl a5 atherwise saved)

Far il vear ended Far (he yray omiled
Py Mareh 31, 2020 [buaely 1, 29
TNCOME =
Reveme oym aperation: 19 ALFTED 2mGHOY 12
[k her income M I, e G0N ER L
250, 340415 THT, | 54,009
| EXPENEES
o ol Materiaks Cansimel 21 22431200 184 T05 24T
Mnncrating expewilnn I 0F HOL T J6 AT AT
Employee henefis cxpenss F L HthE, 59 7RIS (6
[hbex expenses H 24| 408 (3R 21,371,338
Dreprecumion b 14.925,823 13,935,032
Firameo: cirsly 2h 133,702 2067004
245, TR0, 5 L4, 740, TR
Teafily {beasi bednre 55 o4 560,285 LAl 250
Tax expenss 4
Currenl fax . RLUE A
Stan AFwomss} Provision for Taxation 4 A SIS
Defierred tny {ormdiiyfchargs i 1,198,570 [ HeG Shd
Total tng rapenae 1205 0 181,50
Profit (jossp for e pecindfyear AT 24T 251,540
il Comperehensive Income . t
Totad Cimps chemsive Inowne for tho Year 3,357,247 1301,70
Farnimps par aquicy share
[Ficaminal vafue o squivy sl R 9]
Besie amd Dalused (RS} M 0.7n 04H
Weighted average no. of cquity shares 4 A0, [0 R el H
The sconmpmmying nictes mefemed shove form an nmegm | pat al {44
the flomsctal stalsmperie
o pir o report of even dife uiinched
For RRK & Asssciuies For and o6 behalf of the Bosrd ol Di
Chirfers: Apconinbios -I.Snmpn Mutyirious Uui'hmt 1:,1"
,.1'_"“=- = | Y a ) Tl".,.-";
LI II 1 "I "r-.
thmnﬂ il Vishal Ratun Gaybani
i
blemiership Mo, 20077 Tl fE ]

Placs; Hyrterated
Date | 2%h Jume, 2020
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SAMPRE NUTHITIONS LTI
Casli Mo saceiesi
¢ |- erestusis e e o i i el et ifadal)
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FAMPHE NUTRITTOMS LIMITEDR

Stutomenl of Chaspes in Equity for the year gapiled Mlareh 31, W20

a) Haguity Share Capital

Far the vear encded 3lst March, 2019

Finkniess gs ai 0 bl April, 2068 4, E20.000
Chatges in equily shere capiial during the year -
Raluies a5 ot st March, 2019 4 HA 0K
For the year ended 315t Minreh, 2020
Halance as ul 01t Aprif, 2019 i B20n000
Chanpes in aquity shace capial diring the year -
Balance as ot 3150 March, 2020 A W, W)
L} Chthur Fiisity
Heserves & Surplns
FRrHnY o pital Reserve RE“'.““' Tudal
Earnings
Balasee asut April 1, 2008 3,700,000 4. 500, B0 53,700,960
Todnl Comprehengive lnoma far e ¥ car -
i} Adkditions during th yenr - .
i1y LHilisstinn during the yer - - -
jiiy Profit ¢ (Losg) Bar the year - 291,740 2311, 744
bv) Oither Comprehensive Income - - -
Balunce ws at Muorch 31, 2009 3,700,000 51,812,704 55,5 L2700
Total Comgprebensive Income for the: Year - = ¥
{3 Additions dring e s - .
i) Liileation durng the o - .
£l Profit / { Loas) fos the year 1357247 1,357.247
vk ke Comprehensgive Tnpoeme i -
Balanee ss ol March 31, 2020 3,704 10 55,109,947 A8 865,047

Thve nccoampanying nefes refered above form
an inlesral part of the financial statements

As per car report of even date attached

For REK & Assoeciates

Chartered Accoumtants .S
FRMa.Qo97855 %

hembership Me, 210777

Place: Hderabas
Date | 29th June, 2020

Far and on beball of the Board of Directars

of Sampre Mulritions L1mi|!l{nﬂ-

) Gl =
I]rai Ginrkani YBHLF}E{EH],&'\!I‘MM

Mgy Eirector

_ DIN: 0031 F1AD

|H§E’1

[HILH

TRGET
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SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED

Metes 1o Nasacin] statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Masin af acopuming snd prepartion of Financinl Stalements

o) Company Crrerybew

k)

Sompre Mutritions Limited s 0 Public Limited Company domiciled in e Sine of Telagann,
Hysderabad mearporaied uncles the Provisions of the Companies Act, 1936, The Compony ©
angaped (0 fhe activity of manufactring of eonlectionery peoduc. The Eguity shares ol the
comgarny are Tissed with e BEE Limixd.

The principal place of bushess is stwated w133, TSIC Indosten] Esiste, Moduhal-SH2 101,
Merdchal Malkajgiri [, Telangam

ftials of acconnting and preparatim of Fimancisl Statements

These Tinsicial stements of the Company have been preparsd in accordance with the Indian
Avsounting Standarde (hereinatier refirred 1o 05 the 'Ind AS™) a5 notified by Ministry of Corparate
Affmirs (MCA) pursunnt to Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, rend with Companies | Tndizn
Accounting Standards) Ruks 2013 as amended and cthey relevan prirviniuns of the Act. The
Company hes consistently applied the pocouning policies during the perind presented i the
Firancil slaements.

Aroounting policies have been consistently applicd except whire n newly Eousd sccounting
standerd (= inikslly ndopted or o revision to an exksting accaunting stendard nequises s change in the
acooumling policy Mitheris in e,

&} Critiea) seenunting jwdgenenis and Key sonrees of csilmation uncerbinty

The preparation of the finascial siatements in conformity with the Ind AS reguires manngement 1o
make judgements, estimates and assampions that offect the applicatton of aceounting policies and
the separted amounts of assers, liabilitles and disclosures as al date af the financial stnemants and
the reported amoonts of the revemies and expenses for the years prosented, The eatimates and
sssocinted assumnptions ars based on histarical experience and other factors thal dre considered Lo ba
relevant. Alihiough these estimates are based upon mnnsgement s best knowledge of ciment venis,
actunl resnalss may differ from these estimates umder different assumpibons and conditions.

The estimates snd underlying wesumptions e revicwsd on an ongaing bagis. Revisions o
stcounting esrimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate i revined f fhe revision
affects anly that period, or in the periad of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and fushore periods.

Critical Judgements In the proccss of applying the Company’s aceounting pohiees, makagement
hie made the following judgements, which have the raost significant effect on the smouats
recognized I the finanuisl siatcments:

Key sourves of estimation nneertninty : The key pesmmyphons concerning the future, and other key
gources of sstimntion uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have o significant risk of
causing 3 materinl adiustment to the carying amounts of sssets and labilities within the Dext
finameinl year are disoussed bedow:

Key sources of estimation uscertamty : The ey assumptions concerning the futre, and other key
eources of estimation uncertainty ot the end of the reporting puriod, that have 3 sipmificent risk of
casing a malechl odjusimest © the camying amsunts of st and lisbilities within the pesd

finnzcial year are discussed helow: T
i %
— w0
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a)

Income tixes: The Compaoy's tax jurisdiction i India Significant judgments are imwved in
determining the provision for income (moes, neluding amount expected 10 bo paid [ reovered for
uneerfain x positions.

d} Operating Cycle and Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and linbilities in the balarce sheet baged on currenl’ non-current
classificatinn in accordance with Part-l of Division- [1-of Schedule 11 of the Companics Act, 20103,

an assel 5 reated as current whea {a) 1L is expected 0 be realized or imtended to be sold or
sonsumed in normal operating cyele: (b)Y [t is held primarily for the purpase af imding; or (¢} It 18
expected o be realised within twelve months after the veporting perind, or {4} The asset is cash or
cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a linhility for at least twve e
months after the reparting period, All other assets are classifisd as non-tumssl.

A ligbility is curent when [a) 11 is expected 1o be sertled in normal operaling cycle; ar (b) It is held
primarily for the purpese of teading; or (¢) It i due to be settled within twelve months afier the
reporting period, or (d) There is no ynconditional right to defer the settlement of the hability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. Teoms of a lability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, results in s settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification, The Company classifies all other linbilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time berween the acquisition of assels for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalenits. The Company has ideniified twelve menths 45 its nommal operating
cycle.

¢) Standards issued but not yet effeciive

On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate (MUA) has potified te Tnd AS 116 Leases’, and
sssued amendements to the Ind AS 12 neome Taxes', Ind AS 19 Employes Benefits'

The effective date for adoption and apliication of above stated is annual perind begmning from on or
after Dlst Aprl, 2019, The Company does not have any impact on sccount of this mmendements,

Property, Piant and Equipment & Drepreciation
i} Recognition and Measurement

Jtems of property, plant and equipment are measured Al cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any, The cost of an item of property, plant and equipmen! comprises:

Its purchise price, including imiport dutics and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
digcounts and rehates.

Any eosts directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and eondition necessary for it to
he capable of operating in the manmer intended by managemenl.

Bf significant part of #n item of property, plarit and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate ilems (major componerts) of property, plant and equipment

Ldu\'
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Property, plant and equipment are derecognised from financial stalement, either an disposal or when
a0 economic benefits are expecied from its use or disposal. The gain or loss ansing fram disposal of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceods Trom disposal with the
carying amount of propesty, plant and equipment recognised in the statement of prolil wnd loss
gecount in the year of ocourrence,

ii} Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure iy capitalised only il it is probable that the future economic benetits
associated with the expenditure will low to the company.

iii) Depreciation
Depreciation amount for assets is the cost of an assel, or other amaunt subatitutie] for cost, less ils
estimated residual value.

Depreciation on nssets has been provided on Straight line basis al the usefi] lives specified in the
Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions / deductions is calculated pro-
rata from | to the month of additions  deduchons,

Assets costing less than IR 5,000/ arc depreciated at |00% in the year of acquistion.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recopmized to the extear it is probable that the economic benefits will fow 1o the
Company and the revenue can be reliebly measured, regurdless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue s measured at the fair value of the considertin received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment.

Interest income: Inferest income is accrued on & time basis, by reference 1o the principal
putstanding and ai the effective interest rate applicable.

e} Inventories

Raw materiils and stores, work-in-progress, traded and finished goods ares stated at the lower of
cost, calenlated on weighted average basis, and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials and steres
comprige of cost of purchase, Cost of work-in-progress and finished poods comprises direct
materials, divect labour and un appropriate propartion of varigble s fxed overbead expendilure,
fhes latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity, Cost of inventories also melude
all other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of
purchased imventory are determined after desducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value i5 the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary o make the sele, Items held for use in the production of inventary are
not written below cost if the finished product in which these will be incorporated are expected 1o be
sold at or above cost,
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d} Foreign Curroneles
Functhonal currency: Thi functional curreney of the Ciampary is he Inclinn rapes

Transactions and tmnslaiens: Foreign cureney tmnssctlons re ramaluled inio he fimetional
eurreney irxing the exchunpe rstes at the dates ol the transachions. Fonsign-comreney-denaminuied
ety anscts mnd liabilitien une warslabed fnba the rebevant foncions | correney of ssdiange rales
i effect al the Balsnce Sheet dste, The gains or losses resulting Fom such troslstons are melubed
in et profi in the Statement of Protit ond Los. Non-moretary assels sod non-nonsty linhilities
denominnicd & 0 foreign eurrenoy - aisd measured of fidr saloe are iesnslied wi the exclonge mie
prevalent at the date when the fair valoe was determined. Non-monetary ssts anil men-mometiry
liahilitiex denominated @ forgign currency and measured af hisiorios] sl are tamssited ke
exchangs e jrevalent at the date ol the upnsaction.

Trensection palns or losses realised upon setlement of foreign cumensy trndastiong are included in
deirrmining net profit for the period in which the transaction is sertled. Revenoe, oxpense and cash
flow tiems denueioated in fovelgn currenciss are tronslated inio the redevant Runciiomal cuorrencies
using fhe exchange rate m effect an the date of te mansaetion.

&) Lngame fax
lncome tox expenae omprises gunvent ax expense ad the oel change in the deferned tax assst or
fiahility during the year, Current sod deferred taxes are fecognised in Stloment of Profit and Loss,
ueept wher they relste te items hat are recognised in ofher comprehensive inoome o dimecthy in
oquity, in which case, the cunert and deferred tax ar also recopnised i other comprehensive
incom ar dirgethy nsgquaty, srepectively.

Current tax: Current tax is measured i the amound of e expected to be paysble on the 1axable
incoere Fox the yeir as detenmined in accardanes with the provisions of the Lncome Toux A, 1961,
Cuarvent tax assets and current tax lishilitics are offser when there is 2 legally enforceabie Fight to scl
aff the regognized amounts and there is an inbenthan @0 settle the aset and the lizbility on a set bais.

Deferved tax: Deferred income wx is recognised wsing the Balaice Sheet spproach, Defermed
incomie tix assets and lahilites are recopnised for dedudible and taxable temporry differences
arising between the tx base of pssets and Mlabilities sl their canylng smount, except when the
dsfarred income tax arises from the inital recognition of an assct or lishility in o bremasetion that 1%
not 2 business combination and alfeers nefther accounting nor taxable profit oc loss al the time of the
transactban,

Dhefireil tax asscts aré recomised anly & the cdent il ks probabibe that zither futre texable profits or
reversal of defered tnx lobilities will be ovailable, npainst which the deductible fEmporary
difTerences, and the sarey foreartd of unused sax oredits ond umped tax |osses cn b utilisel. The
eorrying amoot of a deferred fnx wiset & reviewsd i the ond of each repurting date and necluoed w
the extent fhat it i no longer probable thal sufficient taxable profit will be available (o allo all or
part of the deferred incone tax asset (o be wilised

Diefirred tue nesets and Tabilities ore messured using the @X raes and lows that kave been
ernctad ar substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pertad and are expected o apply when
the related deferred fax ssset is realised or the defirred tax lability is settbed. Deformed b psets and
lishsifities are affsct when there is a lagally enforzeable right to set cumrent tx msets and Hubilies
and when the deferred tax balances rekate to the smne taxation authority,

1} Tmpairsent of Asseds
Non Financkl Assett (The cirrving value of assels / cash generating unils at each boknes sheel

date ang tevicwed for impairment if oy indication, of impainent exists.
L2 T
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If the carryiig amount of the ussels excesd the egtimated recoverable amount, an impairment 8
recopnised for such excess amounl The impaiment loss 15 recopnised as an cxpense in the
Siptement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carved at eevalued amount, in which cise any
impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated a5 n revaluntion decrense 1o the extent a revaluztion
rescrve for that asset,

When there is indieation that an Impatrment lsss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued assex)
in earlier sccounting periods which no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of
impairmient [oss is recognised ln the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the exten the amounl was
previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets, such reversal is

Finaneinl assets: The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis. the expected crslil losscs
associated with its financial pssets, The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
las been u significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, the Company applies the
simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 104 Financial Instruments, which requires. expecied
lifetime losses 1o he recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions ase recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result af & pust event, it is prohable that an outflow of resources embodying econommic henefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation. Provisions are measured al the best estimate of the expeaditure required Lo settie the
present obligation at the Balance Sheet date,

If the effect of the time valug of money s material, provisions are discounted (o reflect its present
value using @ current pre-tax rate that reflects the current marke! asscssments af the time value of
money and the risks specific o the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of lime is recognised a5 & finance cost.

Contingent liabilitics are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arizing from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ope or more
unecertain Mulure events not wholly within the contral of the Campany or a present vbligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resoorces will be reguined
10 settle the obligation or & reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assels are not recognised in the Financial Siatements.

..
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h) Mon-derivative finnncial instroments

Fimmciil assels and labilitics are recognised when the Company becomes a pirrty to the contractual
provisions of the instroment, Financial sssets and Babilibhies are initially measured at fair value.
Tramsaclion costs that are directly attributable to the scquisition o issue of financial issets and
fimancial liabilities {other then finaneial assets and finmneial liabilities at fair valoe through profit ar
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair valae measured on mitial recognifion of Tinancial asset
or fimancial liahility.

i} Financial assets

Cash and eash equivalents For the purpose of presentation in the sitement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents inclodes cash on hand, deposils held at coll with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of theee months or less thal wre readily
canvertible o khown amounts of cesh and which are subject w an insignificant risk of changes m
value,

Trade Receivables and Loans: Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subseguently, these assels are hebd at amortised cost, using the effective interest rale (EIR} method
net of any expected credit losses, The EIR is the rate that discounis estumated future ¢ash income
through the expected life of Grancial instrument.

Deht Tnstruments: Debt instruments are initially measured al amortised cost, fie valle through
othas eomprebensive income (‘FVOCT) or fair value through profit or loss. {(*FVTPL"} till
derccognition on the basis of (1) the entity’s business model for managing the finencial assets and
(ii) the contmctuel cash flow chameteristics of the financial nssct.

Equity Instruments: All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are
initially measured at fuir value, the Company may, on initia] recognition, imevoeably elect to
mensure the same &ither ot FVOCT or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an mstrument-
by-instrument basis.

ii} Financinl assets— Subsequent measurement

Finaneial assets at amortised cost: Finuncial assets sre subsequently measured al amertised cost if
thess financial axsels are held within 1 business whose objective is 0 hold these assels in arder to
collect contractual cash flows and the contraciual terms of the financial asset give ris on specified
dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
oulstanding,
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Finaneial asseis ol fuir value throngh other comprohensive income (FVTOCT): Finmncial assets
aree menkured of fir value throwsh other comprebensive incame i5 these finuncinl psscis are heald
within & business whise objective is achieved by beth ¢ollecting contractual cash flows tht give
fge on sperified detes 1o Solely payments of principal and interest on the prncipal amount
pubstanding and by selling financial assets.,

Finaneial assets at falr value through profit or loss (FYTPL): Financial assets are medsured at
fair value throush profi o loss unless it is messorsd ol amortised cost or fair value throush other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs divectly atributable 10 the
acguisition of finmcial nssels and liahilities @ fair value tuough profit or lees ae imrmedintaly
recognised in profit or logs,

i} Finmneial lnbilities

Loans amd borrowings: After initial recognition, interest-bearng loans and bormwings are
subsequently measured at minrtised cost on-acerual basis.

Finaneisl ganrantes eoutracts: Financial guarantes coniraces issued by the Company are (hese
contracts (hal require o paymenl to he made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs becnuse the
specified debtor fails to make & payment when doe in scoordance with the terms of a debt
|nstrument. Fimancial puarniee contracts are recognized initially as o limbility at fair value, adjusted
for trussssction costs that are diretly atidbtable to the i=sunce of the guanntes, Subsequantly, the
tiability is measured at e ligher of the ameunt of los allewimes datermined g per impairment
requimements of [nd A5 |99 and the amaunt recognized less curmmlative amorlization,

iv) Financial liabilitles - Subsequent measuremenl

Financial Hahilities are measured al amortised cost wsing te effective interest method. Fer trade and
ather payables maturing within ane year from the balance sheot date, camrying mmnuts approximate
e Gaip valoe due o the short moturity of these inatruments,

v} Deracognition

The Company de-recognizes a finencial pssets when the contractnl rights to the eash flaws from the
fifancial asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and the trarefor qualifies for dercopnition
under Indian Accounting Standard 109 “Financial Instruments”. A financial liahility (or a par of
financial lizhility) is de-recognised from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified
in the eontragt s discharged or cuncelled or expines.

vi} (Hlsetting of finasclal instraments

Fimsneia] asscts and financial liabilities are offseried and the et amount is repored in financial
staterments if (here is o curremly enforceable legal right to offset the pecognised amounts and thess is
an intention to seithe on a net basis, to realise lhe assots and sefthe the limbilithes simuitansously.

i) Earaings Per Share
Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss anrlbutable o the equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted averaps mimber of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
EPS is computed by adjusting the profit or loss nttributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of ordinury equity shares, fisr the effects of all dilwive polential
Orinry shares, "+,
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MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATE
27, Coutingent liahilities nol provided for in respect of:

The counpeny is in reeeipt of asewmment onders in respect of Centrl Excise and Tncome G for
viarious yoars, agaisd the sold esscssment order, the company bas proferved Tor appl Bofare the
mppredlata mithorities in respective forume. The Company is expecting o favorable result fron the
appellate autbvrily.

24, Secured Lonns (Refer Nate Mo.[4)
Term lnans Feom Hanks:

4 The teem loan from beades indudes Re, 10,79,39.077%- from "The Houlh Ind@n Bank Trd"
which was availed for nequisition of Plan & Machinery and eonslmiction works al
[ 0.55% rnie of interast,

k. All terrn boms are repayable & per the repayment schedule a5 stipulated in sanction letter
ol the bende

Yehicte Loans From Banls:

Vehicle loans wers obtasined from HDFC Bank and The Cosmos Co-Oyp Bank Lid under
hire puerchase schemes, secured by lypothecation of vehicles Hnmsced by ihe banks.

Ciher Vehicle Loan
Cither Velicle Loan obtained from ‘Daimler Finencinl Services [ndia Private Lid', secured

by hypothecation of vehicles awned by the cormpany.
24, Dhues to Micre wnd Small Enlerprises

Mg per the informstion available with the company, it appears that no dues sutstarcing, for more
thean 30 duvs in excess of Rs.1,00,004/ a3 on 31 st March 2020 in respect of Small Scale Industrial
Undertakings. 1t is reported that there are no speeifle clzlms on the company from the small scnle
industrial supplier under the “The Micoo, Small and Medium Faterprises Development Act, 20067
during te sald y=as.

0., Payuient to Avdiftors:

Particulars 31" March, 2020 31 March, 2019

L {Amount in Rs.) { Amomnt in B8.)
Andit Fee |55.000 [ 127,500
Tax Andit Matters 30,006 30,000
Certification & Other Services 20D 20,000
Tatal 2,035,000 1,77, 504

31. There are n delis outstanding a5 on 315t March 2020 from Directors or other olficers of the
company other than impres gash in erder o mest rAming expenscs.

o PBEEn
i’ '-'.;'i.-
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31, Segmend Heporiing:

Ihe comgany’s bigsiness consist of oes primary reportahle business sepment of mamfschuriig of
sugur bailes) enmilet and tolfees and having two manufacturing fecilities al a) Fiot Moo 155, Ik,
hiedchal & b Thot Heo; 127 & 128, [E, Medchal. 1 consats of major sevenia on deenmt of
Processing charges; ta separiie disclosores pertaining 1o atiribatable revenues, onfits, aasels,
lintvilitkas end capital employed sre given ws reguived umder Accounting Standard — 17

33, Deferved Tux Assed / {Linhility):

T'he movement of Provision of Deferred Tax for the year endod 31-03-2020 §s as given below:

Farticulars I Asset! Recopnised in | Others - Aset |
| (Linhility) As | Profit & Lom {Lin billity) As
on Aceounl am 31032020
31.03.2019
Tirting (¥ [ferences on
account of Depreciation (4 6, S [24,97.269) (6%, 5%, 774)
Linahsorbedl Tax Losses
frexociation Laea) - 12,58, 6l | - 1195 6%
MAT Credit Catitbesgnty
{Utilisation) s - 5 1404
| Total {1462, 504} (11 9% 571) = 49,409 64 |

34, Earnings per Share (EPS)

The earnings considersd in ascertaining the compeny's Eamiags per share compeise of net prodit
after tax, The number of shares used in computing Basic eamings per share I3 the weighted
averape nimber of shares outstanding during the year. The numerators ard denominanrs wed o
calaulsie enmings per share,

Particulars | FYzne-2a FY 2819
| Profit attribuinbde o Equity Skare Holders (A} 11,57,247 23,101,740
Basic 7 Weighted Average Number of Equity
Shares outstonding during the yesr (Mo g) (B} | 43,20,000 48,711,000
Harmninal value of each eguity Share B, 1y Bs, 10~
Esrnings Per share 0.70 .48
Diluted EPS 0.70 48

15, Taxes on income

The company maik necessary provision for income tax as pev the provisions of Incame Tax Act,
1961,

109



M. Rebnted Panly Disclosares

SRelated Party [Macddosures™ issnsd by the Instiute of Chaered Ascowmnons of Tndie are a5

Firl ko

Mame of ihe reloied parties wad

deseription of relationship

a) Emorprise which are owner or have significant influsnce of or are parners with key

management personmel dnd

their melniive:

Wlfs. Rooves sdustries Limaned
W5, Matmralle Heatth Praducts P, Lid,

b ey bangecal Pevsonnel

Shel Brahma K Gurbeni (MI)
Shei Vistml R Churbani (WTD-VP)

) Retnged Party Tronsactiones

__ Nameof Retated Farty Mutire of iransaciion Carrenl Year | Previows Year
Shiri. Prmhima ¥ Gourlsand Managerial Remuncration 2441 (60 | 8,75,0610
Shri Vighal & Curbeni Managerial Remuncration 141,68, 200 0,69 200
St Bralmn K Gurbapi Uraeeured Bomowings 3,504 1,403 23110010
Boit. Meesn B Gurbani Ligeoured Borrawinga 1.0 Tl _E3S A& B0IES
Ruryes hindustoics Limited Lnae Rentols 4, 80, o) |4 5
Reyes Industries Limited Purclmsss 43.86.766 P
b} Dalances recaivable Payable

Ax at March As al Yarch
PMame of Relaied Party Mature of framssetion A1, TATN 3, 2000
Boyes Industries Limited Advances Receivables 100,05 664 1,17,07,153
Mamaralle Health Preducts Pyt Lid | Advances Receivabies | 1550138 0584l |
Shri. Rrahina K Gurbari Lnsecured Brarowings | 350414031 Z31,10,010
Smt. Meera B Garbani Unsecured Borrowings | 1,04, 74,835 46,580,463

@) Disclosure of Unsecured Loans received from [rectors and Relatives of Direttors Pursaant 1o
Rule 164 af Companies (Accepranee of Deponits) Rubes 2014 i8 a8 follows.

8 Nn.

—

Mame ol Lender Mature al Relotinn Amp ok
| | Shri. Brahina K Gurboni Directar 3,30,41,403
5 S, Meora B Garbani Relative of Dector 104,74, 825

7. CIF Value of limporis

Faw mnterils
Packing muferials
Traded gooda
Capital poods

FY 2019-20(Rs) 20015-19(Hs.)

38, Previgus yenr's figores have heen re groupad / and or rearranged wherever pecessary 1o
confirm with the curen year classificobion.

- "
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0. Provisson for seeeuing lishility for Super Annuation ! Retirement benefits have been made in
ihe basis of the labilily as actually determined as af the wear anid.

i), Depreciation hus been provided on the sirgight-tine methid o8 per the mtes presenbed @ of
Scheduli 11 of The Companies At 2013,

41, There were o cinplovers drowing remumnerstion of R5.60,00 lacs or mone per anmm o
Rs5.00 lees or more per month, iFemployed for part of the year.

b

. Paban i rounded off o neares! fapee.

44, Whero and Mediom Seale Busioess Enofities: There are oo micro, small snd - mediom
enterprizes, W whom the company over dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days =
ar 3151 Mareh 2020, This information ns required to be disclosed umder the Micre, Small apd
Wedium Citerprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined fo the extent such parties
have been ideniified on ihe hasis of informntion neatlable with the compuany,

4, Additieng] Information purssant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

{As certified by Managernent of the Compan )

Particulirs FY 2019-20 FY 2014-19
Ouantity (Ko | Value (Bs. | Cuontity | Value (Rs
Lalths)  (Kg) Lalihs)
| Opreulig Stock 6IE9673 50295 530857 A A1
Production {Sugar based candics) 2677226 BLA 1512606 MN.A
Closing Steck 758226 70369 BAR0G 50795
Sales — Own product (Sugar bosed condics
Confisctioncry) & Job Werk il R348 249926  ITHTSES 15&3.f-u'
Sales — Job Work -l s7H351R 1214 54
The quantitative detall indicated above includes production & dispatches made on principal to
prineipal basks and Lodn lense busis,
Minterial Consumed FY 201529 FY 201817 |
CQuan ity (Tg) Walue Cmanticy Yalue
(hg)
Raw Material (Mo, / Kgs) . B
- Supar a4 243,54 #1743 30227
- Ulucose 620518 12681 797564 80,16
- Flavers & Cihers 1152412 100.95 1505713 18002
Tatal 1481280 7470 EL )b 652 45
Primary packing Materials 32114 149.83 67837 (76454
hers - - - -
Tatul 7533394 §24.51 J187683 1E09.048
B, Vahe of Imports on CIF Basis N.A Mil il Mil |
C. Expenses on Foreign Curresney | Ml il Wil Wil i




0. Value of Tmpnrted and Indigenous Materinls consumed and % of each ool Consumpton

Particelars Year ended March 31, 2020 Period ended March 31, 2019
Walue Y WValue %
[ Indigenos %,24,53,200 106 Tndigenous |8,42,63,647 100
[ nported - - Impaned - P
Tutal 8,24,33,206 100 Talal 18,42 63,647 0]

Por and pn behslF of baard of divectors
For RRK & Associntes |

Charlered Accountamts o
FRMo 0057855 T e
o\
H oy | oQsod ) BRAHMA GURBANL VISHAL
b foL| Hpelatt [ Managing [Yirector Whole- 1
—— L [ i IR 003 18180) (DTN: 07
| H:_ﬁl_i_la Krizhon R
| M. No. 210777 W
V. sHi Srimivas
CFD
Drate: 2WG 2020
Pluce: Medchal
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The Company - Issuer

SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED
33 Industrial Estate, Medchal - 501 401,
Hyderabad, Telangana. INDIA

Merchant Banker — Manager

GYR CAPITAL ADVISORS PVT. LIMITED
SEBI Category-1 Merchant Banker
428, Gala Empire, Near ] B Tower,
Drive In Road, Thaltej
Ahmedabad 380 054,
Gujarat,
India.

Principal Paying and Conversion Agent

SBM FUND SERVICES LIMITED
SBM Tower 1,
Queen Eizabeth II Avenue
Port Louis,
Mauritius

Registrar Transfer Agent

BIG SHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Pinnacle Business Park,
Office No. S6-2, 6, Mahakali Caves Rd, next to
Ahura Centre, Andheri East, Mumbai-400093
India

Indian Legal Counsel

MR. SUMESH DEWAN
Lex Favios
Advocates & Solicitors
E-299 Greater Kailash-I,
Ground Floor,

New Delhi — 110048

Foreign Counsel

MR. VYOMESH DAVE
49, The Paddocks
Essex - SS6 8NE,
United Kingdom.

Lead Arranger
ARIES CAPITAL LIMITED

Sofia House 3™ Floor
48 Church Street
Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Auditors of the Company

M/s. RRK & ASSOCIATES
A04, IFF The Annexe,
Near Hitech City Rly Station,
13th Phase, KPHB,
Hyderabad-500085




US$ 10,000,000.00
SAMPRE NUTRITIONS LIMITED

[Zero Coupon Bond with 15% Discount due 24" July, 2027]

OFFERING MEMORANDUM

24™ June, 2024



